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HIGHLIGHTS

> Excellent financial » Positive reservafions and

perfomance rental cutiook for 2016/17
> Visible eamings > Development pipeline
growth outicok remains sirong
> Growth prospects
remain sfrong
Eamings par share?-? Dividend per shore
Net assel value® Tolal ex:counting rehum
Profit belore fax Loan-lo-volue ratic

" The finoncial stalernents are prepared in accordance with Internationo! Arancicl
Reporting Standands (FRS]. These financial kghiighls are based on the European Pubic
ReqiEstate Association [EPRA) best praciice recommendations and these performance
measures are published as they ore intended 1o heip users in the comparabifty of these
results acnoss ofher istad neal estate companies in Europe. The melrics are aiso used
infernally to measure and manoge the business ond align to the performance reiated
condihons for Directors' Remuneration.®

2015 and 2014 EPS is basad on adjusted EPRA eaMings

* A full raconcifiction of the financial statements signed unaar IFRS 1o the EPRA
performance measures is set oyt in note 2.2 of the financial statements,

161  Read more on our frequently used terms: Glossary
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PROVIDING HOMES FOR OVER

49,000

STUDENTS

DELIVERED BY

1,450

PASSIONATE
PEOPLE

DPERATING

140

PROPERTIES
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60

UNIVERSITIES
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CELEBRATING
25 YEARS

) WE ARE THE LARGEST AND 200
$/og\> MOST EXPERIENCED PROVIDER £9OU
3\__/# OF PURPOSE BUILT STUDENT nsrefios

“m" ACCOMMODATION IN THE UK. Weiaunchio

1992 1994 1999 200

We open our first property We acquire more properties in We ore fisted on the Alternative We form Europ

in Bristol where we remain Bristol and start specialist property Invesiment Market (AlM] speacialist stude
head-quartered and now management services investment fum
Accommodati

have 140 properties, housing
49,000 students for the 2016/17
academic year

1998 2000

We cpan our first London properties We are floated on London Stock
Exchange to expand inic Manchester,

Liverpool and Pertsmouth
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10th property -

t venture with GIC

6

©'s largest uniisted

nt accommodaation
d, the Unite UK Student
on Fund [USAF)

2009

We are voled one
of 'Britain's Top
Empioyers’ by the
CRF Insfitute

2010

We open a new

London office which

provides a base far
owr property ond
development teams

2011

We have grown ta house 40,000
stuclants in 135 properties across 24
University 1owns and cities every year

we are awarded the Invesiors in
Paople Sitver Award

Wa lounch our employee recognition
programme — the Stars Awords

2012

We found ond donate £8 milion

fo the Unite Foundation —a charity
to support students without famiy
support, Qur first 28 students are
racruited through four universities
and receive scholarships made up
of accommodation and a fiving
alowance 1o support them through
their study vears

We raise £90 milion ofter issuing
a retail bord

We lqunch the London Studiant
Accommodation Vehicle (LSAV]

We scoop the Shudent
Accommadation Operator of the
‘rear aword at Property Week's RES!
cwonds which celebrote successes
in the residential property sector

2014

We lounch our business purpose,
Home for Success

we invest £21 million in Improving
lighting across oll of our buildings
1o benefit our students and

the environment

2016

We are owarded the Investons in People

Gold Award

We open a sales and marketing office
In Befiing

We donate G further £5 million fo the

Unite Foundation in the form of USAF units

Ouwr students and employees raise
£175,000 for Sport Relief

We scoop the Student Accommodation
Operator of the Year award ot Property

Week's RESI cwards for the third time

2015

We pecomae the first Living Woge
Ermployer in our sector

The first four unite foundation
scholars graduate

The Notional Union of Students
awards our studerits 12 Green
Impoxct Awards for their susfainabie
waork while living with us

v
1/2 MILLION
STUDENTS
HOUSED
SINCE 1991
*
WE LAUNCHED
OUR INNOVATIVE
TECHNOLOGY
SOLUTION, PRISM
*
WE EXPANDED
OUR BUSINESS,
OPENING AN
OFFICE IN CHINA
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STRONG
FOUNDATIONS

FOR THE FUTURE

More than half a million students have lived
with us during our 25-year history and we
confinue to grow. In 2014, we opened five
new properiies which means we have the
privilege of housing our largest ever number
of students, 49,000. As the UK's biggest and
most established provider of purpose built
student accommeodation we have leamt

a huge amount from our students and

the universities with which we work.

It is crifical to our 1,450 employees
that we use our unique experience
to continue to develop the most
supportive student experience,
which delivers for our current and
future students, cur universities and,
of course, for our employees.

Qur consistently strong
performance throughout 2016
and visible development pipeline
and operational expertise mean
we are well positioned 1o deliver
sustginable eomings growth in
the coming years for our investors,

2 For more information
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WHERE UWE OPERATE

WE OPERATE ACROSS THE UK IN
24 CITIES, WITH OUR TOP TEN
MARKETS MAKING UP 75% OF OUR
TOTAL BEDS. 47% OF OUR CAPITAL
IS INVESTED IN LONDON.

Our development and forward
funds pipeline

This is our development pipeling until 2019.
Once complete it will bring 6,965 beds 1o the market.

THE UMITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ALCDUNTS 2014

Top ten properties
by value

Moonroia Foint. London Bads: 624 (Wholly owned)
Maonroker POt affers 147 stuchos ond 527 roonms
incluster flats. Stuatedin Zone | andnextio the

Tate Modem, Moonmiker Point provides ahome

for Bng's College. Lomdon students.

® o o o

! New openings . Opening Opening . Opening
in 2014 | In2017 in 2018 | in2019
Graeihom Sireet, Portsmouth St Lanawds, Edinburgh Newgale Sirest, Newcattie Skalhome, Liverpool
(Wholly owned)* {Wholly cwned) (Wholty ownied) (Wholly owned)
836 beds 581 beds 575 beds | 1,085 beds
Cousewayend, Absrdeen MBllsrinium Way, Coveniry Brunel House, Bristol Ol BRI, Bristof
{Wholly owned) (Wholly owned) (Wholty owned) . [Wholty awned)
399 beds 391 beds 232 beds | 706 beas
Far Gosford Streel, Coventry Tara House, Liverpoot | Choucer House, Porsmeouih Constitution Street,
{(Whotly ovmned)* [Wholly owned) {Wholty owned) . Aberdeen
266 beds 776 beds ~ 4840ads | (Whoty owned)
Stapleton House, London Becch House, Oxford® | StVincents, Sheffieid . 600beas
(LsAV) {USAF) 167 beds (Wholly owned) 1

| 862beds Lution Coust, Edinburgh® 545 beds |
Otymplc Way, London (USAF) 237 beds mwmm(
(LSAV) (Wholly owned)
699 beds - 584 beds

* Soid to USAF dunng 2014

New bads i New beds | New beds

3082 2152 2422 2,391
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Staplelon House, London
Beds: B4Z (LSAV)

Great vale, high quoity
student occommodation
next io Holioway Rood
tubye stafion. quick links
fo glicentral London
Universitios.

Stratiord ONE, London
Bady 1,001 (Wholly owned)
This 28 floor propertyis
Unite's lcvgest in London
with panoramic vienws
across Llondon and the
Clympic Park.

The Mazg, Leeds

Bads: 1,500 (USAF)
Completed in two phases,
the property & corvenient
for both Universihes m
Leeds. it offers amnge

of enssuite rooms in
thrae- {0 six-bedroom
figts and studios.

Wobum Mace, Londor
Sodx 455 (LSAY)
‘Wobum Place is idealy
located odjocent o ihrea
tiniversity compuses ond is
at the heart of shudent fife
m cantral London.

St Pancras Way, London
Bedx 51 (Wholly ownad)
S Pancras Way is a short
walk froem King's Cross and
St Pancras stations. The:
buiiding provides a home
for 571 UCL students.

Angei Lane, Londan
Baxis: 759

Cpenedin September
2015 wath @ range of
en suite and stucho

Parkc on the doarsten.

1e

Emily Bowes Court, London
Beds 593 (USAF)

A contemponary room
design, Zone 3 location
and guick finks into central
London make this @

providing guick bnks
to central Londoen,

The Forge, Sheffield
Beds: 1,384
(Wholly

ownad)
Campus-style living within
Q city cenfre envircnment
prowiding homes
forstudents at both
Universities in Sheffield.

Top ten cliles in which we operate®

Rok  Ciy i e~
) London 10,124 22706 3.5%
) Birmingham 4848 57.767 8A%
©  sneffie 3731 51,095 7.0%
Q i 3479 41286 aam
® leex 3,458 53185 6.5%
©  monchesier 2336 65,664 3.6%
@ e 2.239 46245 48%
) Portsmouth 27222 18828 V18%
©  eicester 1.687 3299 SI%
DO  clogow 1,643 57921 28%
Tokal 35,745 707.9% S0%
Proporiion of Unite porfiofio 75%

* Top ten citlas in which we operata has been ad|usted to mflect the
portfolio chonges in February 2017, Aston University on-compus
acquisition [3.067 beds) and the regional portfolio disposal (4,175 beds)

i ; % capitol nvested in London

34 Read more; Propetty review
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OUR PURPOSE

THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANMUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014

Home for success

Individually and
collectively, our 1,450
people are driven by

a common purpose:

o provide the students
who live with us 0 'Home
for Success'. This means
providing the best home
for all students, helping
them grow and succeed
at University and beyond.

We do so through the
passion of our people,
great properties and o
deep-rooted commitment
to customer service for
both our students and
our University pariners.

The best home...

We provide a high quallty and secure Rving
anvironment whete young peopie con develop
academically ond socially.

Becouse we know that while, for most people,
University & a fime of excitament and opportunity.

it can also be o tme of anxiety and stress. Our
research shows that students who feel well
integrated are more resifent and better equipped
to navigate the ransition to University, We therefore
aim to pravide on enviionment, which, in every way,
heips them achieve this,

for all students...

We undersiand hat a Universily education is
nowadays a significant invesiment for young people
and belleve that no-one should miss out simply

b of thekr p al circumstonces.

we therefore offer a variety of accommodation

o dlifferent price points, ranging from rooms with
shared bathrooms, to clusters of ensyite bedrooms
with shared kitchers and Iiving spoces 10 seif-
contained studio apartments. Inaddition. the Unite
Foundation i currently providing accommodation
and o generous Iiving allowance for 134 students
from severely disadvantaged backgrounds at
Universities aeross the UK.

helping them grow and succeed...

For many peopie, University is where the academic
foundations of ther career are loid, But, for every
genenation of students, University s more than simply
g stepping stone to a job.

It maoulds them as individuals and provides o critical
bridge to adulthood, where they canleam the
interpersonai skills thery will need for ife. We therefore
oim fo create an environment that is caring and
suppotive but also oliows our students to express
ther natural desire for independence,

at university and beyond...

We betieve that whare a student lives has a material
impact on ther acodemi: and sotial experience of
University and. ultimately, ther lives.

Through our people, our buiidings and our focus on
customer service, we aimto help our students make
the transition from teenagers o reslient adutts,
equipped for everything that lies ahead. We
regularty measure how well we ore meeting their
needs and are continuously looking for ways to
improve oLy proposition.
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

Delivering our purpose through our business model

Unite Students is the seclor-leading
manager onad developer of student
accommodation, with a high quaiity,
welHlocated portfolio of approximately
140 properties in the UK's strongest
University fowns and cities. We have a
customer-focused approach and work
closely with our University partners to
provide o seamiess service o over 49,000
students, providing thern with a safe and
secure home at a wide range of price
points and roorn sizes, tailoring our service
o meet therr needs.

Qur focused business model seeks fo
deliver low double-digit fotal returns and
sustainable, growing earnings, by
maintaining our competitive advontage.
growing and maintaining the highest
quality portfolio and being the most
trusted brand in the sectior, underpinned
by a strong capital structure,

11 Read more: Market review
12 Read more: Relationships

We operate through two main Business Units:
Operations and Property. Our Cperations
unitis responsible for the portfolo, including
those owned by our co-investrment vehicles,
USAF and LSAV. We aim to defiver operating
cashflows and eamings, defivering
sustainable annuclgrowth in rentalincome
and profits, increasing the value of
ourinvestment portfolio through the
strengthening of our brand, Our operating
platform PRISM enhances and improves
our operational capabilities, delivering
improvernents to custorner services,
revenue management ond demonsirating
the efficiencies of scale.

The Property business unil is responsiole
for our development and asset
management sirategy and oversees our
two co-investment vehicles. We identify
and manage acquisitions, disposals and
the davelopment of operational assets
that enabite us to leverage our highly
scaioble operating platform.

2 Read more: Principal risks
ond uncedoinfies

39 Read more: Operations review

Detivering great custorner service and
building strong relationshigps with our
University partners, the communities in
which we operate, our customers,
suppliers and 1,450 employees s crucial
1O OUr SUCCESS.

We work strategically with University
leaders, using our knowledge and
axperience to help them with the
reabisation of their estates and residences
strategies. We invest in our employees and
support their developrnent, halping them
achieve their personal and professional
potential, We work closely with the koeal
community, from the early stages of
development and pkanning to providing
opportunilies for sfudents living with us 1o
volunteer and bring positive benefils o
the areain which they live. Overall, we
aim fo provide the homes and services
that enable and support our students
personat and academic ochievements,

34 Recd more: Properly review
40 Read more: Ananclol review
&4 Read more: Up to us
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In 2016 we welcomed our largest ever number
of students, 49.000. We are the first home from
home for the majority of our students meaning
that almost one in 10 first year students live
with us. We are responsible for more students
than any single Unlversity.




DELIVERING
FOR OUR

STUDENTS

PRISM

We launched our innovative
technology soiution, PRISM,
which provides a huge ronge
of benefits for our students,

We wil be able fc process their
bookings much quicker and book
them into thex rooms faster when
they armrive o siay with us. PRISM alo
has the capacity to speed up how
we can respond to student nequests
©on maintenance issves,

15 For more information

Ambassador programme
In 2016 we piloted our Student
Ambassador programme,
which aimed to idenitify
students fiving with us who were
willing and passionate to share
their own first-hand experdence
1o help our new students
throughout their time with us.

The 12 initial Ambassodars were
recruited across four City locations
and actively engaged in helping
new students, particularty during
the on-boarding experience, The
Ambassodors quickly became
recognised by new arrivals as the
‘go 10’ people o help them to settie
in and the programme will continue
to develop.

Focus on employability

As part of our Home for
Success commitrment, our
Emnployability initictive identifies
ways in which we can help
students and their friiends

to be successful inincreasing
their employabiiity once they
finish their University studies.

The Student Ambassador programme
pilcted in 2014 was seen os a potentiol
slepping stone to identifying such
future opportunities, while our online
Student Life Hub was also further
developed in 2016 to include
employability fips.

Meanwhile, for students who finkhed
thair University course in 2016. the Uinite
Students Infernship programme gave
students the spaoce and tools 1o leam
rmons aboiut our business, while building
empioyable skils. Ten students joined
us as inferns in 2014, working in all parts
of the business.

45 - For more information
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DELIVERING
FOR OUR

UNIVERSITIES

Qur long-term agreements with more
than 40 Universtiies across England and
Scotiand guarantee that more than 50%
of our students are allocated rooms in our
buildings. As student numbers Increase
and Unlversities seek to attract students,
they look to us to support them by
providing attractive accommodation
that fits with thelr student strategles.

Further strengthening

our Universily parinerships
Dedicated University
portnership team working
coliaboratively with our

40 University partners.

70%

of 2014 openings are let lo
Universities under norningtion
ogreements

58%

of all roomy ket through
University agreemants

[

& For more information

First move info on-campus
In Birmingham

Aston Student Viiage

[ASV) acguisition in central
Birmingham comprises

3,067 roorns in our first move
ON-CAaMpUs.

34 For more information

“1 just think the Unite
product Is inspirational.

| think as a brand, they're
chead of other providers
in that they've kept

the prices not at an
unreasonable level.”

Unite Students Reputation Survey,

2016 — on ndependent survey of
Higher Education institutes

21 For moeve inforrmation
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Investors in

People Gold

Unite Studenis ioined the elite
group of UK companies to
achieve the coveted Invesiors
in Peopte Gold accreditation
in 2016.

Developing our teams continues to
be a priority for us and this accolade
recognises that by providing effective
progrommes acress the company,
our leams can deliver excellent
customer service, while offering

a great place to work with

Q clear commitment to

developing employees.

Living Wage

2016

We were proud 10 receive the
Living Wage accreditation

Tralning

We have cortinued to develop
ouwr comprehensive range of
high quality training courses and
development programmes for
our empioyees af all levels. In
total, 4,100 training days were
delivered 1o help employees
evolve their skills and grow in
tandem with the company.

Our leadership fromework has ako
continued to matune, with 43 delegates
attending leadership courses
throughout the year including

the programmes Becoming o
Supervisor, Becoming @ Mangger
and eadership developmeant.

4,100

we oftered a latal of 4,100 training
days in 20146

Other related content

15 Chief Executive's review

ELJ Qperotions review
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We have 1,450 employees at Unite

Studenis with the majority working

with our students in 24 towns and

cities. They are supported by

250 people In our Bristol support

centre, Qur property and development Q

team have a central London base. g
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RELATIONSHIPS

LWWE RECOGNISE THAT THE STRENGTH
AND SUCCESS OF OUR RELATIONSHIPS
ACRQSS A VARIETY OF STAKEHOLDERS
HELP US TO CREATE LONG-TERM VALUE

FOR THE BUSINESS.

Our success is founded on delivering great customaer service and building strong
redationships with our University partners, the communities in which we operate,

our customars ond employses.

We are committed t6 high ethical standands in the way in which we engage with
our customers, partrers. employees, shareholders, suppliers and other stakehoiders,
Qur repulation os the most trusted brond in our sector is founded on our achievement

of these high standards.

THE UMITE GROLP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND RCCCUNTS 2814

investors and stakeholders

We seek to provide balanced, clear
and fransparent communications that
allow our shareholders to better
understand the business and our
strotegy. through a programme of
reguikr meetings, Capital Markets Days,
results briefings and trading updates
with ils ingtitutional sharehoiders, equity
analysts and investors. These provide
opportunities to discuss the progress

of the bysiness. All presentations given
loinstitutional shareholders are made
available on cur website.

In April 2016, we hosted a Copital
Markets Day which allowed investors
to view qur Coveniry portfolio and
development pipeiing ond the
oppartunity fo interact with our
cutting-edge operating plattorm,
PRISM. In December 2014, a second
Capitat Markets Day held in London
included dermonstrations on how
PRISM improves and streamiines

our operations.

Universities

We aim o mointain the strong
rekgtionships we have built with our
University pariners who trust Unite
Students to provide students with a
safe ond secura home thot supports
their personal and academic
achievement, In 2014, we have
continued 10 grow the proportion of
beds let through University partnerships,
increasing the parcentags of the
portfolio let under nominations
agreements with Universities, to 58%.

We can boost cur recnutment by offedng
assurancesto students (and thelr
parenis) abouf qualify accommodation.
When we understood Unite wes bullding
nextfo Wembley Stadlum we took the
opporiunity to take the whole buliding
for our students ot the start of the 2016/17
academic year. We beileve this will help
our University become part of the
exciting regenerated community around
the stadium, enhancing the experience
for our current and future students,
James Kennedy

Chief Ainancial Officer,

Middiesex University

Students

Unite Students is focused on providing
quality services o its students, at no
extra cost, to ensure that they have
the best resources and facilities
availabla. This includes S0MB/s Wi-Fi
acgess, free forinightty cleaning
servicas for shared spaces, discounts
with retail partners and all inclusive bills
and insurance. We also offer o number
of career opportunities to help them
develop thelr employablity and life skills.

We have also continued io add to
the My Unite app and ocur online
platform, the Student Life Hub which
has improved cur ability to
communicate in real-time with our
students and engage with them on
relesvant, inferesting and useful topics.

Students’ welfare is a core priority for
Unite and there are g number of
inffiatives in place fo help better
understand and address the issues
facing students, conducting extensive
research and working closely with
University pariners to identify and
support struggling students.

The impact the Foundation scholarship
had on my academic abiiity and my
iife in general has been immense. it
pravided me with a safe, comfortable
and independent environment -a
space | covld call my own. And, most
importantly, 0 space which wosn't
going to sprout legs and run away.

Emily Drew
A student and Unite Foundation
graduate 2014
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People

Our people are at the heart of our
business and our engagement with
aif of our stakehoidears. We recruit,
develop and retain empioyees in
accordance wilh the following key
themes: Resaurcing, Rewardl, Talent
and HR Policies and Procedures,
Diversity and Culture.

We are committed to fostering o
diverse and inclusive warkforce with

a culture that is rewarding for ol of our
peopie and that remains engaging
and challenging. We want fo maintain
our culture, which delivers high
employee retention rates ond career
development.

The welfare and professional
development of our employeesisa
high priority for us. We hove effective
systems through which can identify
appropriate, high quality training
programenes for our employees to
avolve their skils and grow in tandem
with the company.

{ have worked at Unite Students for
nearly 12 years. | have leamt and
goined so much through my time
hare. # raclly hos been a great
expedence. | stotedoff as a
caretaler In Bimingham bul | always
had a parficular interest in elechical
work and my menior of the tima,

strw potential in me. With his and the
business’ help | was cble go back to
college to complele my basic English
and Numeracy excms and mave on
to study to be an Electriclan.

Jon Cash
Units $tudents Central
Compliance Team

Suppliers

We rely on the strong relationships
that we develop with our suppliers
and nariners. We aim to ensure they
share our corporate commitment

to proviging excellent service to our
customers and wider stokeholders,
and that they are most suited 10 our
long-term strategy. By selecting the
right suppliers through G rigorous
tender process. we can ensure thot
they encble us to drive etficiencies
and improve margins, from both

oan operctional and a development
point of view. This enabiles the
forming of strong. strategic and
mutually bensficiol partnerships with
consistently high stondards ot quality
and innovation.

Technology is an important rescurce
for Unite Students and following the
appointment of a supplier, we
conduct ongoing and regular vendor
rmanagemeant activities through
cotiaboration between the
Procurement and IT departments. This
process is designed to not only monitor
performance against agreed levels,
but 1o ensure we continue 1o take a
teading role in indusiry developments.

Forbo Flgoring Systems have been
working with Unfle for overfour years
now, and i Is o parinership we are
proud to be part of. From working
with the accommodation designers
o ensure we get the right flocring
solutions for the application, fo
managing the glont loglstics and stock
conirol requirermants fo ansure projects
run smaothly, we are pleased fo be port
of the process svery step of the way.

Blizabeth Bushell
Key Accounis Manager,
Forbo Flooring Systems

Charities and communities

we appreciate the central role that
we play in the mahy communities we
QCCUpRy across the UK, We work ciosely
with the local community, from the
early stages of development ond
planning to providing opportunities for
students fiving with us to volunteer and
bring pasitive benefits 10 the areain
which they live.

In 2014, in support of our 2016 charity,
Sport Rakef, our students, people ond
marathon static cycling world record
hotder Jamie McDonald cycied
43,000 miles and raised £175,000 on
The World's Biggest ‘Virtual' Tandem.
This included a static bike challenge
in 24 cities where we have student
accommodation and the John
QO'Groats to Lands End challenge.

We also continued our national
volunteering prograrme, lkaunched

in 2015, which aliows every employee

< paid day 1o volunteer for o good
cause. We also encourage our students
to volunteer and support local and
national charities. For exampie through
clothing donations alone we raised
£140,000 for Cancer Research. The Unite
foundation continues to support young
people from the most challenged
backgrounds achieve @ degree.

We are deiighted thot Unlte Students
took on this amazing chollenge and
raised such a fantastic amount for
Sport Rellef 2014. The money ralsed
will heip give exitremetly vuinerable
and disadvantaged people in the
UK, and across the world’s poorest
communilies, a helping hand to lum
their Kves around.

Anne-Caclie Barthier

Head of Fundralting & Parinerships,
Comic Rellef which manages Sport
Railet, our charity for 2014
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

STRONG PERFORMANCE DELIVERED
THROUGH TALENT AND HARD
WORK OF OUR TEAMS

Phil White
Chairman

Govemadnce highlights

The Govemance Report on pages
50to 77 (inclusive) provides
details of the Group's approach
1o govemance and how it supports
the delivery of our sirategy.

The highiights of the yearinciuded:

> Succession planning and talent
development - CEQ transition
during 2016

> Govemancs/risk manogement
folowing Leove vote and dynamic
extarnal markat

> Substantial investment in PRISM

> Freparation for REIT conversion
on ! January 2017,

EL For more information

2016 has been a landmark year for Unite
Students for several reasons: celetrating
our 25th year, welcoming cur 500.000th
custormer and providing homaes for 49,000
students, our largest ever intake in a single
year. We also achieved a Gold
accredilation in the 'Investors in People’
people management standord, placing
us in the top tier of businesses.

Parformance has again been strong,
with @ total accounting returmn of 15%
and growth in Adjusted EPRA eamings
10 £61.3 million, up 24%. Profit before

tax wos £201.4 million which inCludes
property revaluations of £1346.3 million
[2015: £388.4 million and £324.4 million
respactively). As a resull of this strong
perfarmance, we are increasing aur
dividend poy-out ratio to 75%, a year
ahead of schedule and declaring a finol
dividend of 12.0p. This adds up to a totat
of 18.0p for the full year, an increase of
20% year on year.

Unite Students is a service brand and the
strong performance we have delivered
for our custorners, University partners ond
shareholders is only possible because of
the talent and hard waork of our leams
across the business. On behalf of the
Board, | wouid like to thank therm for
another excellent year.

THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REFORT AMO ACCOUNTS 2416

- On 31 May, Mark Allan stepped down as

Chief Executive, a rolke he held since 2006,
Mark piayed a key role in the success ot
Unite Studenis and on behalf of the Board
and everyone at Unite, | would like to
thank him for his service and wish him
wel for the futune.

Richard Srmith hos taken over as Chief
Executive, having been the Monaging
Direclor of our Operations butiness for
the last five years, successfully leading
the transtormation of our service delivery
and implementation of our PRISM
operating platform.

A core part of our recent success has
been our consistent strategy and we

will continue 1o focus on its three moin
elements: fo deliver great service 1o

our sfudents and University partners,

to operate briliant buidings and to
maintain high quality eamings and o
strong capfital structure. As a result of our
continuing progress in these areas, we
have successfully fransitioned to become
a RER, effective from 1 January 2017, and
we believe this is consistant with our focus
on income and capilal discipiine,

The outlook for our market remains
positive with structunc| growth being
supported by the strangth of the world
rencwned UK Higher Education seclor,
increasing participation rates, the
internationalisation of Higher Education
and the shortage of housing in the UK.

The impact of Brexit is starting to become
clearer and we do not expect it o have
a raterial impact on student numbers.
Cur high quality portfolio, University
ralationships ond market-lecding
operating plitform leave us well ploced
o continue performing strongly in the
yeors to come.

Phil White
Chalrman

© 22 February 2017
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

MAINTAINED FOCUS TO DELIVER
HOME FOR SUCCESS FOR ALL
STUDENTS WHO LIVE WITH US

Richard Smith
Chief Executive Officer

Financial highlights

EPRA eamings

£62.7m

Adjutied EPRA sarnings

£61.3m

Adjusted EFRA EFS

277p

Einﬁi.lrm

Basic EPS

101.3p

Diviclend per shore

18.0p

Tolal accounting retum

15%

34%

iy my first year as Chief Executive, |am
piaased to raport ancther strong set of
ressults far the year ending 31 December
20156. We have maintained our focus on
delivering sustainable growth inrecurring
profits and cash flow in the long term,
and delivering a Home for Success 1o all
of the students who live with us, We ao
this by providing great service and
operating briliant buildings that studenis
and Universities choose. We olso ensure
investment discipline o maintain

a strong capilat structure and defiver
high-quclity earnings.

Performance in 2016 was driven by
another year of strong growth in EPRA
earnings, rental growth and development
profits, combining 10 deliver a totol
accounting return of 15%. Adjusted EPRA
eamings (adjusted to exciude the yield
related elerment of the USAF performance
fea) increased by 24% to £61.3 million
and now reprasents cne-third of the

total shareholder relurn. As aresult of

the significant growth in eamings and
the positive outkook for further eamings
growth, we are declaring a finai dividend
of 12.0p {2015: 7.5p]. making a dividend
per share of 18.0p for the full year (2015:
15.00), an increase of 20% year on year.

We are continuing 0 focus on growing
eqarnings in absolute terms and also asa
proporion of our total retum. This is driven
by our ability o continue growing remal
levels on an annual basis, the delivery of
cost afficiencies and from the completion
of cur high-quaiity development pipeline.

Qur PRISM operating phatform, which
became fully opemtionalin 2014, provides
us with @ unigue copobility ta drive:

valuea from our portfciio through scale
efficiencies and revenue management,
supporting cur ongoing income focus.

15

Since the year end, we have completed
two important strategic initicatives with the
acquisition of o 3,100-bed, on-campus
partiolio at Aston University ond also

the sale of aregional portfolio, which
together improve our portfolio quality
anct focus on the best Universities.

The business compieted its planned
conversion fo becorne a REM on 1 kanuary
2017, This transifion supports our continued
focus on eamings, capital discipline and
commitment to distribute eamings to
shareholders. As a result of the strong
performance and positive outlook, we
have accekerated our increased pay-out
ratio to 75% of Adjusted EPRA eomings
[excluding USAF performonce fees)

a yearahead of schedule.

Delivering great service fo our

students and University pariners
We providie a high-quality and secune fiving
environment where young people can
develop gcadernically and socially ond
moke the most of their time at University.

for many pecpie, University is where the
foundations of ther career are laid. We
understand that a University education is
a significant investment for young people,
and believe that no-one shoukd miss out
simply because of their personal
circumstances. But, for every generation
of students, University is more than simply
a stepping stone fo ajob. It moulds them
as individuais and providet a critical
bridge to adulthood, where they can
learn the interparsonal skills they will need
for life. We believe that where a student
lives has o material impact on their
acodemic and scciol experience of
University and. yltienately, their lives. We
tharefore aim to cregie an environment
which is caring and supportive, but alse
alkews our studants to express their natural
desire for independence.

We recognise that affordabdity of Higher
Education is animportant consideration
and therefore we offer o variety of
accommaodation at different price

points 1o students with the maojority of

our accommodotion focused at the
mid-range price point for purpose-buitt
student accommodation. 65% of our
custorners are from fthe UK and we
confinue 1o otroct growing numbers of
sacond and third-yeaor students, who now
make up ene-third of our custormer base.
We will continue to focus on providing our
customers with excellent service and an
experience that they vailue,

Our focus on the student experience &
compietely aligred to the aims of our
University portners, for whorm student
experience is a key measure. With
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

CONTINUED

students spending morne time in their
accommodation than on campus, we
can demonstrate to Universities how we
can support therm ond thew ambitions.
This focus has led to 58% of cur
accommaodation being let to Universities
through nominations agreements. With
an average remaining ffe of six years, our
nominations agreements provide income
ond rental growth certainty on over half
of our revanue. In turn, this provides
protection from any potential changes o
student numbers, and has helped 1o deliver
average occupancy of $8% and renfal
growth of 3.5% over the last five years.

Students too, expact more from their
accommadation and this year, we
maintained customer service satisfoction
levels - akey performance indicator for
vs—at high levels, ptacing us on ¢ par
with some of the best European service
companies. We also secured excellent
results in our independently assessed
employee effectiveness ond University
trust scores. The delivery of great cystomer
service to students and Universities
transiates into our strong financial
performance, delivering cccupancy of
98% and rental growth of 3.8% in 2016
{2015: 98%, 3.8%). With our new operating
systern, PRISM we have also defivered
further improvermnments o our NOI margin
and overhead efficiency measure.

Qur paople, University redationships, the
quality of cur portfolio, PRISM and the
broader operating platform set ys apart
from the other operatorsin the sector
and will support the ongoing growth

in our porifolio, service levels and
finencial performance.

Operating briliant buildings

Our strategy is built around the quality,
location and scate of our perifolic. we
aim to operate buildings that are located
in and around the Universities with the
best prospects. Wae believe that our focus
on high-quality Universities goross the UK
is the best s¥ategy to achieve continued
high leveds of oocupancy and rental growth,
We generate 82% of ourincome from
customers attending high and mid-
ranked Universities, increqsing to 84% on
compiletion of our development pipeline.

During 2016, we opened 3,100 new beds,
invested £12 milkon in asset management
and refurbishment programmes and sald
£114 million of assets (on a see-through
basis). Taking into account these activities
fogether with valuation movemaents, the
value of our investrent portfolio {including
our share of co-investment vehiclas)
increqsad by 14% to £2.1 billion as at

31 Decamber 2016 and is valued at an

average portiolio yviekd of 5.45% (2015;
£1.8 bilion and 5.55% yield).

We also made excelient progress with

our development pipeline during the year.
We completed five new buildings over the
summer and secured an additional four
new development schemes, which
increases our secuned developrment
pipeding to 7.000 beds for delivery aver

the next three years. Construction of oll
our 2017 openings is progressing in line
with plans, ptanning consents and build
contracts are in pkace fior all of our 2018
deliveries and planning permission is in
place for all but one of our 2019 schemes.

We are continuing 1o see attractive
development opportunities in strong
University markets and we plan o invest
salactively in farget markets to enhance
portfolio guality and defiver target
retums. Whiist demand for student
accommodation rernains sfrong in
London, the fallin land prices over the
kast 12 months has not beaen sufficient,
when combined with new planning
requirerments for affordable student
housing provision, to enable us o achieve
our target returmns. We will continue to
monitor the situation for opportunities.

The anticipated yield on cost of our
secured pipefine & 8.4% and prospective
returns on new schemes remain attractive
at 8.0-8.5%. The secured development
pipeline is highly accretive and remains

a significant cormponent of our future
eamings growth and could contribute
12-14 pence per share to EPRA earnings
once byit out,

We continue to target acquisitions of
completed assets and portfolios that
enhance the quality of our portfolio and
Ihe earnings profie of the business, These
acquisitions ore targeted through our
co-investment vehicles due o their lower
cost of capital, allowing us to generate
enhanced retums through our asset
monagement and ccquisition faes.

USAF has acguired two assets under
development which wil be cpened for
the 2017 academic year. These ‘forward
fund® assets represent 404 beds, in Oxford
and Edinburgh and were purchased for

o combined tokal of £54 milion. Following
the yeor end, LSAV acquired o £227 million
portfolio located on the Aston University
compus. This exciling development allows
us to build a strategic relationship with a
high-ranked University and to leverage our
PRISM operoting systern to deliver sirong
finrancial returns.

Disposals remain an important part

of our strategy and we will continue

to recycle assefs out of our portfolic to
ensure that we increase exposure to the

best Univarsities in the UK, ond alo to
generate capital to invest in further
development activity and exciting
opportunities such as the Aston Student
Vilage acquisition. During 2016, we sold
£114 million of assets {on o see-through
basis) including the sale of two assets to
USAF. These assets were sold in line with
book valuations. We intend to sell
£150-200 miifion [Unite share} of assets on
asee-through basis during 2017 to take
advantage of the ongoing strength in the
imvastment market and to ensure that we
maintain a strong and fiexible balance
sheet as we progress our development
pipeine. We have made good progress
already in 2017, having completed the sole
of o 4,175-bed regional porifolio in February
for £295 milion {Unite share £102 milion)

in Ine with bock value.

Maintaining high quafity eamings
and a strong caphtal structure

We have maintoined full occupancy
across our portfolic [$8%) with rental
growin of 3.8%. With 58% of this incorne
underpinned by nomingtions
agreements, we have a high levet of
visibility in the ongoing occupancy and
rental growih outook of the portfolio. In
addition to revenue growth, a focuson
efficiency has resutted in further
improvemants in our NOI margin up to
73.1% (2015: 72.5%). and in our overhead
efficiency revenue which shows that our
overheads, net of monagement fees,
now represents 40 basis points of gross
osset value (2015: 48 bass points). We
remain confident about cur ability to
make further efficiency gains and to
deliver our largets of 75% and 25-30 basis
points by the end of 2017,

Unite's share of net debt grew by £45
rmiflion to £776 million in 2016, Qur capital
expanditure programme [Unite snare
£146 million] was majority funded bty

our disposal prograrnme and retained
earnings. We maintained our LTV within
our farget range in the mikd-30% level ot
34% [2015: 35%) as development profits
and rental growth cutstripped the
increase in net debt. Our net debt to
EBIDA ratiois 6.5 (2015 6.9). again within
our farget level which we intend to maintain,

Intgrest rates have remained at low levels
throughout 2014, and we have continued
to take advantage of these historically
low ratas both on new debt facilities and
through entering into forward storting
interest rate swaps in respect of future
borowing requirements of gur secured
development pipeline. As aresult of these
activities, our avenage cost of debt has
fallen o 4.2% from 4.5%. We expact it io
fall a little further over the nex! few years
as forward starfing swaps becomes

'



THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016

effective. Af these lavelk, the sprecd to
ungeared development yields and
investrment yields remains significant.

The Geoup's conversion to REIT status
reflects the consistency and quality of the
eamings profike and its conservative
financing strategy. The Group will ensure
that the balance of business. georing ratios
and dividend pay-out levels remain within
the guidelines set aut within the RET regime.

Market and strategy

The outiook for the student ccoommodation
sector remaing positive, with structunol kactors
continuing to drive: the demand: supply
mbalkance in the University markets inwhich
wa operate. The UK Higher Education sector
is recognised gicbally for the strength of its
Universities and contrisution that it mokes fo
rasearch. innovation, falent devisiopment
ond the UK economy more broadly. The UK
15 the second most populor destination for
international students and has 18 out of
the world's iop 100 Universtties and 47 of
Ewope's top 200 Universities. We expect
the UK Higher Educafion sector fo
maintain its global standing and reputation.

The number of applicants ond the number
of students accepted infa courses in 2016
was agan at record levels at 725,000 and
540,000 respectively {2015 710,000 and
530,000}, ariven by growth in demand from
both UK and international students, With
appiicants outstripping the ploces offered
by Universities by 185,000, the sectoris
well placed ta withstand any potential
reductions from UK demographics or the
impact of the UK leaving the EU,

Following the removai of the student
number cap in 2015, the Higher Education
sectar is facing further change with the
introduction of the Teaching Excellence
Framework (TEF] in May 2017, This wil provide
studenis with greater visibility of the quality
of teaching at Universities and also allow
Universities to increose fees in ling with
inflation if they meet certain criteria. We
expect the TEF to have a significant impact
on the attractiveness of Universities,
particuiarly to UK students, and we are
well ploced fo respond fo changes
rasulting from this new information.

The gap between the number of appiicants
and the number of University places could
be reduced by external factors, including
the potential impact of the EU reterendum
on student numbers. Since 2015, a
gemographic frend has seen a reduction
in the number of 18-21 year olds, affecting
the next four years. Early appk:ations dola
in January 2017 shows o 5% reduction in
appliconts for the 2017/18 acadermic yeor.
However, we expect that the 185,000
surplus of applicants over ploces and the

removal of fhe cap means the number of
students accepted onto courses will not
be materially impacted, and we expect
the high and mid-ranked Universities to
recruit more students than those ot the
lower end of the league tables.

The qualities of the student accommaodation
secior have attracted significant levels of
oapiol investrment over the last three years
with ovex £11 bilion of investrnent activity. This
ncreased investment activity has also seen
Ihe level of new supply increase ond the
Iotal number of purpose-built beds to
increase 1o 250,000 beds (14% of the UK's
student popukation). The outlook for new
supply suggests that the rate of new supply
will continue at a similar rate of around
20,000-25,000 over the next two years.
However, a significant proportion of the new
beds are focused on the upper end of
the price range which will have a minimal
impact on our type of accommodation.

Furthermore, our exposure to changes

in student numbers is mitigated by our
high guality University relotionships and
nominations agreements end therefore
we remain confident that weli-located,
mid-range, direct-let student
accommodation will be able to maintain
nigh levels of cocupancy and rental growth.

Outlook

Building on a period of consistent strong
performance, and supportive market
fundamentais. the Group remains well
placed to deliver sustainable eamings
growth in the years ahead. Our
development pipeline and operationat
expertise provides good visbility over the
future rental growth and increasing
recurting earnings. Our portfolio is
focused on stronger Universities, plus our
highly scakable operating platform and
strong brand lsaves us weil placed to
extend our market leading position.

Despite the broader macro uncertainties
crealed by the EU referendum, the
supply/dernand outiook for student
accommoedation remains in our

favowr, and we will I0ok 10 benefit

from opportunities to extend our
develapment pipeline, grow on-campus
accommodation and strengthen University
relationships. With this backdrop, astrong
balance sheet and our new REIT status,
we are confident that the: business
remains well placed 1o deliver highly
attroctive shareholder returns,

Richard Smith
Chief Execullve Officer
22 February 2017
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Chief Executive's QLA

Richard Smith
addresses some topical
quesfions from our sharehoiders

What has the highlight of 2014
been for the business?

A L 2016, we welcomed our
500,000th student to Unite
Students, a fantastic milestone in fhe

Comgpany's 25-year history and
testoment to the high quality service
we provide students during their
university careers. The iaunch of PRISM
was anather important achievement
in 2018, which is delivering significant
efficiencies for the business and
considerably improving the customer
experience we can offer to students,

G

aQ How will the exit from Europe
affect the business?

Jl Following the EU referendum, the
Government has confimed that

ol existing EU students and for the
2016/17 and 2017/18 acadamic years
will have funding provided for the
duration of their courses, With 9% of
our students coming from the EU. any
potentialimpact on student numbers
from the EU referendum wouid have
a limited impact an Unite's occupancy
given the continued supply/demand
imbalance. We continue to be positive
on the outiook for the higher education
sector in the UK which is recognised
globally for its excellence and its ability
to attract talkent from across the workd.

25 Read more: Brexit

a Does the boord plan to expand the
executive management team?

Pl The Board, senicr management
and | remain focused on and
committed to tha continued success of
the business. The Board hos established

a comprehensive seniof leadership
development programme to grow
and nurture our falent and develop
our high parformers, This ensures we
hove a clear talent pipeline for future
Board appointments.
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MARKET REVIEW

MARKET FUNDAMENTALS

REMAIN ROBUST

This year we are saging another year

of student number growth with more
students accepting places for the 2016/17
acadernic yeor thon ever before, A fotal
of 535,000 students started at University
in 2Q15/16, taking the total number of
full-time students o £1.8 million, up from
£L.7 million in 201415, Acceptances have
risen 15% snce fulfion fees were infroauced
in 2012. Applications confinue to outstrip
acceptances. A record 723,353
opplications were received for 201617
which left o demand gap of 188,450
stucients. This number has remained
sKable for the: last five years. See Rgure 1.

Demand drivers for student
accommodation

We fully expect the demand for UK Higher
Education ta continue from both domestic
ond infermational studants. Mone young

peopie in the UK one choasing 10 go to
University thon ever before, with 37%

of 18-year-okis now applying to go to
University up from 33% 10 years ago.
Expectations confinue to rise and we
axpeac! lo see schodl leavers continug 1o
prace real vaue on a University educafion.
The UK remains the #2 destination for
international students in Higher Education,
attrocting 10% of infemnational students.
The UK drows almost double the number
of intemational students compared

with third place Australic. S5ee Figure 3.

The UK continues to atiract intemational
students due to the high quality of the
Universities in the UK. The UK now has
three universities in the global top ten,
fourin the top 20 and seven in the fop 50
in Europe, six of the top seven univessities
ore UK institutions. $ee Figure 5.

Figure 1: Appicants and occeptances (thousands]

Figure 2 PBSA beds (thousands)
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Edycofion agents support these rankings
s 91% rated the UK, as a destinotion to
study as “attractive” or “very attractive™.
This wiil support UK nationals’ desire to go
to university at home as well as drowing
more international students to the UK,
Infernational numbers grew by 15,000
batween 2014715 and 2015/14.

Student numbers

Total student numbers in the UK have
been steodily increasing since 2012. The
2016717 year is expecting 1o see 1.8 milion
students {under-graduate and post-
graduate] in the UK. This s o 2% increase
from 2015/16 and comfortably above 1%
average student growth of the previous
five years. See Figure é.

The number of intarmational students has
grown since 2015/16 by 1% 1o 428,000.

infernational students make up a

higher proportion of demand for
accommeodation. They account for 30%
of students needing accommodation,
comparad with 25% of full-time studenis.
See Figure 4.

Unite maintains its focus on providing beds
for thote segments of the market that

suit PBSA, namely international students,
who account for 35% and first years, who
account for 85% of our beds.

Figure 3: Infernational
tiudent mobility
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Figure 4: Demcnd for accommodalion (%)

Supply of purpose built student
accommeodation

The structurol growth of the Higher
Education sector has attracted significant
level of investment aver the last three
yeaors. This increased invesiment hos seen
PBSA beds grow from around 200,000 in
2014 to 250,000 in 2016. A further 50.000
beds are expected to be built over the
next two years, taking the total 1o around
16% of the full-time student populotion.

In @ more competitive market place,

the quality of the portfolic, price point,
customer sarvice and university
relationships are crifical 1o ensuring fuyll
occupancy and ongeing rental growth,

Brexit and immigration

The fullimpoct of Brexit on the UK Higher
Education sector will become clearer
over tha next few months. Funding
amrangements have been confirmed

for current EU students and those starting
in 2017/18.

Folkowing Brext, we expect to see EU
students join other international students
and therafore see an increase in fees,
However, given the quality of UK Univarsities
and the attractiveness of studying in

the UK, we estimale that overall student
numbers from the EU should only fall by
around 20,000 — 30,000, Universities will
work hard to ensure that any fall In stugent
numbers is mitigated with additional
recruitment from the UK, the EU and fram
other international destinaticns.

Agure 5: University rankings [institutions}

Figure 6: Full ime student numbsers {milions)

The UK's immigration policy for
international students remains one of the
maost robust in the world, compared with
ather major destinations for internationol
students. Infemational students make a
significant contribution to the UK econormy,
generating an estimated £10.7 billion of
export earnings for the UK, and over
135,000 jobs, Immigration and immigration
policy remains a political issue and the
sector will continue o monitor and assess
the impact of any further changes in

this areq.

EU research funding curently accounts
for £488 million or 2.5% of total income

for Universifies and there one concerns
regarding the long-term outiook for this
funding. Universities' exposure to this issue
varies, with six UK institutions receiving over
50% of thewr research funding from the EU.

19
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However, the Government has siated that
Universities will have certainty over future
funding and should continue to bid for
competitive EU funds while the UK remains
o member of the EU, with a commitment
that the Treasury will underwrite the
payments of such awands, even when
specific projects confinue beyond the

i UK's departure from the EU.
5 Reoad mone: Qur business model
ond sirategy
26 Read more: Pincipol isks
ond uncertoiniies

g
o
3
g
g

SIUGLUOIDYS |DIDLDULY

Lo DULIOYU IBYO



KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

FINANCIAL KP1S

Eamings per share*

Pence

28p

Measure

Our EPRA earnings KPlisa
meqsure of profil per shore
in fine with EPRA guidedines.

Nei asset vaiue*
Pence per share

646p

Measure

Our EPRA NAV per share
measures the market value of
properties and developments
less any debt used to fundg
thearn plus any working capital
in the businass.

Comments Target

Sustainable growth in earnings  Deliver visible and

has been driven by high levels  meaningful growth

of cccupancy and rental in EPS by maintaining
growth supporfed by o focus  high occupancy rental
on delivering operational growth and delivaring the
efficiency. The growth in development pipeline.
eqmings undemins our

strategic priorities of delivering

great service and growing

and susiainable earnings.

Commaents Target

Consistent NAV growth has To continue delivering
been defivered through rental  strong balonced retums.
growth. yield compression, contribuling to a double-
development profits and digif fotal refum,

retained eamings. Our
sustainuble growth in NAV
reflects the implamentation

of the business model and

our strategic priority 1o operate
brikiant properties.

73 Rernuneration

Allgnment to strategy 2 ° Alignment to strategy oo
Tolal accounting retum Loan-lo-value ratio

% 4

Measure Measure

The total return to shareholders is Qurratic of net debtt to

the ratio of growth in EPRA NAV property values.

plus dividends paid as a

percentage of opaning

EPRA NAV,

Commaents Maintaining a strong fotal Commenis T

Total return has overaged 16%  retum from our portfolic Continued to deliver reduction To maintain LTV around
in the kast six years, driven by the  is a result of our business in LTV through ongoing focus  the mid 30% level.

growthin EPRA eamings, ylekd  model and delivery of
compression, renial growth and  our strategic priorities.
develcpment profits. The

performance in 2016 wos Target

delivered by focusing Continue 1o deliver

on growing rentol levek and double digit-total retums.
the defivery of our high quality

development pipeling.

Allgnmaent to strategy

* Resuits are based on the Europeon Pubic
Real Estate Association Performarnce meQsures,

on dispotals and growing the

value of the property portialio. 73 Remunerafion
Cur LTV reflects our strategy to

rmaintain the strongest capital

structure in the sector.

Alignment to strategy
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OPERATIONAL KPIS

Satety

Number of accidents

5

Measyure

The numiber of reportable
acciients in our Operations
business each year as a means
of assessing our success in
approaching health and safety.

Key

1

——0——©

Great service Bnlilant propertes
Customer satistaction

%

Measure

We underiake an independent
survey with TNS twice ayearfo

understand our relationship with

aour customers, the experience

Growing and
wstonable somrings

we provide and their likehood fo

Comments

rebook and recormmend Unite.
priority within our Commants Targe!
Cur Accident Incident business and supports While there has been We gim o reach the fop
Manogement System (AIMS),  our strategic priority 1o improvement in customer 10% of benchmarked
has pravided us with greater  offer great service. satisfaction over the prior four  companies within the
vBibiity on our incident years our 2016 result moved next three years.

reporting, enabling us o Target back 3% points, We need to .
implement new ways of Wae strive toreduce the work hard through oursirategic 72 Remuneration
warking that hove improved number of reportable priority tc offer great service so
efficiency. Safety is 0 high inciclents year on year. that we put customers at the

heart of that process.
Allgnment to shralegy S2.2 Alignment fo strategy S2.3
Employee effectiveness Higher Education trust
% %
Measure Measure
We have an employee survey Annual qualitative research with
100, run by the Hays Group, our Higher Education pariners to
colled Employeea Effectiveness. understand their percepfion of

Unite and the degree to which

we meet their needs.
Comments Target Commanis focus of providing a Home
Qur hew survey resutts provided  We aim to increase the Understanding what our Higher  for Success, we need fo
detailed insight into the employee effectivarness Education pariners needfrom  conlinue to work hard o
mativations and driversof our  perceniage above the us, both for thernselves as ensyre this is reflected in
employees and positions us 6% 60% threshoid. institutions and for their students, the score.
above the General UK Industry is @ vital part of improving our
Benchmark {48%) and 1% level of service ta offer great Iomo_l .
behind the High Performing service. The overall soore isinfing  We aim 1o reaeh the mid
Industry Benchmark (55%) in with last year ond whilstour  80% level within the next
our third year. strong University parinerships M€ years.

were supported by the ongoing.
Alighment lo stretegy _a.3 Alignmaent to strotegy o 3

Q
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RISK MANAGEMENT
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STRATEGIC PLANNING AND
RISK MANAGEMENT IN A
DYNAMIC EXTERNAL MARKET

Chils Szpojnarowicz

Company Secretary and Head of Legal

2014 - the year we celebrated
our 25th birthday — was the most
dynamic extemal market the
PB3A sector has seen to date.
With the Higher Education sector
and the broader economy facing
new challenges such as Brexi
and political changes arcund
the globe, our strategic planning
and risk management is evolving
in response o these changes.

Being well prepared for a combination

of risk events happening at the same time
is central ta our readiness preponation.
Affordability and value for money is
increasingly important and ourrisk
managerment focus on student experience
and the efficient delivery of a quality
product is more important than ever.

The following pages provide insight into
our kezy risks and how we navigate them,

Related seclions

Assessing ovr risk profile and key
risk developments during 2014

As anintrinsic port of our stralegic
planning, and to support the Boand’s
robust assessment of the Group's
principal risks and its ongoing longer term
viability, the: Board conducted a thorough
review of our risk profile. This review
involved both a top-down approach:

> the Board considered a wide range
of strategic and emaerging risks and
opportunities and their impact

and a battom-up approach:

» the Board scrutinised and challenged
the risks identfified in the Operations
and Property Business Units, as welt
our financing and treasury risks.

To ensure a broader perspective, this
revigw inCluded engogement with external
axparts, such s property valuers & heatth
& satety auditors, as well as senior keaders

Market risks

Incraasing uncertainty foliowing the Leave vote and the impact

in tha Higher Education sector. This

exlemal engogernent was especiaily
important this year as the sector starts to
digest the mmpact of Brexit.

Thi risk profile review identified four
risk categaries:

Maorket - supply and demand 26
Operational risks 27
Property/development risic 28
Financing risks 2%
Thease risk categoaries are consistent
with those identified in prior years,
with movernent in specific risks —

driven principally by uncertainty
due to Brexil — as follows.

{reduction on the Higher Education sector, UK plc and immigration poficy
In demand) uncertainty flowing from this.
| While the impact of Brexit on the UK econormy and Higher
' Educotion sector remnains unclear, it has ked fo greater uncertainty.
We have focused o significant proportion of our risk activity
5 Business madel and strotegy understanding the potentiaiimpact on our business.
12 Relotionships Property/ Liquidity and uncertainty in the broader real estate sector.
N - | developmend risks

18 Market overview
20 Key performance indicators (KPls)
26 Principal risks and uncertainfies

50 Corporate govemnance

The property market has been atfecied by Brexit ang broader
macro econamic factors. We hove focused risk activity on
determining haw this impacts our property-reloted business
activity during the yeor.

26 Read more: Principal risks ond uncertainties on poges 26 1o 29.
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Re-calibrating our risk appetite in 2018

he Group's risk appetite is considered as a fundamental part of the Board's sirategy setting and annual budget - it does not happen
in isokation. Our risk appetite is undenpinned by cur principal financial aim to continue delivering double-digit tolal retumns and
sustainable growing earnings. Having regard to the key risk developments in 2018 set out on page 22, the Board recalibrated ourrisk
appefite. This recalibnation considers both threats o — and opportunities in - our business in tte Context of macro and minor developments,
not only in the PBSA sector, but aiso the brooder Higher Education sector, property market and econamy more generally.

Gredl setvice With higher fee levels, the affordability and value of Higher Education remains a risk focus.
Home for Success, PRISM ond our University relationships rermain an oppartunity for us fo differentiate
from competitors.
Brilllont properties  Focusing our portfolic on high quality Universities and recycling our portfolio in o competilive market place,
_e_ Undertaking development activities.

Growing ond During 2016, focus on becoming a REIT and ongoing compliance with REIT fests 1o enable RET conversion
sustainable samings effective 1 Jonuary 20017,
_ _o Planning and completing our conversion to REN status.
Maintaining full occupancy across our portfolic.

g
i
i
;

Stress testing our

strategic planning

Each year, the Boord develops and
refreshes the Group's Strategic Plan,
This is based on detailed three-year
strategic/financial projections (with
related scanario planning] and rolls

forword for a further two years using Increqse in Yield
more generic assumptlions. The Boord . N
maps our three strategic objectives interest rates expansion
set against currisk profile [described The influences

directly betow). Recognising that risk of multiple

events do not necessarily happen in combined

isclation, the Board then siress tests risk evenis

these projections against various
multiple combined risk events. Through
this process. a base case and siress
tested Strategic Plon is deveioped.

S{UBLUBLOS [ODUDUY

. ) . Reduction in EU/
During 2014, this stress tested scenario international
pianning considered a material
reduction in the number of European students
and international students. a material
rise intong term interest rates ond
yield expansion, together witha
cembination of all these events
occurting at the same time.

Mapping our three shrategic objectives against our risk profile %
Great service Market (supply The heallh, safety. welbbeing and security of the 49,000 students who make Unite Students ]
and demond) their home s the foundation of our reputation and continued focus on heolth & sofety is key 3

o Operalional fo building and maintaining this frust. =

>

Affordability and value for money are increasingly critical in the increasingly competitive
market place. Devaloping the most rusted brandin the sector continues to be criticol
fo our sustainable and longer ferm success.

Brilllant proparties  Property/ Qur focus on working with high ang mid ronked Universifies means that we wil
development recycle capitalinto higher performing cities. Property development is o higher risk,
& higher return activity,
Growing and Anancing Maintain a fimety approach 1o arranging new debt and extending debt maturities,
sustainable somings reducing the cost of funding, diversifying our funding sources and infroducing new
lenders to the Group. Secure a strong balance sheet with appropriate levels of leverage
N 0 and liquidity to ensure the business con withstand any property cycle.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

Creating the right corporate
culture tor effective rsk
moanagement

The Group's risk management fromework
is designed to identify the principal

risks and ensure that risks are baing
appropriately monitored, controls are in
place and required octions have Clear
ownarship with requisite accountability.

The orgonisotion hos on open ond
accounfable culture, led by a stable and
experienced leadership team that hos
operated in the secior for a number of !
years. This culture is set by the Board in the
way it conducts its Board and Committee
meefings and cascades through the
orgonisation enabling the same cultyre
for risk manogement.

During 2016, this corporgte culture was
assessed as port of the Boand's effectiveness
avaluation, using the key learnings from
the Financial Reporling Council [FRC)’s
recent report, Corporate Culture and the
Role of Boards.

62 Read more: Efectiveness

The culture of the orgonisatfion recognises
-and accepls — that risk is inhesent in
business and encounages an open ond
proactive approach to risk management
as opposed fo a blome culture. By viewing
our risks through the lens of our three:
strategic objectives, the Group is uble io
ensure risk monagement is proactive and
pre-emptive and not a fick box exercise.

The Board has the overall responsibility for
the governanca of risks and ensures there
are adequote and effective systemsin
pkace. It does this in various ways:

> Risks are considered by the Board as
an infrinsic part of strategy setting and
consideration of new opportunities -
risk is recognised as an inherent part
of each opportunity

> A twice yearly formal review by the

Board of principal risks. how they

are changing and considering any

amerging risks

Risk Committee reviews the principal

risks that the Group is facing or

shouid consider

» Specific risk managearment in
dedicated Board sub-commitiaes
allowing focus on specific risk areas
{for example, the Audit Committee
and Health & Sofety Committee)

v

Our risk management framework

> Risk Committee scrutiny and challenge
of Bysiness Unit risk management
activity allowing a focused forum
for risk idenfification and review

> Board directors also sit on Business Unit
boords ond thus provide the Board with
direct fine of sight to Business Unit risk
management octivity

» Risk assurance through external and
internal quditors as well as specialist
third party risk assurance where
appropricte (e.g. specialist
independent heatth and salety
compliance in the QOperations and
Property Business Units).

Robust assessment

of principal risks

The directors confirm that they have
conducted a robust assessment of the
principal risks facing the Group. The
process for how the Boord determined
these principal risks is explained above
and the specific principal risks are set
out on pages 26 10 29,

The board o
Risks assessed a1 part » Owned by the Board and its Committees
of strategy setting > Twice yearly formal risk review and ongoing monitoring
ond rdsk oversight ofrisk integral to Board meetings
\L/ J//
Risk management Policies and controls Composition
of Risk Commitiee
3> Owned by the Risk Committee and the Underpinning risk manogement Chris Szpofnorowicz
Business Unit boards [such as Copital Operating Guidedines; Cempany Secrelary
> Monthly risk fracker review at Business Treqsury Policy: Anti-Bnbery Policy; Major and Head of Lagal and
Unit boards Investment Approvals Commitiee ond the Chair of Risk Committee

intermat controls framework)

L

» Risk Commitiee review of allrisk frackers
Joe Uster
Chief Financial Officer

L and MD of People

and Communications

People and culture fc‘)\ Richard Smith

Chief Exacutive Officer
Embedded rsk Opennass, fransparency and clear ownership of
management culture risk management (through risk rackers) cascades Richord Simpson

through the organisation Group Property Direcior
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Key Risk Indicators (KRls)
finked to our KPis and our
three sirategic objectives
Great service Customer
satisfaction
Safety
- - Higher Education trust
% Noms v. Direct Let
Brilliont Net asset value
properties Age of asset
Qccupancy
o- Rental growth
Growing and Eamings per share
sustoinable Totolt return
eamings Nef debt

Loan-to-value ratio
Net debt : EBITDA

Viability statement

The Directors have assessed the viability
of the Group over o threa-year period

fo December 2019, taking account of the
Group's cument position and the potential
impaet of the principaol risks. The Directors
consider the threa-year lookout period 10
be the most appropriate as this
fundamentally aligns with the Group's
own strategic planning period combined
with the levels of planning certainty that
can ba derived from the development
pipeline. Based on this ossessment, the

. Directors have a reasonabile expectation

that the Group wili be able to continue

. noperation ond meet its liabilities as they

foll due over the period to December 2019.

. As exploined above, the Group has

developed an annual business planning
process, which comprises a Sirategic
Ptan, a financial forecast for the curent
year and a financial projection for ihe

, forthcoming three years {which includes

stress testing and scenario planning and
also rolls forwards for ¢ further two years).
This plan is reviewed each year by the
Board as part of its strategy setting
procass. Oncea approved by the Boord,
the plan is cascaded down across the
Group and provides a basis for setting all
detailed financial budgets and strotegic
actions that are subsequently used by
the Board te monitor performonce.

Our risk management in action: Brexit

One tool in our risk managemenl
process is orisk ‘deep dive'. This involves
an in-depth review of a specific risk with
Brexit a key focus since the prospect

of an In/Oul referendum first crystalised
in 2015.

in the period through 1o June 2018, our
fisk deep dive process concluded that
no specific pre-emptive actions (cther
than cngoing engagement with the
Higher Education secior} shoukd be
taken for aur business in the event of

a Lecve or Remain vole. This decision
was driven by the anticipoted impact
o our business if there was a Leave vole
(see below) and the minimum two-year
transitional period under Article 50.
Engagement with the Higher Educotion
sactor is helping inform our thinking on
implications for the PBSA sector and
specifically our business.

Qur risk deep dive process concludes
that Brexit should not significantty
impact our business for the
following reasons:

» Following a periad of initiat
unceriginty immediately after the
result in June 2016, confidence has
returned to the PBSA market with

a high volume of portfolios and assets
trading in the second half of 2014

El research funding is important to UK
Universities and this, together with the
imrnigration status of EU academics
and EU students in the UK maore
generaily, clearly creates uncerlainty
for the Higher Education sector along
with the broader uncertainty in the
wider economy. This uncertainty is
moderated by the strength of UK
Universities {the second lkargest
destination for intemational

studeants after the US): the ongoing
internationalisation of Higher
Education with the global rise of the
middie classes. Sterfing depreciation
also makes UK Higher Education/
accommaodation more offordable
for international students

v

s

The forecast performance outiook is also
used by the Remuneration Commitiee fo
establish the targets for both the annual
and longer term incentive schames.

The financing risks of the Group are
consxdered to have the potential greatest
impact on the Group's financial viability.
The two principal financing risks for

the Group are: the Group's ability to
arange new debt/replace expiing debt
faciiities; and any adverse inlerest rate
movernenis. The Group has secured
funding for the committed future
development pipeline and prepares is
Strategic Plan on a fully funded basisin
ling with the three-year outiook perod.
To hedge against the potential of
adverse interest rate movements the
Group mancges its exposure with a
combination of fixed rate facilities and
using interest rate swaps for its floating
rate debt. During the yeaor the Group has
compiied with all covenant requirements
attached toits financing facilities.

40 Read more: Ananclal review

» EU students' funding armangements
under currant tuition fee amangements
are confirmed for 2016/17 and 2017/18,
but there is uncertainty beyond then.
EV studients represent 9% of our
customers and so any impact on
EU student numbers would have
a limied impact on our ocoupancy

> Despite these broader uncertainties,
the supply/demand cuticok remeains
favourable and with the benefit
of our deveiopment pipeling, the
strengthening of our University
reigtionships and our focus on Righ
and mid-ranked Universities, our
business is well placed to navigate
the uncertcinty risk.

Wwe continue to monitor the
developments and engoge in the

other risk management actions cutiined
in the principal risks {see page 26).
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PRINCIPAL RISKS
AND UNCERTAINTIES

Market risks

1. Demand reduction (driven by Government policy or otheér macro events)

Possible svents Impact
» Brext impacting numbers of EU students coming fo study in the UK

¥ Changes in Govermimeant pollcy on Higher Educanton kunding

*» mmigration policy changes affecting intemational siudent numben coming fo the UK
and behaviour.

Whorl happened in 2016

» Student rumbers In The UK confinue 1o grow with opproximately 3.000 more oppficants than 20152016

> The tolal number of applicants in 2014 olso grew with 155,000 more applications than places

» Strongergrowth (3% In occeptances) in the high and mid-tanft Universities

> Urute Students accupancy ol 98% {2018/2017) compared 1o 79% [2015/2018) but more Deds 49,000

of 31 December 2004 as compated with 46,000 of 31 Cecernber 2015 Increase in overall student
numbers conhnues 1o lranskate to mare students staying at Unite

Eu students funding amangements fof durahion of study confimned for 2016/2017 and 2017/2018
During 2114, we have seen an mcrease i nommations with more committed to beds than ever
befora S8% bads - 201472017 vs. 57% 2015/2014

i Read mone' O and of

vy

» Polenfial recuction in demand and hence proftaility and asset vakues
» Deparhxe from EYimpacting EU research grants and EU studenis

Risk management

Ongoing monkonng of Brexil implcatons.
Govermnment polcy and ifs impact on UK,

EU and intematianal student numbers shudying
in the UK. Reguiany reviewing ow portiolo to
ensure we have the higheast quality portfolio,
appropriately sized and in the nght locafions.

Risk MMigotion in 2014
Risk deep dive into impact of Brext.

25 Read mane: Our sk monogerment In oclior: Seexdl

Thicugh implementation of Home lor Success - our core purpoese ta pravide environmens that helo
students achieve more during their lime ot Universty - we are seeing consistently high customer
satstaciion and Higher Educahon trust scores.

28 Read more: Kiry parfonmdnce indiemhors (KMH)

Focus fos 2017

Strategic objective

Ofering greal service ks key lo helping us sustain
ony reguction In demand [as well as ensuring
we have brllant propartes ond growing

and sustainable eamings 1o morage any
demand deficil},

5 Read more: Out sirategy

90

Continued engagement wilh the Higher Education sector fo understand and be ready for the impact of Brexit and other HE pokcy changes

2. Demand reduchion (due to societal change)

Possizie avents

> Concenns aver the costs of a University edlucation - atfosdability and
value for morey

> Afemative course delivery (such os Massive Open Oniine Courses)

> Shorfermose sermestes ked courses.

impact

ond assel valses

What happened in 2014
During 2014, rofed oul PRISM, ouwr digrial ond scalable operafing platiorm. diving efficiency and
custamer service

En Read more: PRISM
Appiications ond acceptance dala continua to pravide evidence that stronger Universilies are
periomng beter.

18 Read mare: Market Review

Enhanced service levals over the tast tew yedrs with faster wi-F speedhs, free comnwnal cleons and
snhanced common spaces.

> More competition for value and reduced demand for year round
student accommaodation in the longer term resuifing m lower profitabiity

Risk mai

Ongoing monitering of affordabilty and volue for
money and he evolufion of digikal fearnmg and
snsuing we pariner with 1he stronger Unuversittes
with properties in the bestlocations

Risk mitigofion activity in 2014
Emured the successtul mll oul af PRISM, enabling online and more Hexiole lenondies.

Continued investment In market knowledge and bulidng on ourrelationships with the strongest
Univerufies, daven by Home for Success and our University parinerships team.

Focus for 2017

Sirategic objeciive

Offering great service is key to ensuring we

have relahorships with the highor and medium
Ianff Univessihes {the ones most Bkely o sislain g
reduction in demand). PRISM helps us delver the:
beit customer tervice effikiently

5 Reod more. Our sialegy

Using PRISM 10 dnve enhanced customer serice ond value for money. through ifs scakabibly aond digital effciency.

Continuad tocus on Home Ioe Success ond our partnarships with the sironger Uriversihes.,
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Key

— @0

Greal seérvice

Brdliant properhes

Growing and
sustanable eqrnings

3. Supply increase (dve to increasing inferest in the performance and appeatl of the PBSA sector)

Fossible events

> Newsupply as sustained high levek of invesiment demand fiffer into the
development market. primanly through investors providing forward
commitments fo smaller developers.

What happened In 2014
Volume ol PBSA assets traded m 2016 moderated from record levels seen in 2015

impact
» More competiion for the best sites
» Potenticlimpact on rental growth ond sccupancy

During 2016 continued roR oul of Home for Success and malntaining a strong proportion of beds secured under nominafions agreements at 58% (2015, 57%).

Opening of five new properhes during 2014
34 Reod mare Properties delivessd
Level of new supply

18 Read more Market review

Risk MNgation In 2016

wWe continue with our focus and strategy on:

> Markets with supply/demand imbalonce

> Exposure o the best Universities underpinned with new developments secufed with nominations deaks

L Rescad maore: Operations review
> Investmentin our brand ond student sxpenence — crealing better environments within our new

developments through Home lor Succass ntiative
> Maintaining strong relationships with key Higher Education pariners.

Focus tor 207

Stralegic objective

Oftering great service as well as having
briliant propertias b critical to mitigahng
any supply surphus.

Continued focus on ouf portfolio m the towns and crties with the sirongest grawth prospects and using PRISM. our scalable operahing plattorm, 1o differenfiate

our brand and offer congistently high lavels of sarvice o students and Untversities alke
Ensunng a strong yet ewble capital structure so we can adapt appraprictely as supply grows.

Operational risks

4. Major health & safety (HLS) incident In a property or a development site

fossible events
> Fotality or majorinjury from a fire or other incident at a property
> Mulliple contractor injunes ot a development or operational site.

What hos happened during 2016

With fire as owr biggest safety risk in our operating portfolo, during 2016 we established a Primaorny
Authority Agreernent with 1he Avon Fire Authority to focus on

3 The development journey tor our fire strategy decisons.
> Fire Sately Management — improved p ard g

» Maintenance —tesfing and planned preventaive mantenance
> Specification lor new bulick and gevelopmenis,

Extemnal asurance sought through,

3> Appcintment of the British Salety Council 05 or new extemal satety avditor

3 Physical securify review of o properfies by WSP Parsons BrinckernoH,

Conbnued good pertormance against our operctional solety KPL. with five reporable accldents and
posilive resuits against our KPis In our development acthity.

28 Read more: Key Pedosmance indicators (KPis)

s, frafning & fire records

mpaoct
> impact to students iving with us. controctors working on-site and visitors
3 Reputational domags and trustin Urite Stuckents os a relabie partner

Risk mai
H&S5 ks glven direct Board superviion by the H&S
Committee {a sub-commitiee ol the Board)
which actively supervises HA&S, ensuning robust
poficies and procedures are in piace angd
consistently comphed with.

e Read more: HES Commiltes report
HAS is also actively reviewed in the Operatiors
and Property Business Unils, ersuring that H&S s
top of mund n ow day lo day operations and
reguiarly assessed and validated.

Risk Miigation in 2018

Reguiar extemnal gudits and intemal inspections of our properties. Fullreview of our operations risk
assessments o ensure adequate hazard control, tagetherwith improved contracior management and
permit 1o work systemn for hazardous work aciivilies. Improved salely fraining. using Gugsmented reality.
focusing on driving tor work, lone working, safety signage, housekesping/mantenance, hazards such as
chemicall, machinery. asbeslas ond personal protectve equipment. This ncludes an interachive game for
accident, incident and necr misses.

Focus for 2017

Ersuring the HAS of our customers, contraclons
and empioyess is lundamentdlio us offering
oreqat service.

5 Read more: Our sirafegy

Work on the joumey 10 interdependence with empawement in day to day HAS management at the core of everything we do.
Qngoing fecus on continueus Improvement (INciuding pricritising the fire risk review, ciisls management, security review and exiernal audit recommenaations

and actions)
Integrating wellbeing inte the HAS Monagement Systam,

=
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

AND UNCERTAINTIES
CONTINUED

THE UMITE GROUP PLL ANMUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016

Fossible avents

> Site acquiition nsk - increasing competifion fof he best sites pushes
up prices

» Plonning nsk - celays of fallure to gel planning

¥ Construchon nsk - build costinfiation Gs the econony IMproves

Impact

Whal happened in 200
Five sites gcquired, adding 3.082 beds o the development ppelte;

Frive planning corsants secured.
2016 schemes delivered, on time and to budget.
34 Read more Property review

> NAV ond EPS affected by aborted schemes and/of reduced financial
_retums, wilh cash hed up in development.

Risk manogement

Expenenced development team with extensive
site sefection ond pkinring experhse, coupled
with strong track record and focus on project
delivery and strong relationships with
construction partrers with appropnate risk
sharing. Group Board approval for cormrmitments
above a certaln threshold

Financial investiment in schemes carefully
managed prlor 1o grant of planning

To ensure we have the highest quality porifollo, we
are pursang new opportunifies on a condilional
basis. but with a Irmited number of sites contracted
not conditional on planning foflowing o detaled
sk assessment of thatt opporfunity

Risk MRtigoBion in 2016
Regular developmant team and property review, with Group Board direclor oversight to ensure faillure

1o secwre stes or complete on fime are managed in the budget.
Detaled pkanning pre-applcations ond due dilgence befora site acquiition
2 Raad more’ Development acfivily

Buid cost inflation regularly approised and refreshed in Property Board meetings Mid-sized framework
comfrocion used ond onger femn rekationships estabished to mitigate cychcal swings.

Focyy for 2017
Main focus will be on delivenng multikecation developments and securing pipefine for 2020.

2 gead more Development pipeline

Shotegic objecfive
Billlant properties

3 Read more Our siotegy

Possible svents
¥ Buying of seling properties al the wrong point In the cycle.

Impoct

What hapgenedin 2016
volume of PBSA assets moderated in 2016 folowing record volurmes in 2015

The value of the Group's Investment portodia (including our share of co-Investment vahicles) increased
to £2.277 rllfion s at Decermber 2014 {31 December 2015 £2,065 millkon) with the average portoko
yieid faling Pops o 5.4%,

During 2015 we continued to maximise our porifalie value through o programme ot seleclive
daveloprméents, acquisiions, disposals and relurbishments.

E read more, Disposals
Custorner satisfacion confinues af high level supporting rental grovwth ond aw portfolk vaive,
34 Reraxcd more. Renkal growth and porifolio value

> Reduction n asset values reducing financikal retumms

Risk management

Group Board and Property Boosd ongoing
maonitaring of property market, direction
and values

Forecast renial growth and recuming profit
oftsets ary yleld movement.

Ensuring we have a strong yet fiexible capital
siructure so we con adapt appropriciel fo
market conditions.

Clear and actlive asset manogement strategy

Risk MWigalion in 2014
Disposals - ongolng monitoring of our enhre portiolio with setective dsposals to benefit from keaner

prices In the market. we sokd £114 milklon of assets in 2016.

Acquisifions - duscipined acquisifions sirategy exercring caution over portiolo premiurns being paid in
the market-

Careiul monagement of net debt and see-through LTV.
Maintaning discipined approach fo new develcprmeant trarsacons by mdintaining Group hurdie rates

Focws for 2017
To continue to acauine stes in ine with Group hurdie rates and 1o procixe coniracts in ine with budgets.

Sirategic objeciive
Griant properties.

5 Rendmare’ Qur sialegy
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Financing risks

7. Unable o arange new debt or explring debt facilities cannot be replaced or only

at high cost. Adverse interest rale movements

Pozsible events Wwnpact

> Unite breaches a loan covenant of ialls to replace debl on expiry » Ifunable loreplace debt. than possible forced sale of assets

? Intevesticie increase

potenticlly lading to sales below vaisation. Slowdown of

developmenl aclivity. Recuced level of profitabiity

> Advenegte movernents con leod lo reduced profitobiity
ond reduction in property walues [Through resulting expansion
of valuation yiewds and kwer vaiuations).

Whaot happened In 2004
During 2014, LTV matio Improved to 34% from 35% af the end of 2015 and net debt grew by £45 miion

to £774 muikan. Duitng 2016. £150 milkon of new deb! was amanged.
100% of debt at ixed ratefswapped.

During 2014 our average cosl of debl has faklen to 4.2% from 4.5%: 2015 ond we expect it lo fall further
by the end of 2017 as a proporhon of lorward starting swaps become effective.

Y- Rec nore’ Fir Il revlew/cop PE—

Rk management

Proactivety managing debt moturities to
mlinance these kacilities at least 4-12 months
pefore maturty ond in parailel diversifying our
sources of finance to repay more expensive and
less flexible Domowings.

Control of futee cash commitrents in ine with
progress of cisposak andrefinancing.

Interest rates manitared by the tunding team
s anintegrat part of our refinancing activity
—owmed by the CFO and with Group Board
oversight. Gearing ratios defined in our Capitat
Operating Guidehines.

Hedge exposure with inteves! rate swaps and
refinonce focitles with fixed ratfes.

Risk Miligation In 2014
Reguiar and refiable engagement with lenders.

With berign interest rate envionment. have continued 1o take advantage of hiskarically kow rates (both

on new debl and also entering Into forward starting interes? rate swaps locking in rates for cur 2017 ond
2018 asvelopment pipeineg).
48 Read move. Debt rerewal/development debt and swaps

Focus for 2017

Shategic objeciive
Growing and sustainable eamings.

1 Read more: Oul sirategy

Fundding future development acgquistions os well as 2017 funding requirements tor ihe Group. USAF and LSAV.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

GREAT
SERVICE

Our commiiment to providing

a Home tor Success tor students
and to be the most trusted brand
in the sectar is centred around our
high quality properties, helpful
staff and a commitment to great
customer service for both our
studenis and University pariners.

The implementation of our operating
platform, PRISM, has brought considerabie
improvements to our customer service,
allowing us ta move to o seven day
operating model, offer online room
viewings and fo adopt paperless fenancies.
These improvermnents have resulted in the
time for tenancies to be confirmed
reducing to five days from 15 days.

30% of bookings are now done online or
through mobile bookings, ensuring the
process of securing accommaodationis

as eosy and as efficient as possible for
students. Additionally. through our Living
with Unite app. 75% of mointenance jobs
are now fixed within 24 hours.

Our Home for Success investment
programmae, which has seen us invest

£40 milion across key areas of the business
including physical, digitol, customer
service and people, has been complated.
We hove enhanced our Wi-Fi speeds
acnoss student rooms and communal
spaces to SOMbps, compieted the
installation of our LED lighting programme
and our Student Life Hub continues to
prove popular with students.

we confinue fo build on our stong
refationships with aver 40 high and
mid-rank Universitios, with nominations
agreements now represenling 56%,
with nesw terms agreed for a longer

THE UMITE GROUP PLC AMNUAL REFORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014

duration, on average 10 yvears, compared
to seven years for existing amongements,
Our partnerships ensure that Universities
are able to provide their studants with
accommodation close to campus and

@ safe ond secure environment in which
to live, succeed in ther ocademic studies
and meet fellow students.

Our continued focus on custormer service
heis ted to high occupancy lgvels with
928% of beds let and rental growth of 3.8%.
In 2016, we achieved recond high levels

of customer safisfoction and a growing
proportion of rsturn studenis,
demonstrating our commitment to
helping students grow and succeed

at University and beyond.
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BUILDING ON OUR GREAT
SERVICE THROUGH THE
LAUNCH OF OUR NEW

OPERATING PLATFORM

Simon Jones
Operations Director

3

Related sections
5 Business model and strategy

12 Relationships
18 Market review

20 Key performance indicators (KPIs)
2 Principai risks and uncertainties

QRA

Simon Jones addresses some topical questions
from our sharehoilders

a How has PRISM benefited the
S services Unlile provides?
Qur operating platform, PRISM,
which is unique 1o Unite, allows
vs 1o drive greater efficiencies of scale
while offering the best possible service
to cur custormners. PRISM has aliowed
us 16 move to a seven day operating
model and offer new services such as
online bookings and room viewings, in
addition to paperlass tenancies. These
improvements have nct only delivered
efficiencies for the business but greatly
improved the service we provide
o our students. As we continue
o grow the portfolio, PRISM enabiles
us to demonstrate a different
approach fo other operations.

a Do you ervisage growing the
proportion of your beds offered
Hwough University porinerships?

PNl We pride ourselves on cur
partnerships with Universities

and work with them to ensure that
they are able to offer high quality
accommodation and services to their
stugdents, an important component

of the cverall student experience.
Nominations agreements make up
58% of the portiolio with the remaining
beds ket directly fo students. we continue
to explore future partnerships with
Universitias, which typically spon

10 yerars ond provide visibility on future
income. We expect o remain at
around this level.

a How important is the affordability
of your accormnodation fo your
business modelf?

Rl ~tordability is important for

students and therelore it is
important ta us. We offer o wide range of
price points and room sizes as part of our
focus on delivering a move affordabie
proposition for students, Over the past
few years, Unite has focused on
delivering a more affordable proposition
for students. We also reinvest each year
in the accommedation and extend our
stuclent services so that students get
value for money.,

o How do you assess and value
competition and what do you
dote counteroct #?

We monitor the market closely and

competition for sites and property
portfolios has confinued. We continue lo
invest in our key differentiators such as our
portfoiio scale and the locations or our
buikdings as well as PRISM, through which
we deliver unmotched customer services.
and through our Higher Education
industry expearience and relationships,
Our expertise continves to be important
as investor intarest in the secior increases.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

CONTINUED

Summary EPRA income dlatemaeni

200 5

en Em
Unite’s share of rental income 1521 144.3
Unite’s share of property operating expenses (428) 139.8)
Net aperating income (NOT) 1143 104.5
NOI margin 73.1% 72.5%
Manogement feas 140 120
Operating expenses (23.1) 21.9)
Findnce cosls {45.9) {48.1)
USAF acquisifion and net performance fee . 6.9 220
Development and other costs {5.5) 7.2}
EPRA eamings &2.7 61.3
Yield related siement of performance fee {1.4) {11.8)
Adjusted EPRA samings 613 49.5
Adjusted EPRA EPS 27.7p 29p

* A Ul reconcilation of Profit before tox to EPRA eamings s set oul in note 2.2 of the financial statements

The Group continues foreport on on IFRS
basis and to also present its performance
in lina with best practice recommended
by EPRA, The Operations and Property
raviews focus on EPRA measures s these:
are oyr kay intemal measures and aid
comparobifity across the reol astate sector.

Sales, rental growth

and profitability

The kev strengths of cur operating business
are our pecple, our PRISM openating
platform, the strength of cur brond and
the strength of our relationships with
Universities. We have continued to buid on
these strengths throughout 2016, resulting
in a £11.8 milion, 24% increase in Adjusted
EPRA eomings 1o £61.3 milion compored
1o lost year (2015: £49.5 milion). This growth
has again been driven by high occupancy,
rentat growth and the impact of porttolio
movements as well as further operghional
efficiencies and ongoing cost discipline.

The Group's share of rental income has
increased by £14.8 million. up 10%, asa
resutt of new openings and susiained
rentql growth, NCI margin improved to
73.1% (December 2015: 72.5%], reflecting
further operating efficiencies thot were
driven by the implementafion of cur new
PRISM operaling platform during 2016.
PRISM provides us with the abiiity to
differentiate ourselves from others, driving
efficiencies through the use of technology
which enables us fo provide enhanced
levels of service to our customers. We
maintain cur expectation that NCI maongins
will improve towards 75%, olthcugh
batgncing margin growth and service
level enhoncement will remain our
ovenriding priority.

We are now managing 49.000 beds
compared to 46,000 at 31 December
2015, Alongside this increase in beds
there has been a growih in overheads of
£ 2 milliom, driven mainty by depraciation
costs associated with the new PRISM
systern, and we expect a further small
increase of gepreciation costs in 2017,
Recurring management fee income from
joint ventures increased by £2.0 milion to
£14.0 milion {2015; £12.0 million), as a resutt
of the growth of assets under management
in USAF and LSAV. In addilion to the
recurring asset management fees, o further
£4.% million of nat USAF performance

and acquisition fees were generated
{2015: £22.0 million). Qur key overhead
efficiency measure (total operaling
expenses less manogement fees asa
propartion of Unite’s share of property
valuel confinues to improve and now
stands at 40bps (December 2015: 48bps),
and we remain focused on our targel of
25-30bps by the end of 2017 based on
current yields.

The £4.5 milion USAF net performance
fee is payable in units and is based

on USAF's cumulative tatalreturn at

31 Deceamber 2016. The component of
the fee that relates to yield movermnent
has been excluded from Adjusted EPRA
earnings purposes to reflect o normalised
level of eamnings. The operalional element
of the performance fee is driven by USAF's
income and rental growth performance
and is not expected to significontly add
fo our earnings performance going
forward given the cument voluotion yielkds,
gearing levels and rental growth outicok.
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Finance Costs decreased to £45.9 milion
{2015: £48.1 million). An increase in net
debt of £45 million to £776 million (2015:
£731 milion) was offset by o lower
average cost of finance of 4.2% (2015
4,5%) as we have added new debt
facilities at lower average rates, laking
advantage of the historically low cost

of debt. In addition. the increase in net
debt hos been driven largely by spend
on development activities which hasin
tum lead to an increqse in the amount
of interast that is capitalised into
development schemes to £5.9 milion, up
from £2.7 milion in 2015. We expect the
level of interest capitalisation to remain
at around this level given the ongoing
level of development activity in 2017,
Development [pre-contract) and other
costs fell to £5.5 million {2015: £7.2 milon),
refiecting the levels of site acquisition in
the business, the earnings impoct of shane
based incentives and our contribution fo
our charitable trust, the Unite Foundation.

Occupancy, reservations

and rental growth

Occupancy across Unita's partfolio for
the 2014/17 academic year stands at 8%
and like-for-lika rental growth of 3.8% waos
achieved on our stabflised porifolio. We
have continued to grow the proportion
of beds let to Universities with 58% of
rooms under nominations agreements,
up by 5,000 beds over the last three
years. Enhanced service levels ond our
deep understanding of studen! needs
have resulted in longer term and mora
robust partnerships with Universities.

We expect the proporiion of beds let

to Universitigs to remain ot or around

this level in the future, This batance of
nominations and direct-let beds provides
the benefit of having income secured
by Universities, as well as the ability 1o
offer rooms to returning students and fo
determine market pricing on an annual
basis. On average. rents on nominations
rooms are c.5% below direct let
equivalents and, based on ourrecent
experiance with new agreements. there
is an opportunity to close this discount in
the coming years.

Reservations for the 2017/18 academic
year are encouraging, at 73% {67% at the
same point last year) as a result of our
continued focus of working alongside the
UK's best Univensities as well as our local
presence in Ching building relctionships
with Chinese Universities. This structural
growth within the cities we operale.
togethar with our differenticted service
offering, provides us with further
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69%

Reservations for the 2017718
academic year

THE FINAL ELEMENTS OF
PRISM WERE DELIVERED
IN 2016, PROVIDING FULL
ONLINE VIEWING AND
BOOKING FUNCTIONALITY
ALONGSIDE ENHANCED
MAINTENANCE SERVICE
LEVELS AND REVENUE
MANAGEMENT
FUNCTIONALITY

confidence in occupancy and rentat
growth for the 2017/18 academic year
which we expect 1o be in the region of
30-3.5%.

Home for Success

Our Home for Success inveastment
programme provides us with a real

paint of differenfiation to other providers
of student accommodation. The
programme, which was initiated in 2014,
generated significont enhancements in
our operating platform, the establishment
of communal study and relaxation
spaces that our customers have told us
that they want and the development

of a sense of home within our properties.
These foctors. jogether with our service
levels, student insight, prime locations
and mid-markef price points, make us
stand out for students and Universitias.

Invesiment In people.
technology and relationships
Satisfaction with service and the strength
of our relationships with Universities has

" been maintained at high levels as both

students and Universities benefit from
the investments that we are making.

The final elements of PRISM were
delivered in 2014, providing full onling
viewing and bocking functionality
alongside enhanced maintenance
service lgvels and revenue manogement
functionality. We will conilinue to invest
inand evolve this platform fo maintain
our sector leading advantage in this area.

We have continued to invest in our
digital capabilities, focusing on the
student experience. In 2014, this has
seen us daliver further enhancerments
fo cur student-focused apps and cur
website, a porticlic-wide communications
portal to drive engagemen! and lo help
students access the information they
need to support them during the course
of the academic yeor. Cur apps and
digital platforms provide students with

a hassie free solution to every day
concems, provide them with the support
they need and so allow them to focus
on their studies and time at University.

3

Developing our teams remains a priority
for us and we have implemented new
leadership programmas across the
whole organisation over the past two
years. These programmes ensure thot
we are providing our teams with the
training required to delfiver excellent
customer service as well as developing
thei careers, and they have beern an
integral part of our successful attainment
of Investors in People Gold status in 2016,

Wea also continue to invest meaningfully
in our Higher Education sector
relationships. Our Universities Partnershios
and Engagement team is dedicated o
building strong working relationships
with key University partners, and this
approach has seen usincorporate
University requirernents into new
developments and driven the growth

i the number of beds under nominations
agreements.

In Ching, our marketing office is now
fully operational and our local oniine
presence has been eskablished, We
have alsa startad to create meaningful
relationships with both iocal and British
Universities in China, as well as providing
important support to our Chinese
customers before they travel fo the UK
and to their parents while their chikdren
are overseas. We are confident that this
investment will deliver long-term benefit
to the business as well as 1o Chinese
students and UK Universities.

Simon Jones
Operations Director
22 February 2017
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PROPERTY REVIEW

BRILLIANT ™™

PROPERTIES

Stcpleton Housa, London

in 2016, we opened five new
bulidings, adding to our portiollo
of high quality, conveniently
located accommodation for
students studying in the strongest
University towns across the UK.
The new buildings increased

our numbeer of beds by 3,082

to a total of 51,310. The bulidings
comprise mainly cluster flot
accommodation and provide
facllities such as on-site laundry.
study space, communal areas
and dry cycle storage. We
entered 2014/17 with the largest
ever number of students at the
start of an academic year.

More than half of the beds. 1,561, are
located in London at our two new sites:
Qlympic Way and Stapleton House,
Qlympic way, which has been let to
Middlesex University under a nomiration
agreerment, sits next to the iconic Wembley
Stadium and is part of the regeneration
of that areq. Stapketon Houss, Holloway
Road. also opened its doors {o students
in September 2016 and is tet under

a nomination agreement to London
Metropolitan University.

Two further completions, Greethaom
Street Portsmouth and Far Gestord Street
Caventry, were acquired by USAF, recycing
copital for the Group's development
pipeline, with an additional development
compileted in Aberdeen. The acquisition
by USAF was funded with @ new

£100 million, five-yeor facility provided

by Wells Fargo. Both properties ore on
nomination agreements to Portsmouth
University and Coventry University and are
fully let for the 2014/17 academic yeor.

We contfinue ta progress our 7,0600-bed
development pipeline which extends out
1o 2019, with five schemes set lo open in
September 2017. Thase devalopmaents will
provide a home for students studying at
some of the UK's strongest Universities in
Coventry, Edinburgh, Liverpooland Oxford, ~ _0Uewarend: Averdeen
In addition to this, we acquired five
deveiopment sites: 5t Vincent's Sheffieid,
Infermational House Birmingham,
Chaucer House Portsmouth, Skelhorme
Street Liverpool and Millennium Way
Coventry and secured four planning
consents [Skelhorne Street Liverpoo!,
Infemational House Brmingharm,
Millenniurn Way Coventry and Brunel
Chaucer)

Greathom Sreet, Portarmouth
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COMPLETION OF FIVE BRILLIANT
PROPERTIES AND STRENGTHENING
OUR DEVELOPMENT PIPELINE

Richard Simpson
Group Property Director

Related sechions

5 Business model and strafegy
12 Rekationships

18 Maketeeview
P Kay performance indicotors (KPis)
26 Principal risks and uncertainties

QRA

Richard Simpson addresses some topical questions
from our sharehoiders

Has investor appetite for the
sector continved?

Nl Furpose bullt student

accommodation continued fo
attract high levels of investment in 2014
at £3.25 bilion, alpeit at slightly lower
levels than seen in 2015 at £5.5 billion.
Transaction volumes have remained
healthy. supporting current valuations,
with aronge of buyers in the market. This
continued interest refiects the detensive
nature of the asset class and attractive
rental growth outiook.

Are you seeing fulure development
oppartuniies given the levels of new
supply coming onlo the market?
Thare is stil strong demand for
affordable, well-locoted and

high quality accommodation in

leading University towns and cities,

QOurdevelopment pipeline of 7.000 beds

spanning until 2019 is progressing wel.

We continue to monitor the market for

development opportunities that are In

line: with our target returns for regional
development, focusing on high lo
mid-ranked Universities in towns and
cities which we expect will see the
strongest growth.

) Do you enwisage the London markel
for devaiopment opening up?
A We are starting to see signs thot
ocpportynities may re-emerge n
London. However, returns on potential
new projects in London rermaoin below
our hurdle rate due. principaily to
excessive pianning levies and higher
alternative use values for prospective
sites. We monitor the market closely
and remain alive t¢ future opportunities,
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PROPERTY REVIEW

CONTINUED

EPRA NAV growth
EPRA NAV per share increased by 12% to

444 pence at 31 December 2016, up from
579 pence at 31 December 2015. In total,

EPRA net assets were £1,557 million ot

31 December 2014, up from £1,394 million
a year eaclier.

Looking forwaord, our portiolic is well placed
1o defiver continued volue growth, Our
focus on the strongest University locations
undepins rental growth prospects and we
will confinue to deliver meaningful upside
frorm our developrment activify. In fofal our
secured pipeiine s expected to deliver

43 pence per share of NAY uplift and

b 4

Capital expenditure on developments

of £146 milion and £12 milion on

investment assets relating to !
refurbishment and LED installations

» Disposals of E114 million

> Vaivation increases of £136 milkion on

the investment and development
portiolios, with like-for-ike rental growth

The main faciors behind the 67 pence per | 13 pence of eamings per share of 3.8% being generated on the
share growth in EPRA NAV per share were: | Once completed. stabiisec porfolio
* Increased share of USAF of £32 milllion,
> The growth In the vaiue of the Group's | Property porttolio as aresult of the performanca fee
share of investrnent assets (+34 pence), | The valualion of our property portfolio at eamed in 2015.
as aresult of rental growth (+26 pence) | 31 December 2014, including our share of
and vield comprassion [+8 pance) gross assets held in USAF and joint ventures,
¥ The volue odded to the developrnent was £2,277 milion {31 Decermber 2015:
portiolic (+21 pence) £2,045 miition). The £212 million increase
> EPRA earnings for the period [+25 pence) | in partfolio value (Unite share) was
> Dividends paid of 14 pence attribulable fo:
reduced NAV.
Summaory balance sheet
0% 218
Wholly Share of wholy Sham of
cwned Fund/Tv Total owned FundjJv Total
£m em tm im £m £m
Rental properties 1,062 1.023 2085 1,024 ani 1,835
Propertias under development 185 7 172 150 80 230
1.247 1.030 2277 1,174 s 2065
Adjusted net debt {432) (344) (778) [448) {283) [731)
Other assets/{licblitias) (15) (14) (29) {5) (18} 123)
Convertible bond 85 - 85 83 - 83
EPRA net ansets 885 472 1,557 BO4 590 1,394

* A recaonciliation of the IFRS bakmce sheet 10 EPRA net assels is set out in section 2.2 of the financiol sialements

The proportion of our property porticlio that is income generating is 92%. up from 89% at December 2015, with 8% now under
development. With the completion of the LSAV development pipeline, the majority of davelopment activity relates to wholly-ownad
assets. We will continue to manage the development weighting of our balance sheet and expect it to remain at ground these
levels, well within our infemol cap of 20% going forward.
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Unite investment porticlio analysis at 31 December 2014

Whally Unite
USAF awned Lease folal share
London vaive (£m} 35! 945 425 - 1.741 788
Beds 2014 5861 1.¥89 260 10.124 47%
Major pravincial vaiue {£m} 1,584 4 440 - 2.048 824
Beds X0,456 331 5914 2,577 29,478 407
Provinciat value (Em} axz - 197 - 519 2n
Beds 4,804 - 3253 1,059 92,114 13%
Tolol Vvalue [Em) 2257 1.009 1,061 - 4,327 2,085
Beds 27,474 6,192 11156 389 48.718 100%
Unite ownership share 23% 0% 100% -
Unlie dwnership (Em) 519 505 1,061 - 2,085

The investrment portfolio (see-throughy i split between London [47%) and the rest of the UK (S3%), broadly in ine with previous years.
The regional focus of our development pipeline means that the London weighfing is ikety o fall to around 35% as the portfolio is bult out.

Student accommodation ylelds
The level of transactions in the student
accommodation sector has remained
high in 2014 following the unprecedented
ievels sean in 2015, with over £3biliion of
assets frading during the year. The maijority
of buyers have been supported by global
institutional capital, An element of
uncertainty in the few months following
the EU referendumn in June was replaced
with confidence in the market with a high
volume of portfoiics and assets trading

in the second haif of the year.

As aresult of ihe investor appetite ana
subsequent transactions, there has been
a modast level of yiekd compression
across the sector, This yield compression
has been reflected in our portfolio and
the avenage yield {on a see-through
basis] at 3 December 2018 was 5.45%,
an inward movement of nine basis

points over the yeor.
indicative valuafion yields

31Dec20% 31 Dec 05
London 45.50% 45525%
Prire provincial 5.25-5.75%  5.3558%
Provincial 6.0-4.5% 6.0-6.5%

Development activity
Development activity continues o be

a significant driver of growth in NAY and
future eamings. We are continuing to see
opporiunities o selectively secure sites
for defivery in 2019 and 2020in strong
regional locations alongside high-quality
Universities within our target range

of 8,0-8.5% yield on cost. Returns on
potantial new projects in London skl
remain below our hurdie rate of 7.0%
due principally to higher atternative

use values for prospective sites and
planning levies, and we have not seen
the corection in land prices that were
anficipatet following the EY referendum.

2016 ond 2017 complations

We completed five schemes during 2014
in ling with budget and prograomme. Over
70% of these beds are let to Universities
under nominations agreements for the
2016/V7 academic year, with an averoge
duration of 10 years.

The 2017 pipeline is progressing wel.

We are on track 1o deliver three whoily-
owned schemes in Edinburgh, Liverpool
and Cavenfry and, in USAF, fwo forward
funded developmentsin Oxford and
Edinburgh, cading o total of 2,200 beds.
We expect all of the schemes ta be fully

let for the 2017/18 academic year.

Reglonal develapmant pipeline

During the year, we have conlinued to
grow our 2018 and 2019 regional pipeline
and have now secured a total of eight
schemeas which are expecited 1o defiver
approximalely 4,800 beds in oddition

to cur ongoing 2017 projects. All new
regional developments are being
underiaken wholly on balkance sheet
and prospective returns for the secured
pipedine ore very attractive at an overage
8.5% yield on cost.

Planning is now in place on all of the
schemes in the pipeline [with the
exception of the Okt BRI site in Bristol
which i éxpected ta receive consent
in the first half of 2017]. During the year,
we have reorganised the phasing

of deliveries in 2018 and 2019, with
Aberdeen and Bristol being pushed
back to 2019 and Birmingham and
Sheffield accelerated to 2018. This will
ensure a bakanced level of activity
acrass the two yaars.

;
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PROPERTY REVIEW
CONTINUED

Secured developmant plpeiine (whaoily owned)
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Tolol Tolor Foracast
compisted  daveiopenent Caxex n Capex  Fonacast NAY ekl
Sacured beds volue oSt peraa rerEn g TG o oot
ro £m £m £m £m £m %
2017 completions
St Leonards Edinburgh 581 &4 £] 5 13 9.5%
Mitlennium Point Caventry 391 34 24 12 12 8.8%
Targ House Liverpeol 776 &5 44 24 13 ?.3%
2018 completions
Newgate Sheet Newcashe 575 45 37 7 5 8 B5%
Brunel House arstol | 232 2 21 ) 10 5 B5%
Chaucer House Portsmouth 484 4} 33 é 26 é o 87;%
St Vincent's Sheffield 545 45 34 1 a5 10 B8.2%
international House  Birmingham 586 48 B 4 11 BO%
2017 completions
skelhorne Uverpool 1085 92 73 14 0 16 8.0%
OIJ BRI gristol 706 93 74 2 58 0 8.4%
Constitution Straat Aberdeen &0 54 40 0 33 7 8.4%
Total (wholty cemed) 5,561 411 442 83 p 7] 102 5%

T Subject to cbtaimng plonning consant,

Sacured forward fund pipeline (USAF)

USAF has secured two assets on a forward fund basis in Oxtora and Edinburgh. These acquisitions are consistent with its strategy
to increase exposure to high quality Universitias and fo expand its presence in markets fo take advantage of scale.

Whilst USAF has fully depioyed its equity, USAF is making good progress with a small aumber of Further acquisiions and couild
axpec! to deploy more capital. released from portfolio recycling activities into these opportunities

Total

Tokat

Sacured compieted  cevelopmeant Copax Capent Forecas! hAY Foracast
beds vake costs m pariod remcatung TR Yo on ood
Na. £m £m em £m £m %
USAF T
2017 complietions
Beech House Oxford 167 22 18 1 8 3 6.3%
Lution Court Edinburgh 237 33 2% 18 9 4 60%
Total USAF 404 58 A7 29 17 7 &%
Unite shore of USAF n/a 13 11 7 4 2 41%
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Qur development pipeline remains a source of significant future value and eamings growth and the tabile below summarises its
potentialimpact on future NAV and earnings per share:

Iystrodree returns (ky 2019)

Future Fulure
NAVDS EPS
Secured regional projects (wholty owned]} 42 13
Secured USAF projects 1 -
Total secured pipeling 43 13

Asset disposals

During 2016, £52 million of assets were sokd in third-party fransactions [Unite share: £46 miliion]. In addition, Unite 3ok two wholly-
owned assets in Portsmouth and Coventry to USAF for @ combined loial of £88 mililon. taking tolal disposals on a see-through basis
to £114 million. All of the assets were sold in ine with book valye.

Asset disposols remain an important port of our strategy going forward to ensure that we align our portfolio with our strategy ta work
with high and mid-ranked Univenities. Disposals also pravide the capital to fund further growth in cur development pipeline in 2019
and 20230. we remain fooused on our capital discipfine fo balance further growth opportunities with our ieverage targets and
expect to make around £150-200 milflon [Unite share} of disposals in 2017. In February 2017, we exchanged contracts to sell o
regional portfolio of 4,175 beds for £295 million [Unite share £102 milion) in line with book value.

§
:
q
:

Richord Simpson
Group Praperty Director
22 February 2017
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FINANCIAL REVIEU

Gosdord Sinaat, Coveniry

GROWJING AND
SUSTAINABLE

Our sirategic objective

-9

EARNINGS

Qur consistent strategy continues | Our net eperating income moargin is

to deliver sustainabie and growing
eamings vndeypinned by our
highly accretive development
pipeline, strong University
parinerships and scalable
operational platform, PRISM.
Recurring profits increased

by 24% and our dividend is up
by 207%. We achieved rental
growth of 3.8% increasing
eamings and NAV.

Qur high quality portfolio with a wide
range of price points ond room sizes,
sector-ading brond and senvices continue
to attract students and to deliver o
tuperior experience for students and
universities. driving sustainoble income.

PRISM is fully implemented and delivering
improvements fo customer service and
demonsirating efficiencias of scala.

up to 73% ond qur improved overhecd
efficiency of 40bps is on track to meet
target of 25-30 basis points by the end
of 2017

We continue to operate a strong capita)
structure maintaining LTV at 35%. Our
cost of debt has reduced fe 4.2% and

o net debt to EBITDA ratio of .5 remains
within our targeted range of & to 7 times.
Qur strong debt position means we
have imited refinancing requirements
before 2020.

In November 2016 al a General Meeting
for shareholders, the Company’s
conversion 1o Real Estate Investment

Trust (REIT) status was approved, effective
on 1 Januory 2017 sfrengthening the
earnings ond dividend focus of the business.

Recyciing capifal fhrough assef disposals
remains an important port of our strategy
to maintain copital discipine and to fund
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Chympic Way, London

further growth in our 2019 development
pipeline. In totalwe delivered £125 million
of asset disposals during the yearincluding
the disposal of two properties 1o USAF

in September 20146 and the disposal of
Curzon Gateway in Birmingham to H$2
uhder a compulsory purchase order
agreement in July 2016, in ling with the
book value of the asset.

In May 2014, USAF ssued £125 million

of bonds under its existing debf funding
platform established in June 2013, The
proceeds were used 1o repay secured
debf and fo fund further growth in

the Fund.
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FOCUS ON DELIVERING SUSTAINABLE
GROWTH IN RECURRING PROFITS
AND CASHFLOW

Joe Lister

Chief Financial Officer and
Managing Director of People and Communications

QrA

Joe tister addresses some fopical questions from our sharefioiders

During the year, the Group
elected fo be faxed as a REN
with effect from 1 Jonuary 2017.
The election will not change the
core business model of Unite
Students, and we remain focused
on providing offordable purpose-
bwilt student accommodation,

Bl vt s oram

JNB REITs provide o way for investors to
access the risks and rewards of

holding property without having to buy
it directly. REITs were introduced by the
Government in 2007 with the Qim of
supporting investiment in UK reol estale
and HMRC hos supported groups
converting to REITs over the kast ten years.

REIT status means that the Unite Group
is exemnpt from paying corporation 1ox
on profits and gains arising from its UK
property rental business. However, it will
still pay comporation tax onincome
arising from any non-property related
acfivities such as managemenf fees and
interest income. REI status has no effect
on VAT, stamp faxes ond employment
taxes, and REITs continue 1o pay these
taxes as normal.

N What s the impact on

mll dividend payments?

Nl There are strict conditions set by

HMRC for groups fo remain Qs REITs,

inchuding the requirement to Gistribute
at keast 0%, of their property profits
{as calcukated for tax purposas which
may diiffer to the accounting profit) fo

sharehokders. For UK shareholders, this
distribution s treated for tax purposes
s property rental income rather than
dividends, and overseqs shareholders
suffer withholding tax ot the basic rote
of fax. The net effect is that the taxation
of property income is moved from

the REIT to the shareholder thereby
aliowing tax efficiency while protecting
the UK Exchequer.

The tax-exermpt property rofits that are
distribtted to shareholders ore known
as Froperty income Distributions {PiDs}.

A REIT can also distribute post-tax profits
from its other activities, known asa
Non-Property Income Distributions
{non-Pi0s). Any one distribution from

a REIT may be solely PIDs, solely non-PIDs
of o mixture of the two.

In line with REIT conversion the dividend
pay-oul ratio will be incraased to 75%
of 2017 adjusted EPRA eomings.

a Why Is Unite Students becomning
a REIT?

Nl unite Students holds alarge
porticiio of student accommaodation

and has a strong dividend. Ifs business
is therefore aveady well suited 1o
becoming a REIT which provides a
tax efficient environment for property
investment groups that mest a dividend
requirement. Conversion to a RET will
enable Unite to continue with its core
business whilst increasing its investment
inits property portfolio and growing
the retum to shareholders. It can do
this without needing to consider the

impacts of tax on disposals of capilol
assets ond while offering an effective tax
transparent environmant 0 investors in
relation to its property income.

As a REIT, Unite is able to attract a wider
poot of investors. most especialy those
who e exempt from oix n the UK who wil
no longer indirectly suffer fax at the level of
the group. in addition, the concept of

a REIT is widely understood and volued
by the global investor community.

Q Whot ks the impoct in 2014 for Unite
M Shocents of REIT conversion?

Al The Group has historically been
required under Intermnational

Accounting Standards to recognise
o defarred tax liability in respect of
increases io the market value of its
investment properties. This deferred fax
liability is not tax that the Group owes,
but instexad is an accounting provision
for estimated tax that could become
payable were the Group to sell its
investment properties in the future
{on the excess of morket volue over
the amaount originally paid). As a REIT,
such gaing will be exempt from UK
corporation tax and hence no provision
for detered taxis required to be
recognised. The provision at | Jonuary
2016 has theretore been released during
the year. The Group has still provided for
the potenticl deferred tax liability relating
to assets that are not exempt as a REIT
{including investments in joint ventures)
at the balance sheet datewhere itis
expacted that the timing difference will
give rise to toxable profits as it unwinds.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

income statement and

profit medasures

A tull reconcifiation of profit before tax
10 EPRA eomings measures is sat out in
summary below and in fultin section 2
of the financiol statements,

o 2005
tm £m

Adjusted EPRA eamings 613 495
EPRA eamings 62.7 613
Valuation gains ond
profit/loss on disposal 1363 3245
Changes in valuation
of interest rate swaps
and debt break costs (1.0 a3
Minority interest
and tax included
in EPRA earmings 3.4 22
Profit before tax 2014 3884
Adjusted EPRA
eqrnings per share 2770 230p
BQSiceomingspersha'a 1013p 1&42p

EPRA eamings of £62.7 million to

31 December 2014 [2015: £61.3 million) is
stated after deducting tax charges, share
option cosis and abortive/pre-cantract
development spend of £5.5 million.

The significant reduction in profit before
tax is primarily the resutt of a lower level
of unrealised valuation gains of
£134.3 million being recognised in 2016
compared with the £324.4 million
recognised in 2015,

Cashflow and net debt

The Operations business generated
£41.3 million of net cash in 2016 {2015;
£40.8 million) and see-through net debt
Increased marginally to £774 million
{(2015: £731 million). The key components
of the movernent in see-through net debt
warg tha operational coshfiow and the
disposol programme (generating lotal
inflows of £175 millicn) offset by lotal
capital expenditure of £158 rillion and
dividends paid of £34 mition. In 2017,

we expect net debt fo increase by

a sirilar keves as capital expenditure

on investment and development acfivity
will exceed anticipated asset disposals.

Dividend

Wa are increasing cur dividend pay-out
levei to 75% of EPRA earnings fexcluding
USAF performance fees) and are
recommending a fully covered final
dividend payment of 12.0 pence per
share (2015: 9.5 pance), making 18.0
pence for the full year {2015: 15,0 penca).
Subject 1o opproval at Unita’s Annual

General Meefing on 11 May 2017, the
dividend will be paki on 19 May 2017
to sharehakders on the register gt close
of business on 21 April 2017.

Tax and REMM converslan

During the year, the Group elected ta
convert to REIT status with effect tom

1 January 2017. This has resulted in the
relaase of the provision for defered

tax on property business assets totalling
£41.) million os disposals of invastment
property, as a REIT, will be exempt from
tax. The remaining deferred jox liability
relating to unrealsed gains on joint
ventyra investments of £17.2 million, which
are not exempt from tax, exceeds the
defermed fax asset redating to tax odjusted
losses carried forward of £11.8 million.

As the losses con be set against gains as
they arise, the deferred tax asset relating
1o the losses can be recognised in fult
ogainst deferred tax liabilities.

Cerlgin activities, primarily the invesiment
management of joint ventures, whilst
axpecied to fall within the limits of the
balance of business tests, wiliincur a fax
chaorge which we expect to be in the
region of £2-3 million per annum.

Debt financing

During the period, we have maintained
our focus on controlling gearing levels,
extending debt maturities and minimising
financing costs:

Key debt statishics (see-through basis)

20% 2015
Net debt ETTém £731m
LV % 5%
Nat debhEBITDA
ratio 65 49
Average debt
maturity 4.9years 5.6 vyear
Average cost of
debt 42% 4.5%
Proportion of
invastment debt at
fixed rate 100% 0%

The Group's see-through LTV improved
16 34% at 3t December 2014, from 35%
at the end of 2015 0s a result of the value
growth of the portfolio exceeding the
increase in net debl. Wa will continue

o manage cur georing proactively and
intend to maintgin QurLTV around the
mid-30% level going forward, assuming
currant yieids. With greater focus on the
earnings profile of the business, we are
akso now monitoring our net debit to
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EBITDA rexfio, which was 6.5 tirmes in 2016
and we plan 1o keep this in line with
current levels going forward.,

interest rale hedging
armangements and cost of debt
Our sea-through ¢ast of debt hos
reduced 10 4.2% {2015: 4.5%) a5 we have
secured additional debt on our recent
compleations and refinancing in USAF at
historically jow levels. The Group has 100%
of its see-through investment debl subject
to a fixed interest rate (2015: 90%) for an
average term of 4.9 years.

Convertible bond

The Group's £90 million converfibie bond
is due to moture in October 2018, Under
the terms of the band. earty conversion
of tha debt into equity could be triggered
by us from Oclober 2016 onwards if

the share price trades over 1.3 fimes

the conversion price for a period of time.
The initial conversion price of £5.10 has
reduced to £4.88 following share placings
and dividend payments and therefore
EFRA NAV has been prepared on the
basis that the bond will convert in the
future, This has resulled in NAV dilution

of 15 pence per share as at 31 Decernber
2014. Conversion would result in around

a 4% point raduction in LTV,
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Urte
Property et Other Net share
assels debt assets aossels of NAV Tokal
£m £m £m £m Em returm Matunty Urste share
Vehicle
USAF 2,288 {714} {s1) 1.523 352 1% Infinite 23%
LSAV 1,009 [354) {15) 640 320 15% 2022 0%
Funds and joint ventures The asset manogement fees from both

The table above summarises the key
financials for each vehicle.

USAF and LSAY have continued to
perform well in 2016, LSAV's total return

is driven by stronger capital growth from
development relurns.

USAF cumently does not have any
acquisition capacity following the forward
fund acquisitions and acquisitions fram
Unite made in the year, but will continue
1o monitor acquisition opportunitias
funded by capital recycling.

Fees

During the year. the Group recognised net
fiees of £21.9 milfion {2015: £35.9 million)
from its fund and asset management

activities as folows:

o 2015

tm m

USAF
Assat
managerment fee 10,0 87
Acquisition fee 04 1.8
Net
performance fee 45 20.2
LSAY
Asset and property
monagement fee 40 33
Development
monagement fae 1.0 19
Totol fees 2t¢ 359

* A fullbregkdown of the net performance
fea 5 In note 3.4[c] of the notes to the
noncicl statements.

USAF and LSAV have increased as o result
of the growth in the portfolios under
management during the yeor generated
by ccquisitions and valuation growth,

A lokal performance fee of £8.1 million
was earned and will be paid in unils
during the first quarter of 2017. The nef
fee recognised of £6.5 million is after
deducting £1.1 million, which represents
the Group's share of the performance
fee paid by USAF and afier advisory costs
of £0.5 million, The level of the fee is
sensitive to movements in property
valuations and is therefore significanily
lower than in 2015 due to the high level of
yvielkd compression in 2015. After payment
of the fee, our stake in USAF will remain

at 23%.

Joe Lister
Chlef Financial Otficer
22 February 2017
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RESPONSIBLE

BUSINESS REVIEW

Up touS

Our ambition is to create homes
o support the development

of uture generations of dynamic
and successful graduates,
equipped to make posiiive social
and economic contributions.
We have a unique opportunity
to make a valuable conhibution
to society by helping our 49,000
students every yeario leam,
adopt and develop responsible
living habils. The management
of, and accountahfily for,
ourimpact on ourworld is
embedded as part of our
day-to-day operations.

UP

uS

11 has aways been imporiant o Unite o act
as a responsible business, Our first buildings
waere renovations of existing vacant
properfias in Bristol where there wos a lack
of good quality student accommodation,

In 2016 we storted work on a new
responsible busingss strategy. called Up
1o US. addressing the key sustainability
issues affecting our business and supply
chains. Up touS is o plon designed

to equip us for a future in which our
relevance to students will depend on our
ability to help them protect their world.

Up to u§ will deliver sustainable value

for our stakeholders and make us the
leading sustainabie purpose-built
accommodation provider. However,

we want to go further than being the maost
sustainable business in our sector. Further
even than making ongoing improverments
o what we do as we grow and the world
evolves. Ultimately our goalis to use our
business fo drive positive social change.

THE UMITE GROUP PLC ANMUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2006
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WE'RE MAKING A POSITIVE
CONTRIBUTION TO OUR PEGPLE,
OUR UNIVERSITIES, OUR STUDENTS
AND THE ENVIRONMENT

Joe Lister

Chief Financial Officer and

Marnaging Director of People and Communications

Up to u§ underpins our unique business
model 1o create iong-term value through
the effective use of resources and
relationships. It is driven by the same
strategic priorities gs our business model;
to be the most trusted brand, io have the
highest quality portfolio and strongest
capital structure.

Up 1t us covers four main themes:

Great workploce 45

The environment 45

Social impact 48

Trusted pariner 48
Great workplace

we want to create an inclusive and
positive workplace for all of our people.

Highlights ond key commitments

In 2016 we received Investor in Peopie
Gold Award and our target now is to
achieve Invastor in People Platinum
by 2020.

We invested £110,000 into ¢ programme
for paid interns, supporting current
students lowards emplkoyability and
giving our employees opportunities 1o
work directly wilh students, gaining
valuabie insights into their worlds.

Qur priorities in this area are:

Diversity and inclusion

we belleve that inclusivity and diversity
across the erganisation is critical fo our
continued succeass. Qur employees are
from rmany different backgrounds and
have divere experiences, perspectives
and skills. We aim to have o workforce
that is truly representative of all sections
of sociely, whene each employee feels
respected and able o give their best,
Unite Students will promote a culivre

of equolity and fairness for all and
ensure no person acting on our

behalf shal discriminate in any
situation against another individual

or group, directty or indirectty.

In 2014 we conducted our first
company-wide Diversity Survey and
the insights provided by this will hetp
inform the development of policies
and working practices.

Career endichment

We hove crealed a comprehensive
range of training courses and
development programmes for our
employees at all levels. These are
focused on technical skills, personal
development and managemant
competances, Curleadership fromework
inchudes programmes such as Becoming
a Supervisor, Becoming a Manager and
a leadership development programme,

Wellbeing

The heatth and wellbeing of our
employeas ks critical o creating
sustainable performance. In 2016 we

infroduced a wellbeing portal on our
infranet, providing advice and tips to
enable employess to ok after their
personal haalth, financial and mental
wellbeing. Creating a cohesive welbeing
strategy will be a focus for 2017,
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RESPONSIBLE

BUSINESS REVIEW

CONTINUED

Humaon Rights

Unile believes that human rights ore
univarsal and recognises thot the UN
Guiding Principies on Business ond
Human Rights set a standard of conduct
expecied of companias. We do our
best to ensuna that everyone invoived
or associated with our business is
protected, freated fairy and subject to
our Anti-Bribery and Comruption Poficies,
Health and Safety Policy, and various HR
palicies including those covering dato
protection, discipiinary, parformance
management, floxible working,
grievance, leave, equality and diversity.

The environment

Wa want to reduce our environmenlai
irmpact and encourage responsible
behaviourin our students, employees
and suppliers,

Highlights and commBments

In 2016 we achieved further
improvemeants across various metrics

« including a four star rating from the
Global Real Estate Sustainability
Benchmark (GRESB), were placed in the
98th percenlile of the FISEAGood index,
and were rated B for our ciimate chonge
performance by the Carbon Disclosure
Projact {COP). These reflect our ongoing
efforts to reduce our confribution to
climate change, and improve cur
broader environmental performance,
We were shortlisted for the 2014 Energy
Awards and the 2017 EDIE Sustainability
Awoards for our behavioural change and
gngagement programme.

Our environmental strotegy focuses on
four main objectives, which together help
us reduce our three material environmental
impacts: energy and corbon; water: and
resource use and waste.,

In 2016 we pledged to develop a
science-based carbon reduction target,
in line with the Paris Climate Agreement
1o limit warming to less than two degrees.
ond have been working with the Science

Based Targets Initiative (SBT1) to set
an ambitious and credible target.

We have also set a range of targets o
help reduce our other environmental
impacts too:

> We signed up o the intemational

RE100 scheme, committing to buy

100% renewabie energy by 2020

We are working to a target of doubling

our energy productivity by 2032 under

the internationat EP100 programme,

meaning we will halve cur energy

consumption per bed

» We aim to send zero waste to lkanafill
from owr sites by 2025

» Allnew buildings opening from 2018 on
will achieve a BREEAM ‘Excellent’ rafing

» By 2020 we willaim to effectively
engage 50% of our students every
vear with sustainability campaigns
while living with us.

v

Sustainable bulldings

Buitding on our Energy Savings
Opportunity Scheme (ESOS) surveys and
Energy Performance Certificale update
in 2015, we are producing individual
action plkans for each of our buikdings

to identify the full range of energy and
water efficiency opportunitias, Over 2017
we will bring this into @ coordinated plan
aiming to defiver significant energy and
water efficiency improvements, As well
as complying with the 2018 minimum
anergy efficiancy standards and the
2019 ESCS deadline. this will deliver
signiticant carbon reductions across our
existing estate. Ahead of this we have
continued our ongoing £21 million LED
lighting upgrade, and installed a ronge
of new technologies to understand how
best to achieve the energy and water
efficiency improvements, During 2016 we
deployed wireless networked building
controls, installed PV panels and airsource
heat pumps, and assessed a range of
other polential technologies including
demand side response and battery
storage. This activity has helped deliver
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a 10% reduction in energy per bed from
2014-2015 and a 4.8% reduction from
2015-2014.

Sustalnable behoviour

QOur Up to us Sustainability Engogemeant
Programme is now in its third year, and
saeks to delfiver lasting changes in
behaviour fowards more environmentally
responsible iving and warking habits. We
see this as o unique opportunity 1o help
our stydents odopt enduring sustainable
fiving habits that stay with thern after they
move on from Unite Studants, creating a
legocy of positive environmental impact.
Aligned with the NUS Green Impact
Awards, the praogramme yses individual,
local and national initiatives to maximise
engagement. During the 2015/14
academic year wa recruited more than
120 student volunieers fo help us deliver
a range of aclivities 1o mise awaraness
of sustainable living choices. Going into
2016/17 we lounched our Pledge for
Good campoign which includes
commitments to follow sustainable
behaviours that could deliver more

than 30 tonnes of carbon reduction.

Sustainable Construction

As well as improving the existing estate,
we are also committed to making sure
our rew buildings deliver high standards
of energy efficiency and environmenta!
performance, and help our students
live mora nesponsibly and sustainably.
From 2017 onwards all of our new buikds
will aim for an ‘Excellent’ rating under
the widely used BREEAM envircnmental
assessmen] methodology.

Sustalnable Energy

As well as improving energy efficiency.
we ore looking al how best o use
renewable energy fo further educe
our carbon emissions. Cver 2017 we will
be iocking at a ronge of short and long
term options to identify the best way

to use credible renewable energy to
reduce our footprint and deliver wider
business benefis.

Calcvlation of market based emissions factor for grid elechicity supplled under contract

Corbon Dromde

Suppbers resdual emsson; bor sach  Readual Fuel Mix x O,

fsl i fusl sounce SMENOMT

Prisnciry enengy SOurce Lsed for genaration %) (k@ kWh} (kg /kwh)
Coal 16 o9 0.1454
Natural Gas [-1) 0.3¢9 02574
Nuclear \ ] a
Renewobles 16 o] 0
Other Fuels 1 0.59 0.0059

Qverall emissions factor

0.4089 kgCO/Wh
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Carbon
Contributions
Change vs Change vs
X4 x5 POT yor 2018 prict Yoo
Year end bed numbers 43,039 45,447 5.59% 48,637 T1.02%
Carboen contributing bed nurnbers 39,125 43,084 10.02% 45,928 6.80%
Carbon contributing floor area [m) 1,007.060 1,207,804 10.09% 1,282.018 L14%
Energy ond water consumplion
2004 15 M4
Change vs Change v
Consumphan Consumption pRor Yoo Consumpton prios yeo
Blectricity Absolute (kwh| 111,948911 110,948,791 089% 112,524,053 142% 1%
Relalive o bed numbers (KWh/oed) 2861314 2575154 -1000% 2450108 AB5% B
Relative fo floor area (KWh/rm?) 102,045 91.860 9.98% a7.m 445% g
Natural gas Absclute (kwh) 23328332 24977762 15.64% 29,075,459 7.78% k]
Relative to bed numbers (kwh/bed) 594.251 626,162 9.52% 433,09 0.02% §
Relative fo floor area [KWh/m?] 21264 22334 5.04% 22.680 1.54% %
water Absolute (m?) 1.819,549 2218231 NnN%
Relative to bed numbers {m¥/bed] 42233 48.300 1437%
Relative to floor areg
{mm?) 1.507 1.730 1485%
Greenhouse gas emissions
X074 215 201
Changevs Change v
Corgumption Consumphon PHOr Yoo Comumplion priot yeor
-
T<::?' ?gﬁpe ! Absolute [tonnes CO.e) 439376 537305 2.9% 55032 707% H
1
emissions Relative o bed numbers {fonnes CO-e/bed) o1 012 11.05% 013 0.40% g
Relative lo floor area (kg COe/m?) 40050 4.4486 11.08% 4.4854 0.83% g
Totol Scope 2 Absolute [tonnes CO-g) 5602597 52.382.17 -6.50% 47.352.15 -9.80% &
‘[’&55;?"5 ) Relative to bed numbers {fonnes CO-e/bed) 1.43 122 8.00% 1.03 277% g
cfionbased] o ative to foor areo (kg COze/m?) 510692 433698  -1508% 349356  -1434% &
Total Scope 2 Absolufe (fonnes CO-a) 48,488.98 45.997.70 -3.08%
(er;“'sr‘k'";‘ao o Reiative to bed numbers (fonnes CO.e/bed) 113 1.02 -8.38%
arket based] o ekative ko floor area (kg COve/m?) 40,1464 36.6592 £6Y%
Total Scope Absoiute ftonnes CO,a| 80419.73 57.755.22 -4.41% 5310247 H.06%
; ; G;T"Ssiggsedl Relative to bed numbers (fonnes CO.a/bed) 1.54 134 £14% 116 -1051%
ationbas Relative fo floor area (kg COe/m?) 550742 478184  -1307% 41420 -1338%
Totai Scope Atxolute (tonnes CO-| 5386203 5274802 -207%
:;2 fg;‘::?;d Relative 1o bed numbers (fonnes CO.e/bed) 1.25 118 4.79% g
a I Relative to foor orea (kg COse/m?) 445950 411445 7.74% 3
Tatal Scope 3 Absolute (tannes COze} 1480220 1548629 462% 1548629 -L74% g.
?m'”:?”’ba od Reiative 1o bed numbers (fonnes COe/bad) 038 0.36 -4.59% 0.3 -7.87% g
location
sedl Relative to floor orea (kg CO.e/m?3) 13.4926 128219 -4.97%, 12.07%4 5.79% F
=3

« Scope | emissions include gas consumplion and business vehicles use.
+ Scope 2 emissions include grid electricity gnd heat

« Scope 3 emissions include supply chain emissions such as water and poper use, business fravel, and energy supply chain emissions {transmission
and distbuhon losses and wal-te-tarik emissions].

= Location based emissions are calculated ysing DEFRA 2014 emissions foctors.
+ “perbed” emissions use pro rata bed numbers, taking inte account the length of ime the site was under our ownership.
Market based emissions are calculated using market based emsaons factor basead on supplier's siated residual fuel mix shown below:
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RESPONSIBLE

BUSINESS REVIEW

CONTINUED

Scope | and 2 emissions have been
calcuiated in fine with the DEFRA
Environmental Reporting Guidelines
2013, DEFRA 2015 emissions factors
have been used, excapt for market
bosed smissions which have been
calculated using an emissions foctor
reflective of our electricity supplier's
generation mix as shown below:

Scope 142 CO,6 amiysions per bed

Scope 142 CO.& emissions per m?

More details on our environmental
strateqy and irmpacts are available on
our website and will be yupdated cver
2017 atong with more details of our wider
approach o Up o us,

The iable on page 47 summarnises

our carbon footprint compared o the
previcus fwo years. Althcugh energy
efficiency improved, a 6% increase in
total bed numbers resulted in an overall
1,.4% increqse in electricity consumption.
Gas consumption also rose by 78% due
fo more widlespread use of gas in newer
openings compared to older properties
that typically use electricity for heating.
Despite this, however, our carbon
footprint shrank: changes o the DEFRA
carbon emissions foclors in 2016 meant
our combined location-based Scope 1+
Scope 2 carbon footprint shrank by 8% in
absolute ferms, or 10.5% per bed. The
reduction in our absolute and per-bed
market-pased Scope | + Scopse 2 footprint
was 2% and 6.8% respectively. with the
smoller reduction here driven by chonges
in oyr supplier's net generation mix.

Socialimpact

Deflivering positive impacts to help young
peopte succeed in Higher Education
and huild sustainabia kves.

Highlights and commiimanis

In 2016, we donated £2 million lo charities,
including the Unite Foundation and our
charity of the year Sport Relief. More than
33% of cur ermpioyees volunteared with
local communities.

These are our priorities:

Community

Our students and employees hove a
crucial role n shaping their communities.
and have a more enriching experience
by being integrated wiih local residents
and groups. Over the forthcoming years,
we are committed to doing even more
with our communities through use of our
properties, giving suppart o community
groups and collabarating further with
Universities and students’ unions, we want
to use the research we commission in our
onnual Insight Report fo help develop
meaningful engogemeni with young
people in the communitias we operate

in ta help prepare tham for University life.

Charity

Supporting charitable organisations is

at the hear! of our values at Unite
Students. we believe we have g unique
opportunity 10 help raise awareness of
charitable giving to the fulure generation
of choritable givers, while oko providing
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a great opporiunity for engagement
between our employses, students and
Universities alike. We are committed to
supporting charifable organisations that
are dligned 10 our business. whether this
is through cash or in kind donations.

Volunteering

Yolunteering provides 0 briliont basis for
angagement with the local communities,
giving valuable resource and expertise
o organisations to reclly make g fangible
differance. while olso developing skitls,
team building and increasing motivation
for those taking port. In just two years,

our employvee volunteering scherme has
achieved mare than a 30% participation
rate and we are committed fo continuing
o grow this in future years, with particular
focus on skils-motched volunteering.
Alongside this, we absolutely recognise
the opportunity to develop student
volunteering opportunities. While done
on a smal scale currentty through

our NUS Crean Impact scheme, we

e tooking o develop this so that

it becomaes scalable, providing
apportunities for students whether

they are looking to do this to deveiop
employability skills, or Just to give their
support o a great couse.

Trusted pariner

We aim fo develop trusted and open
relationships with our investors os well as
Universities and other stakeholders who
partner with us. This is fundamental to
auriong term sustainabifity.

Highlights and commltmenhs

In 2016 we were recognised in the
Building Public Trust Awards for aur
strategic reporting. We were Qlso
aworded Business of the Year 2016 by
he Brisiol Post, in our home ¢ity. We ore
committed to maintaining the highest
standards of transparency and integrity
in aur repaorting and our rekationships.

Priorities

» Maintaining high ESG ratings, with

indices such as FISE4Good and GRESB.

In 2016 wa recaived a FTSE4Good ESG

Rating ICB Supersecior Relative

Percantie Scora 98, with 100 being

the highest possible. We ochieved

Greenstar status for the third

consecutive yedar, increasing our

2016 scora to 71, from 646 in 2015

Buiding konger Yerm commercially

sustainable relationships with our

University pariners and increasing

our Higher Education trust score

» Developing u more sustainable supply
chain, working with suppliers cerfified
by the CIPS Sustainabllity Index.

h 4
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Affordabiiity
Unite Students recognies that going

to University now represents a big
investment for students, and their
accommodation needs represent o
significant component of those costs. We
have a responsibility to ensure that the
fiving environment we offer our students
represents good quality accommodation
at the best possible value for money.

To maet the studants’ neads, we offer

a choice of room types at different price
points, in purpase built environrnents, which
include common spaces ond, wherever
possiole, a quiet study room, outdoor space
and even a gym. Our proposition further
differs from traditional Homes of Multiple
Occupancy [HMO) properties, whene
we believe we represent better volue in
a number of key areas. These include not
charging booking or administration fees.
ang offering a mnge of flexible payment
plans. Qur rents also include a range of
velue-added components such as
all-inclusive utility bikls; nigh-speed
broodband access; a fortnightly cleaning
service for shared spaces; best-in-closs
contents insurance; on-stke laundry service;
24-hour security; a 24-hour heipliine service
centre; and discounts with well-known high
street retailers.

For scholars from the most challenging
backgrounds, the Unite Foundation was
established in 2012 to provide assistonce
1o those who might not otherwise be able
fo attend Universily. Working with 10
Universities across the UK, the Foundation
provides free accommodation and is
currentty supporting 128 active scholars.

CREATING AN

ENGAGING
ENVIRONMENT

In setting our rents, we will continue

to routinely work with Universities'
accommaodation services, through
nominafions agreements and more widety,
to ensure that the fiving environment

we offer our students represents tha best
possible value for money.

The Unile Foundation

Unite Students is the founder of and

a major donor to the Unite Foundation,

a charity that helps undergraduates who
lack family support. The Foundation
provides iis scholars with accommodation
throughout the'r study years and
apphicants are selecied by the Universities
o which they cpply from the 10 Universities
which part of the Foundation programme.
Established in 2012, the Foundation

has sopported 179 peopie to date

and currently has 128 active scholars.

The end of the 2015/16 academic year
saw 18 Foundation scholars graduate.

Unite Students hosted a Foundation
Fundraisar at the Natural Hstory Museum
in 2016 to celebrote its 25th anniversory.
Guests heard from 2014 Foundation
graduate Emily Drew about hér expenence,
Unite Studants itself donated a further

£5 miliicn fo the Foundation in 2016, The
donation took the form of an investment
in the Unite Student Accommadation
Fund [LISAF) in order to give the
Foundation greater long term security.

Our 2014 Strategic Report from page

1 to page 49 has been reviewed and
approved by the Board of Directors on
22 Februcry 2017.

Jowe lister
Chiel Ananclal CHficer
22 Fabruary 2017
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CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION
TO GOVERNANCE

A GOOD GOVERNANCE
CULTURE SITS AT THE HEART
OF GROWING LONG TERM
SUSTAINABLE EARNINGS

Phil White

Chairman
I'm pleased to present our Corporate economy, while ensuring we are prepared
Governance Report on behalf of the for change in the Higher Education and
Board. 2016 has been a busy year, The PBSA sectar, This praparation includas cur

Leave vote has led to o dynamic external | substantial investrment in technology —
maorket while in parallel ~ as we celebrate | roling out our scalable operating plotform
Unite’s 25th anniversary - we are seeing PRISM— as well as ensuring our development
a maturing PBSA sector. pipeline is well funded.

Succession planning and corparate Our governance framework is designed
culture has been a focus in 2016. We had | 1o help us navigate these external and
a change in Chiaf Executive, with Richord | internal changes. It is imperative the
Smith taking over from Mark Allan after Board is able io provide the necessary
17 years with Unite, 10 as CEQ, as well as oversight and challenge fo secure the
the Group converting to & REIT effective Group's long tern sustalnable success.

1 January 2017. building on all we have leomt in our 25
years, and the following pages provide
The Board's governance role has focused | insight Qs to how we are doing this.

on the impact of change in the wider
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Governance overview underpinned by the Corporate Govemance Code

Govemnonce fromework

Qur governance framework,
underpinned by the Corporate
Govemance Code, is designed to
support our strategy ond ensuwre
our long term sustainable success.
Similar to our risk manogement
framework (described on

pages 22 to 23), our governance
frarnework is driven by an open
and coliaborative Board and
broader Unite Students cylture,
creating an environment for
people to have confidence fo
challenge the norm, For example.
we now consider proceeding with
certain site acquisitions not
conditional on planning, provided
ceridin planning risk thresholds are
satisfied. Below and on the nexf
two pages. we describe how
govermnaonce has supported our
strategy during 2016 and how thisis
finked to our principal risks. We also
describe our governance priorities
for 2017,

Accountability

The internal controls and the
Audit Committee Report (pages
46 to 69), tagether with our risk
management ramework ang
principal risks (pages 22 to 29),
describe how we ensure ¢ foir,
baianced and understandable
assessment of Unile’s position ond
prospects. the assessrment of our
principai risks and their alignment
with our strategic objectives and
haow we maintain an appropriate
relatonship with Deloitte,

our external auditors, consistent
with the Code and statutory
requirements.

Leadership

On pages 54 aond 55, we describe the
composition of the Board expiaining
their skills and experience. On pages
57 10 61 we exploin how he Boord
operates ason effective board,
collectively responsible for the
long-term sustainabie success of
Unite, the clear division of responsibilities
of the Board and the rofe of the
non-execulive directors fo
constructively challenge and
develop our strategy.

Remuneration

The Unite remuneration palicy and
implementatian chart (page 75)

and Remuneration at a glance:

chart [page 76) provide an overview
of this complex area. together with
the deloled Remunerotion Report
{pages 73 to 935) describing how we
ensure Expcutive Director remunerotion
is designed to promate the long-term
success of the Company and how we
develop our remuneration policy.

Effectivenass

Pages 62 and 63 describe how

our governance framework ensures
the effectiveness of the Board.
Recognising how critical coporaie
culture is to effectivaness and
sustainable success, during 2014
our Board evaluation focused on
{among other things) our corporate
cutture and governance
leadership. In addition, in a year
when the CEQ role transitioned,
Richard 3mith's induction as the
incoming CEQ has been crilically
important to develop his Chief
Executive skills and relationships
and ensure a smoath fransition.
The Nomination Committee
Repori [pages 64 and 65) describes
how we manage our succession
plonning. ow broader leadenhip
developmen), our gpproach

to diversity and inclusivity and

how we ensure we have a Jdeep
tolent pipeline.

Sharehoider relations
and engagement

Page 56 describes how we engage
with shareholders, which during
2016 inciuded a Capital Markets
Day in April, which allowed
investors fo see our Coventry
portfolio and development
pipeline and the apportunity to
interoct with our digital operating
pilatform, PRISM, and then a second
Capital Morkets Day in December
in London demanstrating how
PRISM impraves and streamfines
our operations. We also describe

in our Remuneration Report [pages
73 to 95) how we have engaged
with shareholders during 20146

on our Remuneraton Policy and
executive remuneration,

Hodel difejoug
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CHAIRMAN’S INTRODUCTION

TO GOVERNANCE
CONTINUED

How governance supported our sfrategy during 2016
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Sralegic. unk o
objechive Boond's govemance Nl- Frinvcipal Mk 2018 Boand octivity
Greal service PRIZM 26 Read more Boarcd review of cur digralsirategy.
Oversight on FRISM delvery and the reiated Markafrisk—wpply  Oversight ihat PRISM defivers:
ghc_mced;mom service and operating and demand > Arobustbooking system
ciency benafits.
> Anmproved and scalable platiorm tor revenue
management and cusiomer engagement
> Enhancedsenvice levels for both Universities and students
> Markel differeration. -
30 Read more: Operiions review
AftordabiBy and valye for money 26 Readmore  Analys ol the HE accommodalion secior ond ensuring we
Marietrisk- supply confinue fo offer an gHtordabie and vatue for money product.
qnd dermnand n Raod more: Allordabiity
Health & Sotety 27 R The Board reviews the satety of our students. visitors and
A5 we develop our brand through Hhe Mk " employees. as wall as contactons of our development sites,
implemeniation of Home for Success, the risk of _°m""°"°m' al s ot each Board meeling.
g"lhm‘:;?wi d‘:,'“g‘ng wrn:::;;‘?:ecn safely (HLS) Incident  H&S Commitise, a sub-committee of the Board, focus on®
health !.snbh;_ \'\'Bllbehgsandseourlry of the na uw-ﬂr“: > Fire, o;rbifg:;fdsoiefy rhk,P:imd ihe:l‘mpolmn'nnlof the
49,000 studerly who make Unrle Stuctents thelr 90 0P Avon fire ty as our Pimary Authartty lead
home s orifical to the GmupE: conlinued success > Exiemnal sciety assurance through the appoiniment of
and trusted reputation. the Brifish Safety Coundil as our new extemal safaty auditor
¥ Physical security review of our properties by WSP Porsons
Brinckemaott,
7 Reod more: HAS Cormmittes report
Home for Succem 26 Read more Board review of the ongoing Impiementotion of the £40 miion
Challenging the substantiol investmentin Home  w ey el ™ supply  Home for Success reinvesiment programme. Strateglc review
for Success ond how it i transkating o realond ol of the next phase of Home for Success to ensure the Group
improved customer axperances and stronger continuss to daliver improved custfomer experience in on
University relationships. Increasingly competitive marketploce
L] Retid more: Operafions review
Brilkant Developmant 28 Readmore: Board ensured aelivery during 2014 ol five new deveiopments.
properties Boand scruiiny of city and site selection for new Property/ representing 3,082 beds on programme and budget, 2,000
develcprments agoinst bockdnop of ncreasirg Davelopment riek of these secured with long term nominations.

competifion iof the best sites, Govemance of
developments/acguistions fo ersure they run to
budget ond schadula and are eamings accretive

34 Read more: Froperly review

Yiekd

2014PCs Becls on cost
Staplaton Housa 842 a8v%
Olymeic Way, wemblay 49% -3--9
Gostord Gate, Caventry 84 0%
Greetham S4, Portsmouth 834 93%
Couseway View. Aberdasn k2o 8%
Tobal 3,082 1%
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Key
Shategic Unk to
obiective foard's govlmonce ole Frincipal Rk 2014 Bocare] acitvily
Brikani PFroperly disposcis 28 Redad more: Boord ersuring further growih through developrment activity.
properties Boand oversight on disposals  ensuning vake marked T During 2014, lowr schemes axchanged and five planring
oblained and proceeds recycled efficiantly. ““":d*l' conaents. 2,152 beds due for defivery n 2017 and good
ore progress on out davetopment and tunds pipefine.
2 Read mone. Development pipefine
Tield
2017 PCs Beds on cost
Developmenis
St Leonord’s Edinburgh 581 955
Millennium View, Coventry | 88%
Targ House, Liverpool 776 ?.3%
1,748 ?3%
Forward funds (WSAF)
Beach Housse, Oxford 167 $0%
Luton Cowrl, Echnburgh 37 61%
Toda) 2152
Growing ond Copital siucture 29 Reod Qngoing Bourd review ol our Capital Operating Guidelnes.
sustainable Group Board tocus on a strong and fexible Anancing fsk - Continued locus onilocking in debt at historically low rates for
esoming: copiolstructure, which ¢on odap! 1o rarket Unabie fo amange new new debt fociites ond forward siaring Interest swops for
canditions, and reducing and diversifying the debt or sxpinng debt tulure bormowings for secured developmeni pipedne.
cost of tunding. faclites cannol be At the end of 2014
replacwd of only » Loan-to-value 34%
ol high cosl. > Average cost of debt 4.2%.
ol movemenis 40 Read more. Financiol review
fax shrategy/RET conversion So0rd review of the Group's tax pesition and strategy Analysks
Group Board review of tax strategy tor ol conversion fa RET and why this is right for the Group.
pubkcationn 2017 and our comversation Cvenignt of ongoing REN condifions ond headroom for
1o a REW. operating within the Balance of Business REIT tests.
&1 Reocd more’ QEA on RET comvarsion
2017 govefnance priorities » Dalivery of the deveiopment Compliance with K Corparate
> Greot service pipeline - fo budget and on time GO_VOMUHCQ Code
Student and University expectations ~with continued focus in towns During 2016, our governance framework
are constantly increasing. Governance and cities with the strongest was built on the UK Corporate
o ensure: growth prospects Governance Code [the Code). The Code
> Portfolio recycling with disposal remained the minimum standard against
> Continued investment in Home for proceeds deployed stfectively. which we measured ourseives during
Success ¥ansiating info value for 2016, We complied with all Ihe provisions
money for our custiomens and ¥ Growing and sustainable somings in the Code duturlng 20?6 ond expect fo
market differentiation In the: uncertoin world following the be fully compiiant during 2017. Tha Code
> PRISM, our scalable digital Leave vote, Governance to ensure: is pubilished by the Financial Reporting
operating platiorm, delivering Council {FRC) ond is availoble ot
improved customer service, » A strong and flexible capital www.frc.om.uk.
efficiency and thus offordability. structure to enable us to adapt
appropriately fo market conditions Phll White
> Brilllant properties as the cycle evoives Chairman of the Board
PBSA sector maturing. Govemance » Compliance with ongoing RET 22 February 2077
to ensure: status following conversion on
1 January 2017
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

From le#t to right
Chris Szpojnarowlicz, Andrew Jones;

Phil wWhite, Joe Lister, Richand Simpson,

Richard Smith, Elizobeth McMeikan,
Tim Wilson and Manjit Wolstenholme.

Board committes kay

N HNomingtion Commitiee

A Audit Cormmittes

H Health & Safety Committee
R Remunerafion Committee

1 Phil White
Chalmon
Chair of Nomination Committee
Remuneration Cormmitiee

Relevant skils and experence

Phil was appointed Chairman in May
2009. The maijority of his executive carger
was spent in the public transport sector,
during o period of dereguiation and
privatisation, He was Chief Executive of
National Express Group pic from 1997

Yo 2004, leading the business through
considerable growth both in the UK and
overseas, Phil is currently Non-Execufive
Chawman of Kier Group plc and Lookers
plc, ond Non-Executive Drector of Vp pic.

2 Richard Smith
Chiet Executive Officer

Relevant skills and experisnce

Richand was appoirted Chief Executive
in June 2014, Prior 1o this, Richard was
Unite’s Managing Orector of Openations
frorn 2011, That MD role involved Richard
leading the service provided to

our custorners, and managing the
mainienance and facilities management
across the Group's portfolio.

Richard joined Unite as Deputy Chief
Financial Officer in 2010. Prior 1o this he
spent 18 years in the fransport indusiry,
working in the UK, Europe, Ausiralio and
North America. Richard spent 13 years
ot Notiona! Express Group where he
held a range of senior finance, strategy
and operafions rolas, including Group
Development Director and Chief
Financial Officer, North America.
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3 Joe lster
Chilef Financlal Officer and Manoging
Director of People and Communications

Redevant skllis ond experdence

Joe joined Unite in 2002 having qualified
as a chartered accountant with
PricewailerhouseCoopers. He was
appointed as Chief Finance Officer

in January 2008 having previously hekl
o variety of oles including Investment
Director and Corporate Finance Director.
In addition 1o the Group's fincnce
function and investment strategy, Joe is
now also responsitle for People ond
Communications. Joe is a member of
the Council at the University of Essex.

4 Richord Simpson
Group Property Director

Relevant sidiis and experience

Richord s Group Property Director and sels
the stmategic direction for all gspects of
the property porticlio. oversees the fund
management of Unite's co-invesiment
vehicles and leads the property
development activities. Richard joined
Unite in 2005 and has held a variety

of senior roles within the Group. He is

a qualified chartered surveyor and

a fellow of the Royal Institytion of
Charterad Surveyors.

Richard hos been a Non-Executive of
CityWest Homes from January 2017,

5 Professos Sir Tim Wison
Non-Executive Director
Chair of Health & Safety Commitiee

H A R N

Relevant skills ond expesience

S Tim was oppointed Knight Bachelor
for services to Higher Education and to
business in the 2011 New Yeor's Honours
list. He is 0 strong advocate of the rale
of Universities in econornic development
and is acknowledged as one of the
leading thinkers in University business
collaborotion. He is the author of the
govemment comrmissioned Wilson
Review of Business—tUniversity
Collaboration, published in March 2012,

Formerly Vice-Chancelior of the
University of Hertforcshire, Tim served

on the Board of the Higher Education
Funding Council for England [HEFCE).
was Deputy Chair of the CBl innovation,
Seience ond Technology Committee and
a trustee of the Council for Industry and
Higher Education {CIHE). He has extensive
experience in both UK and international
Higher Education.

Timwas appointed 1o the Beard in 2010,
He holds Honorary Degrees from London
South Bank, Plymouth and Hertfordshire
universities and is cumently. as Chairnan
of Arden University, a rmember of the
Committee of University Chalrs.

& Manjit Wolsienholme
Senior Independent Director
Chair of Audit Commitiee

A R N

Relevant skills and experience

Manjit qualified as a chartered
accountant with Coopers & Lybrand.
Her background includes roles gs Director
and Co-Heod of Investment Banking

ot Dresdner Kieinwor Wasserstein. and
Pariner at Gleacher Shacklock. She is
Chair of Provident Financial and Senior
Incependent Director and Chair of the
Remunerafion Comrnittee of Future pic
as well as Chair of Calo Group Holdings
ond Chair of Audit ot CMC Markets pic.
Manjit was appointed to the Board

at the end of 2011.

? Elizabeth McMelkan
Non-Executive Director
Chair of Remuneration Committee

R A N H

Relevant sidiis and experience

Liz was appointed Non-Executive Drector
in February 2014. She has significant
experience in custormer-focusect
businessas Tesco and Coigatae Palimolive,
where she was successful in driving
growtn through an understanding

of cusfomer needs and an innovafive
marketing approach.

Liz is Senior Independent Director ot

FTSE 250 pub group JD Wetherspoon
and Chair of the Remuneration
Committee af FlyBe plc, Sheis a Non-
Executive Direcior af import/expor! fruit
and vegetable company, Fresca Groug
Ltd, and CH & Co Ltd, a privately-owned
catering company.

In November 2012, Liz was apponted
Chair of Moat Homes Ltd, a leading
housing association working in the
Sauth East.
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8 Andrew Jones
Non-Execulive Director

Relevoni skilis and experence

Andrew jones is Chief Exgecutive Officer
of LondonMetric Property, following the
2013 merger of London & Stamford and
Metric. Andrew was a co-founder of
Metric and Chief Executive Officer since
its inception in March 2010. Andrew's
previous roles include Executive Director
and Heod of Refail at British Land. He
joined British Land in 2005 following the
acquisition of Piliar Properly where he
was on the main Board, with responsibiiities
for thew retail portfolio ong the Hercuies
Unit Trust.

Andrew was appeinted to the
Board in 2013,

* Chris Sspojharowicz
Comparny Secretary
Relevant skills and experdence
Chris was appointed Company Secretary
and Head of Legal in 2013, following
General Counselroles at GE, MY
Networks and ather multinationals and
praviously an MEA fcorporote and
cammercial lawyer ot Clifford Chance
and Baker Mckenzie. Chris uses his general
counsel and corporate/commercic! legal
experance fo fuse our corporgte and risk
governance with our business activity. In
this way, Chris finks his Company Secrekiry
and governance leodesship roke with that
of Head of Legal.
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SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Board attaches a high priority 10
effective communication with shareholders
and with other providers of capital to the
business, and welcomes their views on
the Group's approach to corporate
governance, In addition 1o the final and
interim presentations, a series of meetings
between instinutional shareholders/other
providers of capital and senior
manogement were held throughout 2016,
The Board is made aware of the views of
major shareholders concerning the
Company through, among other means.
regular analyst and broker briefings, and
surveys of shareholder opinion. That
process will continue throughout 2017,

During 2016, the Remuneration
Committes conducted a consultation
with shareholders representing around
two-thirds of the ssued share capital,
as well as key UK institutiongl investors,
regarding proposed changes in our
Remuneration Policy

73 Rernyneration

The Board, together with its professional
advisers, actively anatyses the Register of
the Company with a view 1o ensuring the
long term stability of the Register.

The Company maintains a corporate
website containing a wide range of
information of interest ta institutional and
private investors. The Company has
frequent discussions with shareholders on
a nange of issues affecting its performance,
both following the Company’s
announcements and in response to
specific requests. The Company regularly
seeks feedback on the percaption of

the Company amongst its shareholders,
the investor community more broadly
and its stakeholders.

Save in excepfiaonal cicumstances,

all members of the Board attend the
Company's Annual General Meetings
and shareholders ore invited to ask
questions during the meeting and to
meet with Directors prior to, and after,
the formal proceeadings. At the meeting,
the Chairman reviews the Group's
cument trading.

The results of the votes at the Annual
Generol Meetings, logether with defails
of the levat of proxy voles lodged for
ecch resclution is made available on
a regulatory information service and
on the Company’s website at
www.unite-group.co.uk.

155  Noiica of the Annual
Genemt Mesting

Results of 2014 Annual General Meeting

For Aganst

% voles % Voles

Resowtion cost cast

1 Receive Annuol Reports & Accounts 100.0 0.0
2 Directors’ Remunenation Policy 8.9 1.1
3 Annual Report on Remunerafion 99.7 0.3
4 Declare ¢ fingl dividend 100.0 0.0
5-14  Appointment of Diectors ?38~999 0.1-63
15 Appoint the auditor 100.0 0.00
18 Audilors' remunerction 100.0 0.00
17 Approve performance share plan 983 1.7
18 Approve employee share scherne 99.1 09
9 Authority 10 Qliot shares 88.4 11.6
20 Pre-erption rights 98.6 1.4
842 15.8

21 Allow general meelin_gs_on 14 days' notice

Invesior days

We regularly hold investor days to
profile the latest developmentsin

our busingss and showcase our new
properfies and locations. During
2016, these events included a Capital
Markets Day in April, which ollowed
invesiors 1a see our Coventry
portfolio and development pipeline
and the opportunity o inferact with
our digital operating platform, PRISM,
and a second Capital Markets Day in
Decamber in London demonstrating
haw PRISMimproves and streamiines
our operations. These events aliow

us to demonstrate the breadth and
depth of our management team
who help ensure thot Unite Students
cantinues lo evolve,

Sharehoiders by geography

Top 10 sharehoiden
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LEADERSHIP

Corporate cuiture and
govemance ieadership

The Board has ulfimate responsibility 1o
Unite Studlents’ sharehoidens For ol the
Group's activities and olso a broader
responsibility, extending to envircnmental
and sockal issues, recognising that the
Group is home to 42,000 students during
a ¢rucial stage of their personal
deveiopment and with Universities right
across the UK. To discharge this broader
responsibility effectively, the Group needs

to operate in an open, harmonious and
transparent manner. One way in which
this is achieved is by ensuring open
communication between the Board and
senior leaders. Various members of the
senior ieadership tearn regulany present
1o the Board. During 2016, Unite’s
Operations Director, Student Experience
Director, Head of Digitol, Area Managers,
Development Director, Funds Divector
{representing our various co-investment
vehicles), University Partnerships Director
and Head of Legal & Company Secretary

57

[armong others) presented to the Boord.
This direct access to management opens
dialogue beyond the board room itself.

Further, with Boord meetings located in
cities across the UK, the 8oard visits our
new developments as well as exiting
properties meeating with our Operations
teoms and giving them a grounded insight
to the implementation of our strotagy.

Board structure
™, Unite Operations
Board N Boord
Unite Properdy
Nomination Audit Health & Safety Remuneration Boord
Commitiee Commitlee Committee Commilitee
Pt White— Chair Manjit wolstenhalme Sir Thn Witson - Chair ERzabeth McMeikan
Andrew Jones - Chai Richard Smith ~Chalr
Ezabeth Mcmekan Elzabeth McMeikan Elrabeth McMeikan Andrew fones
S Tirm Wikson Sir Tim witkson Phil White ormmit
Manjit woklerholme Sir Tim Wikon Risk C .
Manfit Wostenhofme Christopher
o4 &6 T8 73 SIpojnarowicz
Normiation Aucdit Health & Safety Remunanation {Head of Legaland
Committee Report Committee Report Commitiee Report Committee Report Company
_ Secratary) Chair
The Remuneration Richard Smith
Committee Report Joe Lish
8 Incofporated Ny S er_
Info this Carporate Richard Simpson
Gavernance
Stalemeant
by reference.
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LEADERSHIP
CONTINUED

Bocard operating rhythm - linked
to sirategy and business oversight
The Boord has an annyat operating
rhythm with a forward agendo of items
for the forthcoming yeor buitt around our
three strategic abjectives. The Boand's
meetings are split between strategy
{these consider the Group’s longer term
strategy having regard to emerging risks
or the review and approval of specific
invastments abave cerain thresholds)
ond routine operational, property and
financialupdates (these provide context
for the strategic discussions as well as
governance oversight of in-year activity).

Meetings take piace throughout the UK,
often at Universities in arder for the Board

Board operating rhythm

Reguiar vpdales from the Bourd
Committees on thelr aclivities
and recommaendatons

Operational, property
and financlial updates

Market and Higher Education
secior updates

Strategy and five-year pion

Risk

New development schemes

Training

Review of Group policies

to meet Vice-Chanceliors and leom
about their experiences with Unite, their
accommaodation requirements more
generally and broader developments in
tne Higher Education sector.

The Board is able to oversee the seting
and implementation of the Group's
strategy due fo ifs flat management
struciure; three members of the Board
are Executive Directors and therefore
actively involved in the day to day
implementation of the strategy. This
executive perspective is balonced by five
Non-Executive Directors, including the
Chaimman, who bring a depth and breadth
of experience in senior management,
Higher Education, finance, custorner
service and real estate.

Senior leaders are regularty invited fo
attend meetings and present to the
Board. This provides the Board, and in
particular the Non-Exacutives, with direct
and open access o leaders throughout
the Group and helps incukcote a culture
of openness and direciness. In addition,
external experts are also invited to
present fo the Board (such as University
Yice-Chancellors and property valuers)
fo give the Diractors ¢ broadar and
independent perspective.

Details of the number of Board and
Cormnmittee mesetings held during the
yeor, and Director attendance, is
avaikable in the table on page 61.

Ensyre that the detailed work performed in the Board Committees
is considered by the Board as a whole

Provide the Board with the necessary information to track the Group's
performance and challenge any problems with performance

Ensure the Board is equipped with the most up to date knowledge and
understonding of the industry and environment we are operating in

Discuss, raview and approve our strategy and five-year pkan, and track
how we are performing agains! our curent strategy and the five-year plan

Review and discuss our principal risks ata Group level and qlso a review

of our operational level risks (the Board's operational fisk raview is 10 verify
thait risks have been property identified and that oppropriate risk mitigation
plans are being cormectly managed with clear actions and ownership)

Review and challenge new davelopment schemes being recommended
by management and, due to the significant capital expenditure
involved and key strategic decisions required, approve these new

davelopment schemes

A review of the Board's training needs and also to ensure that the Board
is up lo date on key legal and regukatory changes. Buring 2016, training
was conductad onm how we are using lechnology and social media in
the business as well as governance training on various topics, including

the Market Abuse Regulations

Review of key Group policies, such as the Anti-Bribery Policy, to ensure
they are appropriate and implemented effectively
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Board acfivity and annual programme
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February & 1 240 Es® niEe Y
Corporate Post completion Property -approval  Preliminary results Treasury
rasponsibiity and  review - rovigw of land acquishon Policy review
Horne forSuccess of 2015 property in liverpool

compietions
March @
E] Mominations
Committea
- Ccession
pianning
Apdl o & &
m Devetopment Approvalofland  Trainng: Morket
plpefine acguisition Abuse Regukations
irt Birméngham
and comstruction
contracts in
Portsmouth
May & = e Ee »
m Unite Foundation  infemal audit plan Assess ouditors Review intemal H & 5 Commitiee
6 O conirols
PRISM workshop &e
Principal
risks review
June & o a ¢
m Market review Hol-yaar ACquisition Adopting
valyation opportunities new Inside
presvsew - opprovol of Information
iond gcquisihon Policy and Share
in Sheffield Dedaling Policy

July e

m intenrm results

September & N ‘ . %

El Strategic Plan Boordevaluation  USAFASAV/wholty Tax rewiew and H &3 Commitiee
ond tolent review owned portiolic REIT conversion

L remaw

November g i & e He® o

m Principat risks review 2017 budget Sales cycle Capital opevating  REI Circular

themes review guidefines review  approved

Dacember 1 aE ] U L] -]

m Customer ARDIove Prospactiva Whistleblowing Training. Corporate H & S Committee
sofistaction 2017 budget yeor end cut-turn review Govemnance

0 Anti-bribery review

h Commercial

Investor redations ¢ Gover nanoe

Qe
DWG;:'nop

1 Great ma Brikiant pnooaﬂimo Growing ond susieinaoie eanmings * NO boand activity in January, August and Octaber
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LEADERSHIP
CONTINUED

Composition and appointments |
The compaosition of the Board during 2016

is set out in the table on page 57. \
The Board currgntly consists of the
Chairrman, three Executive Directors ond
four Non-Executive Direciors.

Boord composiion

THE UNITE GROUP PLC AMNUAL REFORT AND ACCOUNTS 2914

in accordance with the requirements of | Roles

the Code, each of ihe cumeni Directors The Group's tenms of reference for the
offers lhemselves for re-alectionatthe | Chairman and the Chief Executive
Annyai General Meeting jo lbe convened ' cleorly establish the givision of

on 11 May 2017, Brief biogrophies of all the  responsibiiity between the two foles.
Directors are set out on pages 54 and 55. | summorias of those roles. and thot of the
Following the individual performance Senior Independent Director, are set out
evalyations of each of the Non-Executve | in the table below.

Directors seaking re-glection, itis |

confirmed that the performance of eoch

of these Non-Executive Directors

continues 1o be effective. They sach I

_ demonstrate commitment to the role,

Rals

and odd value and relevont axperience
to the Board. |

Descripiion

Chairman

Phil White's principal responsibilities are:

¥ Teestablish, in conjunction with the Chief Executive, the strolegic objectives of the
Group, for approval by the Board

> To organise the business of the Board

> To enhonce the standing of the Company by communicating with shareholders,
the financial cammunity and the Groyp's stakehoiders generalty

Chiaf Executive

Richard Smith has responsibifity for:

» Ettablishing, in conjunction with the Chairman, the strategic objectives of the Group.
for approval by the Boarg

> Implementing the Group’s business plan and annual budget

> The ovenall operational and financial performance of the Group

Senior independent Director

As Senior Independant Director, Manjit Wolstenholme's principol respensibllities are o:

> Act as Chair of the Board if the Chairman is conflicted

> Actasa conduit to the Board for the communication of shareholder concerns if
other channeis of communication are inappropriate

> Ensure that the Chairmian Is provided with effective feedbock on his performance

Responsibillty and delegation
A schedule of specific matters s reserved
for the Board. Those Include:

¥ Approving the strategic objectives of
the Group and the business plan 1o
achiave those objectives

¥ Approving major investments, ¥ Approving policies relaling to
acquisitions. mergers and divestments Directors' remuneration.

> Approving major development schernes | .

> Approving appoiniments to and i These topics are scheduled as part of Ihe

board's annual openating rhythm and
forward agenda or brought 1o the Board
on an ad hoc basis, as and when this

is necessary.

dismissals from ihe Board
» Reviewing systemns of infernal control
and risk management
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Board and Committee attendance at meetings in 2014

8l

Dateof Health &
Cutrent Apporniment Audit  Renwnérahon Nomrahon Satety
Owactors Status t the Board Board Conmuttee Committee Comrrttee Comm_n_\‘ee_
Phil White Chairman 21.01.09 9 N/A 5 2 NfA
Sir Tim Wikon inclependent o200 9 4 5 2 3
Manjit Wolstenholme Independenf 011211 g 4 5 2 N/A
Andrew Jonas Independent 01.02.13 9 N/A, 5 2 N/A
Elzabeth McMeikan independent 01.02.14 L 4 5 2 3
Joe Lister Executive 020108 9 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Richard Simpson Executive 001,12 9 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Richard Smith Executive 01.00.12 9 N/A NfA N/A 3
Resigned during the year
Mark Allan
Resigned 31.05.16 Executive 17.11.03 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 0
Patrick Dempsey
Resigned 31.08.16 independent 01.03.16 4/4 2/2 /2 n 1/3
Board Commitiees The graph below shows the current Professional advice
The Board has delegated certain balance of tenure of the Non-Executive and Board support

responsioilifies to its Committees, as
detailed on the following pages. The
terms of reference for each Comimities
ane reviewed annuoily and the cumrent
versions ore availkable on the Company's
weabsite at www.unite-group.co.uk. The
current membership of each Committee
of the Board is set out in the chart on
page 57.

Board tenure

Each of the Executive Directors has a roling
contract of employment with g 12 month
notice period, while Non-Executive
Directors are, subject to re-election by
shareholders, appainted to the Board for
a term of approximately thrge years. In
accordonce with the recommendations
of the Code, the Directors will all retike

at the Annual General Meeting and will
submit themsehvas for re-election by
shorghalders.

Directors, including the Chairman.

Board lenure

Directors are given access to
independent professional advice ai the
Company’s expense when the Direciors
deem it necessary in order for them to
carry out their responsibilities, The Directors
also have regular diglegue with, and
direct access to, the advice ond sarvices
of the Company Secretary who ensures
that Board processes and corporate
governance practices are followed.

Insurance

The Company maintains Directors and
Officers liability insurance, which is
renewed on an annual basis.
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EFFECTIVENESS

induction

On gppoiniment fo the Boord,
each Director takes partina
comprehénsive and personalised
induction programme covering:

> The business and operations of the
Group and the Higher Education
sector; the role of the Boord and
rmatters reserved for its decisions; the
fermns of reference and membership
of Board Committees; and powers
delegated to those Committees

> The Group's corporate govemance
practices and procedures and the katest
financial nformation about the Group

> Ther legal and regulatory responsibilifies
as a Director and, specificolly, os a
Director of a isted company.

As part of the induction pragram, each
Director alsa visits key locations to sea our
business operations and properties first
hand and the Higher Equcotion institutions
we pariner with. Also, they meet with key
senior executives so from the outset they
have access fo managers throughout the
organisafion o hefp them form their own
independent views on the Group and its
perforrnance, and the Higher Education
sector we operate in. In addition, they
are given the opportunity o meet

with representatives of the Company’s
key advisors.

This induction is aiso suppiermented with
ongoing training throughout the year to
ensure the Board are kept up to date with
key legal, regulatory and industry updates.

Richard Smith's CEQ induction
Following Richard Smith's appointment
as CEOQ, a specific inducficn plan was
developed. Richard already had
considerable experience with the
Company, but a plan was devised to
reflect his new role as CEQ. This included
meseting with various sfakeholders in this
new role as well as building a development
plan 1o help ensure Richard's transition
into his new role.

THE LWITE GROUP PLE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016

2014 evaludtion key themes
Cormporate cutture and
govemance leadership:

This year, we expanded our Board
evaluation lo ask searching queslions
about our carporate culture and
governance leadership (see guestions
set below) using the learnings from the
FRC raport, Corporata Cullure ond the
Role of Boards. The cutput was very
encouraging. with a consensus that
wa hove g positive and coherent
corporate culture with strong
governance leadership. We plan fo
build on this far 2017, using our Home
for Success brand architecture and
ways of working o develop KPIs to
help measwe performance.

Colaborative team:

The Boord and #ts Committess cperote
0s 0 collaborative team, bakancing
their collective responsibility
oppropriatety, Comments across

the Executive Directors and
Non-Executive Directors were

broadiy similar. indicating no real
outtiers or divergence of views.

Questions in Board Evaludalion focusing on conporale culfure and govemance leadership

Does the Board have cleor agreerment on its role in shaping, embedding ond oveneeing the Group's corporate culture?

Does the Board devote sufficient fime and resources to evaluating govemance leadership?

Does the Boord hove visbilty over KPIs which measure corporate value arking from Unite Students’ brond ond reputation?

Are the Executive Directors aligned in Unite Students’ pupose and vales?

Is the brooder eadership leam aligned with Unite Students’ purpase and values?

Do the NorExecutive Directors have appropriate ine of sight access 1o the business?

Does the Company Secretary provice independent and arsparent advice and guidance on corporate govemnance matters?

Doas Unite Students enjoy o high level of frust within its investor base. with a posifive say/do ratio?

Does Unite Students enjoy a high level of frust within its wider stakeholder base, with a pesitive say/do ratio?
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Performance evaluation

Each year the Board, its Committees

and Directors are evaluated considering
{among other things) the bakince of
skills, axperience, independence and
knowledge on the Board. its diversity
finciuding gender), how it works fogather
as a unitand other factors relevant to

is effectiveness.

During 2014, this Board evaluation
specifically explored our corporate
cutture and governance keadership.

The key leomings from the FRC's recent
report, Comporate Cuiture and the Role:
of Boards, were used as the basis for this.
In addition, the evaluation considered
the behaviours and processes of the
Boord, its Committess and each member
of the Board, including the Charman.

The Cormpany’s policy i o conduct an
axtaernally facilitated evaluation every
third year, During 2014, the evaluation
was conducted internally. The previous
external evaluation was 2014 and the
next externgl evaluation is expected

to be during 2017,

The 2014 evaluation took the form of a
questionnaire asking searching questions
of the Board and Committees. This was
conducted on an anonymous basis — to
encourage frank and direct feedback
- and the results then coliated by the
Company Secretary and shared with
the Group Boord and each Commitiee.
in addition, the: recommended actions
from the 2015 evaluation were reviewed
o determine progress against them,

Chairman and

Non-Execulive Directors

The Boord considers each of its four
Non-Executive Directors 1o be
independent. Accordingly, the Company
meets the requirement of the Code in
relotion to membpers of the FISE 250 thot
at least half of the Board [exciuding the
Chairman), is made up of independent
Non-Executive Directors. In addition,
Phil White [Chairman of the Board)

was consiklered independent on his
appointment to that role.

The Chairman and the Non-Executive
Directors constructively challenge and
help develop propesals on sirategy, and
bring strong, independent judgement,
knowiledge ond experience to the
Board's defiberations. Non-Executive
Directors are expected to commit
approximatety 20 doys per annum

o the business of the Group.

The terms and conditions of appointment
of the Naon-Executive Directors are
available for inspection ot the Company’s
registared office and at the onnual
general meating.

Training

The Board reviewed their training needs
and considered it important that the
Directors have a broader perspective

of the digital and technology needs of
the business. This led to a Digital and
Social Media Workshop for the Board.
demonstrating PRISM and its functionality
and user experience in May 2016.In
addition, the Board considered it
important that the Commitiee Chairs
continue to receive relevant functionai
training [such as on accounting, UK
Corporate Governance Code and
executive rermuneration reporting
developments) and accordingly the
Commitiee Chaoirs attend relevant
externg! seminars. The Boord receives
on-going training on corporate
governance developments, whichin 2016
included training on the Market A buse
Regulation in anticipation of this coming
ino effect during 2014.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

PHIl White Chairman

Nomination Commitiee

Chalr’s overview

Earlier in the report, | expkiined the Board
changes during the year, with Richard
Smith appointed Chiaf Executive following
Mark Allon's resignation after 17 years
with Unite, including 10 as Chief Executive.

With succession planning and talent
development a key araa of focus for the
Committee over the years, it has baen
especially pleasing thot this culminated
in the smooth transition of the role of the
Chief Executive role with an intemail hire.
This focus on succession planning and
talent developrnent has also enabled the
expansion of the roles of cur Chief Ainancial
Officer, Joe Lister. and Managing Director
of Property, Richard Simpson. Joe Lister's
rote exponded to include Pecple and
Communications and Richord Simpson's
foinclude Heolth and Safety, Procurernent
and Asset Management. This has resulted
in the number of Executive Directors on
the Boord reducing from four to three.

This focus on succession planning and
talent development has anabled the
Executive Directors to step up, with a
corasponding stepping up in the sanior
leadership team. On an angoing basis,
the Commiltee reviews oyr falent pipeline
for future Board appointments as wall as
reviewing the skills we need in our senior
leadership team. These reviews are
measured against our thiee core strategic
objectives. The Committea’s focus
extends to developing high perfarming
individuals befow Board lavel, ensuring
adeep tolent pipeline to secure the
busingss's long term sustainability.

Phil White
Chair — Nominallon Committee
22 Fetruary 2017

Committee overview

Composifion

The Committee consists entirely of
Non-Execulive Directors. The mermbers of
the Cormmittee are set out on page 57 of
the Corporate Govermance Slatement,
At the invitation of the Commitiee,

any other Director or other person may
be invited to attend meatings of the
Commiltee if considered desiable in
assisting the Committea in fulfiling its role.

Role
The role of the Committee is fo:

» Ensure that appropriate procedures
are adopted and followed in the
nomination, selection. training.
evaluation and re-election of Directors
and for succession pianning. with due
regard in all cases to the benefits of
diversity on the Board, including gender
Regularty review the structure, size,
compasition, skills and experience
of the Board and to moke
recommendations with regard to any
adjustments considered necessary
> when it is agreed that an appointment
to the Board should be made. lead a
selection process thai is formal, rigorous
and transparent
> Be responsible for identifying, reviewing
and racommending candidates for
appointment to the Board.

v

Activities In 2014

Succession planning

Reviewing succession pkanning and
ensuring we have ¢ clear falent pipeiine
for future Board appeointments — this
considers both Exacutive Directors as well
as the Non-Executive Directors. Specificaly
for 20146, this succession planning led fo
the oppointment of our forrmer MD of
Operations, Richard Smith, as our new
CEQ, following Mark Alkan's resignation.

As an integral part of our executive
succession planning, the Committee
aversees the senior leodership
development programme [part of o
broader skills deverioprment programme)]
to ensure we are growing and nyrturing
our talent and developing our high
potential, high performers.

THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AMD ACCOUNTS 2014

Review of Board composikion

i A ongaing review of the Board's

composition to ensure it has the comect
balance of skils. experience, ndependence
and knowledge. The Committee believes
the Board has the correct balance at

the moment, but is conscious of the
developments in digital, fechnelogy and
customer experience and reviews this on
an ongoing basis.

Group Board Diversity Policy

We necognise that diversity and inclusivity
at Board level and throughout the Group
is critical component of our long-term
sustainability. we are proud of the diversity
of tha Group as a whole, an organisation
made up of employees, who like our
customers, are from mony different
backgrounds and countries and have
diverse experiences, perspectives

ond skills,

Beyond the Board rcom and within Unite
Students more generally, we have been
reviewing our approach 1o diversity and
inclusion during 2016. We recognise this
as @ key building block of our peaple
strotegy and that the UK workforce and
our students are increasingly diverse. Ta
remain competitive we need to develop
a diverse aond inclusive workpiace that
willin tum best represent and support our
customers in creating o Home for Success.

During Q3 2014, we conducted an
anonymous survey of our employees,
which has led nat only to a greater focus
on lemale reprasentation of senior levels
within the business but also broader
diversity and inclusion initiatives.
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This is transiating into the foliowing
actions and focus for 2017, being driven
by o senior leadership working group:

> We are widening our recruiiment
channels fo bring in increased diversity

» We are fraining all recruiting managers
ond the resourcing teom on
unconscious bias to ensure that we are
recruiting the best person for the job

» We are ensuring thot Qll custorner
facing teams are diverse and
appropriately represeniative of our
focol community and our students

> We are aclively supporting our high
potensiol femole employees

» Wae are ensuring that allieadership
reles have diversa candidates on the
short list

> We are acfively working with
organisation such as Stonewall and
Business Disability Forum to raise
our awarenass

> We are reviewing ali HR policies and
procedures to be more inclusive with
related ling manager raining

As regards the Board itseff, the Nomination
Committee considered during 2016
whether it waniled fo set specific targets
for fernale representation on the Board.
The Committee believes the current
focus of diversity and inclusivity should

be on the Group 0s a whole with the
development of a diverse and inclusive
falent pipetine incorporating the inttiatives
outined albove. The Committee is not
currently considering seHing diversity
targets for the Board itself believing this is
not necessarily in the best interests of the
Group and its siakeholders, but gender
diversity, aiong with alt other aspects of
diversity and inclusivity, will be considered
along with its more general remit to
cansider the balkance of skils, experience,
independence and knowledge when
reviewing appoeiniments fc the Board.

45

ACCOUNTABILITY

internal control

The Board has overall responsibifity for

the Group's system of internal control.
However, such a syslem is designed to
achieve byusiness objectives and con only
provide reasonable and not absolute
assuronce against material misstatement.

The provisions of fhe Code inrespect of
internal controls requine that Directors
rgview and monitor all controls including
operational, compliance and risk
management, as well as financial
controks. Through reports from the Board's
Committees, the Group's Risk Committee
and the Group's Businass Units Boards
[Operations Board and Property Boord),
the Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group’s system of internal contrcls
for the period covered by the Annual
Report and Accounts and has conciuded
that such controls were effective
throughout such peried.

Further information on the Company's
internal control framewark i set out in
the Audit Commihee Report on the
folowing pages. The Board delegotes
certain of its duties, responsibilities and
powers to the Audit Cornmittee, so that
hese can receive suitably focused
attention, but in so doing the Audit
Commitiee acts on beholf of the full
Board, and the matters reviewed ond
managed by the Audit Committee
rermain tha responsibility of the Directors
taken Qs a whoile.,

Going concem

After making enquiries, the Directors
have o reasonabie expectation that the
Group and the Company have adequate
resources to continue in operationat
existence for the foresesable future.

For this reason, they continue to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing

the accounts,

Risk management

The Board, when setting the strategy.

olso determines the nature and extent

of the principal risks and ifs risk appetite

in implementing this strateqgy. Each year
tha Board reviews the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management systems and
how the Board did this during 2014 is set
out on pages 22 fo 25,

Business model
For a description of the Group's business
model, see page 5 of the Strategic Report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Manjit Wolstenholme Chairman

Audit Commiliee Chair's overview
During 2016, the Audit Commitieg
continued ils key oversight role for the
Bocard with its specific duties as set out

in its terms of reference 1o reassure
shareholders that their interests are
property protected in raspect of the
Group's financial management

and reporting.

The Audit Committee works to o stroctured
programme of activities, with agenda
items focusad fo coincide with key evenis
in the annual financial reporting cycle.
The Committee reports regularty to the
Board on its work.

During the yvear, the Commitiee has
continued to monitor the intagrity of

the Group's financial stalements and
supported the Board with its ongoing
monitoring of the Group's risk
management and internal control
systems in ine with the ennanced
requirements under the Corporate
Governance Code. The Committee also
determined the focus of the Group's
internal audit activity and reviewed its
findings and verified that recommendations
were being appropriately implemented.
In addition, recognising the value of an
effoctive whistieblowing channel, the
Committee again reviewed amangements
tor ihe Group's employees to roise
concems in confidence.

Further to the appointment of Deloitte

as the Group's auditors during 2015 and
subsequent to the completion of their first
audit reporl in February 2016 the Audit
Committee undertook a full evaluation
aof the audit approach 1o asceriain the
effectiveness of the external audit
function. Further 1o the compietion of the
avoluation of the exiernal audlt process
we are satisfied with both the auditor's
independence and gudit approach ond
hove recommended to the Board that
they be re-appointed in 2017,

As noled in this Corporate Govemance
Statement, the Board delegates cerlain
of its duties, responsibilities and powers
o the Audit Committee, so that these
con receive suitabty focused ottention.
However, the Audit Committee acts on
behalf of the full Board, and the matters
reviewed and manoged by the
Committee rerain the responsibllity

of the Directors as 0 whole.

Role of the Audit Committee
The audit Committee has delegated
authority from the Board set outin its
written terms of reference. The terms of
reference for the Audit Committee take
into account the requirements of the
Code and are available for inspection
at the registered office and at the
Annual General Meeting, ond can

also be found on the Group website

at www.unite-group.co.uk/about-unite/
corparate-governance.

The key obiectives of the Augit
Committee are:

> To provide effective governonce and
control over the integrity of the Group's
financialreporting and review significant
financial reporting judgements

» Tosupport the Board with ifs ongoing
menitaring of the effectiveness of the
Group's system of internal controls and
risk management systems

» Tomonitor the effectiveness of the
Group's internal cudit function and
review its material findings

» Tooverses the relationship with the
externci auditor, including making
recommendations to the Board in
relation 1o the oppointment of the
external auditor and monitoring
the externat auditor's objectivity
and independence.
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Composition of the

Audit Commitlee

The members of the Committee are

set cut on page 57 of this Corporate
Governance Statement. The Committee
members are oli ndependeant Non-
Executives and have been setected with
the aim of providing the wide range of
financial and commerciol expertise
necessary fo fulfil the Committee's duties.
The Boord considers thot as @ chortered
accountant | hove recent and relevant
fEnancial experience. tn addition, in
contempiation of a change in the
Corporate Governance Code effective
for our next Annual Reporl, the
Cemmittee considered whether itasa
whole has competence in the student
accommoedation sector. Having regard
to the Audit Committee members'
expertience in both the Higher Education
sector and their experience with Unite,
the Commitiee believes it does have the
required competence.

Meetings are atlended, by invitation, by
the Chief Financiat Officer, the Daputy
Chief Financial Officer and the Group
Financial Confrolier.

| also invite our external auditor, Deloitte,
to each meeting. The Commitiee
regularly meets separately with

Deloitte without others being present.

As appropriate, | olso invite our internat
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers [PwC),
to attend the meetings. Deloitte and PwC
meet independently of management to
ensure alignment, & update on
respective findings and consider the
Impact on the relative opproaches of
their work.

Committee meetings

The Committee meets four limes during
the year and otiendonce at those
maetings is shown on page &1 of this
Corporate Governonce Statement.

Main activities of the Committee
during the year

Meetings of the Committee generally
take place just prior 1o a Group Board
meeting and lreport o the Board as part
of a separate agenda item, on the
activity of the Cormmittee ond matters of
particukar relevance to the 8oard in the
conduct of their work. At its four meetings
during the year. the Committes focused
on the activities descrioed below.
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The Committee reviewed the hoff year
and annyal finoncial stoterments and
the significant financial reporting
judgerments. As part of this review, the
Committee supported the Board by
reviewing the financial viability and the
basis for preparing the accounts on a
gong concern basis as outlined below.
The Committee ako reviewed and
challenged the external auditor's
report on these financial stalements.

As discussed above, the effectivenass of
the external audit function was considered
during 2014, subsequent o the tender
and appointment process of Deloitte in
May 2015. During the evaluotion process
the Commitiee considered: the
independence and objectivity of the
external ouditor; the make-up and
quality of the aucit team; the proposed
audit cpproach and the scepe of the
audit: the execution of the audit and
the quality of the audit report to the
shareholiders; as well as ultimalely the
fee struCture.

The Committee discussed reports from
PwC as the Group's internal auditor on
their audit and assessment of the control
envirgnment, The Committee reviewed
and proposed areas of focus for the
internal audit programme of review
including the approach to ensure that
the internal audit activity is aligned to
the principal Group risks.

Financial reporting

The primary focus of the Committee. in
relation to financial reporting in respect of
the year ending 31 December 2016, was
o review with both management and
the external auditor the appropriateness
of the half year and onnual financial
statements concentrating on:

> The quality ond acceptabiiity of
occounting policies and practices
> The clarity of the disclosures and
complicnce with financial reporting
standards and relevart finonciol and
gevernance reporting requirements
> Material areas in which significant
judgements have been applied
or where there has been discussion
with the external guditor
Whether the Annual Report and
Accounts, token as a whole, is foir,
balkanced and understandabie and
provides the information necessary for
sharehoiders fo assess the Group's
position and performance, business
model and strofegy.

v

The Commitiee’s assessment of the
Annyal Report 1o ensure that it s fair,
balanced and understandable took into
account the following considesations:

> A review of what foir, balanced ond
undersiandable means for Unite
» The high level of input from the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financiai
Officer with early opportunities for the
Board to review and comment on the
Annuai Repot
» Ensuring consistency in the reporting
of the Group's performance and
manogement information {as
described on pages 20-21), rsk {cs
described on poges 26-29), business
model and strategy (as described
on page 5)
A cross-check between Board minutes
and the Annual Report Is undertaken
fo ensure that reporting is belanced
> Whether information is presented
in a cleor and concise manner,
illustroted by oppropriate KPIs
fa facilitate shareholders' access
fo relevant information.

v

Te aid our review, the Commitiee considers
reports from the Group Fnancial Controlier
and also reports from the external auditor
on the outcomes of their half year revigw
and annyal cudit. As @ Committee,

we support Deloitte in dispkaying the
necessary professional scepticism their
role requires.

Significant ssues considered

by the Commilfee

After discussion with both management
ond the externol auditor. the Commitiee
determined that the ke risk of misskaternent
of the Group's 2014 financiol stalements
related to:

> Property valuations
> Joint venture occounting.

Property valuations

The Group's principal assets are
investmernt properties and investmant
properties under development that

are gither owned on balance sheetorin
USAF or LSAV. The investrment properties
are carried at fair value based on an
appraisal by the Group's extemal valuers
who carry oul ihe valuations in accomdonce
with the RICS Red Book valuation guide,
taking into account transactional
evidence during the year. The valuation
of property assets involves significant
judgement and changes in the core
assumptions could have a significant
impact on the carrying value of these
assets. Manogement discusses the

[

underlying pedformance of each asset
with the external valuers and provides
detoiled performance dato to them
including rents, University lease
agreemants, occupancy, property costs
and costs te complete (for development
properties). Monagement receives
getaied reports from the valuers and
parforms a detailed review of the
valuations to ensure that they consider
the valuations to be appropriate. The
valyation repen is reviewed by the Chief
Financiol Officer and Managing Director
of Property prior to sign-off.

During the vear, the Committee and/for
the Board met with members of the
Group's valuers and chalenged them on
the basis of their valuations and their core
assumptions, including the yiekd for each
property. rentol growth and forecast costs.

The Committee questioned the extemnal
vaksers on market trends and transactional
evidence that supports the valuations.
The Cormmittes was satisfied that the
Group's valuers were oppropricately
qualiified and provided an independent
assessment of the Group's assets.

The Committee was satisfied that an
appropriate valuation process had taken
place, the core assumptions used were -
reasonable and hance the camying
vaiue of investment and development
properties in the financial statements
was appropricte.

The auditor explained thew audit
procedures to test the valuation of
investment and development properties
and the.Group's disclosures on the
subject. On the basis of their audit work,
the auditor reported no inconsistencies
or misstaternents that ware materialin
the context of the financial statements
as a whole,

34 Further analysis ard detail
on asset valuations
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

CONTINUED

Joint venture accounting

Two of Unite's significant assets are its
investments in USAF ond LSAY which the
Group has historicolly accounted for as
joirt veniyres.

The Group adopted ifRS |0-12 from the
2014 financial yeor end which provides
guidancs on how an investor should
account for its interasts in other entities,
inciuding o definition of confrol anad
guidance on how o classify and account
for jointty controlled arangements,
During the yeor, Manogement uaderiook
a delailed review of its classification

for both USAF and LSAY, and following
thal analysis concluded thot there had
been no material change in its original
qssessment in 2014 that both USAF ana
L3AV should ba treated as joint ventures.
The Committee considened this and
agreed there was no material change
ond occordingly it wos appropriole fo
continue o account for USAF and LSAV
as a jaint venture under IFRS N, with Unite
recording its 23% share of the results and
net assets of USAF as a [oint venture using
equity occounting. and likewise 50%

for LSAV,

Risk management

The Groug's risk assessment process and
the way in which significant business risks
are managed is a key area of focus for
the Committee.

Qur work here was driven primarity

by performing an assessment of the
qpproach taken by the Group's Risk
Committee. The Risk Committee is
rasponsible for the delivery of the Group's
risk management framework, which

the Committee has cpproved, and the
Group's assessment of its principal risks
and uncertainties, as set out on pages
2210 29.

The Board also formally reviewed the
Group's principai risks ot two meetings
during the year. Through these reviews,
the Commitiee considered the risk
managemen! procedures within

the business aond was sotisfied that

the ke Group risks were being
appropriatety managed.

The risk assessment flags the importance
of the internal control framework to
manoge risk and this forms o separale
areq of raview for the Committee.

Intemal controls

Lad by the Group's rek assessment proceass,
we reviewed the process by which the
Group evaluated its control environment,
Management i responsicle for eslablishing
ond mainfaining odeguote internal
controls. tnfernal controks are designed o
provide reasonable assurance regarding
lamoeng other things) the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation
of the financial statemants for external
reporting purposes. A comprehensive
strolegic plonning, budgeting and
forecasting procass is in place. Monthly
financial information and perforrmance
insight & reported fo the Board.

The Committee’s work o review the
effectivaness of the internal controk was
driven by the Group Financial Controlier's
reports an the effectiveness of internatl
controls. supported by the work of the
intermal ouditor and their reports o the
Audil Commitiee. The feadback from the
Group's internal auditor on specific oreas
of controlis tested on a pericdic basis
and they request our external auditor to
provide specific feedback and assessrment
of the Group's financial controts

and highlight any areas of weakness.

No significont weaknesses were
identified through the course of the
Committee’s revigws.

Intemal audit

The Group engoages PwC to perform
internal audit activity. with this internal
audit function reporting directly o the:
Audit Committes.

The Committes considered and approved
the scope of the infernal audit activity to
be ungdertaken during 201 and locking
forward on o twelve-month basi to
ensure that the infernal gudit approach is
more adaptabte to the risk environrment,
The Committee also discussed and
chollenged the output from the internal
audil reviews underiaken in the prior year
ond concluded that the reviews provided
good support for statements made by
manogement ond thot the control
environment is solid in the areas tested
aver the last three years.

During the vear, PwC focused their internal
audit work on corporate tax, fund
manggement and revenue management.
All greas of internat gudit were being
reviewed for the first time in 2016 and
overall PwC concluded that controls
were well designed ond are operating
effectivaly. Since PwC first reported on
intemal contrels in 2011, il was noted that
in each subsequent reporting period
there has been an improvement in the
overall control environment.

External audit

The effectiveness of the extemal audit
process is facilitated by appropriate audit
risk iddentificotion at the stort of the audit
cycle which we receive from Deloifte

in a detoiled oudit plan, identifying their
assessment of these kay risks.

Far the 2014 financial yaar the significant
risks identified were in refalion fo

the voluation of properties ond the
cilassification of joint venturas due lo the
inherent management judgment required
in these areas. These focus areas were
discussed at the Committee ond it was
agreed that they should be tha principal
areqs of focus 0s they represent the
areas with the greatest level of
judgement and materially impact the
averall periormonce of the Group.

Thase risks @re tracked through the yeor
and we challenged the work done by the
ayditor to test mancgement's assumptions
and estimates around these areas.

Wae assess the effectiveness of the audi
process in addressing these matters
through the reporting we receive from
Deloitte ot both ihe half year and year
end and abso reports from manogement
on how these fisks are being addressed.
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For the 2016 financial year, the Committee
was satisfied that there had been
oppropriate focus and challenge on the
primary oreas of oudit rsk and assessed
the quolity of the qudit process to be
good. We hold private meetings with

tha external auditor at each Committes

meeting to pravide odditional opportunity |
i Statutory Audit Services for Lorge

for apen dialogue and feedback from
the Committee and the auditor without
manogement being present, Motters
typically discussed include:

?» The cuditor's assessment of business

ond financial statement risks and

management activity thereof

The tronsparency and openness

of interoctions with manogement,

confirmation that there has been no

restriction in scope ploced on them by

managemeant and the independence

of their audit

> How they have exercised professional
scepticism,

v

Ialso mee! with the external lead audit
partner outside the formal Commitiee
process throughout the year.

Independence and exdernal
oudit tender

The Comrmittea considers the re-
appointment of the external auditor,
including the rotation of the Gudit pariner
which is required every five years, each
year and also assesses theirindependence
on an ongoing basis. The Group tendered
the axiernal audil in May 2015 and
appointed Deloitte as the external ouditor
fallowing a robust review: the 2015 year
and was the: first year with Delolife as the
Group auditors.

The Commitiee reviewed Deloitte’s audit
work and determined that oppropriaie
plons are in place 1o cary ou an effective
and high quality audi, Detoitte confirmed
to the Committee that it maintained
appropriate intemal safeguards to ensure
its independence and objectivily. As part
of the Commitlee’s assessment of the:
ongoing independence of the auditor,
the Commitfee receives defails of any
relationships between the Group and
Deloitte thot may have a bearing on their
ndependence ond receives confimation
that they are independent of the Group.

As discussed obove, an assessmant of
Deloitte's effectiveness, ils processes,
audit quality and performance was
underioken in Moy 2016 following

. compietion of the 2015 audit,

During the year, the Company has
complied with the provisions of the

Companies Market Investigation
{Mandotory Use of Competitive Tender
Processes and Audit Committee
Responsibilities) Order 2014,

Non-audit services

To further safeguard the objectivity ond
independence of the external auditor
fram becoming compramised. the
Committee has o formal policy governing
the engogement of the external auditor
to provide non-audit services. No materkal
changes have been made to this policy
during the year, This precludes Deloitie
from providing certain services such

as valuation work or the provision of
accounting services,

For certain specific permitted services
{such as reporting accountant activities
and compliance work), the Cormmittee
has pre-approved that Deloitte canbe
engoged by management, subject fo
the policies set out above, ond subject
to specified fee fimits for individuat
engagements and fiee imits for each
type of specific service. For all other
services, or thosa permittad services
that exceed the specified fee limits,

{ as Chairman, or in my absence
another member, con pre-approve
permitted services.

Throughout 2016, no fees have been
paid to the Group's auditor {Delcitte)

for non-oudit services, During the year,
Delgitte charged the Group £0.3 million for
audit services, The Committea approved
the fees for qudit services for 2016 after

a review of the level and nature of work
1o be performed, including theimpoct of
acquisifions, and atter being safisfied by
Deloitte thot the fees were appropriate
far the scopea of the work required.

These fees are ako benchmarked ogainst
other listed real estate cormpanies of
comparabie size and compiexity,

Commiiffee evaluation

The Committee’s activities formed part
of the evaluation of Boord effectiveness
performed in the year. Delalls of this
process can be found under
‘Performance evaluation'.

Manjit Wolstenhoime
Chair - Audit Commitiee
22 February 2017
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HEALTH & SAFETY COMMITTEE REPORT

Sir Tim Wison Chairman

Heatth and Salety Commitiee

Chair's overview

The Health and Safety Committae
ensures effective governance of the
health, safety and welibeing of our
amployees, customers, contractors

and other visitors to our properties. Itis
paramount the business recognises that
health and sofety does not stand stil,
there wil always be lessons to learn and
scope for continuous improvernent. |l am
commitied to ensuring that heolth and
safety is ot the heart of everything that
the business does and have visited

a number of cur properties this year,
occompanying the city and health and
safety teams, undensfanding and seeing
for myself how health and safety is being
implemeanted within the business and

a positive culture s being established.

Unite Students is home to 49,000 students
and their safety, welibeing and sacurity
is imperative. We work Closely with
stakehaiders including Universities and
emergency services to ensure that health
and safety is at the heort of our rmost
trusted brand, It is recognised that fire

is the biggest hozond 1o the operating
portfolio and the business is proactive

in its approoach 1o fire sofety, setting up

a primary fire authority agreement with
the: Avon Fire Authority, which ensures
appropriate advice and gudance to
our strategic fire prevention decisions,

A successhyl fire safety campaign hos
been delivered fo students focusing on
cooking safety. This will directty influenca

their behaviours and prevent fire reloted
ncidents, Security can be a challenge
ond an extemnal review has been
undertaken to ensura thot strengths and
weaknesses ane ideniified and appropriate
measures designed and bwilt in fo protect
both student and employee afke.

During the yeqr, we appointed the British
Safety Council as our new safety auditor.
They are conducting on axternal review
of our HAS Management System fo ensure
the appropriate systermns and procedures
are developed and being implemented.
This provides assurance that the
appropriate checks and measures are
baing camed out.

$ir Tim Wilson
Chalr - Heatth ond Salety Committee
22 February 2017

Committee overview
Compaosition

> Sir Tim Wison (Chair)

? EBlizobeth McMeikan

> Richard Smith

Richard Simpson (Group Property
Diractor), Steve Battey (Esiates Director).
Julie Jarvey {Head of Heolth and Safety)
and Anthony Amold (Construction
Director} regularty attend mestings

of the Committee.

Role
The roie of the Health and Safety
Commitiee is fo:

» Ensune that the Group’s health and
safety policies and procedures are
reviewed annually ond effectively
implemented ko ensure legal
requirements ore met gs well as striving
for bast proctice

¥ Ensure that the business & oware of
reguloiory changes and understands
the impact upon the business

?» Remain updated on parformance
and any major hectth ond safety
incidents 3o as 1o ensure management
identifies and implements appropriate
comective actions.

Activities in 2014

There hove been positive improvements
throughout the yedar to embed the Keep
us Safe ogenda o develop sofe and
healthy employees and customers.

The most rusted brand is at the forefront
of our minds and our core values are at
the heart of health and safaty:

> We care about the heatth, safety and
wellbeing of our employees and
custormers and it is at the heart of
everything we do

> We lead by developing robust systems
and promoting good practice

> Wa unite with stakeholders to develop
positive engogement

» We deliver by alwoys seeking continuous
improvernent ond good proctice,

The H&S Management System {H5G 65)
has been daveioped and implemeanted
toinclude rabust pelicies, procedures
and hozard confrots. The scope of the
systemn is to implement effective poficies,
hazand conlrois, heatth and safety
training, equipment management,
effective communication, occupational
heatth provision, auditing ond review,
document control as well as identifying
where legal complionce i raquired.

The Group H&S Policy documents the
Group's commitment to a sofe working
envikonment and ensure the sofety of
our employeas and anyone who may
be offected by our business os wel

as demonstrating complionee with
legiskalive requirements, The poficy isa
formal mechanism for the adherence
of the principles of the H&S Management
Systerm {HSG 45) and sets out our Qims,
details the structure of our crganisation
ang how we will manage and promote
our health and safety objectives.
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Along with embedding our H&S
Management System through HSG &5,
the key improvements this year have
inCluded:

» The implementation of regional health
and sofety committees fo ensure
effective consultction with employees

> Afullreview and updote of the
operations risk assessments fo ensure
adequote hazard control

» Revised controctor management and

permit to work system to manoge

hazardous work activities

Irmproved induction fraining platform

which encompasses host videos ond

augmented reality learning and an
associoted handbook. The videos
facus on driving for work, lone working,
safety sighage. housekeeping/
mairtenance hamrds such as
chemicals, machinery, asbesfos and
personal protective equipment,

There is on inferactive game for

accident, incident and near misses.

The augmented reality technology

is based on hazard spotting and picks

up key araas of risk Inat empioyeas are

lkely to come across

¥ Updated property inspections with
monthly city and quarterty feom checks
as well as additional developrment
site inspections

» Quarterly health ond safety reviews

with all three framework development

contractors which include directors
and health ond sofety representatives

An extemal audit has also been

underiaken of property development

sites and encompassed the principal
contractor and principal designer

Unite branding has been introduced

on the development sites to drive the

message from a client perspective

External benchmarking of site

inspection scoras via Considerate

Constructor Scheme (CCS). and UKCG

> Elgvagled Unite health and safety profile

by becoming a client pariner

of the CCS

Implemeanted a Yellow Card system

at the davelopmment sites 10 halt works

immediately f there is significant

concern over health and safety.

v

v

v

v

w

Extemnal audit

The British Safety Council was appointed
to undertake a best practice audit of the
H&S Management System [HSG 45) ond
its effectiveness. The audit focused on key
areas including: policy and organisational
rasponsibilibes, strategy and plonning.
implementation and operation,
performance meaqsurement, evaluation
ang review, ieadership and commitment,
i aksa benchmarked performance
indicators, which formed part of the
evaluation and included: continual
improvement, leadership, slakehalder
engagement, risk management and
health and weilbeing. The HA&S
Management System was awarded a
three-siar rating. with o number of arecs
of pood practice identified as well os
oreqs for continuous improvernent to
atlain besi practice and strive for a
four-stor rating next year,

The lead auditor was impressed with

the properties, commenting: “If my chikd
needed student accomrmodation | would
definitely ensure they stayed with Unite.”

The British Safety Council has also
underiaken an audit for the property
development operations of their principai
cantractars and principal designer. visiting
three development sites and raviewing
oppropriate documentation. As a result
of these audits appropriata stakehoiders
ore now being consulted and regular
meetings set up to work together on
taking racommendations forward.

Security

WSP Porson Brinckerhoff undertook

an external securily review providing
comprehensive recommendations for
continyous improvermnant. A senior ievel
steering group is establishing the strategy
with a ckear roadmap for security fo be
buitt into our projects’ design, loyout and
customerimpact. A business security
consultant is being appointed 1o take
the lead and provide the necessary
odvice ond guidance to ensure the
ecommendations are taken forward.

n

THE ORGANISATIONAL
CULTURE WITHIN UNITE
STUDENTS AS A
BUSINESS WAS FOUND
TO BE QUTSTANDING, IT
LWAS OBVIOUS TO THE
SURVEY TEAM THAT ALL
STAFF THAT REPRESENT
UNITE STUDENTS ARE
COMPLETELY COMMITTED
TO THE ORGANISATION'S
FOUR CORE VALUES, IN
THAT THEY CARE, LEAD,
UNITE AND DELIVER

Security risk review report
WP Parson Brinckerholf

Crisis manogement aiso forms part of
this work and it is imperative to test our
emergency preparednass and response
plans and procedunes. Hence, an
emergency lest took pkice at an
operafing property in London. A review
of the exercise has enabled the sharing
of good practice and lessons learnt, 1o
drive further improvements and build
on the positive engagement with the
emergency services.
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HEALTH & SAFETY COMMITTEE REPORT

CONTINUED

FIRE SAFETY

Richard Bobryk joined us in August as
our Primary Fire Authorily Lead Fire
Cfficer [photo above with Alastair
Waeslon, Health and Safety Manager
on the left and Richard Bobruk, Avon
Fire ind Rescue on the right).

This will drive focus on fire security throughs

¥ Integrating fire strotegy decisions into
the development journey

> Fire Safety Management — policies ond
procedures, risk assessments, training.
fire records

¥ Maintenance Regimes - testing ond
planned preventafive maintenance

¥ Specification for new builds and
developments.

we have complated a benchmarking
exercise and produced a fire risk review
which proviges clear direction for
designing out risk and suggestions for
fire safety strategies.

The external fire risk assessmant
programme is being implemeanted with
a threa-year rofling cycle and internol
annual reviews. Cleorer risk ratings

have been established with prioritisation
ond accountability.

Menial health and welibeing
Mental health issues are of grave concem
to the Higher Education sector and also
to us at Unite, especially since we are
thair home while at University. Employees
receive mental health first aid training

to look for signs and signpost help. The
student support services team provides
support to employees and students

alike and works closely with the University
support teams,

Incidents

Operations

incidents invotving our emplayees,
customers or visitors:

> Fiva reportable injuries {under RIDDOR}
to employees relating to injuring
themselves following a fall or knock

¥ 314 minor inon—reportable) incidents
[employees 186, custormer 125,
contractor 23).

Development

During 2014, there have been four
RIDDOR reportable incidents and 20
minor incidents in cur development
activity. This performance is within our
Unite Students internal benchmorks —
beating the industry skandand — as follows:

Inchgants KPt* Banchmark
4RIDDOR 023 0.3
20 mingr 1.13 5.00

* KPicaolculated as: No. of inCidents x 100,000

hours/hours worked
Devejopmend incidents for 2014
Non-
RIDDOR reportoble
Project Hours incicents inadents
Siopleton House 317.024 0 0
Olympic Way 365810 1 1
Greetham $t 281,443 0 2
Causeway End 239,090 1 4
Far Gosford 150,847 o 1
Tora House 238857 2 2
3t Leonards 96.544 &) 10
Millennium View 79.515 0 v
BRI Bristol 5,780 Y 0
TOTALS 1,744,912 4 20
Priorities for 2017 The focus for continuous improvement by initiating a contractor forum to share

Qur vision for the next three yearsis
the journey to interdependence with
ampowerment in day 1o day health
and safaty management of the core
of everything we do.

Quraim is fo ensure the heaith, safety
and wellbeing of employees. and have
a positive influence on customers

ond controctors.

includes: prioritising and progressing

the fire risk review, crisis management,
security review and external oudit
recormmendations and actions,

Specific topical projects include
bespoke monual handling fraining and
ossessrment, integrating wellbeing into the
rmanagement sysiem, near miss reporting
campaigh and engaging with our
stakeholders on health and safety

good practice. lessons leamt and ensure
the very best contractors work on
our properties.
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ANNUAL STATEMENT OF THE CHAIR OF
THE REMUNERATION REPORT COMMITTEE

Ellzabeth McMelkan Chair

Dear Shareholder,

On beholf of the Board, it is my pleasure
to present the Directors’ Remuneration
Report for 2014.

As In previous years, this report is split into
three sections: this Annual Statement, the
Policy Report and the Annual Report on
Remuneration. Ow Remuneration Policy,
detailed on pages 77 1o 83, remains
consistent with that approved by
shareholders of the 2016 AGM, and

is reproduced in full for both ease of
reference ond in order to provide context
o the decisions taken by the Commitiee
during the year.

As evidencead earlier in this Annual Report,
2016 has been ancther strong year for
Unite. Financial highlights have included
@ 20% increase in adjusted EPRA EPS, o
total retum of 15%, further reductions in
see-through LTV, o three pence increase
in our annua| dividend, and our 3-year
TSR continuing to out perform the FISE 350
Reql Estate index. Operationally, we have
continued o increasa our number of beds,
while also maintaining high occupancy
rotes, custorner sotisfoction levels anod
University trust scores, More broadly Unite
has confinued fo deliver against its stnategy.
with progress ogainst the three pilkars of
delivering great service fo students and
University pariners, operating brilliant
buildings and maintaining high-quality
earnings and o strong capital structune,
qiding owr kansition to RENT status effective
1 Jonuary 2017.

The year also saw a change in the
executive tedam, with Richard Smith,
formerly Monaging Director of
Operotions, loking on the Chief Executive
role further to the departure of Mark
Allan, There were changes too for our
other Exacutive Directors, as bath joe
Lister and Richard Simpson ook on a
number of key additional responsibilities
as port of an gveroll streamlining of the
executive leom.

inlight of the above, the Commitiae’s key
decisions during the yeor related to the
following areaqs:

Salaries for Executive Direclors
During the shareholder consuliation

that preceded the 2016 AGM, the
Committee set out its intention of increasing
the salaries of Exacutive Directors by
betwean &% and 9% for 2014, with a further
increase for the Managing Direclors of
up to 9% in eqrly 2017. The first of these
pianned increxases was made with effect
from | March 2014 for each of Richard
Smith, Joe Lister and Richard Simpson.
Mark Allan received o 2% increase,
cansistent with general increases for
employees qcross the Company.

Following Mark’s resignation, addifional
salary ncreases were made fo the
remaining Executive Directors with effect
from 1 Juna 2016, details of which are set
out below.

Changes in ieadership

in fight of his prorofion o CEQ, the
Committee reviewed Richard Smith's
salary against a range of factors and
elected to set it @i a level of £420,000 per
annum, representing a ¢.3% reduction fo
his predecessor, effective 1 June 2016,

Reflecting the key addifional responsibifities
faken on by the other remaining Executive
Diractors. Joe Lister and Richard Simpson,
the Committea reviewed a number

of alternative approaches for thewr
remuneration with the ultimaie aim

of ensuring that they remain focussed

on defivering Unite's strategy during &
period of potential instabllity. Following
careful consideration of the altematives
permitted within our remuneration policy,
and discussions with sorme of our major

i The remainder of eoch Execufive Director's

|

sharehclders, the Committee defermined

o Increase each of their base sakaries
by ¢.20% o £350.000 ond £325,000 per
annum respectively with effect from

1 June 2014,

remuyneration package has stayed
consistent with that outiined in kst year's
report, namely edigibility for on annug!
bonus of up to | 44% of sakary {with personal
objectives updated for new roles and/or
responsibifties), LTIP awards of 200% of
salory {made in June 2016} vesting on
Unite's perfformance over three years
and subject to a two-year holding
period, pensicn contributions of 20% of
salary ond other applicable benefits,

Further details of our consideralions in
making these changes are setout in the
relevant section on pages 85 and 84,

Annvuatl bonus ouvlcomes

for the financial year

Executive Direclors will each receive
bonuses of 62.5% of salary {cf. @ maximum
of 144% of sakary) in respect of 2016
performance. Overall bonus oulcomes
reflect soiid fimancial performance by the
Group and the individual contributions
made by each of the Execufive Drectors
over the last year, including significant
progress in their new and exponded roles,

Despite strong performance against
profit tarngets, the overail bonus outcome
is just balow target and is some way
below thot received in previous years,
which the Committee considers
appropriate in the context of a maore
challenging yedar in terms of brooder
business circumstances. Financial
performance was above target under
both the adjysted EPS and net debt to
EBITDA ratio elements but this was offset
by tolol return performance being below
target and o set of stretching custormer
satisfaction fargets set by the Committee
ot the start of the year being missed.
Reflecting o fransitionory period,

ang despite a number of notabie
achievements, the Committee assessed
each of the Execufive Directors’ individual
performance as ‘on farget’. meriting

a 1.0x persongl performance muttiplier
(cf. the maximum 1.2xmultiplier).

Further details, including annuai bonus
tangets. outcomes and details of personal
achievements are included on page 87.
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ANNUAL STATEMENT OF THE CHAIR OF
THE REMUNERATION REPORT COMMITTEE

CONTINUED

Long-term incentives

Executive Directors were each granted
an oward under the LTIP in June 2016
based an performance over the three
finoncial yaors to 31 December 2018.
These awards will vest to the extant that
challenging EPS, total return and relative
TSR targets are achieved over the period,
with any award vesting required fo be
neld for an additional two-year period.

Performance share awards made

in April 2014 vested on performance o
31 December 2016. These owards were
similarty based on EPS, Total Relum

ond TSR outperformance of the FTSE350
Reql Estate Super Sector index. The
Company exceeded maximum targets
for each etament, resulting In 100% of the
originai award vesting. The Commitice
is satisfied that the implied vesting level
reflects the undertying performance of
the Company and the progress made
over the kst three years. Consistent with
the rules of the plon at the time of grant.
these awards shores will vest in franches
with two-thinds released on the thid
anniversary of grant in April 2017, and
the remaining one-third releasad after
a further year-long holding period.

Overall pay for 2016

The Committee is satisfied that overall
pay cutcomes are appropriate and
raflect Unite's performance across the
vorious time horizons covered. Fixed pay
levels anre compefitive but not excessive
when taking inta account similar roles at
comparable companies, individual
conlrbutions, experence and overail
levels of responsibility. Annual bonus
outcomas reflect o more challenging
financial year, with outcomes below
those achieved in each of the (ast three
cycies, whilst the LTIP — which makes up
the majority of each Executive Director's
singte figure for the year -~ refiects strong
financiol and openational performance,
and significant value creation over the
three-year measurement perod.

implementation of policy for 2017
The Committee has reviewed the current
Rermuneration Policy and is confident
that it continuas to effectively support
Unite's short- and lkong-term strategic
objectives and promote management
and shareholder alignment, We are
satisfied also that the proposed
implementation is appropriate given the
Company's conversion {0 a REIT, which
became effective 1 January 2017,

For 2017, the annuol bonus will operate on
the same basis as in previous years, save
for two minor changes. The non-financial
element of the 'corporate’ scorecard,
currently based entirety on custorner
satisfaction, will be supplemented with
University Reputation, with each measure
weighted 12.5% in order to salisfy the

75425 financial/non-financict split
permitted under our Remuneration Policy,
The inclusion of University Reputation
recognises the equat imporiance of
Unite's retationships with Higher Education
pariners togsther with the opinions of our
student customers direclly, and hos been
used as one of our operafional KPls for

a number of years. The other change
relates to the individual performance
multiplier where it s proposed that the
maijority of objectives will be shared
across each of the Executive Directorsin
order to reflect the collaborative ethos

of the executive tearm. As always. the
Committee wilt provide retrospective
disclosure on the key achievements

next year in order to allow sharehoiders
to make an informed voling decision.

Save for these minor changes, the
implementation of policy for 2017 will

be consistent with that applied in recent
yeqars. Further details, including proposed
salary and fee increases, are included
on page 0.

Leaver arrangements for

Mark Allan

Mark Allan stepped down as Chief
Executive effective 31 may 2016 and
ceased being a director of the Company
from the same date, remaining employed
in an advisory capocity with the Company
until 31 Cctober 2014. For the period

1 June 201410 31 Oclober 2016, Mark
continyed to receive base pay, pension
and other contractual benefits, He was
not eligible to pariicipate in the 2016
annual bonus and there was no payment
ir llou of notice,

Full detaits of how the Commitiee treated
Mark Allan’s outstonding long-term
incentives are set outin the relevant
saction on page 70.

Areas for future consideration
The Committee will continue to monitor
market rends throughout 20E7 in order
o Qssess ongoing requirements for the
Company'sremuneration practices,
and will consult with sharehotders about
making changes should any significant
departures from best practice arise, We
are mindful of the continuing debate
around Executive Director remuneration
ond of the various updaties to shareholder
thinking in this areq. and while we are
proposing no material changes for 2017,
this is something that we will continue

10 take into account as we review the
effectiveness of our arrangements

each year.

Elizobeth McMeikan
Chair of Remuneration Commlitea
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Overview of Unife remuneration policy and implemeniation
Overvew of policy Remunaration in respact of 2006 Implamentation of pokcy in 2017
2 Reviewed from time to fime, > Solaries incregsed by between 2% » Salaries increased by 2% effective
with reference to salary lavels and 7% effective 1 March 2016 1 March 2017, as follows:
for similor roles at comparable > Following role changes, salory of new 2 CEOQ, Richard Smith = £438,600
companies, to individuat CEQ, Richard Smith, set al £430,000 ¥ CFO, Joe Lister = £357,000
= contribution to performance; effective 1 June 2014. Salaries of Joe > MD Froperty. Richard Simpson
5 ond 1o the experience of Lister and Richord Simpson increased = £331.500
3 each Executive by ¢.20% to £350,000 andl £325,000
a respectively from the same date,
< reflecting significant increase in
rasponsibliities
by Read more 85 Reod more 9L Recd morne
? Pension contributionsof upto ¥ Infine with policy » No change to pension contribution
- 20% of salary or an equivalent rates or benefits for 2017
e cash allowance
g 3 Benefits lypically consist the
A pravision of a company car
g or a cor aollowance, and
a private health care insurance
SL.'
7 Reod more s Reod more 91 Read more
> Maximum gnnual bonus > Annual bonuses of 62.5% of salory for ? Maximum annual bonus opportunities
opportunity for Qll Exegutive each Execytive Drecior [43.4% of to remain at 144% of salary
Directors of 144% of salary maximum oppertunity} based on: » Payments to be determined iaking inte -
» Performance measures » acorporate scorecard outcome: consideration a corporate scorecard 3
typically include both of 62.5% of salary {out of 120%) based on 75/25 on fingncial/non- 3
financlal and non-finoncial » Individual performance multipliers financial performance, and ofter [}
mefrics, as wel as the of 1.0x {cf, 1.2x maximum} appiying an ndividual performance g»
ochisvement of individual > Bonuses to be paid in cash in early 2017 multiplier of up to 1.2x O
z objectives » For 2017, the non-financicl element wil 3
2 > Payments delivered in cash. be suppiemented with a measure of §
g except where an individual University Reputafion; individual
g has not met their abjectives to be more team focussed
2 shareholkding guidefines,
v in which case up
to 50% is deferred in shares
for ihree years
? Malus and clawback
provisions apply
78 Reod more 8 Read more §1 Read more o
=
3 Madmum awond sise fior ofl > 2014 LTIP vestad at 100% based on: > Awards of 200% of salary o be made 94_
Excutive Directors of 200% of » 2016 adjusted EFS of 27.70 vs. to @ach Executive Direclor in Aprit 2017 %
solary in normal circumstonces a shrefch torget of 23.5p ¥ Performance to be meosured over the g
> Awards vest subject to ¥ Totgl Retum over the period 2014-16 period 1 January 2017 to 31 December N
performance overa of 21.3% p.a. vs. a stretch farget of 2019 agains! EPS, total retum and <)
three-yaar period. Vested 14,5% p.a.; and ralativa TSR
= shares are typically subject » Relative TSR outperformance of the > Two-year holding perioct will apply
% 1o an odditional two-year FTSE3S) Real Estate index of 10% p.a. o vestad shares
holding period vs, a strefch target of ¥% p.a.
> Malys and clawback
provisions apply
79 Reod more 88 Read more 92 Read mone
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ANNUAL STATEMENT OF THE CHAIR OF

THE REMUNERATION REPORT COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

2016 Remuneration at a glance
2014 Single iotal figure of remuneration tor current Executive Direclors

ichord ice Richarg
smith Lafer Srmpson
3alary 39417 322702 2983467
Taxable benefits 15,256 15,854 15,236
Pension beneft 40,863 55,979 55,604
Annual Bonus 27083 203385 188,802
P 528,559 584,742 528559
Other o] 3] o]
Tolal 1,191.378 1,182,462 1,085.548
2016 Annual Bonus ouicomes
Corporate targets
“Theeshokd® “Torget” Sirelch’
S0%. To% 100% 120% vest Comporcie
Meoure Wenghl of sakary of soary of saiqry of solary Actual 1% sciary) veshng
Agjusted EPS 25% 247p 25.7p 27.2p 28.2p 27.7p 27 .5%
Total Return per share 25% D B7p 100p 108p 83p 15.0% 62.5%
Net debt o EBTDA ratico 25% 6.5x 6.3x 6.0 5.8« 6.2x 200%
Custorer satisfaction 25% 83 84 84 87 80 0%
Ovarall Overal bonus outcome
Corporate Personal ‘ol %ol
Execulive vasting multipher sakory maxmum £
Richard $mith o 10 625%  434% 227083
Joe Lister 62.5% 1.0x 62.5% 434% 203385
Richard Simpson 1.0x 62.5% A3.4% 188.802
2014-2014 LTIP outcomes
Targets
Threshokd Stretch Overall
Megure Weght 25% vast 100%, vest Actual % vest % vest
2016 Adjusted EPS 1/3 18.1p 23.5p 27.7p 100%
Total Return p.a. (2014-2016) 1/3 B.5% 14.5% 21.3% 100% 100%
Indeax Index
Relafive TSR outperformance 173 Index +%%p.o. +10%pa. 100%
Cverall vesting
Exﬂm?we Ovanal % vest Injerests veshng Dale vesing Eshrmaiad value
Richard Smith 84,566 £528,559
Joe Lister 100% 95753 }g :ﬁ g:; {%; £584,742

Richard Sirnpson 86,566 £528.559
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

This report has been prepared in
accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Acl 2006 and Schedule B of
the Large and Mediium-sized Companies
and Groups |Accounts ond Reporls)
Reguiations 2008 (as amended). It also
meels the requirements of the UK Listing
Authority's Listing Rules and the Disclasure
and Transparency Rules.

In accordance with the regqulations, the
following sections of the Remuneration
Report ara subject o audit: the single
total figure of remuneration for Directors
and accompanying notes {pages 85

to 88}, scheme interests awarded during
the financial year {poge 0}, payments
o past directors (page 1), payments for
toss of office (page 82) and the skatement
of Directors’ shoreheldings and share
interests (page 80). The remaining sections
of the report are not subject to audit,

Unite's Remuneration Policy was approved
by sharehoiders at the 2016 Annual

» References to financial years have |
been vpdated where appropriate .

> Poy for performance scenario
charts have been updated to reflect {
2017 salaries

» Cumrent Non-Executive Director
oppoiniment expiry dofes have
been updoted

» Section on consideration of sharehclder
views updated to reference consuliation
on poy increasas rmade during the year
to reflecting changes in responsibilfies

Directors’ Remuneration Policy
The Group aims fo balance the need

to attract, retain and motivate Executive
Directors and other senior executives of
an apgropriate calibre with the need fo
be cosf effective, while of the same timea
rewording excephionai performance. The
Committee has designed @ remuneration
paolicy that bakances those factors, taking
account of prevalling best practice, investor
axpectations and the level of rermunerafion
and pay awards made generally to

In addition fo the above, the remuneration
palicy for the Executive Directors and
other senior executives is based on the
following key prinCiples:

» A significant proportion of
remuneration should be tied to the
achievement of specific and stretching
performance conditions that align
remuneration with the creation of
shoreholder volue and the delivery
of the Group's strotegic plan,

» There should be a focus on sustained
long-term performance. with
performance measured Over clearly
specified tmescales, encouraging
executives to take action in line with
the Group's strategic plan, using good
busingss management principles and
taking well considered risks,

» Individuals should be rewarded for
success, but steps shoukd be faken,
within contractual obfigations,

o prevent rewards for failure.

General Meeting. The report below employees of the Group. This section of the report sets out the Policy
is as disciosed in the 2015 Directors’ for Executive Directors, which sharehoiders
Remuneration Report save for a number approved at the 2016 Annual General
of minor changes as follows: Meefing ond which come info effect
from that date.
Policy Table
Function Operaticn Cpportunity Performance metncs
Base salary Bose salaries are reviewead from fime fo Any base salary increases are applied in None
Torecognise the  time, with reference to salary levels for lne with the outcome of the review as part
individual's skills similar roles ot comparable companies, of which the Committee also considers
and experience  to individual conlribution to performance;  average increases across the Group.
g'::-_, t: gme and 6 the expérience of each executive. in respgqt of existing Execu_ﬁve Directors
base reward. it is anticipated that salary increases wil
generclly be in line with those of saioried
employees as g whole. In excepliona!
circurmstances {including, but not limited
to, a materialincreasa in job size or
complexity] the Commitiee has discretion
o moke appropriate adjusiments to solary
levels to ensure thot they semain morket
competitive. This wos the cose for salary
increases awarded during the course
of 2016,
Pension All executives are gither members of The Executive Directors receive a pension None
To provide on Unite Group Personal Pension scheme contribution of 20% of salary oran
opportunity for or receive a cash pension aliowoncs, equivalent cash allowance.
executives to

build up income

upon reﬁre__njen!.

Salary is the only element of remuneration
that is pensionable.

Hodeu 2iBayoug

3
3
n.
ol
g
1
3
3

UOUDULOILE GO



%

THE LINITE GROLIP MLC ANMUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

CONTINUED

funchon Operahon Oppatunity Parforrmancs metncs
Benefils Executives receive benefits that consist Benefits vary by role and individual None
To provide primarily of the provision of a company circumstances; eligibility and cost is
non-cash car or a car allowance, and private reviewed pericdically.
benefits which health care insuronce, although can . . . o
are competitive  include any such benefits that the The CommMe: n:toms ”:? d’fﬂm."on
in the marketin Committee deems appropriate. lo Approve a hgher cost in certain
which the circumstances (e.g. relocation)
v i or in circumstances where factors
exacutive is . \
amployed. outside the corn'pcny s cgn'nol have
changed materially (e.g. increases
in insurance premiums).
SAYE An HMRC-approved scheme whereby Savings are capped ol the prevailing None
To encourage employees (including Executive Directors)  HMRC limit af the time employees are

the ownership invited to participate.

of shares in Unite.

may save up to the maximum manthiy
savings limit {as determined by prevalling
HMRC guidelinas) over a pericd of three.
Options granted at a 20% discount.

Functon Operation Opportunity Parformance rmetrics
Performance Performance measures, largets ond For Execufive Performance is assessed on an annual
relaled weightings ore set at the start of the yeor.  Directors, the basis, as measured against specific
annual bonus . . maximum annuatl objectives set at the start of ecch year. The
To incentivise The schetme has two el;eénerl'ds. a ;Tpomfe bonus opportunity s measures typically include both financial
and reward strong e:emenf c‘:::c:hcn n: fo: o voon tr? il 144% of base salary,  and non-financial metrics as well as the
performance glement. " € end ot the year, ine the COMPAising: achievernent of personal objectives.
against financiol Remunera ion Committee determines the . ) )
and non-financial  @xtent fowhich largets have beenachieved. » A maximum Corpora'ra measures will be weighted
annual targets, Bonus pa ts are delivered in cash bonus under oppropnof.elyneoch year ocoordlpg to
ths delivering nless yind,eivid ol's shamsholdin the corporate business priorities. Measures may include,
value o ;Jequirec:;!..enls ho:e ot boen meigin etement of but are not limited to, adjusted EPS, tofol
shareholders which case up to 50% of the annual bonus ;chie(:ifnm'am :ce:g;TTgr:::E 2?5;:':,';? sf :;:;ud;gn
and being payable lo the relevant Direcior is satisfied 9 P A :
consistent with by an gl tion of shares in the Company, on-target Weightings of individual meagsures may
the delivery of which o"gc:e din its Emplayee Shore performance vary between 10% cn'd 50%. with the range
the siralegic PION.  Ownershio Trus! warronts a of performance required under each
Srshipy frust. bonus equivalert  measure calibrated with reference

Awards under the performance rekated o 70% of sclary to Unite's intemat budgets. Financio!

annual bonus are subject to malus and > A maximum measuras willmake up atleost 75%

clawback provisions, further details of mudtiplier under  of the total opportunity under the

which are included as a note to the the individual corperate element.

: | tof 1. o f
policy table. :;:‘:L:g o 2 The individual element is based on the
of zero to 1.2 Committee’s assessment of an executive’s

personal performance over the course of
the year, as measured by the Performance
Devalopment Programme review.

The Committee has discrefion to adijust the
farrmuiaic bonus outcomes both upwards
{within the plan imits) and downwards
{including down to zero) 1o ensure alignment
of pay with performance, e.g.. in the event
of one of the targets under the bonus
being significanty missed or unforeseen
circumstancess outside of management
conirol. The Committee also considers
measurss outside of the borus frarmework
[e.g. H&S) o ensure thene is no reward

for fuilure.

For threshold level
performance, the
bonus will be 50%
of base salary.

Further details of the measunas, weightings
and targets applicable are provided on
page 79, 85 and 91.
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Function Operation

Qppartundy

S

Performance metrics

Lne The LTIP comprises a Performance Share
To drive sustained Plan (PSP] and an Approved Employee

The LTIP provides for
anawardupfo o

Vesting of LTIP awards is subject to
confinued employment and performance

long-term Share Option Scheme (ESOS). nomal aggregate  against three equally-weighted measures,
that sf,?ggﬁf The ESQS is used fo deliver a proportion lswunigrc::goefecduﬁve wmd_] o Cmertﬂy osfolows
the creation of the LTIP in o tax-efficiant manner, Dirgctors, with an » Adjusted earnings per share (EPS);
of sharehoder and is subject to the same performance overal limit of » Total refurn {TR): and
value. conditions as awards made under the PSP, 300% of saiary > Relative total sharehoider return [T5R)
Award levels and performance conditions  in excaptional The Committee has the discretion o odjust
are reviewed before each award cycle circumstiances. the performance measures to ensure that
fo ensure they remain appropriate and The currentintenfion  they continue to be linked 1o the delivery
no less stretching than the first cyce. is to aword each of Company strotegy.
Executive Director
Awards under the LTIP are subject tomalss  gyands equivalent  Under each measure, threshold
and clawback provisions, further details to 200% of sakary. performance will result in 25% of
of which are included as anote to the maxirmum vesting for that element,
policy fable. Awards may include  rising on a straight-iine o full vesting.
a grant of HMRC
approved apfions  Awards made under the LTIP wilthave o
not exceeding performance pericd of at keast three years
£10,000 per annum, and a minimum vesting period of three
valued on a fair years. lfnc entitiernent hos been sarned ot
value exchange the end of the retevant performance
{curmentty 50-60% period, awards will lopse, A proportion of
of a PSP award). vested awards may, at the discretion of the
Committee, be subject to a mandatory
Apaymentequal  hoiding period following the end of a
fo the value of three-year vesting period. The Committee's
dividends which intention is that under future LTIP cycles, all
would have awards will be required o be held foran
accruedonvested  gdditional two-year period post-vesting.
shares will be made
foowing the As under the Performance Related annual
release of owards  Bonus, the Commiftee has discretion to
to participants; adjus! the formulaic LTIP outcomes fo
either in the form ensure alignment of pay with performance,
of cash or as Le. to ensure the culcome is a true
additional shares. reflection of the performance of
the company.
Details of the targets to be used in future
LTIP grants are included in the Anhual
Report on Remunaration.
Notes to the policy table a focus on total refum [also used in financial measures, targets are

The Commitae is satisfied that the cbove
Remuneration Palicy isin the best interests
of sharehokiers ond does not promote
excessive risk-taking.

Performance measure sefecfion
and approach to target selting
Measures Used under the performance
related annual bonus and LTIP are
selected annuqlly to reflect the Group's
main short- and long-term objectives and
reflect bolh financial and non-financial
priorities, as appropriate.

The Commitiee considers that EPS (used
in bath the short- and long-term incentive}
is an objective and well-accepted
measure of the Company's performance
which reinforces the strategic cbijective
of achieving profitable growth, while

boiti the short- and long-term incentive)

is consistent with one of our stated
objectives and a key indicator of company
performance in the real estate seclor. The
use of relative TSR is strongly aligned with
sharaholdars and ensures that executives
ore rewarded only if they exceed the
returns that an investor could achieve
elsewheare in our sector,

Targets opplying fo the performance
rakated annual bonus and LTIP are
reviewed annually, based on a number
of internal and extemal reference points.
Performance targets are set to be
stretching but achievabie, with regard
to the particutar strotegic priorities and
econamic environment in a given year.
Under the bonus, torget performance
typically requires meoningfulimproverment
on the previous year's outtum, and for

typically in ine with the upper end
of market consensus.

Remuneration Policy

for other employees

Unite's approach to annual salary
reviews is consistent across the Group,
with considenation given to the level

of experience, responsibility, individual
performance and salary levels in
comparable companies. The Company
is also now a fully occredited Living
wage employer.

in terms of variable incentives, alt
employeas are aligible to parficipate in
an onnual bonus scheme with business
area-specific matrics incorporated
where appropriate. Senior managers
(c.18 individualsj are eligibie to
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DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION POLICY

CONTINUED

participate in the LTIP with annual awords
currently up to 75% of salary. Performance
conditions are consistent for alt porticiponts,
while aword sizes vary by level, Specific
cash in¢entives are also in place fo
motivate, neward and retain stoft below
Board kavel.

Al employees are eligible 10 participate
in the Company’s SAYE scheme on the

shareholding in the Company.
Shoreholding guidelines are in ploce that
require Executive Directors to acquire

a holding {excluding shares that remain
subject to performance conditions)
equivalent to 250% of base salary for the
Chief Executive and 200% of base salary
for each of the other Executive Directors.
Untit the relevont shareholding levels are
acquired, up to 50% of the annual bonus

THE UNITE GROUP PLC AWMUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2018

Malus and clawback

Awards under the Performance Related
Annual Bonus and the LTIP are subject

to malus and, from 2014, clawback
provisions which can be applied to both
vested and unvested awards. Clawbock
provisions will apply for o period of at
least two years post-vesting. Creumstances
in which malus and clawbock may be
opplied include g materiol misstatemeant

some terms.

Shareholding guldelines

The Committee continues fo recognise
the importance of Exacutive Direclors
aligning their interests with shareholders
through building up a significant

Non-Executive Directer remuneration

Non-Exscutive Direclor

on Remuneration.

payabie to the relevant Direcior will be
subject to delerral into shares ond ore
transferable to the Director ofter three
years. Details of the Executive Drectorny’
curent personal shareholkdings

qare provided in the Annual Raport

of the Company's inancial accounts,
gross misconduct on the part of the
award-holder and eror in calculating
the aword vesting outcome.

Date of serace confroct

P M White 10 January 2009

R JTWison 1 December 201D
M Wolstenhoime | December 201
A Jones 18 Octlober 2012

E McMeikan ) 13 Novernber 2013

Subject to annual re-election by sharehokders, Non-Executive Directors are appointed for an inftial ierm of approximately fhree
years. Subsequent tarms of three years may be awarded. Current appointments will expire af the Annual General Meeting in 2017
in the case of Eizabeth McMaeikan and Sir Tirm Wilsor: at the 2018 Annual General Meeting In the case of Phil White and Manjtt
wolstenholme, and at the Annual General Meeting in 2019 in the case of Andrew Jones. The appointment and re-appointment
and the remuneration of Non-Executive Drectors are motters reserved for the full Board.

The Non-Executive Direciors are not eligible to participate in the Cormpany's performance related bonus plan, iong-term incentive

plans or pension arongements.

Details of the policy on fees paid to our Non-Executive Direciars ara set oul in the lable below!

Funclion QOpengtion Opportuncty Performance metncs
Fees foe levals are reviewed annually, with any  Non-Exacutive Director fee increases ore None
To ottract adjustmeants elfective 1 Januory in the year oppliedin line with the outcome of the

and retain following ravigw. annual fee review. Foes for the year
Non-Executive N i commencing 1 January 2017 are set out

Directors of the The fees paid to the Churr.non are in the Annual Report on Remuneration,

highest calibre delermined by the Commitiee, whilst

wh broad the fees of the Non-Executive Directors Fee levels will be nexi reviewed during 2017,
commercialand 9™ determined by the Board. with any increase effective 1 January 2018.

other experience  addifional lees are payable for acting It is expacted that increases to non-

relevant to as Senior Independent Director and as executive director fee leveals will ba in line

the Company. Chairman of any of the Boand's Committees.  with salaried employees over the life of

[Audit, Remuneration, Nomination and
Health and Sofety)].

Fee levels are benchmarked agaoinst sector
comparators and FISE-listed companias

of similar size and complexity. Time
carmmitment ond responsibilty are loken
into account when reviewing lee levals.

the policy. However, in the event that there
is a material misaignment with the market
or 0 change in the complexity, responsibility
or time commitrment required to fulfil

a Non-Executive Director rele, the Board
has discration to make an appropriate
adjusiment lo 1he fee level,
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Pay for peformance scenaros
The charls below provide an illustration of the potential future reward opportunities for the Executive Directors, and the potential
split betweaan the different elements of rernuneration under three different perforrmance scenarios: Minimum, On-target

and Maximum.

Polential reward opportunities are based on Unile's Remuneration Policy. applied to the base salories effective | March 2017, The
annyual bonus and LTIP are based on the maximum opportunities set out under the Remuneration Policy for normal circumstances:
being 144% of salary and 200% of sakary respectively. Note that the LTIP awards gronted in o year do not normally vest until the third
anniversary of the date of grant, and the projecied value is based on the face value at award rather than vesting [i.e., the scenarios
exclude the impact of any share price movement over the period].

O
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The Minimum scenario reflects base salary, pension and benefits (i.e., fixed remuneration} which are the only elements of the

Executive's remuneration packages not linked to performance. §‘ ,
2
The On-target scenario reflacts fixed remunerafion as above. plus bonus payout of 70% of salary and LTIP threshold vesting ot 25% 8
of maximum award. g
The Maximum scenario reflects fixed remunenation, plus fulf payout of all incenfives. §
=]
Approach to recruitment remuneration .
Extermnal appointment to the Board
In the cases of hifing or appointing & new Executive Director from outside the Compaony. the Remuneration Commitige may make
use of all the existing components of remuneration, as follows:
Maximum annusl
Componant Approoch grant vakse
Base solary The base saiaries of new appointees wiil be determined by reference to relevant market
dota, experience and skils of the individual, internal relativities and fheir current basic
salary, Where new appointees have initial basic salaries set below market, ony shorifall
may be managed with phased increases over a period of two to three years subject to
e individuol's development in the role. g '
" ]
Pension New appointees will receive pension contributions or an equivalent cash suppiement 5
not greater than the existing policy. g
Benefits New appointees will be eligible to recaive benefits which may include (but are §,
not limited to} the provision of @ company car or cash atternative, private medical g
SAYE insurance and any necessory relocation expenses. New appointees will also be
eligible fo pariicipate in all employee share schemes,
Performaonce The structyre dascribed in the policy fable will opply 1o new appeintees with the 144% of salary
Relaled Annual relevant maximum being pro-rated 1o refiect the proportion of employment over the
Banus yeor. Tangefs for the individual element will be {ailored fo each execulive.
il d New appointees will be gronted owords under the LTIP on the same terms as other 300% of solory

executives, as described in the policy table. The normal aggregaote limit of 200% of
salary will apply. save in exceptional cicurmstances where up to 300% of sakary may be
awarded.
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CONTINUED

In determining appropriate
remuneration, the Remuneration
Committee will toke into consideration all
relevant factors {including quantum,
nature of remuneration and the
jurisdiction from which the condidate was
recruited) to ensure that amangements
are in the best interests of both Unite ond
its shareholders. The Committee may
make an award in respact of a new
appointment to buy- outincentive
arrongements forfaited on leaving ¢
pravious employer on a like-for-like basis,
which may be aowarded in oddition to
the remuneration structure outlined in the
table above. In doing so. the Committee
will consider relevant factors including
time 1o vesting, any performance
conditions attached 1o these aowords and
the likelihood of those conditions being

met. Any such buy-out awards will
typically be made under the existing
annual bonus and LTIP schemes,
although in exceptional circumstances
the Committae may exercise the
discretion available under Listing Rule
9.4.2 R to make awards using a different
structure. Any buy-out awards would
hava a fair value no higher than the
awards forfeited.

Intemnal promotion to the Boord

In cases of appointing a new Executive
Director tby way of internol prarmotion, the
Remuneration Committee and Board will
e consistant with the policy for external
appointess detailed above. Where an
individual has contractual commitrments
made prior fo their promotian to
Executive Director level, the Compony

Service contracts and treatment for leavers and change of control

THE UNITE. GROUP PLC AMNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2018

will continue fo honour these
arrangements. The Rernuneration Policy
for other employees is set out on page 79.
Incentive opporiunities for below Board
empioyees are typically no higher than
Executive Directors, but measures may
vary o provide better line-of-sight.

Non-Exscutive Directors

Inrecruiting o new Non-Exacutive
Direcior, the Remuneration Commitiee
will utilise the policy as sef out in the table
on page 79, A base fee in line with the
prevailing fee schedule would be
payabie for Board membership, with
additional fees payable for acting as
Senior Independent Director and/or as
Charman of the Board's Cormmittaes.

Execufive Date of serwce contract
J JLister 28 March 2002 o
R C Simpson 28 September 2011
R 5 Smith 28 Septamber 2011

Executive Director service contracts,
including arrangements for early
termination, are carefully considered by
the Committee, In accordance with
general market proctice, each of the
Executive Directors has aralling service
controct requiring 12 months' notice of
taermination on either side. Such contracts
contain no specific provision for
compensatian for loss of pffice, other
than an obligation fo pay for any notice

period waived by the Company, where
pay s defined as salary, benefits and any
other statutory payments only. Executive
Diractor service contracts are avoilable
to view at the Compaony's registered
office.

The Remuneration Committee will
exercise discrefion in moking appropriate
payments in the context of cutplocement,
setting legal claims or potential legal

claims by a deporting Executive Director,
in¢luding any other amounts reasonobly
due 1o the Execulive Director. for
aexample to meet the legal feet incurred
by ihem in connection with the
termination of employment, where

the Compony wihes to enterinto o
settliement agreement and the inaividuat
must seek independant legal advice.
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When considerng exit payments, the Committee reviews all potentiol incentive oulcomes to ensure they are fair o both shareholders
and porticipants. The toble below summarises how the awaords under the annual bonus and LTIP are typically treated in specific

circumstances, with the final freatment remaining subject to the Committee’s discretion:

Reascn for leaving Cakvaton of veskng/ooymani
Annval benus
Resignaticn Ne annual bonys payable.
'Good' leaver Caosh bonuses will onty be paid to the extent that financial and individual objectives set
Change of control at the beginning of the pkan year hove been met. Any resulting bonus will be pro-rated
for time served during the year.
e
Resignation Outstanding awards iopse
‘Good’ leaver’ The Committee determines whether and to what extent outstanding awards vest
Change of control based on the extent to which performance conditions have been achieved and the

proportion of the vesting period worked.

The determination of vesting will be mode as soon as reasanably practicat following
the end of the performance period or such earlier date as the Commitiee may cgree

[within 12 months in the event of death).

In the event of a change of control, Unite owards may alternatively be exchonged
for new equivalent owords in the ocquirer where gppropriote.

' ‘Good’ leaver s defined as a participant cecsing 10 be employed by the Group by reason of death, disability, ill heaith. redundancy. retirement
or any other raason that the Committee determines in its obsolute discretion.

The reatment of shares subject o defemal
or holding periods will be subject to the
Remuneration Committee's discretion
and will take into account the
circurnstances at the tirme,

External appointments

With the approval of the Board in each
case. ond subject o the overiding
requirameants of the Group, Executive
Directers may accept extemal
appointments as Non-Executive Direciors
of other companies and tetain any fees
received. Jog Lister is cumently o member
of the Council of the University of Essex
for which he does not receive a fee.
Richord Sienpson joined the Board of
CityWest Homes gt the beginning of 2017,
Richard Smith does not currently hokd

an external appointment.

Consideration of conditions

elsewhere in the company
whean maoking decisions on Executive
Director remuneration, the Committes
considers pay and conditions across
Unite, Prior to the annual salary review,
the Group Peopie Director provides the
Committee with a summary of the
proposed level of increase for overatl
employee pay. The Remuneration
Committee does not formally consuit
with employees on the executive
Remuneration Policy and Framework.

Considevation of shareholder views
The Remuneration Committee maintains
a reguiar dialogue with ils major
shareholders, and is encouroged by

the support received at the 2014

Annucl Genercl Meeting for thae new
Remunergtion Policy, During 2016 we
consulted with shareholders representing
around two-thirds of Unite's issued share
capital regarding Executive Direcior
salaries following the role changes arising
as G result of Mark Aflan's resignation

and subsaequent reorganisation of
responsibilities. The Committee will
confinue fo monitor frends and
developments in corporate govermnance
and market practice to ensure the
structure of the executive remuneration
remains appropriate,
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

The following section provides delails
of how Unite's Remuneration Policy was
implemented during the financial year
ending 31 December 2014

Remuneration Committee

membership In 2014
The prirmary role of the Committee is to;

> Review, recommend and monitor the
level and structure of rermunerotion
for the Executive Direclors and other
senior executives

» Approve the remuneration packoges
for the Executive Directors and
ensure that pay ouicomes reflect
the performance of the Compony

> Determine the bolance between
base pay ond performance related
elerments of the package 50 as
to align Dirsctors’ interests to those
of sharehokiers.

The Committee's terms of reference are
set oul on the Company's weabsite. As of
31 Dacamber 2014. the Remuneration
Committee comprised five independent
Non-Executive Directors.

> Eimabeth Mcmelkan ([Committee Chair)
» Phil White

» SirTim Wilson

> Manjit Wolstenhome

> Andrew Jones

During the year, Patrick Dempseay, who
joined the Board effective 1 March 2014
andresigned effactive 31 August 2014,
olso served on the Remunerotion
Committee. Certain executives, including
Richard Smith {Chief Executive],

Mark Allon (former Chiaf Executive)

and Ruth George (Group Peopla Director)
have bean, from time to time, invited

fo attend meetings of the Committee.
ond the Company Secretary, Christopher

Szpoinarowicz, octs os secretary to the
Committee. No individuals are involved
in decisions relating to their own
remunerafion. The Remuneration
Committee met five times during the year
and details of members’ ottendonce at
meetings are provided in the corparate
govermnanca section on page 4.

Key activities of the Remunerotion
Committee in 2016 included:

» Reviewed and gpproved the Executive
Directors' performance against annuai
objectives and LTIP targets; determined
bonuses payable [including balonce
betwean cash and shares), and
approved LTIP vesting

» Determined leaver treatment for
Mark Abon, including treatment
of outstonding incenfives

> Reviowed Executive Director
rermuneration following role changes
and reorganisation of responsibifities,
and undertook consuliation with
major shareholders on proposed
changes 1o Executive Director salaries

» Confirmed treatment of Mark Allan’s

incentives following end of

employment and reaffimation of
dufies confoined in Compromise
agreement. Followed up with
shareholders surnmarising changes
mode during the year

Considered remuneration

market trends and corporale

governance daeveloprments

> Reviewed and approved salary
increases for the Executive Directors
and senior management for 2017

¥ Determined the Executive Directors’
bonuys ond LTIP perfoermance targets
for 2017 in line with the strategic plan

» Reviewed and approved the
Charman’s fee

» Prepared the Directors'

Remuneration Report,

v

Summary of shareholder voling at the 2014 AGM
The foliowing table shows the results of the binding vete on the forwand-looking Remuneration Policy and of Ihe advisory votes on
the 2015 Annual Report on Remuneration and the amendments 1o the 2011 Performance Shore Plan ot the 2016 AGM:

Advisers

Kepler Associates, a brand of Mercer
{'Kepler') were appointed as the
Committee’s independent adviser
following a competitive tender process
in 2014, and were retained during the
year. The Committee undartakes due
diligence periadically to ensure that
Kepler remains independent and that
the advice provided it impartial and
objective. Kepler o founding membaer
and signatory of the Code of Conduct
for Remuneration Consultants,

details of which con be found at
wwvwremuneationconsutantsgroup.com.
In 2016 Kepler provided independent
advice onrevisions to Unite's
Remuneration Policy, updates on the
extemal remunemtion environment;
performance lesting for long-term
incentive plans; and support during
the shareholder consufiation process.
Kepler reports directly to the Chalrmo
of the Remunamtion Commiitee and
does not advise the Company on any
other issues, Their total fees for the
provision of remuneration services 10
the Commitiee In 2016 were £64.775
on the basis of tme and materials.

Remuneraiion Annual Report Amandmen'sio
Poicy on Remuneroation 2011 PSP
For {including discretionary) 186,101,530 98.9%  187.241,043 99.7% 185,286,990 98.3%
Against 2,088,144 1% 591,183 0.3% 3,170,07¢ 1.7%
Total vates cast (excluding withheld votes) 188,189,674 187,832,224 188,457,049
Voteas withheld 300,425 657.873 33,000
Total votes cast {including withheld voles) 188,490.099 188,490.099 188,490,099
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Single tolal figure of remunecation for Executive Direclors (audited)
The lable below sets out a single figure for the total remuneration received by each Director for the year ended 31 December 2014
and the prior year:

Richamd Smath Jos Lister Richard Sienpaan MOrk Allan!
218 215 201 2015 0% 015 oK 215
£ £ [ 4 £ £ E 1 £
Salory 359617 244492 3702 273483 298367 246492 183003 432233
Taxable benefits? 15256 14,064 15854 16,266 15236 13.694 7,694 23319
Pension benefit? 40,843 47, 236 55,979 49,147 55,604 43,355 32,162 75944
Annual Bonus* 7083 314579 203385 348742 188802 314579 Q0 551380
LTipss 528,559 748451 584,742 828041 528,559  748.45] ¢ 1.299.189
Other” Q 4,499 o 2249 o 0 0 0
Total 1,191,378  1.375420 1,182482 1.516.928 1,086,568 1366970 222840 2381885

' Mark Allan stepped down effechve 31 May 2015 ari ceased beirng o diractor of the Company frarm the same date He remained employed in an
odvisory capacity with the Company unhit 31 October 2016. Amounts above reflect remuneration received as a result of his role as Chief Executive,
with detaits of remuneration received for the period | June fo 31 October 2018 discliosed under ‘Exit payments' sechon on page 90.

* Taxable benefits for 2014 consist pnmanly of company car or car akowance ond private healih cane insusance.

The figumes above include car banefils of £14,147, £14,583, £14,147 and £7,223 tor Messrs. Smith, Lister, Simpson and Allon respectivety.
¥ Pension figures include contributions to The Unite Group Pesonol Pension Scheme and cosh alliowances, whene applicable,

+ Payment for performance dwing the year. Having already reached their shane ownership guidelknes, each Executive Director will receive 100%
of their 2014 bonus aword in cash. Mark Allan was not sfigible for a 2016 annual bonus payment. Sea following sections for further details,

* 2015 figures: LTIP awards grantad i 2013, and which vested based on performance 10 31 December 2015, are volued using the marke! prices ot
the aate of vesting (10 April 2014) of 434p. Thase amounts have been revised from (ast year's report to reflect the achuol shore prices on the dates
of vesting.

+ 2004 figures: for the 2014 awards. the market price on the date of vesting is currentty unknown ond so the value shown is estimated using the
average morket value over the last quarter of 2014 of 575.9p. Mark Allan's unvested 2014 awards lapsed on his resignation from the Company.
See following sections for further detaiis. LTIP figures also include cosh payments in fgy of dividends for vested awards.

T 'Other includes the embedded vaiue of SAYE options at grant,

Single total figure of remuneration for Non-Executive Direclors {audited)
The table Hekow sets out o single figure for the total remuneration received by each Non-Execufive Director for the year ended
31 December 20146 and the pricr year:

Base few Commitiee Chor feas 810 feom Total

2004 x5 0% 2005 20% 2015 206 218

t £ t £ t £ t £

P M White 129,450 127,100 - - - - 129,450 127,100
R J T Wilsan 45,000 44,100 6,600 6,475 - - 51,400 50,575
M Wolstenhoime 45,000 44,100 9.350 9150 5250 5,125 5%.400 58,375
A lones 45,000 44,100 - - - - 45,000 44,100
E McMeikan 45,000 44,100 9,350 9,150 - - 54,350 53.250
P Dempsey' 22,500 - - - - - 22.500 -

' Patiick Dempsey joned the Board on | March 2016 ond rasigned effective 31 August 20156, during which time he served as o member of the
Remuneration ond Heatth and Safely Commitiees.

Remuneration outcomes for the year ended 31 December 2014 (aydited)

Bose salarles

As foreshadowed in kst year's report, salary increases of between 6% and 9% were made with effect from 1 March 2014 to each of
Richard Smith, Joe Lister and Richard Simpson. Mark Allan received a 2% increase, consistent with general increases for employees
across the Company, from the same daote.

Following his promotion to CEQ, the Commitiee reviewed Richard Smith's salary against a range of internal and external factors
and elected 10 set it at a level of £430.000 per cnnum elective 1 June 2014. Far the cther remaining Executive Directors, Joe Lister
and Richard Simpson, the Committea refiected on the infention to operale wiih a smalier monogement feam going forward, and
the additional key responsibilities iaken on by each individuatl. Specifically. Joe Lister will now lead investor relations and has fine
managemaent responsibility for the Corporate Affairs and People directorates, while Richard Simpson has been tasked with heading
up Unite's Health and Safety, Maintenonce and Lifecycle and Asset Management functions.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Considering these significont role changes, and mingful of the need to retain successful experienced and well-regarded Executive
Directors in 0 competifive sector, the Committee reviewed o number of attermative approaches for the remuneralion of Joe Lister
and Richard Simpson o ensure they remain focused on delivering Unite's strategy during a period of potenfial instability.

Following careful consideration of the citernotives permittad within the recently approved remuneration policy, the Committee
determined o increqse the base salaries of Joe and Richard by ©.20% to £350,000 and £325,000 per annum respectively with effect
from 1 June 2014. in faking this decision, the Committee noted the altemative of making exceptional LTIP awards but conchided that:

> Salary ievels were the element of rermuneration most significantly below market [particularly taking into account the additional
responsibilities]. whereas long-lerm incentive opportunities, ot 200% of salary, are market competifive

> Anincreass in long-term incentive opportunities had already been implemented for 2014 frorm 150% to 200% of salary: and

> Maintaining the current ratio between fixed/vorable pay and short-term/long-term pay is important so as not to incentivise
excessive risk-faking.,

Detalls of the evolution of each Direcior's role and saiary over the course of the year s summarised in the tabile bafow:

Base sakary from
Base saiory 1o 1 March 2016 Bass sakary
28 Februory o3 May Perceniage Trom | June Parcaniage
ExacCulbee Direchor Role X6 26 chanpe pall} chongs
MD, Operations £247,700 £270.000 9%
R 5 Smith 59%
{3% below
Chief Executive £430,000 predecessor)
1 Lister Chief Financiol Officer £274,600 £291,000 6%
Chie! Financial Ctficar+ £350,000 %
MD, £247,700 £270.000 %
R C Simpson Property
Group Property Director £325,000 20%
MC Allgn Chief Execulive £434,000 £442 480 2%
Total Board £1,204,000 £1,273,680 5.8% £1,105,000 -13.2%

Parformonce related annuol bonus in respect of 2014 perfformonce

The 2016 annual banus consists of two elements, corperate and individual. The corporate element of the bonus & calculated on a
sliding scale up to o moaximum of 120% of base salary, in accordance with which on-target performance by the Group results in a
corporate bonus of an amount equivalent to 70% of base salary. To determine the ocluat onus payment 1o an Executive Director,
a rmultiplier {being the individuatl element of the scheme}, ranging between zexo and 1.2 is applied against the corporate bonus.

Applying the maximum individual multiplier {of 1.2), against the maxirmum corporate bonus (of 120% of base salary], results in o
maximum annual performance related bonus opportunity of 144% of base salary. However, benus payments at that level would
only be made subject fo the achievement of exiremaely stretching corparate perfarmance targets and exceptional individual
performance by the relevant Drectar. Target performance typically requires meaningfulimprovement on the previous year's
outtumn, and for financial measures. targets are typically in line with the upper end of market consensus.

The performance related bonuses awarded in respect of 2016 reflect corporate bonuses of 62.5% of base salary. After applying
individual multipliers, actuai performance related bonus payments aworded 1o the Executive Directors were §2.5% of their
respective base salaries (43.4% of their maximum bonus oppertunitias}. Further details, including the targets set and performance
against each of the metrics, are provided in the tables below:

Corporate slemaent sutcomes
Orginal parformancs targety
Thresshoky “Tagat' ‘Straich’
50% ot 70% of 100% of 120% of Vet
Maasure Wengh! saky sakary ScHOry salary Achual (% sakary)
Financial Adjusted EPS 25.0% 247p 25.7p Iy o} 2BIp 277p 27.5%
Total return 250% 7p 87p 100p 108p 83p 15.0%
per share
Net debt to 250% 6.5% 6.3x 6.0x 5.8x 6.2x 20.0%
EBITDA ratio
Non-financiol  Customer 250% 83 84 86 87 a0 0%
satisfaction

Total corporate vesting (% of sakary) 62.5%
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indlvidual element ouvtcomes
Executive Actiaverments durmg Hhe year included: Personat muHipker

> Successful delivery of Operations and Group KPIs covering beth roles as Monaging
Director, Operations and Group Chief Executive.

¥ Completed on aeffective transition to the Group Chief Executive role, providing clears
and volued leadership fo the Group in the second half of the year.

R § Smith > Effectively delivered a realignment of roles and responsibilities across the other two 1.0%
Executive Directors ond wider senior mancagement team ensuring the continued
delivery against the wider Group's KPls and the retention of the Group's key falent.

? Led the evolution of the Group sirategy, focused particularly on the development
of our brand and eaming focus.

> Successful delivery ol finance related KPis and our capital cperating guidelines.

> Successful execution of the REIT conversion pian.

» Execution and evoiution of a debt financing, fundraising and hedging sirategy aliowing

JJLister the Group to take advantage of low interest rgies while retaining appropriate balance 1.0x
sheet strength and flexibility.

> Embroced new areas of responsibility including the Group’s Peopie and Communication
agenda following the management change in mid-year.

? All Property reloted KPIs successfully delivered far the year.
» Delivery of high quolity growth through a secured development pipeline inan
increasingly competitive market.
> Oversaw product development and design innovation activitias. oliowing the Group 1.0x
to maintain otiractive retums on new develocpment. '
Embraced naew areas of responsibility including the Group's health and safety
ond maintenance and grocurement agenda following the management change
in rmid-year.

R C Simpson

v

Individucl objectives were updated lollowing the changes in roles and responsibilities, with additional stretching goals set to test
executives in their new rolas. The ratings above reflect o holistic view by the Committee of the extent to which each individual has
performed in their expanded role during the year, guided by these new objectives.

Overall bonus oulcomes
Cwvenall bonus oulcome

Executive Comporaie vesting Personal mutiioker % of sakery) % of maximum) £
RS Smith 10x 62.5% = 27083
1 1Uster s25% 10x 625%  43.4% 203,385
R C Simpson 10x 62.5% 43.4% 188,802

The Committee is satisfiad that the overall bonus outcomes are appropriate. The Company's sirong fingrcial performaonce,
particularly under the adjusted EPS ond net debt to EBITDA ratio elerments, is testament to both management and the broader
employee population. and while exacutives fell short of the stretching custemer satisfaction targets, the 2014 result still places
Unite in the upper quintile of our benchmark,

Each of the Executive Directors has been a significant contributor to the achievement of key business objectives. while continuing
to demonstrate both strong parsonal progression ond exceptionai teamwork despite a year of significant change. The proposed
On-target individual multipliers of 1.0x reflect our satisfaction with the progress that each individual has made in thair new roles and
wa will look for this to be progressed further as we move into 2017,

Having already reached their respective shane ownership guidalines, each Executive Director will receive 100% of their bonus
awards in cash.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

CONTINUED

2014 LTIP vesting (vesiad on periormancae o 31 December 2014}

Awards in 2014 were made under the new LTIP, consisting of the Unite Group plc Performance Share Plan ond the Unite Group pic
Approved Employee Share Option Scheme. Vesting of the awards was dependent on three equally-weighted measures over

a three-yeor parformance periad; total return per share, Earnings per share and TSR outperformance of the FTSE 350 Real Estote
Super Sectar Index. There was no retest provision. Further details, including vesting schedules and performance against each

of the melrics are provided in the table below:

Maoi;_ne Wmghting Tangets Quicoms vast %
0% vesting below 18.1 pence 27.7 pence 100%
25% vesting for 18,1 pence
100% vesting for 23.5 pence or more:
Straight-iine vesting between thase points

2016 Adjusted EPS  1/3

OR vesting below 8.5% 2L.3% 100%
TR per share p.a. 3 25% vesting for 8.5%
(2014 - 2016} 100% vesting for 14.5% of more:
Straight-line vesting between thase points
TSR 0% vesting if Group underperdorms the Index index +10% p.a. 100%
outperformance 25% vesting for matching the Index [55.4% return}
of the FTSE350 73 100% vesting for outperforming Index by 9% p.a.;
Recit Estate Super Straight-line vesting between these points
Sactor index
Tatal LTIF vesting {sum product of welghting and vest %) W00%

The performance period for the each of the elements ended on 31 December 2016, Two-thirds of awards wil vest on the third
anniversary of the date of grant, with the remaining one-thirg vesting after an additionat holding period of one year,

Intanests Intenesty Doter Azumed Esirnoted

Executive Drecior hexd Vesing % vesting veasting market price vohe

R S Smith 86,566 86,564 0 Api 2017 (2/3) £498,572
H 10 A 7 —

J JLister 95,753 100% 95,753 10 Apri 2018 [1/3) 5759p £551,484

R C Simpson B6.566 86,566 £478,572

In line with reguilations. the value disclosed above and in the single total figure of remuneration table on page 85 captures the full
number of interests vesting {L.e. excluding the one-year holding period). As the market price on the date of vesting is unknown at the
time of reporting, the vaiue is estimated using the overage market value over the kast quoarter of 2016 of 575.9p. The actual volue ot
vesting will be frued-up in the 2017 Annual Repart on Remuneration. Executives also became entitied 1o cash in lieu of the dividends
payable on vested LTIP shares over the three-year performnance period. These payments arg included in the row entitied ‘LTIP' in the
single total figure of remuneration table on page 85, and amounted o £29.987. £33,258, and £29.987 for Messrs. Smith, Lister anal
Simpson respectively.

Percentage change in CEO remuneration
The table below shows the perceniage change in CEQ remunerciion from the prior year companed 1o the overoge perceniage
change in remuneration for all employees.

The CEQ's remuneration includes base salary. taxoble benefit and annual bonus and for 2014 is calkculated as an aggregate of the
remuneration of Mark Allen until 31 May 2016 and of Richard Smith thereafter [annuat bonus relates o Richard Smith full year]. The:
pay for all other employees is colculated using the increasa in the eornings of fulk-time employees for tax years 2015 and 2016. The
analysis excludes part-time empioyees and is based on a consistent sat of employees, i.e. the same individuols appear in the 2015
and 2016 populations,

CEQ Al amployees
201 W5 Kchange % chonge
t E 015-15 2015-14
Base salary 433,837 432233 0.0% 2.0%
Tfaxabie benefifts 17.679 23319 (28 B)% 4.4%

Annual bonus 227083 551,180 (58.8)% (58.6)%
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Relative Imporiance of spend on pay
The table below shows shareholder distributions (i.e. dividends and shore buybacks] and tofol emplovee poy expenditure for the
financial yaars ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, along with the perceniage change in both.

2016 05 Rchonge

£m £m M005- 16
Total employee pay expenditure 0.2 43.7 [10.3]%
Distribytions to sharehoiders 353 332 6.3%

The Directors are proposing a final dividend in respect of the financkai year ended 31 December 2016 of 12 pence per ordinary
share. Employee remuyneralion excludes social security costs.

Review of past performance

The fallowing graph charts the TSR of the Company and the FTSE 350 Real Estale Super Sector Index over the eight-year period from
1 sonuory 2009 to 31 December 2014, While there is no comparator index or group of companies that truly reflects the octivities of
the Group. the FTSE 350 Real Estate Super Sector index [the constituent members of which are all property holding and/or
development companias or recl estate investment trusts within the UK), was chosen os it reflects trends within the UK property
market generally and tends to be the index against which analysts judge the performance of the Company. The table below
details the Chief Executive's single figure remuneration over the same period.

Historical TSR performance
Eiggvitci TS pedioenint dy pothatical £100 hoiding over the 8 years fo 31 December 2016.
Growth in the value of o hypothetical £100 holding over the 8 years o 31 December 2016
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2009 200 2011 02 2013 2014 005 2006 i

WM Alan =

MCAIon  MCAlon  MCAlon  MCAfon  MCAlon  MCAllan  MCAllan RS Smith §

CEQ single figure of £222 880 ,

remuneration [£000} £465213  £487,175 £1,475577 £993,754 £1,943734 £2,987.402 £2381,885 £1,191,378 §
STt award rates agaqinst nfa
maximum opportunity 42.0% 43.4% 75.8% 63.4% B84.0% 89.4% 88.2% 43.4%
LTl award rates against nfa
maximum opportunity 0.0% 0.0% 82.4% 26.3% 83.1% 95.2% 100.0% 100.0%
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Scheme inferests awarded in 2015 (audited)

e

In June 2018, Executive Directors were granted awards under the LTIP with a maximum face value of €.200% of their respactive
salaries. The three-yagr performance period over which performance will be measured began on 1 January 2016 and will end
on 31 December 2018 any gwards vesting for performance will be subject to an additional two-year hokding period.

Shares over which Market pnce of
ExmcLrive Dwracion Dote of gront Cwonds granted’ aaia of gword Faca valuve
R'S Smith '" 134,882 £B65.268
J JLister 23 June 2016 109.941 841.5p £705,272
R C Simpson 102,147 £655.273

' Combination of HMRC, gpproved options under the ESOS (935) and nil cost ophions under the PSP coiculated using a share price of 641.5p, being
the closing miHMorkey price on the day the awords were cakiulated.

Vesting of 2014 awords is dependent on three equally-weighted maasures over o three-year performance period; total return per
share, earnings per share and TSR outperformance of the FTSE 350 Real Estate Super Sector Index. There is no retest provision, The
Cormmittee considers that the targets applying under eoch of the performance measures ane no less stretching than in previous
years. Details of the vesting schedules ore provided below:

Measure Wenghhing Targats
2018 Adljusted EPS 113 0% vesting below 30 pence;
25% vesting for 30 pence;

100% vesting for 38 pence or more;
Straighl ine vesting batween these points

TR per share p.a. 173 0% vesting below 7% p.a.;
{2016 - 2018) 25% vesting for¢% p.a..
100% vesting for 15% p.a. ormore;
Straight line vesting between these points.
TSR outperformoncs of the FTSE 350 Reol Estate (Super 173 0% vesting if Group underperforms the index;
Sector) Index {2015 - 2017) 25% vesting for matching the index;
100% vesting for outperforming index by $% p.a.;
Sfruighf—line vasting between these paints,

SAYE

During the year undet rgview, no new SAYE awords were gronted to the Executive Directors.

Exit payments made In the year (audited)

The terms of Mark Allan's exit were set out in an agreement at the time he gave notice o the Company. In formalising this agreerment,
the Committee sought 10 ensure that the cutcomes wera far to shareholders, to the Company and to Mark Allan, faking into account
the terms of his departure and his service to Unite over his 17 vears of employment with the Group, including almost 10 years as
Chief Executive. The agreernent ako set out some additional undertakings which included remaining with the business in an advisory
capocity until 31 October 2014 to support the new Chief Executive, as well as strengthened non-compete and non-poach arangements,
all of which were considered to be in the interests of the Company and of our shareholders.

For the period 1 June 2014 fo 31 Oclober 2016, Mark Allan continued lo receive base pay (£201,476). pension [£32,417) and other
contractual benefits (£7.884) totalling £241.777. He was not eligibie 10 participate in the 2016 annual bonus and there was no
payment in ieu of nohee,

For the purposes of outstanding long-lerm incentives, Mark Allan was not considered o 'good’ leaver, with the default policy posifion
dictating that all of his gutstanding owards would lopse upen leaving the Compory. unless the Committee would determine otherwise,
Reflecting a number oF considerations set out below, the Committee exercied discretion to cilow vesting of LTIP awords that had
already been perforMance tested and were within a few days of vesting at the fime he mode his announcernent. This use of
discrefion 100k intd AGcount that:

> The relevant awands would have ordinarily vasted three days ofter the official announcement of the change in Chief Executive
{i.e. 10 April 2018}, byt that Mark elected to announce as early as possible in order to permit an orderty handaver of his duties

» The opplicable peffarmance periods had been completed and vesting was strong under each cycle and

» Other elements of Mark's package were minimised under the terms of the compromise agreement. Namety no annual bonus
would be payable in respect of 2016, and the previously announced §% salary increase would instead be kept in line with general
increases across the group ot 2%.
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As aresult, and having honoured his cbligation to remain empioyed with the Company in an advisory capocity through to 31 October
2014, the final third of Mark's 2012 LTIP gward [which vesied as 1o 95.22% of maximum based on performance to 31 December 2014}
and the first two-thirds of his 2013 LTIP award (which vested in full based on performance fo 31 December 2015} were preserved and
became capable of axercise, subject to malus and clawback provisions, from 1 November 2016 and 1 April 2017 respectively - in
both cases being on increased deferal period from the original vesting date. All other cutstanding and unvested awards (i.e. ine
final third of his 2013 LTIP awards, and each of the 2014 and 2015 LTIP owards) lapsed following Mark's resignation. Details of the
preserved awards are included in the table below:

intorests Original Renvised MOrKet pnce
Award Cycie vesting veshng dale vesting ckyte on vesting Value
1 ! i A2
2M2LTP 04,725 10 A 2016 November 2014 5490 £574,940
2013 LTIP 131,09 1 Apr 2017 575.9p' £755.633

' Asthe market price on the date of vesting s unknown at the time of reporting. the volue is estimaled wsing the overoge morket value over the kst
quarter of 2016 of 575.% pence.

Payments to past divectors (audited)
Save for Mork Allan's remuneration detailed above, there werea no further payments to past directors during the year.

impiementation of Executive Direcior remuneration policy for 2017

Base solory
The Committee has approved the foliowing salory increases with effect from 1 March 2017
Basae salory from Base salgry from
} June 20161028 1 march 2017 1o 28 Parcenkage
Executive Daector February 2617 February 2018 naece
R S Smith £430,000 £438,400 %
JJ Lister £350.000 £357,000 2%
R C Simpson £325,000 £331.500 2%
o
Proposed salary increases are consistent with the average increase appliad across the Group [C.2%). §
a
Pension z
Executive Diractors will continue ta receive a pension contribution of up lo 20% of salary or an equivalent cash cllowonce. k3
Perdomance related annual bonus %
Corporale
Financicl {75%) Adjusted EPS - 25.0%
Total retumn per share 25.0%
Net deb? to EBTDA ratio 250%
Non-financic! [25%) Customer satisfaction 12.5%
University Reputation 12.5%
The performance related annual bonus for the 2017 financial year will operote an broadfy the same basis as in 2016. The Commitiee
has appraved an unchanged maximurm bonus opportunity for each executive of 144% of sakary, consisting of @ maximum of 120% g
of salary under the ‘corporate’ element and a maximurn individual multiplier of 1,2x. ®
=
For 2017, the ‘corporate’ element of the annual bonus will continue to ba based on o combination of financiol and non-financial g
measures, weighted 75% and 25% respectively. The Committee intends 1o supplement customer satiskaction with a measure based a
on University Reputation, with @ach weighted 12.5%. The inclusion of University Reputation recognises the equalimportance of g

Unile's relationships with Higher Education partners, together with the opinions of qur student customers directly. and has been used
as an opemational KP1 for a number of years. It is also intended that the majority of 2017 objectives under the individuol performance
multiphier will be shared ocross each of the Execulive Direclors. Proposed target levels hove been set o be chollenging relotive

10 business pian, although specific targets are deemed to be commercially sensitive ot this time. it is the Committee’s cument
intention to disciose these fargets, and the key achievements by each Executive Director, refrospectively in the 2017 Directors’

Rernunerotion Report.

Annual bonuses will continue to be paid in cash, unless the recipient has not met their shareholding guidelines, in which case up
to 50% of the amount poyaobile will be safisfied by an allocation of shares in the Company. deferred for three years, Clawback and

rmalus provisions apply to all awards.
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for 2017, the LTIP will continue to operate broadly on the same basis as in the 2016 financial year. The Committee, having considered
the performance of the Company and other relevant foctors, intends that Executive Directors will each receive on award
equivalent to o maximum of 200% of salary delivered through a combination of the PSP and ESOS, with the final level of vesting
dependent on the achievernent of three-year performance fargets relating to EPS, TR and TSR, as follows:

Maasure Weighting Tarpets
2017 Adjusted sarnings i3 0% vesting below 36 pence
per share [EPS) 25% vesting for 35 pence

100% vesting for 42 pence or mone;
Straight line vesting between these points

Tofal return (TR) per share 113 0% vesting below 7% p.a.

p-a. {2017 - 2019) 25% vesting for 7% p.a.
100% vesting for 13% p.a. or more;
Straight fine vesting beitween these points

TSR outparformance of the 143 0% vesting if Group underperfarms the Index
FTSE 350 Real Estate Super 25% vesting for matching the Index
Sector Index [2017 — 2019} 100% vesting for outperforming Inclex by PR p.a..

Straight ine vesting between these points

Targets have been set with reference o internal and externol reference points, including our strategic plan and broker consensus
estimates, and are designed to be stretching but achievable for participants. Full vesting under each elerment will require continued
axceptioncl performance over the next three years. Any awards vesting for performance will be subject to an additional two-year
holding pariod, during which time clawbaock provisions will also apply. Further details of the grant dale and number of interests
awarded will be discloted in the 2017 Annual Report on Remunernation.

Implementation of Non-Execulive Director Remunesation Policy for 2017

Chalrmon ond Non-Executive Ditector Fees

During the fingl quarter of 2014, the 8oard undertook its annuot review of Non-Executive Direcior fees. Following consideration of
salary increases across the Group aond indicative fee increasas at sector and FTSE comparators, the Board determined that the
txasic fee shoutd be increased from £45,000 p.a. fo £45.200 p.a. gnd that odditional fees shouid be increased by a similar rate,

in both cases being broadly in line with increases for the bvoader employee population.

In respect of the Chairman of the Board, Phil White, the Commitiee determined that with the new executive leadership structure
now in ploce, and given the significant increase in the size of the Company in recent years, the timing was appropriate to undertake
Q full market assessment of the Chairman rote. Having considered a number of reference points. Including data for sector and size
comparators and time commitment, the Commitiee recommended on increase in the fee payabie to the Chairman to £185,000 p.o.
which will position him around lower quartile against the blended market assessment, The Commitiee considers this increase
Gppropriate given Phil's significant experience and leadenhip of the Company over his tenure to date.

A summary of the fee increases, which are effective | January 2017, is set out in the table belkow.

Posihcn 15 tees g et 2017 bvers

Baze fees

Chairman £127,100 £129.650 £185,000

Non-Executive Director £44,100 £45,000 £45,900

Additional fees

Senior Independent Director £5.125 £5,250 £5,400

Audit Committee Choir £9,150 £9,350 £9.550

Remunenation Commitiee Chair £9.130 £9.350 £9,550
_ Nomination Comenittee Chair ) n/a n/a n/a

Health and Sofely Committee Chair £5.475 £6,600 £45,750

" As Chairman of the Board, Mrwhite does not receive any additional fee in respect of chairing this Committee.
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Directors’ Interests (audited)

Ovdincwry Shares  Orainary Shares

ol 250 each ot of 25peacnat

31 Dacembar 31 December

2014 215

R S Smith 186,346 81,313
J J Lister 410,934 430,981
R C Simpsen 159,026 75,625
P M White 10,952 10,952
R T Wilson - o 6275 6,275
M Wolsfenhoime - B 7.795 7.995
A Jones 15,000 15,000
E McMeikan 5,000 5,000

A table setting out the beneficial interests of the Directors and their families in the share cqpital of the Company as at 31 December
2014 s set out fo the right.

None of the Direclots has a beneficial intenest in the shares of any other Group company. Since 31 December 2014, there have been
no changes in the Directors’ interests in shones.

Details of Directors’ share options are set out in the iables below.

Share price information
As at 31 December 2016 the middie maorket price for ordinary shares in the Company was 606p per share. During the course of the
year, the market price of the Company's sharas ranged from 543.5p fo 463.5p per ordinary share.

Executive Directors’ shareholding requirements (audited)
The table bealow shows the shareholding of each Executive Director ogainst ther respective shareholding requirement as at
31 December 2016:

Intarests
Subect o Unvested and/or Shamhodiing Current
Owned deferolhoidng  sbjeciioper.  requiement®  sharsholong® Reaurmment
outnght penod' condtons saoryfee salary/foe? met??
R S Smith 166,346 99.249 286,627 250% 309% Yes
1) Lister 410,936 41,827 277,788 200% 750% Yos
R C Simpson 159,024 70,088 253,892 200% 366% Yeas
P M White 10,952 51%
R J Twilson 8275 85%
M Wolstenholme 7995 106%
A Jones ' 15,000 207%
E McMeikan 5,000 67%

' Includes shares subject fo o holding penod under the 2013LTIP ond deferred bonus shares, where oppdcoble.

? Based on shore price as at 31 December 2014 of 804p. Shares subject to defermal/hokding pencds are taken on a 'net of tax' base for the purposes
of thve curent shareholding coicuiation,

* Asof the aate that he stepped oown from the Board, Mork Allan had exceeded the applhcable shareholding guideine of 250% of salary.
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Directors’ Interests in shares and options under Uinite incentives (audited}

Defemed bonus
Interosis hakd interests heid at
at 1 Januory Gronled during  More! pRce pes It enests vested Interests lopsed 31 December Defem|
Exmcutive 04 the year shore o gront cunrg the yeor ring thes year 2018 penod
R C Simpson 0.790 - 3100p 30.790 - - 07.03.13
-06,03.14
32277 - 4420p - - 32,277 07.03.14
-0603.17
63,067 - - 30,7%0 - 2277 -
R § Smith 33,849 - 31000 33,849 - - 07.03.13
~0603.14
2277 - 442.0p - - 32,277 0703.14
-06.03.17
' .18 - 533.5n - - 29,161 240215
-2302.18
95,307 - - 33,869 - 41,438 -
LTIP owards
Owtstarding at
Inlerests awaorced 31 Docambar
Aur g the yeaor 2016 [orefinary
{orefnary shares  Maret pnoe per Interess vesied shames of 25p Period of
Inferests el of 250 @achin the share whan  for performance Interasts kaceed eocn inthe quattying
Exacutive atoLD! 14 Company) awarded dunng the year dunng the yaar Compaorry) condilicns
J 1 Lister 125.482 - 319.0p 125,482 - - 1004.13
-1004.16
95.753 - 42840 - - 95,753 10.04.14
=10.04.17
72004 - 583.5p - - 72,094 020415
-02.04.18
- 10%.941 641.50 - - 109.94) 2306.16
—~23.06.19
293,329 109,941 - 125,482 - 277,788 -
R C Simpson 113,432 - 319.00 113,432' - - 10.04.13
- 100414
86,566 - 428.6p - - 86,566 10.04.14
~10.04.37
65,179 - S83.5p - - 65179 0204.15
~02.04.18
- 102,147 &4 .5p - - 102147 230616
~23.06.19
265177 102,147 - 113.432 - 253,892 -
R § Smith 113,432 - N90p 113,432 - - 100413
- 00416
86,566 - 428.4p - - B4, 5466 100414
- 100417
&517% - 583.5p - - 85179 020415
—-(204.18
- 134,882 641.5p - - 134,882 2306.16
- 23.06.19
285177 134 882 - 113,432 - 284,627 -

' One-third of owards vested for performance are subject to on additional one-year nolding period, L.e. 41,827, 37.811 and 37,811 shares in respect
of Messrs. Lister, Simpson and Smith respeciively.
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Opions heid Opiions neid at
al 1 January Gronted dunng Exercised Ophicn pnce 31 Dacember
Executive 2016 the yaar during the year per share X8 Matunty date
13 Lister 7.299 - - 205.5p 7,299 011217
- 1,705 - 527.6p 1,705 01,1218
R C Simpson 5216 - - 345.1p 5216 01.12.17
R 5 Smith - 3411 - 527.60 3411 01.12.18

The highest, lIowest and closing share prices for 2014 are shown on poge 93.

Cetails of the qualifying performance conditions, in rekation to the above referred to awords made in 2014 and in 20146, are set out
earlier in this report. Those details should also be taken as forming part of the ‘avditable part’ of this report. Details of performance
conditions applying to the 2015 awards were set cut in the 2015 Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Awards made in 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2014 took the form of a combination of nil cost options under the PSP and HMRC approved
options under the ESOS. No variations have been made 1o the terms or conditions of ony awards.

The fair vaiue in respect of Directors’ share options and LTIP awards recognised in the Income Statement is as follows:

2014 215
Exacutve [ 3 £
J J Lister 312,135 415856
R C Simpson 3T EYT 429956
R S Smith 407570 470,354
M C Allan (469.737) 454,775
The Directors’ Remunaration Report has been approved by the Remuneration Committee and signed on its behalf by: %‘
3
flizabeth McMelken &
Chair, Remuneralion Commitise g
22 February 2017 T
3
3
:
=
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

As at 22 February 2017 the Company had
neceived notifications from the following
companies and institutions of the voting
interests of themsetves and their clients in
3% or more of the issued ordinary share
capital of the Company.

Percentage
of Share

Sharenockder Capital
BlackRock Inc 8.01
APG Asset Management NV 6,36
Cohen & SteersInc 438
Abeardeen Asset
Management Group 3.95
Q1d mutual plc .79
RoyatLondon
Asset Manogement 3.40 )
(nvesco Lid 3.50
Principal Financial Group 33
Norges Bank
Investmeant Management 3.7

Share caplital

Af the date of this report!, thera are
222,048,787 ordinory shares of 25p eoch in
issue, all of which are fully paid-up and
quoled on the London Stock Exchange.

During the year and through to the date
of this report, o tatal of 45,408 odinary
shares of 25p each were allotled and
ssued pursuant to the exercise of options
under the Unite Groug pic Savings
Related Share Option Scheme and

a total of 72,468 ordinary shares of 25p
each were allotted and issued pursuant
fo the exarcise of options under the
Approved Scheme.

Tha rights attaching to the Company’s
ordinary shares, as well as the powers of
the Company's Directors, ore set outin
the Company's articles of association,

There are no restrictions on tha fronsfer

or voting rights of ordinary shares in the
capital of the Company {other than those
which may be imposed by Yaw from time
1o tima or as set out in the Company’s
articles of assockation;.

In accordance with the Market Abuse
Reguiations. certain employees are
required fo seek approvat fo deal in
the Compaony's shares.

The Company is not aware of any
agreements between shargholders that
may result in restrictions on the transfers of
securities and/or voting rights, No person
holds securities in the Company carrying
special rights with regard to control of the
Company. Uniess expressly specified fo
the ¢ontrary, the Company’s articles of
association may be amended by special
resolution of the sharaholders,

Change of control

All of the Company’s share schemes
contain provisions relating 10 a change

of control. Outstanding rewards and
options would norrmally vest and become
exercisable on a chonge of control, subject
to the satisfaction of any performence
conditions. Other than certain of the
Growup's banking facilities, there are no
ather significant agreements to which the
Company is a party that affect, alter or
terminate upon a change of control of
the Company following o takeover bid.
Nor are there any agrearmnents batween
the Company and its Directors or
employees providing for compensation
for kass of office or employment that
occurs because of o takeover bid.

Following a change of control of the

Company, the convertibla bands issued

by Unite Jersey issuer Limited and '
announcad on 3 Qctober 2014 become

redaemable and/or convertible info

ordinary shares of the Company {of the

opfion of ihe holder].

The Directors hove no outhority 1o buybock
the Company's sharas.

Detalts of proposals to be put to the Annual
General Meeting in relotion o the power
of Direclors fo issue shares in the Compony
are set out under the heading ‘Annual
General Meefing',

Going concem and \
viabliity statement

The going concem siatement and

viability staternent is set out on pages 65

and 25 respectivaely and s incorporated

into this Directors’ Report by nefarence. |

Disclosure of information

fo auditors

The Direciors who held office ot the
date of approval of the Directors' Report
confirm that. so far as they ore each
aware, theve is no relevant audit
information of which the Company's
auditor is unaware; and each Diractor
has taken all the steps that he ought to
have taken as a Director to make hirmself
aware of any relevant audit information
and fo estoblish that the Company's
auditors are aware of that information.

Directors’ conflicts of interest

The Company has procedures in place
for managing contiicts of interest, A
Drectoris 1o notify the Chairman {and
the Charman notifies the Chief Executive]
if they become aware that they. or any
of their conneclad parties, may have

an interest in an existing or proposed
transaction with the Compony or the
Group. Direciors have a continuing duty
to update any changes to these confiicts.

Political donations
No political donations were made during
the yeor ending 2016.
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Other information

incomporated by reference

The fallowing information in the Strategic
Report is incorporated inta this Direcioes’
Report by reference;

Results and dividend Page !

Post balance sheet events Page 109

Greenhouse gas emissions Page 47
Financial Instruments and

financial risk rnanogement  Page 29
Employrnent of disabled

persons/Employea
involvement

Page 44

The Corporate Gavernance Statement
aon pages 50 to 95 and the Statement of
Oirectors’ responsibilities on page 99 are
incorporated into this Directors’ Report
by reference.

Management Report

This Directors' Report together with the
strategic report and other sections from
the annual report forms the Management
Report for the purposes of DTR 4.1.8R.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual Generol Meeting of the
Company will be held at 3 Rivergale,
Temple Quay, Bristol BS1 4GD, ot 10.00 am
on 11 May 2017, Formal notice of the
meeting is given on poges 155 fo 159,

Resolution 14:

Authority ta allot shares

In addition to the ordinary business of the
meeting, Resalution 14 will be proposed
as an ordinary resolution to grant the
Directors gutharity to allot sharas in the
Company, and grantrights fo subscribe
for or to convert any security into shares
of the Company, up to an aggregate
nominal value of £18,505.732 (representing
opproximately one third of the issued
share capital of the Company as ot the
date of this report). in accordance with
guideiines issued by the investment
Association. this resolution also grants the
Directors outhority to allot further equity
securities up fo an aggregate nominal
value of £18,505,732. again representing
approximately one third of the nominal
value of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the dote of this report.
This additional authority may only be
cpplied o fully pre-emptive ights issues.

Resolutions 15 and 14:
Disapplication of pre-emption
rights resoiulions

If the Directors wish to allot new shores
and other equily securities for cash (othar
than in connection with an employee
share schemae), campany law requires
that these shares are offered first to the
sharsholders, in proportion to ther existing
hoidings. The Directors consider it desirable
to have the maximum fiexibility permitied
by corporate governance guidehines

to respond to market developments

and to enable allotments to fake ploce
to finance business opportunities without
making a pre-emptive offer to existing
sharehoiders. This cannof be done under
the Companias 2006 Act uniless the
sharenolders have first woived their
re-amption rights. The purpose of
Resolytions 15 and 16 (logether the
‘disapplication of pre-emptions rights
resolutions') is 1o enabie shorehoiders

1o 50 waive their pra-emption righis,

Resalution 15 authorises the Directors to
aliot new shares pursuant to the authority
given by Resoiution 14 {the alioiment
resolution) for cash:

{0} In connection with a rights issue
or pre-emptlive ssue; and/or

{b] Otherwise up fo a nominal value
of £2,775,859, equivalent to
approximotety 5% of the totol
issued ordinary share capital of
the Company as ot the date of this
report, in each case without the
shares first being offered lo existing
shareholders in proportion to their
existing holdings.

Resolution 14 aaditionally authorises the
Directors to allot new shares for cash,
without the shares first being offered fo
existing shareholders in proportion fo their
exisiing holdings, in connection with the
financing for refinancing. if tha authority
is 10 be used within six months after the:
original transaction} of an acquisition

or specified capilal investment which

s announced cantemporaneocusty with
the gliotment or which has taken place
in the preceding six-month period ond

is disclosed in the announcament of the
gllotrment, The quthority under Resolytion
14 is fimited to a nominal value of
£2,775,859%, equivalent o opproximatety
5% of the nominal value of the ordinary
share capital of the Company in issue

as at the date of this report.

L4

o ——

Taken togetter, these disappiication of
pre-emption rghts resolutions will aliow
the Directors 10 issue new shores for
cash without offering the shares first

lo existing shareholders in proportion to
their existing holdings under the
following crcumstances:

> In connection with a rights issue or
other pre-emptive issue, with a nominal
value equivalent 1o two-thirds of the
present issued share capital (which wil
allow the Dineclors to make exclusions
or such other arangements as may be
appropriale toreschve legal of
practical problams which, for exaomple,
rnight arise with overseas shareholders);

> For any othér purpose, with a nominal
vaive equivatent to 5% of the present
issued share capitak and

> In connection with the financing
or refinancing of an acquisition or
specified capital investment which s
announced contemporanaously with
the aflotment ar which has ioken place
in the preceding six-month period ond
is disclased in the announcement of
the allotment, with @ nominal value
sguivalent to 5% of the present issued
shore capital but subject fo on
overall oggregate limit equivalent
o two-thinds of the present issued
share capital.

The Directors intand tc adhere {0 the
provisions in the Pre-Emption Group's
Staterment of Principles, as updated in
March 2015, and not 1o aliol shares for
cash on o non-pre-empfive basis
pursuant fo the qutheority in Resolution 15
ether in excess of an amount equal 1o 5%
of the total ssued ordinary share copital
of the Company or in excess of an
amount equal to 7.5% of the fotal issued
ondinary share capitol of the Company
within a relling three-year period, withaut
prior consuttation with shareholders.
Even though odherence o the principles
would not preclude issuances under the
avthority sought under Resolution 14, the
Directors currenily do not intend to use
such authority without prior consultation
with leading sharehoiders.

The allotment and the disapplication

of pre-emption rights resolutions comply
with the Share Capital Managerment
Guidsiines issued by the investment
Association in July 2016 and the
disapplication of pre-emption rights
rasolutions toliow the resolution templatas
issued by the Pre-Emption Group in

May 2016,
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUED

if the resolutions are passedy, the authorities
will expire ot the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting of the Compary
o, if earfier, 10 August 2018, this being the
date 15 months from the passing of the
resolutions, whichever is the earlier.

Resolvtion 17:

Amend Article 94 (Directors’ fees)
of the Articles of Assaciation
Resolution 1715 a proposal to amend
Articie 94 of the Articles of Association

to increase the limit on Directors’ service
fees {as distinct from salary, remuneration
and cther paymaents to the executive
dirgctors} from the currant £500,000 to
£750,000 per annum. This is fo allow the
Cormpany some headroom in relation 10
any further appointments O Non-Exacutive
Directors orincreates in Directors’ fees.
There is no curent intention to utilise the
proposed increased limit and the level of
fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors
will conlinue to be monitored by the
Board, which intends that all such fees
should be in line with market practice.

Resolution 18:

Notice of General Meetings

The Companies (Shareholders’ Rights)
Regulations 2009 {he Shareholders’
Rights Regulations, increased the nolice
pericd for general meetings of the
Company to 2} days unless shareholders
approve a shorter notice period, which
cannol be less than 14 clear days. Al the
annual general meeting of the Company
held in 2015, shareholders authorised the
calling of general meetings, other thon
an annual general meeling, on not less
than 14 clear days’ notice. Resolution 18
seeks the approval of shoreholders to
renew the authority to be able to call
general meetings (ather than on annual
general meeting) on 14 clear doys'
notice. The Hexibiity offered by Resolution
18 wil ba used where, faking into acoount
the circumstances, the Directors consider
this appropricte inrelation to the business
of the meeting and in the interasts of the
Compony and shareholders as c whole.
The Company undertakes to meet the
requirements for electronic voting under
the Shareholkders' Rights Regulations
before caling a genergl meeting on 14
clear days' notice. If given, the approval
will be effective until the Company's

next annual general meeting. when it is
intended that a similar resalution will

be proposed.

By order of the Board
Christopher Szpo]narowicz

Company Secrelory
22 February 2017

THE UNITE GROLIP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITIES
IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for preparing
the Annual Report and Accounts and the
Group and parent company financial
statements in accordonce with applcoble
lkaw and regulations.

Company iaw requinas the Direclors

o prepare Group cnd parent company
finoncial stotements for each financiol
year. Under that iaw they are required 10
prepare the Group financial siatements
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the EU and applicable iaw and have
elected o prepare the parent company
financial statermnents on the same basis.

Under comparny law, the Directors must
not approve the financial skaterments
unless they are satisfied that they give

a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and porent company and
of their profit or loss for that period.

In praparing each of the Group and
parent company financial stalements,
the Directors are required to:

> Select suitable accounting policies
and then apply them consistently

> Make judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent

» State whether they hove been prapared
in accordance with IRSs as adopted
by the EU

» Prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis unkess it is
inappropriate to presume that the
Group and the parent company
will confinue in business.

The Diraciors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficiant fo show and explain the parent
company’s transactions and disciose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the perent company
and enable them to ensure that Tty
fingncialstaternents comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard
the assets of the Group and to prevent
and detect froud and otherimeguiarities.

Under applicoble law and regukations,
the Diractors are akso responsitble for
preporing o Directfors’ Report, Directors’
Remuneration Report gnd Corporate
Govemance Siaterment that comply
with that law and those regulations.

The Directors are résponsiblke for the
maintenance and integrity of the:
corporate and financial information
included on the Company'’s website.
Legiskation in the UK goveming the
preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from
legislation in ather jurisdictions.

Each of the Directors, the name of whom
are set out on poges 54 and 55, confirms
that to the best of his or her knowledge:

> The AnnualReport and accounts foken
as o whole is fair, balonced and
vnderstandabie and provides the
information necessary for shareholders
o assass the Company's position
and performance, business modei
and strategy

> The financial statements. prepared in

accordance with the applicable set of

occounting sfandards, give o frue ond

fair view of the assets, kabilities,

Francial position and profit and 1os

of the Company and the undertakings

inciuded in the consolidation taken

as a whole

The Directors' Report includes

a fair review of the development

and performance of the business

and the position of the gsuerand

the undertakings included in the

consolidotion foxer: as 0 whola,

together with a description of the

principal risks and uncertainties that

they face.

R $mith J Lister
Director Dirsctor
22 February 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF THE UNITE GROUP PLC ONLY

Opinion on financial sialements of The Unite Group plc
Our opinion on the finoncial sikdements is unmodified

In our opinion:

> the financial statements give o true and far view of the state of the Group's and of the parent company’s affairs as
at 31 December 2016 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

> the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with Infernational Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the Eurcpean Union;

> the porent company financial statements have been property prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2004 and

> the finoncial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and,
as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

The financial statements compxise the Consolidated ond Company balance sheets, the Consolidated incorme statement, the
Corsofidated siatement of comprehensive income, the Consclidkated and Company siatement of changes in shareholders' equity,
the Consofidated and Company siatements of cash flows and the related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been
appbed in ther preporation s applicabile lew ond IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the parent company
financial statements, as oppied in occordance wilh the provisions of the Companies Act 2006,

Goling concem and the disectors’ assessment of the principal risks that would threaten the solvency

or liquidity of the Group

Asrequired by the Listing Rules we have raviewed the directors’ statement reganding the oppropricteness of the going concem basis
of accounting contained within the Regulatory discloswres section of the Govemance report to the financiol statements and the
drectors' staterment on the longer-term viabiity of the Group contained within the strategic report on page 25.

We hove nothing material fo add or draw attention to in relation to:

> the directors’ confrmation on page 99 that they have conied out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the
Group, including those that would thealen its business model, future parformance, solvency of liquidity:

> the disclosures on pages 26 to 2% thot describe those risks and explain how they are being managed or mitigoted:

> the directors' statement in section | 1o the financial statements about whether they considered it approprigte to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing them and their identification of any material uncertainties to the Group's
ability to continue to do so over a period of at least hwelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements;

> the drector's explanalion on page 99 as to how they have assessad the prospects of the Group, over what period they
have done 5o and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as 10 whether they have a
reqsanable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in oparation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over
the period of ther assessment, including ony reiated disclosures drawing attention to any necessary quaifications
or assumptions,

We agread with the drectors’ adoption of the going concemn basis of accounting and we did not identify any such material
uncertainties. However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted., this statement s not o guarantee os to the
Group's abliity to continue as a going concem.

Independence

We ore required to comply with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Stondards for Auditors and we confim that we are
independent of the Group and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsioilities in accordance with those standards. we also confirm
we have not provided any of the prohibited non-audit services referred to in those standards.

Our assessment of risks of material misstatement
The assessed risks of materiat misstatement described below are those that had the greatest effect on our qudit sirategy.,
the allocation of resources in the audit and drecting the efforts of the engagement team.

Last yeor our report ncluded a risk around the recognition of defered tox assets, which & not included in owr report this year. We have
identified a new risk relating to the impact ot the Group beceming o REN on 1 January 2017 as the REIT transition has hod a significant
npoct on the reasurement and presentation of delered tax assets and abfities.

The description of risks below shauld be recd in conjunctlion with the significan! ssues considered by the Audit Committee discussed
on page 56.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in Forming our opinion thereon,
and we do nat provide g separate opinion on these matters.
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Risk: Invesiment and development property valuation (£2,276.6 miflion)

The Group's principal assets are investrent properties and investment properties under development thaf are eifher owned on

bolance sheet or through the investments that the Group holds in LSAV and USAF. The investment properties are camied at foir value

based on an appraisal by the Group's independent externai valuers who cary out the valuations at si-monthly intervals for the Group

n accordance with the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors Valuation — Professional Standards {the ‘Red Book’), taking into

account fransactional evidence dunng the year.

Management conduct a detoled axercise in the assessment of the valuation of the Group's property portialio. The valuation of these

propesties b underpinned by o number of judgerents and assumplions, such as property yields, rental growth, cccupancy and

property management cosls. A small change in thase assumptions could have a significant impact on the valuation of properties

and, with respect 1o the valugtion of the USAF properties, could olso have a significant impact on a key input 1o the colkculation of

the performance fee recognised for tha year ended 31 December 2014 as this & based on the net asset value of the fund. a

with regards to the invesirment properfies under development, additional judgement is required to forecast discounted cash flows §

with &1 deduction for construction costs o complete. 4d
@

Refer fo Secfion 3.1: wholy owned property assets ((3
L]

How the scope of cur audit responded 1o the risk 3

We performed testing on the property vaations and critically assessed the judgements and estimates that had been made. §

This work included:

> Understanding and documenting the underlying business process and then evaluating the design, determining
implermentation and testing operoting effectiveness of the relevant conrols;

> Understanding and challenging the assumgtions taken in relation to key drivers such os rental income and growth,
occupancy, viekls and casts with reference 1o the frends ot the end of the year and the following yeor's budget and
Group's strategic plon;

» Meeling with the Group’s valuers to uniderstand the assumplions being taken and consistency of the judgements
with prior year,

> Working with our valuation specialists within our Deloitte Real Estate team to validate the assumptions used against
market data;

> Assessing the Group's davelopment appraisal process through meeting with the deveiopment team and assessing
the forecast cost fo complete against budget and substantive testing of costs incurred to date; ond

> Use of data analytic tools 10 determine whether there were any anomalies in the valuafion spreadsheet data sent
to the valuers.

Key observations
We are satisfied with the approach and methodology adopted in valuing the property portfolio and consider the valuations to be
suitable for inclusion in the finonciol staterments at 31 December 2016,

Risk: accounting for joint ventures (£692.9 million)

A significant proportion of the Group's ossets are hekd within USAF and LSAV which are jointly owned enfities that are accounted for
as joint ventures, At 31 December 2016 Unité hod a 23% ownership in USAF and 50% ownership in LSAV, and acts as manager of both
joint venture vehicles.

Due to the complexity of the contractual arangements, and the Group's roke as manager of the joint venture vehicles, the
assassment of control nvoives judgerments around a number of significant factors, parficukarty with regards 1o USAF given that itis a
multi-nvestor fund and the Unite ownership stake is subject 1o change. In accordance with IFRS 10, there & a need 1o assess confrol
with regords to the abiity to drect relevant activities, have exposure Yo variable retums and the obility fe use power 1o offect retums

at ecch reporfing period.

Refer to Section 3.4: investments in joint ventures
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF THE UNITE GROUP PLC ONLY

CONTINUED

How the scope of our oudli responded to the dsk

Our gudit procedures on this area focussed on assessing the activifies of the businesses, understanding the confractual agreements
in piace and ideniffying the methodology opplied by managerment in reaching ther business decisions in order to consider the:
oppropriateness of the ckassification of these arangements as joint ventures in accordance with the requirements of IRRS 10.

with regards to bolh USAF and LSAV, we hove:

> Understood and documented the undertying business process and evaiuated the design, determined implementation
and tested operating effectiveness of the relevant controls;

> critically assessed the key activities and how they impaoct the returns to the Group from the funds and challenged
Management's own consideration of these factors in ther opplication of IFRS 10; and

> assessed the Group’s monitering of its role and the three key factors relafing to control and its exercise in accordance
with the judgement required under IFRS 10.

Given the particular focus on USAF, we have:

> assessed the role of the USAF Advisory Committee {which represents the interests of alt unithokdars) on an on-going basis,
including obtaining evidence as to how it has caried out its duties and evaluated where decisions were taken that did
not involve the Committee as to indicafions of the ability of the Group to exercise contral; ond

> arifically evoluated the impact of the percentage ownership on a reguiar basis.

Key observations

There has been no change to the structure and underlying assumptions on determination of control of USAF and LSAV in the
period and the role played by Unite as investor and asset/development manager.

We consider the freatment as joint ventures o be appropriate.

Risic: REIT fransiion

The Group possasses significant potential deferred tox liabilities in relation to future gains on investment properties and unit trusts
and also significant potentiol deferred tax assels in respect of tax losses. The recognition of both liobiities and assets depend
on an assessment of forecast taxable profits, forecasts themselves primarily dependent on the conversion to REIT status on

1 January 2017. The recognition of both defered tax assets and liobiities in this period therefore involves judgements regarding
their appropriate reatment on REIT conversion and assessment of the certainty of conversion and ongoing maintenance of
REIT status.

Refer to Section 2.5: Tax

How the scope of our audit responded fo the rsk
Cur audit procedures included:

> Understanding and documenting the underlying business process and then evoluating the design, determining
implementation and testing operating effectivenass of the redlevant controls;

»  working closely with our tax audit specialist team. including newly infroduced REIT specialists, to ensure that the key
jucigements relating to REIT transition are understood:

> considening the ciarity and presentation of the Group's disclosures of its tox balances and effective lax rate reconciliation;
and

> testing the Group's current and forecast compliance with the REIT regime rules.

Key observallons

We are satisfied with Management's assessment of the mpact of RET conversion on the deferred tax position of the Group and agree
with the resulting credit of £39.8m on fhe derecognition of deferred tax previously recognised on revaluation of investment properties,
oaccelerated capital nlowances and property business tax [osses. We consider the presentation of the disclosures of the tax balances
and effective tax rate reconciliation to be ocppropriate.
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Qur application of materiality

we define materigity as the magnitude of missiatement in the financiol statementfs thaf makes # probable that the economic
decisions of areasonably knowledgeable persan would be changed or influenced, We use materigity both in planning the scope
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work.

We determined materality for the group o be £14.8 milion (2015; £9.3 milion]. which is 1.0% of net assets (2015: 1% of net assets].

In cadition to net assets, we consider the EPRA earmings measure 1o be a critical financial performance measure for the Group and
we have applied a lower thresholc of £3.0 million {2015: £3.1 milion] based on 5% of EPRA earrings (201 5: 5% of EPRA earmings) for
tesling of revenue, cost of sales, cperating expenses. loan interest and similar charges, finance income. share of joint veniure profit
and taxation.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee ot qudit differences in excess of £153,000 (2015;
£186,000). as well as differences below that threshold thot, in our view, waranted reporting on qualifalive grounds, We also report
to the Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements,

An overview of the scope of our audit

Our group audit was scoped by obitaining an understanding of the Group and ifs envirorment, including Group-wide confrols, and
assessing the risks of rmatericl misstatement at the Group level. The Group is audited by one qudit team, led by the Sanior Statutory
Auditor. The oudit is performed centrolly, as the books and records for each entity within the Group are manicined ot head office.
We also tested the consolidation process and camed out analyfical procedures to confirm our conclusion that there were no
significant risks of malerial misstatermnent of the aggregated financial information. We oudit o of the Group's subsidianes ond joint
ventures which are subject to audit at statutory materialty level, which in many cases is substantiaty lower than Group materiality .

Opinion on other matiers prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

I Qur opinion:

aounwanall ojoiodinD

> the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be cudited has been propery prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006; and

> ihe information given in the Strotegic Report ond the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the finoncial
stalements are prepared s consistant with the financial statements,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion;

vl

T
-

> we have notf received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

>  adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company. or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

> the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matiers.

Direclors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we ore ako required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures of directons’ remuneration have not
been made or the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be qudited s not in agreement with the accounting records and
retums. We have nothing to report arising from these matters.

Corporate Govemance Statement
Under the Listing Rules we are also required o review part of the Coporate Governance Statement relating to the company's
cormpkance with cernain provisions of the UK Comporate Governance Code. We have nothing fo report arising from our review.

HONDULIOMI IBUYIO
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

OF THE UNITE GROUP PLC ONLY
CONTINUED

Our duly to read other information in the Annual Report
Under Infemational Standearets on Auditing (UK and reland). we are required to report to you if. in our opinion. nformation in the
annualreport &:

>  materaily inconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements: or

> apparently matericlly incormect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our knowledge of the group acquired in the
course of performing our audit; or

> otherwise misleading.

In particuigr, we are required to consider whether we have identified any inconsistencies between our knowledge acquired during
the oudit and the drectors’ statement that they consider the annual report & far, batonced and understonaable and whether the
annuat report oppropriately discloses those matters that we communicated 1o the audit committee which we consider should have
been disclosed. We confirm that we have not identified any such inconsistencies or misleading statements.

Respective responsibilities of directors and audiior

As explainad more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilifies Statement, the directors are responsible for the: preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the
financial statements in accordance with appicable low and Intemationat Standards on Auditing (UK and reland}. We also comply
with Infemational Standard on Quality Control 1 {UK and Ireland). Cur audit methodology and tools aim to ensure that our quality
control procedurss are effective, understood and apphed. Our quality control and systems inClude owr dedicated professional
stondards review team and ndependent partner reviews,

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 14 of the Companies Act 2006,
Ouwr qudit work hos been underiaken so that wa might state to the company's members those motiers we are required to stale to
tham in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. Ta the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsioility
o anyone other than the company and the company's mermbers as a body. for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Scope of the audit of the financial statfements

An audit involves abtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financiol statements sufficient to give recsonable
assurance that the financial staterments are free from material misstaternent, whether caused by fraud or emor. This includes an
assessment of; whether the accounting polficies are approprate to the group's and the parent company's circumstances and have
been consistentty applied and adequately diciosed; the reasonablenass of significont accounting asfimates made by the drectors:
and the overal presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the Bnancial and non-financial information in the
annual report to idantify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is
apparently materally incorrect based on. or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the couse of performing
the audit. if we become awarae of any apparent material misstaterments or inconsistencies, we consider the implications for our report.

M

Judith Tocon {(Senlor siatulory audilor)

for and on behall of Delolite LLP

Charterad Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London

United Kingdom

22 February 2017
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Comparny statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
Statements of cash Aows
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Section 4: Funding
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Sechion 8: Company subsidicaries and joint ventures ro—

'
\

TN

i

LOOLLIOIUL YD



105 THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2016

014 015
Nale tm £m
Rental ncome 2.4 97.1 23.0
Property salkes and other income 2.4 236 1158
Tolol revenue 120.7 208.8
Cost of sales 24 (44.9) (1149}
Operating expenses (25.0) {28.5]
Results from operating octivites 508 65.4
Profit/{Loss) on disposal of property 04 0.6}
Net valuation gains on property 3 772 1648
Profit before net finoncing costs 128.4 29.6
Loan interest and similor charges 43 {20.9) (22.6}
Mark lo market changes in interast rate swaps 4.3 - {C.6}
Swop canceliation costs 4.3 {1.0) -
Finance costs 43 (21.9) {23.2}
Fingnce income 4.3 0.1 0.2
Net financing costs 4.3 {21.8) {23.0)
Shaora of joint venture profit 3.40 948 1813
Profft before tax 2014 a88.4
Cumrent fax 25 {2.3) [1.8)
Defered tax 2.5 273 [31.1)
Proftt for the yeor 264 a55.7
Proftt for the year aiivibutable to
Cwrnexs of the parent company 22c 224.0 351.9
Minority interest 2.4 38
264 356.7
Eamings per share
Basic 22¢c 101.3p 1642p
Diuted 22¢ 94.7p 150.3p
All results are derived from continuing activities.
For the year ended 31 December 20146
200 015
Nole tm £m
Profit for the year 244 355.7
Movements in effeciive hedges 42 (7.2) 1.9
- Defermed tax in relation to movements in eflective hedges 25d (4R )] 1.0
Gains on hedging instruments fransfered 1o income stoterment within mark ta market
changes in interestrate swaps - 0.3
- Defemed tax in rekation to hedging instruments transfamed to income statement - [0.1}
Shara of joint venture movements in effective hedges 3.4b (1.4) 0.6
- Defered tax in relation to shore of joint venture movernents in effective hedges 2.5d (0.5) 0.1}
Cther comprehensive ncome for the year (12.2) (0.2}
Total comprehensive income for the year 2142 355.5
Alributable o
Owners of the parent company 2118 3516
Minority interest 24 3.9
2142 355.5

All other comprehensive income may be classified as profit and loss in the future.
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o——
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET .
At 31 December 2016 §‘
)
{
16 0I5
Nole tm £m
Assefy
Investment property 31 1,061.6 1.024.4
Investiment property under development 3 184.6 1428
Investiment in joint ventures 34b 692.9 6104
Other non-cument assets 33 298 245
Deferred tax asset 2.5d - 1.0
Tolal pon-cument assels 1.968.9 18103
Inventories 3.2 29 34 0
Trade and other receivables 52 779 830 %
Cash and cash equivalents 51 27 70 g
Totol current cssets 1235 13,6 4
Total axsets 20924 19239 §
o
Licbiitie §
Borrowings 4, {1.3) (3.3
Trade and other payvables 5.4 {123.7) [115.5)
Current o liability (24} {2.3)
Total cument labilitles (127.4) (149.1)
Bomrowings 41 (471.5) (443 B)
Interest rate swaps 42 {11.8) (2.3
Defered fax babikty 2.5d {4.4) {31.0
Total non-cument lobillles {489.5) {477.1)
Total Bablites (616.9) (626.2)
Net assels 14755 1.297.7
Equity
Issued shore capitat ) 48 58.5 55.5
Share premium 48 493.4 493.3
Mearger reserve 40.2 402
Retained eamings 847.9 479.5
Hedging reserve (15.0) 2.8}
Equity portion of convertible insfrument 4.1 7.4 4
Equity aliributable to the owners of the parent compony 14574 1.275.1
Minority interest 239 224
Total squity 1.475.5 1.297.7

These financial sialements of The Unite Group pic, registered number 3199140 were approved by the
22 February 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

:
:
g

RS Smith J J Lister
Diractor Director
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

At 31 December 2016

01 s
Noks 2 £m

Assehs
Investments in subsidiories 35 7254 548.3
Totolinvestments 7254 648.3
Loan fo group undertaking 35 1799 179.9
Total non-curent atsels $05.3 328.2
Amounts due from group undertakings 52 6864 639.3
Cash and cash equivalents 5.1 - -
Total current assets 6864 46393
Tolal assels 1.5%.7 1467.5
Curent iabilties
Bomowings 41 (0.7) (1.4}
Amoynts due to group untertakings 54 1.3} {582
Other payables 5.4 (3.0) {2.7)
Tofal curent loblifles {4.4} (62.3)
Bomowings 4.1 (175.3) (173.0)
Totod non-cuvent lobiites {175.3) (173.0)
Tofal kablites (1re.7) (235.3}
Nt asseis 1,412.0 12322
Eqully ,
issued share capital 555 555
Shane premium 493.4 493.3
Merger reserve 402 40.2
Retained eamings 8133 6338
Equity portion of intercompany loan 9.4 2.4
Total equity 1.412.0 12322

Total equity is wholly atiributable to equity hokders of The Unite Group pic.

These finandial statements of The Unite Group pic, registered numiber 3199160 were approved by the Board of Drectors on
22 February 2017 and werg signed on its pehalf by:

RS Smih JJ Lister
Direcior Director

e A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Ja Shre Marger Mwiained Hedging  of covvvarible 1o Ownass Mincry
share caplial premiun raserve camings resarve insin et of he povert Infarest Toral
£m £m £m £m £m #m £m &m m
At 1 Jonuary 2016 555 493.3 40.2 679.5 (2.8) %4 12751 245 12977
Profit for the year R - - 224.0 - - 240 24 24
Movements in effective ,
hedges [net of ! .
ossociated deferedtax} . - - - - (122) - (12.2) - (122).
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 24.0 (122) - 218 14 2142
Shares ssued - 03 - - - 0.3 - 0.3
Defered tax on share
based payments - - - (0.1} - - 0.y - 1)
Far vaiue of share based
payments - - - 12 - - 12 - 12
Own shares acquired - - - (2.5) - - {2.5) - (2.5)
Dividends paid o owners
of the parent company - - - (34.2) - - (34.2) - (342) -
Dividends fo minority
inferest - - - - - - - {1.1) {1.3)
Al 31 December 2014 555 4936 40.2 8467.9 (15.0) 9.4 1.451.4 29 1,475.5
Ecpty porhon Atmouiable
Esuod Share Marger Retcined Heagng  of converibie O cwnes Mncaty
shore Capxtol ST reserve SIS neserwe Insfrurnent ot the parent Intermst Tetol
£m £m Em £ £m im £m £m £m

At 1 Jonwary 2015 S04 3858 402 359.2 {2.5) 9.4 842.5 198 8623
Profit for the yeaor - - ~ 3519 - - 3519 38 3587
Other comprehensive
income for the year - - - - {0.3) - {0.3) 0.1 0.2}
Total comprehensive
ncome for the year - - - 3519 (0.3} - 3516 37 355.5
Shores issued 5.1 107.5 - - - - 11246 - 172,46
Defered tax on share
based payments - - - 08 - - 08 - 08
Fair volue of share based
payments - - - 29 - - 2% - 29
Own shores acqured - - - (3.4) - - {3.4) - (34)
Dividends paid 1o owners
of the parent company - - - 131.9) - - 1319} - [31.9}
Dividends to minority
nlerest - - - - - - - (1.1} (1.1
Al 31 December 2015 55.5 4933 402 &79.5 (2.3) 74 1.2758.1 246 12977

The notes on pages 112 to 153 form part of the financial statements.

podeas 288045
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

For the year ended 31 Decermber 2015

ved Shae Marger Relained Eouilly poriion of
share caplial T L eqTings  Inlercompany loan Yokl
tm im tm fm e im
At 1 Jonuary 2014 558 4733 02 43308 9.4 1.232.2
Frofit for the year & other comprehensive income - - - 2137 - 2137
Shares issued - 03 - - - 0.3
Dividends to shareholders - - - (342) - {34.2)
At 31 December 2014 555 493.5 402 B133 ?.4 14120
Isuad Share Marger Relaned Ecpaty porhon of
share coptot PrerRm esmryve: aanrgs  miacompany loan Tohal
£m £m £m £m £m &m
At 1 January 2015 50.4 385.8 40.2 3758 2.4 851.6
Profit for ther yeor & other comprehensive income — - - 899 - 2899
Shores ssued 51 107.5 - - - 11246
Dividends to sharehokders - - - 31.9) - (319
Al 31 December 2015 55.5 493.3 402 433.8 4 12322

The natas on pages 112 to 153 form pexrt of the financial stalemeants.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

podal xBajons

Group Compary
o 215 200 D15

Nate m £m ) £m
Cash fiows from operaling aclivities 5.1 703 120.8 (2.8) (22)
Cash flows from taxalion {22) (0.3) - -
Investing activities
Proceeds from sale of invesiment property 1261 [0.6) - -
Payments to/on behalt of subsidiaries - - (157.4) {194.9)
Payments from subsidiaries - - 59.¢ 54.4 o
Repayment received of joint venture investment loan - - - - %
Loan tojoint ventures - {30.5) - - 3
Dividends received 292 29 1393 557 g
Interest received 0. 0.2 - - Q
Investment in joint ventures - {52.4) - - g
Acquisition of intangible assets 8.2) {7.7) - - g
Acquisition of property (131.0) (96.3) - - [}
Acquisiion of plant and equipment o L) B G
Cosh fiows from invasting aciivities 131 {168.5) 41.0 (84.8)
Financing acliviies
Interest poid in respect of finoncing octivifies {237 {21.8) (5.5) {5.5)
Ineffecfive swop payments - (2.3) - -
Swap cancelation costs (1.0) - - -
Proceeds from the issue of share capital 03 1124 0.3 1126
Payments to acquire own shares 2.5) {3.4) - -
Froceeds from non-curent borowings 99.0 i7.6 23 1.8
Repayment of borowings (102.3) [36.1) - -
Dividends paid 1o the owners of the parent company (34.2) {3r.9) (34.2) [31.9)
Oividends paid to minority interest an (w1} -
Cash flows from finoncing activilies (85.5) 33.4 (37.1) 770
Nel (decreass)/increass in cash ond cash equivalents 1587 (14.4) 13 {100}
Cash and cash equivalents ot start of yeor ) 790 _ a4 Q4 88
Cash and cash equivalenis at end of year 5.1 Q.7 270 {0.1) (1.4)

Q
3
2
|
g
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Section 1: Basis of preparation

This section krys out the Group’s accounfing policles thal reiale fo the finoncial siklements as a whole. Where an accounling
policy b speciic fo o parficular nole 1o the finoncial siclemants, the policy I3 described in the note to which it relates and has
been clearly ideniified In a box.

The financial statemeants consolidate those of The Unite Group pic, {the Company) and is subsidfiaries (together referred 1o as
the Group] and include the Graup's interests in jointly controlied entities. The parent compony financial staterments present
information about the Company as a separate entity and not as a group.

Both the parent company financial siatements and the Group financial statements have been prepored in accordance with
International Francial Reporting Standards oz adopted by the EU (Adopted IFRS) and approved by the Directors. On publishing
the parent company financial statermants here together with e Group financial staterments, the Company s toking advantage
of the exemnption in 5408 of the Companies Act 2006 not fo present its individuol ncome statement and reicted notes.

The accounting policies ave besn oppied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated financial stalements.
The Company is domicied in the United Kingdom.

Going concem

The Group's business activities, together with the fackors likely to affect its future development and position are set out in the Strategic
Report on pages 1 ta 49. In addifion, section 4 of these Notes fo the financial staterments includes the Group's objectives, pokcies and
processes for managing its capitat; detais of its bormowings and interest rate swaps: and in note 5.3 ifs axposue o credit sk,

The Group has prepaned cash flow projections three years forward to December 2019 and the Group has sufficient headroom

to meet all its commitments. The Group added £100m to an existing fachity during 2014 and this together with existing faciities wil

be sufficient to fund the Group's commitments over the next three yeors. The Group mainfains positive retationships with ifs lending
banks and hes historicaly secured new faciities belore maturity dates and remained within its covenant leves. The Group is i full
compliance with its covenants at 31 December 20146, Ouwr debt fackties nclude loan-to-vaiue, interest cover and minimum net worth
covenants, all of which have ¢ high level of headroom. In order to manage future financial commitments, the Group operate o
formal approval process, tirough its Major Investment Approvals committee. 10 ensure appropriate review k undertaken before

ony transactions are agreed.

The Directors consider that the Group hos adequate resowces fo confinue in operational existence for the foreseeabie future.

Measurement convenfion
The financial staterments are prepared on the historica) cost basis excep! for mvestrnent property, nvestment property under
developrment, investrments in subsidiones and interest rate swaps of of which ore stated at their far value.

Basis of consolidation

Subsicliexies are those entities coniroled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has on axisting right that gives it the
curent abilty 1o direct the relevant activifies of the subsidiary, has exposure of tight to vanabie refums from its invotvement in the
subsidiary and has the ablity 10 use its power to alfect its retums. The financial statements of subsidiories are inclucied in the
consolidated fnancial statements from the date that control commences unfil the dote that control ceases.

Infra-group batances and fransactions, and any unrealsed gains and fosses arsing from intra-group ransactions, such os property
dsposal and management fees, are eiminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Urvedlised gains arsing from
ftransactions with joint ventures are efminated o the extent of the Group's retained interest in the enfity. Urrealised losses are
ebminated in the same way as urredlised gains except where the loss provides evidence of a reduction in the net reqlisable
valse of curent ossets or an impaiment in value of fed assets.
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Section 1: Basis of preparafion continved

Impact of accounting standards and interprelations in issue but not yet effective
At the date of authorsation of these financial statements, the Group has nof applied the folowing new and revised IMRSs thal have
been issued but are not yel effective and in some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU:

IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’;

IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Custorners’:

IFRS 16 'Leqses’.

IFRS 2 {amendments) ‘Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transaction’

1AS 7 famendments] 'Disclosure iniiative’

IAS 12 [amendments] ‘Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses’

IFRS 10 and |AS 28 {amendments) "$ale or Contribution of Assels between an Investor and its Associate or lcint Venture';

VY VFVvVVVY

The directors de not expect that the adoption of the standards listed above will have a material rpact on the financial statements
of the Group in future periods. except that IFRS 9 will impact both the measurement and disclosures of financial instruments, IFRS 15
may have an impact on revenui recognition and related disclosures and IFRS 14 will impact the reatment of leases. During 2016 the
Group cantinued 1o maonitor the potential impact of these changes. Beyond the information abova, # & not practicable to provide
areasonabie sstimate of the effect of IFRS 2, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16 until a detaied review has been completed.

eoubLIsAcE aptiodion

Accounting estimates ond

The preparation of financial staternents raquires management to exercise judgement in applying the Group's accounting policies.
11 also requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported armounts of assets and liobiifies, ncome and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions ore based on historical experience ond various other factors thot are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the rasulis of which form the basks of moking judgerments about canying values of assets

and liabilities that are not readiy apparent rom other sources. Actuat rasults may differ from these estimates.

Estimates ond assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis with revisions recognised in the pefiod in which the estimates are revised
and in any fulure periads affected,

The areas invalving a higher degree of judgement of complexity are set out below ang are explained in more detall in the related
notes to the financial statements.

The areqs involving the most sensitive estimates and assumpfions that are significant to the financiot statermants are set out betow and
in more detailin the related nofes:

> valugtion of investment property and investment property under development (note 3.1}
The accounting policy descriptions set out the areas where judgement needs exercising, the most significant of which i as follows:

> classification of joint venture vehicles (note 3,4)

Q
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 2: Resulis for the year

This section focuses on the resulls ond pesformance of the Group and provides a reconciliafion between the pidmary
o stalements and £PRA pedormance meatures. On the following pages you will find disciosures sxpiaining the Group's

resufts for the year, segmental Information, hacalion, samings and nel assel value per share.

The Group vses EPRA somings ond NAY movement os key companable indicalors across other real esiate companies

in Europe.

Performance measures

Note 206 x5
Eamings basic 22¢c £224.0m £351.9m
Earnings diuted 22c £227.7m £351.9m
Bask: eamings per share (pence) 22¢c 101.3p i64.2D
Diuted eamings per thore [pence) 22c 54.7p 150.3p
Net assets Basic 2.3c £1.451.4m £1,275.1m
Baskc NAV per share (pence] 23 453p 574p
EPRA peifformance medsures

Note ol 015
EPRA eamings 2.2a £42.7m £51.3m
EPRA eamings per share {pence) 22c 20.4p 28.6p
Adjusted EPRA eamings 2.2a £61.3m £49.5m
Adjusted EPRA samings per share [pence) 22c .7 23.'p
EPRA NAV 2.3a £1,557.3m £1,394.4m
EPRA NAYV per share [pence) 23d sddp 5790
EPRA NNNAY 23c £1,517.3m £1,330.2m
EPRA NMNNAV per share jpence} 2.3d 630p 552p

2.1 Segmental information
The Board of Directors monitor the business along two activity ines, Cperations ond Property. The reportabile segments for the years
anded 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are Operations and Praperty.

The Group undertakes its Operations and Property activities directly and through joint ventures with third parties. The joint ventures
are an infegral pant of sach segment and are included in the information used by the Board 1o monitor the business,

The Group's properties are located exclusively in the United Kingdom:. The Graup therefore has one geographicd segment,

2.2 Eamings

EPRA ecimings arnends IFRS measures by removing principally the unrealised investment property valuation gaing ond losses such
that users of the finoncials are able 1o see the extent to which dividend payments [dividend per share} are underpinned by eamings
arising from purely operational activity. The reconciliation between Profit attributable fo owners of the parent company ond EPRA
ecrnings i ovaiable in note 2.2 {b).

The Operations segment monages rental properties, owned directly by the Group or by joint veniures. Ifs revenues are derved from
rental income and asset management fees eamed from joint ventures. The way in which the Operations segment adds value fo the
business is sat out in the Operations review on pages 30 fo 33, The Operations segment is the main contributar to EPRA earmings and

EPRA EPS and these are therefore the key indicators which are used by the Boord to monitor the Operations busingss.

The Board does not manage or monitor the Operations segment through the bakance sheet and therefore no segmental information
for assets and habiities is provided for the Operations segrment.
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Secfion 2: Resulis for the year confinved N
2.2 Earnings conlinued
a) EPRA somings
2015
Grovp on
A
UNITE Shere of joink veniures baals
Total USAF LSAV Yoid tokal
tm Em tm £m im
Rental income LA 36.9 251 620 1521 I
Property operating expensas (29.3) (107 (2.8) (13.5) a2.8) §
Nef operaling Income 478 262 23 48.5 1163 a
&
O
Management fees 208 (2.8) (4.0) (6.8) 14.0 %
Qperating expenses [22.4) (0.4) {0.3) 0.n {23.1) §
(%]
Operating lease renlais® ns.s - - - (13.5) ®
Net financing costs {20.8) 57 (5.9 {11.6) (32.4}
Operations segment resull e 173 121 294 613
Propady segrnent result (1.0) - - - (1.09)
Unafloccated to segrments 2.4 - - - 24
EPRA eamings A3 173 121 294 627
Yield related USAF pedformance fees 0.4 - - - (1.4)
Adjusted EPRA samings 3y 17.3 12.1 294 61.3

* Operating lease rerials anise from properies which the Group has sold and is now leasing back. These properties were sold 10 generate Snoncing ond
they now contiibute to the Group's rental income ond incur propedy opercting expenses. Therefore the Group consider these lease costs fo be a form
of finrancing.

Included in the above is rental income of £18.5 milion and property operating expenses of £5.9 milion relating to sale and
leaseback properties.

The unaliocated to segments bakince includes the far value of share based payments of (£1.2 million), UNITE Foundation of
[£1.0 milion). fees received from USAF relating to acquisiions £0.4 million, net USAF performance fee of £6.5 milion, defered tax
ot (£0.3 mikon) and cument tax charges of [£2.0 million].
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 2: Resylis for the year continued

2.2 Eamings continyed
a) EPRA samings confinued
2015
Growp on
PRA
UNITE Share of pant ventures bois
Tl USaF LSAY Tolak Tetal
£m £m £m £m £m
Rental ncome 93.0 316 19.7 513 1443
Property operating expenses 28.2) (%.3] (2.3 {11.6) {32.8)
Nei opesaling income 48 n3 17.4 9.7 104.5
Management fees 17.5 {22 {3.3) (5.5) 120
Operating expenses {21.3) 10.3] 0.3} 0.6) {219}
41.0 198 138 33.6 G4.6
Operating lease rentols* {14.5) - - - {14.5)
Net financing costs {23.6) {5.6) (4.4} (10.0) {33.6)
QOperafions segment resullt prA) 142 7.4 23.6 4.5
Properly segment resuit {1.8) - - - (1.8
Unallocated io segmeriy 1.6 - - - 16.6
EPRA somings n7 142 2.4 23.6 613
Yield reloled USAF performance fees (11.8) - - - 1.8
Adjusied EPRA eomings 259 142 9.4 22 495

* Opergting lease rentals crise from properiies winich the Group has sold and & now lecsing bock. These properhes were sokd to generate finrancing ond
they now Contribute 1o the Group's rential mcome and incur property operahng expenses, Therefore the Group consider iese lease costs 1o be ¢ form
of inancing.

Included in the above s rental income of £20.3 milion and property operating expenses of £4.6 milkon rekafing to sale and
feaseback properfies,

The unalocated to segments balance inchudes the far value of share based payments of (£2.9 milkon). UNITE Foundation of
{£1.0 miion). feesreceived from USAF relating to acquisitions £1.8 milion, net USAF perforrnance fee of £20.2 million, defermed tax
of {£0.1 mifion) ond cyrent tax charges of {£1.4 million].
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Section 2: Resulls for the year continved

2.2 Eamings continued

b) IFRS reconcillation to EPRA samings

EPRA eamings excludes movements relafing to changes in values of nvestment properties and nterest rate swops, profits from the
disposal of properties ond propecty imparments, which are included in the profit reported under IFRS. EPRA eamings reconcile fo the
profit atibutable to owners of the parent company as folkows:

M4 215

Note im &m

EPRA aomings 22a 427 61.3
Net vakration gans on investment property 31 772 1648
Property disposals and write downs 0.3 68
Share of joint venture gains on investrent property 3.4b 588 152.7
Share of joint venture property disposals and write Gowns - 0.3
Mark fo market changes in interest rate swaps* 43 - [0.6)
Interast rate swap payments on ineffective hedges™ - 1.2
Swap cancekation costs (1.0} -
Shora of jpint venture swap cancellation costs 3.4b - 0.3)
Deferred tax relafing to interest rate swap movement - [02)
Deferred tax reiating to propesties 27.6 (30.9)
Minority intesest share of reconciling ftems™ (1.8) (32
Profit alirbulable fo cwners of the porenl company 224.0 351.7

* Swops are designated as hedging insiruments within hedge relafionships concluded to be effeciive for the year ended 31 December 2016 and so are
reported within Other Comprehensive income for the year. In the prior year certain hedging relatiorshins were concluded to be ineffective and hence
the far volue movement of the swaps desgnated o5 hedging instruments in fhose relationshios were recanded within the Income staternent rather than
Othar comprehensive income,

= The runcrity interest share. or non-controling interest, ofises as a result of the Company net owning 100% of the share capital of one of ity subsidiones,
USAF (Feeger Guemsey Lid. More getall is provided in note 3.4,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Seciion 2: Resulls for the year continved

2.2 Eamings continued

¢) Eamings per share

The Basic BPS caikculation i based on the eamings attributabie to the equity shareholdens of The Unite Group pie and the weighted
average number of shares which have been in issue during the yeor. Basic EPS s acjusted in fine with EPRA guidelines in order i allow
users to compare the business perdomance of the Group with other listed reql estate companies in @ consistent manner and o reflect
how the business is managed and measured on a day to day basis. EPRA EPS and EPRA EPS pre yield relaled USAF performance fee
are calcuated using EPRA eomings.

The calculations of basic and EPRA EPS for the year ended 31 December 2016 is as follows:

2014 L

Note m £m
Eomings
Basic 2240 3519
Diuted 227.7 a51.9
EPRA 2.2a 62.7 41.3
Adijusted EPRA [excluding yield reloted USAF performance fee| 22a 51.3 49.5
Weighled average number of shares (thousands)
Basic 21,013 214,304
Dilutive potenfial ordinary shares {converfidle bond and share optians) 19.315 19.877
Diuted 240,328 234,183
Eamings per share (pence)
Basic 10130 164.2p
Diuted 94.7p 150.3p
EPRA EPS 28.4p 28.6p
Ad|usted EPRA EPS (exciuding yleld selaled USAF perdformance fee) 277 23.p

Movements in the weighted avenage number of shares have resutted fom the issue of shanes arising fom the employee share based
payenent schemes.

Excluged from the potential divtive shares (share opticns), in 2014, are 16,838 (2015: 191,000} options which do nof affect the diuted
weighted average nurnber of shores,
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Section 2: Resulls for the year confinved

2.3 Net assefs

EPRA Net Asset Value per share makes adjustments 1o IFRS measures by principally removing some items that are not expected to
moferialse in normal crcumslances like items of deferred tax and the foir value of financial dernivatives, The reconciiation between
IFRS NAV and EPRA NAV is available in note 2.3 (cl.

The Group's Property businass undertakes the acquisition and development of properties. The Property segrment’s revenue comprises
revenue from development management fees eamed from joint ventures. The way in which the Property segrment adds vaiue to the
businass is set out in the property review on poges 34 to 39.

a) EPRA net cssels
2016 2015
Wholly owned Share of IV Yokt Wholly owned Share of Ivs Total
2m tm &m £m £m £m

Invesiment properties 10614 1,023.2 2,084.8 1.024.4 a108 18352
Investment properties under development 184.6 7.2 7.8 1498 80.2 230.0
Tolal propety portiolo 1.246.2 1.030.4 2276.6 11742 8910 20652
Debi on properties (474.8) (354.8) (B41.8) {475.1) 1304.6} [779.73
Cash 427 3.1 658 270 220 430
Net debi {432.1) (343.7) (775.8) (448.1) {282.6) (730.7)
Other assets/ (liabiities) (14.8) (14.3) {28.9) 4.9 {18.3} {23.2)
EPRA nef assets (pre convertible) 5 §72.4 1.471.% 7212 590.1 1,311.3
Convenible bond* 854 - B85.4 B83.] - 83.1
EPRA nef assefs 884.9 6724 1.557.3 a04.3 590.1 1.394.4
Loan io valye 5% IR % 38% R 35%

* Under the temns of the Corvertible Bord, eary conversion of the debat mte equily can be tiggered it the share price trades over 1.3 fimes The
corvarsion pnce for  perod of fime, see more detalin Note 45 b).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Secfion 2: Resulfs for the year continued

2.3 Net asseds confinued
b) Movement in EPRA NAV during the year
Contiboutions 1o EPRA NAV by each segment during the year is as follows:

a6 Group on
BritA
UNETE Share of joind veniures [
Tokal USAF LAY Tolal Tolal
tm im tm £m £m
Operations
Operations segment result 3Ly 173 121 2.4 .3
Fropesty
Rental growth 358 148 120 268 82.6
Yiekd movemerit 49 12 75 14.7 176
Disposals and acquisition gains 1.0 - - - 1.0
Investment property gains 4$9.7 220 19.5 41.5 832
Development property gains 345 04 14.5 14.9 51.4
Pre-confract/other davelopment costs {1.0} - - - (1.0}
Total property 772 24 34.0 564 133.4
Unaliocated
Shares issuad [ %} 0.3
Investiment in joint ventures 33 73 (10.5) (3.3) -
Convertible bond 23 - - - 23
Dividends paid (342 - - - (34.2)
USAF performance fee 65 - - - 6.5
USAF property acquiition (ee 0.4 - - - 0.4
Swap cancelafion costs (1.0 - - - 1.0}
Othner (6.3} - - - (6.3}
Total unallocated (28.7) 73 (10.6) (33 {32.0)
Total EPRA NAY movemenld in the yeor 80.4 4568 A58 823 1429
Total EPRA NAY brought forward 804.3 305.3 204.8 590.1 1.394.4
Tolal EPRA NAV conied forword 8849 3521 203 672.4 1.557.3

The £5.3 rmilion charge that comprisas the other balance within the unaliocated segment includes o tax charge of £2.3 milion,
fair value of share options charge of £3.0 million and £1.0 milkon for the UNTE Foundation.
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Section 2: Resulls for the year confinued

2.3 Net assels continved
b) Movement in EPRA NAV durdng the year conlinued

Group on
EPRA
215 UNITE Shawe of oet ventues enis
Total USAF LEANV Total Totdl
£m £m £m £&m £m
Operations
Operafions segment result 9 4.2 94 234 46.5
)
Property 3
Rental growth 216 58 22.2 28.0 49.6 g
Yieid movement 97.6 370 441 78.1 175.7 &
Disposals and acquisition cosfs (17.3) 0.1 02 0.3 (17.0) B
investment property gains 1019 429 435 106.4 2083 £
Deveioprment property gains 457 - 36 36.1 are g
Pre-confract/cther development costs 1.8} - - - (1.8) 5
Total property 145.8 42.9 9.6 1425 280.3
Unallocaled
Shares issued 1126 - - - 1124
investment in joint venfures (57.8] 414 162 57.8 -
Convertitie bond 831 - - - 8a.l
Dividends paid i319] - - - (31.9)
USAF performance fee 19.8 - ~ - 19.8 -
USAF property acquisifion fee 17 - - - 17 14
Swap losses and debt exit costs AR]| .3 - (0.3} {1.4) ¥
Other {5.4) - - - (5.4) .
Total unallocaled 121.0 03 162 575 178.5 =
Total EPRA NAV movement in ihe year 28v.7 8.4 125.2 234 513.3 <
Totat EPRA NAV brought forward 514.6 2069 159.6 366.5 881.1
Total EPRA NAV camted lorward 804.3 053 204.8 5901 13944

The £5.4 million charge that comgrises the other bakince within the unaliocated segment includes a tax charge of £1.5 mikion,
far vale of share options charge of £2.9 milion and £1.0 milion for the UNITE Foundation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Section 2: Resuils for the year continued

2.3 Net assels continued

¢) Reconcilalion to IFRS

To detemmine EPRA NAV net assefs reported under IFRS are amended to exclude the mark to market valuation of swops. defered tax
kabilities and to recognise oll properties at market volue.

The Group aiso manages NAV using EPRA NNNAY, which adjusts EPRA NAY to inciude the fair value of swaps and debt. Under EFRA
bast practice guidefines this & considered 10 give siakeholgers the most relevont comparabie information on the curent far value of
all the assets and Rabilities in the Group.

The Net Assets reported under IFRS reconcile fo EPRA NAY and EPRA NNNAY as follows:

016 s
_ Note tm £m
Net aset value reported under 1FRS 1.451.8 1275
Mark o market interest rate swaps 14.9 4.3
Defered tax 54 3.9
EPRA NAY (pre convertible) 2.3a 1.471.% 1.311.3
Convertible bond 354 B3.l
EPRA NAV 1.557.3 1.3%4.4
Mark 1o market of fixed rate debt v {28.0)
Mark 1o market interest rate swaps (149) 4.3)
Deferred tax (5.4) {31.%}
EPRA NNNAY 1.517.3 1,330.2

d) NAYV per sivre

Basic NAY is based on the net assets attributable to the equity sharehalders of The Unite Group pic and the number of shares in issue
at the end of the year. The Boord uses EPRA NAV and EPRA NNNAV to monitor the performance of the Property segment on a day
o day basis.

% 2015

Nole im £m
Net cssels
Basic 2.3c 14516 1,275.1
EPRA 23a 1,557.3 1,394.4
EPRA diuted ' 1,559.9 1.396.7
EPRA NNNAV (diksted) - 1.520.0 1.332.5
Nymber of shares (thoutands)
Basic 222248 222,051
Convertiole bond shares 18,424 18,124
Quistanding share options 742 1,027
Dilted 241,454 241,202
Net asset value per share (pence)
Basic 853p 574p
EPRA 47p 581p
EPRA {fully diuted) s46p s7%p

EPRA NNNAV (fully diuied) 430p 552p
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Seciion 2: Resulfs for the year confinued
2.4, Revenwe and cosis
The Group eams revenue from the following activities:
2015 015
Note tm £m
Rental income Operations segment 220 7.1 930
Manggement fees Operations segment 160 15.2
Development feas Praperty segment 1.0 19
Property sales Unallocated - 770
USAF performance fee Unallocated 7.0 22.4 8
1210 2095 '§
Impact of minority interest on management fees (0.4} 10.7) g
Total revarnve 120.7 2088 ‘g?
!
The cost of sales included in the consoldated income staterment includes property operating expenses of £30.3 milion {2015: a
£28.9 milion), operating lease rentals of £13.5 milion (2015: £14.5 milion). costs associated with development fees of £1.1 milion §

{20135: £1.9 milkon} and the canying value of property sales of £nd [2015: £69.6 million).

There were no dispoasals of properties held as ading properties during 2016 and therefore no revenue was recognised. During 2015,
Stratford One. a trading asset. was sold to LSAY resulting in £77.0m of revenue.

Accounting policles
Revenue i recognised on the following bases:

Rertal income

Rental income from property leased out under operoting leasas (cormprising direct lets to students and leases to Universities and
commercial fenants] is recognised in the income skatement on a straight-ine basi over the Yerm of the lease. Lease incentives are
sometimes granted on commercial units; these are recognised as an integral part of the: total rental income and spread Over the
term of the lease,

Propery sules
Incoma relafing fo the sale of frading properties i recognied once confracts for sale have been uncondiionally exchanged.

Manogement and peromrnance fees

The Group acts as asset and property manager for the jont veniures and receives managerment fees in relation to these services.
In addition, the Group is entitied 1o performance fees from USAF ond LSAV jf the joint ventures ocutperform certain benchmarks,
The Group receives an enhanced equity interest in the JVs as considerafion for the performance tee.

Management and performance fees are recognised, in ling with the management confracts, in the period 1o which they relate
Qs services are provided.

o)
:
g
g
g
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 2: Resuils for the year continued

25Tax
The Group has not paid any corporation tax in the recent past due 16 the ovailabiiity of capital allowonces. indexation and brought
forward losses. However, it does pay UK income tax on rental ncome that anses from investments held by offshore subsidiaries.

Accounting policies
The lax charge for the year is recognised in the income statement and the statement of comprehensive income, according to the
accounting freatment of the related fransaction. The tax charge comprisas both curent and deferred tax.

Curent tox is the expected tax payoble or receivable on the faxabie Income or koss for the yeor and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years. The curent tax charge is based on tax rates that are enocted or substantively enacted at the yearend.

Defened tax arses due to certain temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and kabilities for financial reporting
purposes and those for taxation purposes. Temporary differences rekating to investmants in subsicianes and joint ventures ore not
provided for to the extent that they wit probably not reverse in the foreseaabie future. The amount of defered tax provided is based
on the expected manner of raalsation or setlernent of the carying omount of assets and liabilities,

During the vear, the Group elected to become a REIT with effect from 1 January 2017. As a REIT, rental profits and gains on disposal of
rvestment properties will be exempt from comporation tax. As a result, no defered tax provision has been recognised at the balonce
sheet date in respect of property assels (revalation and capital alowances). and the provision for delered tox lobiity on property
business assets of £41.1m af 31 Dacember 2015 has been fully released.

The: Group's investments in unit trusts are not exempt from fax as o RET and, where they remain within the charge 1o tax, a defered tax
Fability has been recognised as appropriate, the Group wil be able to utifise its tax adjusted losses ogairst gains onising on the disposal
of its investrments in unit trusts. As the deferred tax kability on non-property business investments exceeds the asset relating to the losses,
the deferred tax asset in respect of the tax adpusted losses has been recognised in full,

a) Tax - income stialement
The total taxalion charge/{credit) n the income statement is analysed as follows:

FO x's5

tm £m

Income tax on UK rental ncome orising in non-UK companies 23 1.6
Current fax chorge 23 1.6
Reversal of defarred tax provision in respect of RET property business assets (39.8} -
Originafion and reversal of temporary differences 137 272
Effect of change in tax rate 12 4.1
Recognition of previousty unrecognised asset - a0
Defetred icx charge/(credit) (27.3} 3
Total tax (credit)/charge inincome stalement (25.0) 27

During the year, the Group elected fo be taxed os a REIT with effect from i Jonuary 2017, As a result of this, the Group’s
investment properties are exempt from tax and no deferred tax is required on the balance sheet. Accordingly the Group's
defemred tox now only relates to non-properly invesiments (being primonily ifs interests in joint venitures} and historic tax losses.
The removal of the defered tax provision in respect of REIT property business assets is comprised of credits of £29.2m in relation
to invesimen? properties and £11.3m in reiation to accelerated capital alowances. and a debil of £0.7m tor tax adjusted losses
exfinguished on conversion,

The movement in deferred tax provided is shown in more detadl in note 2.5 d} below.
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Section 2: Resulis for the year confinued

2.5 Tax continved

a) Tax —income stalement conlinued

In the income statement, a tax credit of £25.0 milkon arises on a profit before tax of £201.3 mifion, the taxation charge that would arise
at the standord rate of UK corporation fax is raconcied to the actue tax charge os follows:

2014 M5

e £m

Profit bafore tax 201.4 388.4
Income fax using the UK comoration tax rate of 20% (20151 20.25%) 4.3 787 0
Release of deferred tax bakances due to REIT conversion {39.8) - §
Property revaluations not subject to tax (20.4) (28.4) g
Effact of ndexation on investments {21) [3.4) o
Effect of statutory tax refiefs {1.5) (2.9} Q
Income due o Unite Foundation {1.0) - §
Effect of iax deduction fransfemed to equity on share schemes 0.4 b1 3
Rate difference on defered fax (12) {4.t) @

Movement on unprovided deferred tax asset - 0.6}

Recognition of previously unrecognised deferred tax asset - 7.4)

Priot yeors adjusfments 0.3 0.3

Tolal tax ¢charge In income sialement {25.0) 327

The main rate of corporation tox reduced from 21% to 20% with effect from 1 Apnt 20135, Accordingly, the reconciikfion abeve has
been calculated at a rate of 20% (2015: X0.25%).

Folkywing the Group's election to become a REN (effective 1 January 2017}, deferred tax on its REIT property business assets is no
longer required. Accordingly. the Group has recognised a credit of £39.8m in the Income Statement reversing the provision for
defered tax lobiifies and assels recognised at 31 December 2015 relating to the revaluation of investment property, accelerated
capital allowances, and property business tax losses.

T

Deferred tax is an accounting adiustment intended to reflect tax that the Group may have 1o pay in the future if certain events ocour,
and is distinct from the Group's curent tax charge [the kiiter being the taxactually payatie to HM Revenue & Customns for the year).
Accordingly. the relecse of the deferred tox provision is an accounting only adjustment, and does not result i the Group receiving
tax credit or refund. The curent tax chorge for the year anded 31 December 2016 s unaffected by the election to become o REI.

T
o>

1} Tax = other comprehensive income
within other comprehensive income a tax charge totaling £1.6 milion [2015: £0.8 miion credit| has been recognised representing
defered tax. An analysis of this & included in the defemed tax movement on page 126,

¢} ko « saterment of changesin equity
Within the stalement of changes in equity @ tax charge totaling £0.1 milion (2015: £0.8 milion credit) has been recognised
representing defered 1ox. An analysis of this s included in the deferred tax movement on page 126.

UCHOWLIOJ WO
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 2: Results for the year continued

2.5 Tax continved

d) Tax - bolonce sheet

The table below outlines the deferred tax iabities/ (assets) that are recognised in the boalance sheet, together with their movernents
in the year:

2016

A13) Decemoer {Creditad] Charpact  AFS1 Decembar

015 Tronsters nncome N eguity 21

&m £m £m £n tm

Investments 147 -~ 25 - 172
Investrment propery {REIT property business assets) 412 - {41.1) - -
Property, pkant and machinery {0.3) - 02 - {0.1)
Share schemes 1.8) - 0.1 0.5 (0.9)
Interest rate swops {1.1] - 1.1 -
Interest rate swaps redating to joint ventures {0.5) - 0.5 -
Tax value of caried forward iosses recognised 122.3) - 11,0 1.4} [11.8)
Net tax (assets)/Sablities 0.6 - {27.3) 1.7 4.4

2015

A 31 December [Cracitect) Charged Al 31 December

D4 Transters 1 incorme in excpaly 05

£r £m £m Em £m

Investment property 17.3 - 167 - 340
Property, plant and machinery 0.6} - 03 - {0.3)
Investrments in joint ventures 10.7 - 1.1 - 218
Share options {1.5) - [0.2) [¢R] [1.6}
interast rate swaps 0.3) - 0.2 (1.0 .
Interast rate swaps relafing fo joint ventures [0.8) - - Q.1 {0.5)
Tox volue of comed forward losses recognised {24.4) - 3.0 {0.9) (22.3)

Net tax {assets) abililies 0.6 - 31.1 .7 30.0

A reduction in the UK corporatfion fax rate from 19% to 17% {effective 1 April 2020} was substanfively enacted on 26 September 20146,
This wili reduce the Group's fulure curent tax change accordingly. The deferred tox liibility at 31 December 20146 hos been calculated
based on the rale at which it is expacted to reverse.

Following the Group's election to become aRET, disposals of nvestiment property wilt be exempt from tax ond as a result no deferred
ftax liability has been recogrised in relation fo these assets. The movement of £41.1m in the yeor £ made up of a combination of in
year movement and reversal of the remaining provision. The Group's investments in property unit tusts (being primxily its interests

in joint ventures) are not exemnpt from tox o5 a RBT. Where the interest in joint ventures remains subject o tax, o defered o fiabifity
hos been recognised on the excess of the market value of these assets over ther histonc tax base cost. At 31 December 2014 the
defemed tax obility in relafion to these investments was £17.2m.

Compdny
Deferred tax has not been recognised on femporary differences of £118.9 milion (2015: £104.9 miflion) in respect of revaluation of
subsidiaries and investrment in jont ventures as it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

2.6 Audi fees
Dischosures in respect of feas paid to the auditors can be found in the Audit Committee Report, page 66.
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Secftion 3: Asset management

The Group holds s propery porifollo directly and through Iits joint ventures. The performance of the properly poriolio

o whether wholly owned or in joint veniures is the key factor that drives net ascet value [NAV), one of the Group's key
performance indicalors. The loflowing pages provide disclosures about the Group's invesimends in propery assets
and joint ventures ong thelr perdormance over the yeor.

3.1 Whaolly owned properly assels
The Group’s wholly cwned property portfolio is held in two groups on the balance sheet at the camying values detailed below.
In the Group's EPRA NAY, all thase groups are shown at market value.

1) inwvesiment propedy [fixed arsels)
These are assets that the Group infends to hold for a long period to eam rental income or capital appreciotion, The assets are held
at far vaue in the balance sheet with changes in for volue taken fo the income statement.

1) Invesiment propetty under development (Exed assels)
These ore assets which are curently in the course of construction and which will be transfermed 1o 'Investment property’
on compiation. The assels are held at far value in the palance sheet with changes in fair value token to the ncome statement.

Accounting policies
Properfies helg under operating leases are not ncluded in assets, but the future payments due in respect of these properties are
disclosed in note d.6a.

investment property and investment property under deveioprment are held at far valve.

Completed properties, properties under development and inventores are shown at the lower of cost and net recliscbie value.

Net realisable value is the estimated seding rice in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and seling
expenses. All costs directly associated with the purchase and construction of a property, and af subsequent qualifying expenditure
is capitalised.

The recognition of acquisitions and disposols of investment and other property occurs on unconditional exchange of contracts.

Borowing costs are capitalsed if they are directly atiributabie to the occquisifion ond construction of a property asset. Capitolisation
of borrowing costs commences when the activities o prepare the asset are iIn progress and expenditures ond bomowing costs are
being incumed, Capitafisation of borowing costs confinues untit the assets are substantialy ready for ther intendead use but stops if
development activities are suspended. If the resulting camying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impavment
foss is recognised. The capitalisation rate & amived at by reference fo the actudtrate payabie on borowings for deveiopment
purposes of, with regard to that pan of the development cost financed out of general borewings, 1o the avesage rate. During the
year the avetage capitasaton rate used was 6.4% (2015; 6,4%).

The vakxation of properly assets involves significant judgement and changes to the core assumplions; market condiions, rental
income, occupancy and property management costs, coukd have a significant impact on the conying value of these assets.

Valualion process .
The valuations of the properties are performed twice o year on the basis of vakuation reports prepared by extemal. independent
valuers, having an appropriate recognised professional qualification. The fair values are based on market values as defined in
the RICS Approisal and Valuation Manual, issued by the Royal Inslitution of Chartened Surveyors. CB Richard Bl Lid, Jones Lang
LaSatie tid and Messrs Knight Frank. Chartered Survayors were the valuers in the years ending 31 December 2016 and 2G15.

The valuations are based on both:

> Informotion provided by the Group such 0s cumrent rents, occuponcy. operaling costs, terms ond conditions of leases ond
nominafion agreements, capital expenditure, etc. This information is derived from the Group's financial systems and is
subject to the Group's overall control enviconment,

> Assymplions and valuation models used by the valuers — the assumplions are typicaily market related, such as vield and
discount rates, These are based on their professional judgement and market observation,

The information provided to the valuers — and the assumptions and the valuation models used by the valuers - are reviewed by the
Property Board and the CFO. This includes a review of the fair value movements over the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Section 3: Assel management confinved
3.1 Wholly owned propeity assefs confinued

THE UMITE SROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ALCOUNTS 2815

The movemenis in the canying value of the Group's wholly owned property portfolio during the yaar ended 31 December 2014

are shown in the table below. Whie completed property is held at cost on the balance sheet, the Group managaes the assets

based on ther market value (fair value). These properties are included in EPRA NAY at ther far vaive, valued on the same basis
as for investment property and investment property under development, by external valuers. The farr vakse of the Group’s wholty

owned properties af the year ended 31 Decernber 20146 are oko shown below.

2014

property development Toxd
*m m m
At 1 January 2016 1,024.4 149.8 1,1742
Cost capiialsed 2.8 101.7 1093
Interes! copitalised - 59 5.9
Transfer from investment property under development 3.6 (34.4) -
Transfer from work in prograss - 3.0 80
Disposais (44.0) (84.4) (128.4
Vauation gains i 449 “n2 851
Valuation lossas {7.9) (1.00 (8.9)
Net valugtion gains 370 40.2 772
Canying vatue of 31 December 2014 1,061.6 184.5 1,244.2
Yaluation gains not recognised under IFRS but included in EPRA NAY - - -
Brought forward - - -
Market volue at 31 December 2014 10614 184.4 124482
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Seciion 3: Asset monagement confinved

3.1 Wholly owned properly assels confinued
The movements in the camying value of the Group's wholy owned property portfolio during the year ended 31 December 2015 and
the far vale of the Group's wholy owned property portfolio at the yeor ended 31 December 2015 is as follows:

2015
Wrvedment
Irwesimant property under Completed
Y ch praperty Tokl

tn £m tm £
At 1 January 2015 8505 4%.2 70.1 498
Cost capitalised 86 97.4 - 1060 9
Intergst copitaised - 27 -~ 27 g
Transter from investment property under development 412 (41.2) - - g
Transfer from work in progress - 1.0 - 10 g
Disposals - - {76.1} (70.1} 8
Valuation gains 126.4 410 ~ 167.4 | 2
Valugtion losses f 23 03) - (2.6} | 3
Net valuation gains 124.1 40.7 - 1648
Coanying value of 31 December 2015 1,024.4 149.8 - 1,174.2
Valuation gains not recognised under IFRS but inclucded in EPRA
NAV
Brought forward - - 3.2 312
Disposals - - {31.2) [31.2)
Market value ot 31 December 2015 1,024.4 149.8 - 1,174.2

Included within investrment properties at 31 December 2016 are £31.5 milion [2015: £41.4 milion] of assets held under a long leqsehold
and £8.9 miion [2015: £10.5 milion) of assets hekd under short leasehold.

Total inferest capilaised in invesiment and deveiopment properties af 31 Decembar 2016 wos £34.9 milion (201 5: £35.4 milon]
on a cumulative basis. Total internal costs relating to construction and development costs of Group properties amaount 10 £51.1 milion
at 31 December 2014 {2015; £49.4 milion} on a cumulative basis.

Recuring foir value measurement

Allinvestment and development properties are classified as Level 3 in the far value hiercrchy, While completed property ond property
under development are held ot cost in the balkance sheet, the Group discloses the far value of thase assets and includes them at fai
value in EPRA NAYV, Completed property and property under developrment fair value measurements are categofised as Level 3in the
far value hierarchy and ther far value is measured using the same techniques as for investment properties and invesiment properties
under developrment,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 3: Asset management continued
3.1 Wholly owned property assets continued

204 D15
Class of asset £ £m
London - Rental properties 424.9 409.4
Maojor provinciot - Rental properbes AA02 A0
Other provincial - Rental properties 1985 1839
Major provincial - Development properiies 158.4 94,2
Other provincial - Development properties 2.2 554
Maorket value 1.246.2 1,1742

The valuation technique for nvestment properties is a discounted cash flow using the following inputs: net renfal ncome, estimated
future costs, occupancy and property managernent costs.

Where the asset s leased to a university, the valuations atso reflect the length of the lease, the allocation of maintenance
ond inswronce responsibiities between the Group ond the lessee. ond the morket's general perception of the lessee's
credit worthiness,

The resuting valuations are cross-checked against the initial yields and the capital value per bed derived from actual
market fransactions.

For development properties, the fair value & usually calculated by estimating the fair value of the completed property
{using the discounted cash How method) less estimated costs o completion.

Fak value using unobsesvable inputs (Level 3)

201 poils

tm £m

Opening far value 1,1742 1.001.0
Gains and losses recognised in ncome statement 7.2 144.8
Gains and losses not recognised on properties under deveioprnent - -
Acquisitions - -
Capital expenditure 124,71 109.7
Disposals (129.3) (101.3)

Closing fok volue 1,245.2 11742
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Section 3: Asset management confinved
3.1 Wholly owned propertty assets continved
Quaniitalive information about fair volve measurements using unobsesvable inputs (Level 3)
2014
Falr value Voholion Weighted
tm Qq bessvobile inputs Ronge average
London Discounted Net rentalincome (£ per week) £179 -£327 £249
—rental properties 4249 cash flows Estmated future rent (%) 1%~ 6% 4%
Discount rate {yield) (%)} 4.5% - 5.2% 4.7%
Major provincial Discounted Net rental income (£ per week| £105-£162 £12% o
—rental properties 4902  cash fiows Estimated future rent (%) 1% - 7% 4% g
Discount rate [yield) (%) 52% - T0% 5.7% g
Ofher provincial Discounted Net rental income (£ per week] E95-£153 £12¢ a
~rental properties 65 coshfiows Estimated future rent (%) 2% - 8% 3R 2
Discount rate (yield} (%) 55%-120% 6.2% %
Major provincial Oiscounted Estimated cost Yo complele (Em) £10.5m=£59.5m  £34.1m a
- development propetties 158.4 cash lows Estimated future rent (%) *x % °
Discount rate {yield) (%) 48% -5.9% 54%
Other provincial Discounted Estimated cost to completa (£Em) £12.3m -£26.5m £20.1m
- development properties 26.2 cash flows Estimated future rent (%} % 3%
Dicount rate {yiekd) (%) 5.7% - 5.8% 5T%
Fair value ot 31 Dacembaer 2014 12462
2015
Fox vaiue Valuahon welghted
Em techreue Unobservable inpuls Range gverage
London Discounted Net rentcl income (£ per week| £190 - £326 £244
—rental properties 409.4 caosh fiows Estimated future rent (%) 2%, — A%, 3%
Discount rate {yield) {%) 4.6% - 52% 4.8%
Major provincial Discounted Net rental income (£ per week| £95-£148 £120
-rental properties 4311 cash flows Estimated future rent (%) 1%- 6% 4%
Discount rate yield) (%) 5.2%-70% 58%
Other provincial Discounted Net rental income (£ per week) £77-£135 £117
- rental properties 183.% cash fiows Estimated future rent (%) 2% — 6% 4%
Discount rate {vield) (%) 58%-94% 6.3%
Muajor pravincial Discounted Estimated cost to complete (Em]  £9.4m — 47.6m £31.6m
- development properties 94.2 cash flows Estimated future rent (%) 3% 3%
Discount rate (yield) (%] 52%-58% 56%
Other provincial Discounted Estimated cost to completa (£Em) £8.9m-£10.5m £10.1m
- development propertias 55.6 cash flows Estimated futwe rent (%) 3% 3%
Discount rate [vield) (%) 58% - 5.9% 59%
Fair valye of 31 December 2015 1,174.2

A decrease in net rental income, estimated future rents or occupancy will result in o decrease in the far value, whereas a decrecse in
the discount rate (ylelkd} or the estimated costs to complete will result in an increase in ok value. There ore interrelationships between
these rates as they are partially determined by market rate conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Secfion 3: Asset management continued

3.2 Inventories
2018 ;s
em £m
Interests in land 08 0.9
Other stocks 21 27
Invenlories 29 3.4

At both 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 the Group only has interests in one piece of land.

3.3 Other non-curent assels

Accounting policies

Property. plant and equipment

Other than iand and buikdings: property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and mposment
losses (see below]. Land and buidings are stated at fair value on the some basis as investment properties. Property, plont and
equipment mainly comprise leasehoid improverments at the Group's head office and London office as well as computer harchware:
and software at thase sites.

Depraciotion is charged to the income staternent on a siraightine basis over the estimated useful ives of lems of property,
plant and equipment. Freehcld land is not depreciated. The estimated useful ves are as folows:

> Leasehold improvemeants Shorier ife of lease and economic e
> Qther ossetls 4-20 yecrs
Intangible assets

Intangible assets predominately comgrise intemally developed computer soltware which allows customers to book online and
procasses fransactions within the soles cycle. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct kabour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Expenditure on research octivities is recognised in the income statement as an expense
incumred, 201 6; £NI, (2015: £Nil). The assets are armodised on @ straight-ine basis over 4 fo 7 years being the estimaled useful lives
of the intangible ossets, from the date they are ovaiable for use. Amartisation is charged to the incorme staternent within
aperating expenses.

The Group's other non-current assats can be analysed as follows:

2016 D15
Peopacty, phant Inlangible Proparty, plont Intangibie:
and equipmant auet tolat  ond equipment assals Tolal
tm tm tm £m £m £m
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 18.9 a3t 520 148 25.4 40.2
Additions an a2 1.3 4.1 2.7 118
At 31 December 20 41.3 433 189 330 520
Depreciation, amortisalion and
Impokment losses
At 1 January 4 141 275 8.2 14.7 249
Depreciation/amartisation charge
for the year 14 28 44 1.2 1.4 246
Impament® 1.6 - 1.6
At 31 December 12.4 209 335 9.4 18.1 275
Camying volue at 1 January %5 150 24.5 6.5 8.7 15.3
Canying amount of 31 December 2.4 20.4 2.8 .5 15.0 24.5

* Being wiite down of leasehokd rmprovements on varikahon of lease.

Intangible assets inciude £3.9 milion (2015: £10.1 million} of assefs not being amortised as they are not yet ready for use. Property, plant
and equipment assets inciude £1.tm [2015: £ni) of assets not being depreciated as they ore not ready for use. At 31 December 2016
the Group had capilal comrritrnents amounting 1o £1.0 rilion relating o intangitle assets and £1.8m redating Yo Proerty, Plant &
Equipment.
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Secftion 3: Assel management confinued
3.4 invesiments in joint ventures (Group)

Accounling policles

Joint ventures ore those enfities over whose activiies the Group has joint confrol, established by contractual ogreement, The
corsclidated financial staterments include joint ventures inifially at cost subsequently increased or decreased by the Group's share of
total gains and losses af joint ventures on an equity basis. Interest free joint venture investment loans are initicly recorded ot far value
- ihe difference between the nominal amount and fai value being treated as on investment in the joint venture. The implied
discount s amaortsed over the contracted life of the nvestment loan.

The Directors consider that the agreements integral to its joint ventures resuit in the Group having joint control: a significant degree
of judgement is exercised in this assessment due to the complexity of the contractual arangements.

USAF and LSAV are jointly owned entities that are accounted for as joint ventures. Due to the complexity of the confractual
arangements and Unite's role as manager of the joint venhsre vehicles, the assessment of joint control following changes to
accounting stondards {IFRS10) involves judgements around a numicer of significant foctors, These foctors include how Unite as fund
manager has the ability to direct relevant activities such as acquisitions, disposals, capital expenditure for refurbishments and funding
whether through debt or equity, This assessment for USAF is complex because of the number of unitholders and how thek rights are
representad through an Advisory Committee. For some of the activities it & not clear who has definitive control of the activities, i
some scenanos the Group can control, in others the Advisory Committee. However, for the octivities which are considered to have
the greatest impoact on the relums of USAF, acquisitions and equity financing. it has been detemmined that the Group and the
Advisory Committee has joint power in direcling these activities ond that on balance. it is appropriate fo account fos USAF as a joint
venture. The assassment for LSAY is more straightforword because the Group and GIC each own 50% of the joint venture and there
is therafore much clearer evidence that control over the key aclivities b shared by the two parties.

|oUDUISACE BIICdICD

The Graup has two joint ventures:

Group's sharg
ol ossets/resuils Lol ety iy which
oir) veriure D18 (2015 Otyecive Partnes Group has Inferest
The UNITE UK Student 24.6%" (23.0%) Invest and operate Consortium of investors UNITE UK Student
Accommadation Fund student accommodation Accommodation Fund,
{USAF) throughout the UK a Jersey Unit Trust
London Student 50% (50%) Develop and operate  GIC Reol Estate Pte, Lid  LSAV Unit Trust, a Jersay Unit
Accommaodation Veniure student accammodation in Reclestate  Trust and LSAV {Hokdings)
{L3AV] London investment vehicle  L1g, incoporated in Jersey
of the Govermment
of Singopore

* Port of the Group's Interest s hetd through a subsidiary, USAF (Feeder} Guemsey Lid, inwhich there i on extemal investor. A minority interest therefore
oceuws on consoldation of the Group™s results representing the exdemal investor's share of profits and assets relaling to ifs Investment in USAF,
The ordinary shareholGers of The Urite Group pic are benehicioly ntorested in 23.0% [2015: 21.4%) of USAF.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Section 3: Asse! management continued
3.4 Invesiments in joint ventures (Group) continued

d) Net assets and results of the joint ventures
The surmmarised balance sheets and results for the yeaor, and the Group's share of these joint ventures are as follows:

THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2814

2014
USAF 15AY Tokal
I tm tm

Gross Share Grom Share Gross Showe
Investment property 2287.9 5621 1,009 504.5 32969 1.066.6
Cash 418 10.3 270 135 488 238
Debt (755.5) (185.4) {381.4) {19%0.7) (1.136.9) {374.3)
swap liabilities 0.7 02 7.1} 3.5 (6.4) {3.3)
Other curent assets as 0.8 08 04 43 1.2
Cther curent kabilities (55.3) (11.7) (14.8) {7.4) (70.1) {19.1)
Net assets 1.523.1 3761 633.5 3168 2,1546.5 5929
Profit {loss) for the year 184.7 45.3 97.0 435 2417 94.8
EPRA net assets 1,547.1 s 540.6 3203 2.207.7 4724
2015

USAF LSAvV Told
e M £m £m

Gross Share Gross Shore Gross Share
tnvestment property 20742 477.4 894.4 4472 2.948.6 924.6
Cash 366 8.4 28.4 14.2 450 226
Debt {638.3) {146.9) (336.00 (168.0) (974.3} 1314.9)
swap kabilities - - 3.9 (2.0) 3.9) {2.0)
Other cument assets 1.9 05 10 0.5 29 1.0
COther curent liabfities {662} (11.6) {18.2) 9.4 [84.4) (20.7}
Net assets 1,408.2 3278 565.7 2828 1,973.9 610.6
Profit/(loss) for the year 234.3 63.7 236.1 118.1 4704 181.8
EPRA net assefs 1,408.2 305.3 569.8 284.8 1,977.8 5901

Net assets ond profit for the year gbove include the minority interest, whereqs EPRA net assets exclude the minority mterest.



THE UNITE GROUP PLC AMNUAL REFORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014 135

'_l‘l'_
g
g
o
§
Section 3: Assel management confinuved
3.4 invesiments in joint veniures {Group) continued
b) Movemant in canying value of the Group's invasimends in joinl venhures
The camying volue of the Group's investment in joint ventures has increased by £82.3 milion during the yeor ended 31 December 2016
{2015; £226.8 milion}, resulting in an overal camying value of £492.% milion {2015: £610.6 milion). The following table shows how the
increase has been achieved,
276 015
m Em
Recognised in the Income stalement:
Operations segment resuil 294 234 0
Minarity interest share of Operations segment result 12 1.2 g
Management fee adjustment relaled to troding with joint venture 5.4 4.1 §
Net revaluation gains 58.8 152.7 g
Debt exit costs - - [+]
Loss on cancetation of interest rate swaps - c.3) g
Loss on disposal of properties - 0.3 3
QOther - 0.2 @
94.8 1818
Recognised in aquity:
Movement in effective hedges (1.4 0.6
Other adjusiments to the canying value:
Profit adjustment related to trading with joint venture (8.3) {11.9)
Increase in ican to USAF - 305
Additional capital invested in USAF - 29.1
Performance fee units issued in USAF 256 -
Additional capital invesied in LSAV - 233
USAF performance fee na {3.7)
Distributions received (292) (22.9)
Increase/{decrease} in carmying value 823 224.8
Canmying value af | Jonuary 4108 k:<¥:)
Canying value a 31 December 492y 610.6
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 3: Asset managemeni confinved

3.4 Invesiments In joint ventures (Group) confinued

b} Mavement in carvying vaiue ol the Group's investmends in joint veniures conlinved

In addition to its equity shares, the Group has ako provided inlerest froe investment loans o some of the joint ventures. These were
primaxily provided on the selting up of the joint venture 1o provide capital 1o acquire investment properties. As a result of being
provided interest free, the loans were discounted on recognition to reflect the fair vake, the unwinding of the discount is reflected
n the Group's finonce income.

<) Transactions with joint venhures

The Group acts as asset and property manager for the joint ventures ond receives management fees in retation to these services.
In addition, the Group is entiied lo performance fees from USAF and LSAY if the joint ventures outperform certain benchrmonks,
The Group receives on enhanced equity inferest in the joint ventures as consideration for the performonce fee. The Group has
recognised the following fees in its resulis for the year.

2014 25

m im

USAF 128 85
LSAV a0 4.7
Asset and propery management fees® 208 13.2
LSAV 1.0 1.4
Developrment management fees 1.0 14
USAF performance fee a1 254
USAF acquisition fee 0.5 21
Invesiment maonagement leas™ 8.4 7.7
Total fees 30.3 2.3

* 2016 Asset and property management fees are shown grass, 2015 Asset ond property management fees are shown as reported. net of rading
with joint ventures. The equivalent gross Ggures In 2015 ware £10 7m for USAF and £6.6m for LSAV.

** Included In the mavermant in EPRA NAV i a USAF parformance fee of £6.5 mition {2015: £20.2 milkon). This [s the gross fee of £8.1 mikon {2015;
£25.6 milion) poidt by USAF net of adviscry fee costs of £0.5 milion (2015 £2.2 millon) and a £1.1 millon (2015: £3.2 rriion) adiustment rekled lo
trading with jomt ventures. The USAF perforrmance fee will be seftied in unifs in The UINITE UK Student Accommaodanon Fund rather than cash.
Ful detalts of the USAF performonce fees are sel out in the Simategic Report on pages 1 1o 49,

Included in share of joint venture profitin the incomae stotement s a share of joint venture property management fee costs of

£1.6 million (2015: £1.4 milion}. On an EPRA basis these costs are deducted from the property management fees shown above, plus
an odjusiment for the minority interest of £0.4 rmilion [2015; £0.2 milian). This results in the net fees included in the Operating Segment
result (note 2.20} of £14.0 milllon (2015: £12.0 milion). Development management fees are ncluded in the Property Segment result
[note 2.2a). Investiment management fees are included within the unaliocated to segments (note 2.2a).

Incluciad in the movement in EPRA NAY is o USAF property acquisifion fee of £0.4 mikion (2015: £1.7 milkon). This is the gross
fee of £0.5 miion (2015 £2.1 milion] paid by USAF net of o £0.1 milion {2015: £0.4 milion} adjustment related to frading with
joint ventures.

During the yeaor the Group has paid operating lease rentals io USAF relating 1o two properbes under o sale and leaseback
agreemeant amounting to £2.2 milion (2015: £2.7 milkon}.
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Section 3: Asset management confinved

3.4 Invesiments in joint ventures (Group) confinued

¢) Transactions with joint ventures condinued

During the year the Group sold two properties to USAF for £88.4 miion. Both properties were held on the balance sheet as investment
properfy under development within non-current assels, the proceeds and carmying value of the property are therefore recognised in
profit on disposal of property and the cash fiows in investing activities. One property was sold to LSAV in 2015. The profils relating to
sales and ossociated disposal costs ond related cash flows ore set out below:

Pro#t and kose Proft and 1css
26 015
(3AY (SAV
£m £m 8
Included in property sales and other income [net of joint venture trading adjustment} - 7.2 §
Inchuded in cost of sales - {70.1) g
Profit on dispascl of property - 7.1 b
%
I+
Prolt and loss Brofd gred ks 2
N6 15 o
USAF USAF
£m
Included in profit on disposal of praperty (et of joint venture trading adjustment) 3.2 -
Profit on cliposal of property 32 -
Cash flow Cash flow
016 D15
LSAV LSAV
tm £m
Proceeds - 843 =
Net cash fiows included In cash flows from operaling activiies - 84.3 #
Cawh flow Cash flow T
016 015 -
SAF USAF
em £mn
Gross proceeds 88.4 -
Net cash flows inciuded in cash flows from investing activies 884 -

Q
H
2
]
g
g
po |
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Secfion 3: Asset management confinved
3.5 investments in subskiiaries (Company)

Accouniing policies .
in the financial statements of the Company, nvastments in subsidiaries are hekd at far value. Changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and presented in the revaluation reserve in equity.

Canying value of nvesiment in subsidiories
The movernants in the Company's ntarest in uniisted subsidianes ond joint ventures during the year are g; follows:

Kreesiment i SUDSIONSS

w8 Tis

m )
At 1 January &448.3 4120
Revaluation 771 236.3
A} 31 December 726.4 648.3

The carmmying value of investment in subsidianes ks been calculkated using the equity atirbutable to the owners of the parent
company from the consolidated balance sheel adjusted for the far value of fixed rate loans and properties under deveicpment. This
includes investment property, investment property under development and swaps at a far value colculated by a third party expert.
Allinvestment properties and investment properties under development are classified as Level 3in the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy and
have been discussed on page 29, The fixed rote loans range befween Level 1 ond Level 2in the IFRS 13 farr vaiue hierarchy and
have been discussed further on poge 129,

In addition o the equity investment in subsidiaies and joint ventures, the Compony has provided o loan with inferest chorgeable ot
6.125% to LDC {Hokdings) pic. The camying value of the oan to LDC {Holdings) pic was £90.0 milion {2015: £90.0 milion). A further foan
of £89.9 milkon {2015: £89.9 millon} was provided fo LDC [Holdings) plc with interest chargeable ot 5.0%,

A Full list of the Company's subsidiaries and joint ventures can be found in note 7.
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Section 4: Funding

The Group finances iis development and investiment activities through a mixture of retained eamings, borowings and
o equily. The Group confinuously monttorn lis financing arangements to manage s gearing.

intered rale swaps are used o manage the Group's iisk fo fluctuations in interest rate Movements.

The following poges provide disclosures about fhe Group's funding posilion, inchuding borowings, gearing

and hedging instrumenis; s exposure 1o market risiks; and s capital monogemant policies.

4.1 Bomowings

Accounling policies

Inferest bearing borowings are recognised initially of fair value, less attribulable fransaclion costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
inlerest bearing borowings are stated at amartised cost with any difference between cost and reclemplion value being recognised
in the income statement aver the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

On 10 October 2013 the Group issued a convertible bond, The unsecured instrurment pays a coupon of 2.5% untl 10 Cctober 2018.

In accordance with IFRS, the equity and debt components of the bond are accounted for separately and the fair value of the debt
component has been delermined using the market interest rate for an equivalent non-converlible bond. As a resull, £80.3 million was
recognised s a fiabiity in the balance sheet on ssue and the remainder of the proceeds, £7.6 milion. which rapresents the equity
component, was credited 1o reserves. Tne difference betwean the fair value of the liabiity and the principal value is amortised
through the income statement from the date of ssue. Issue costs of £2.0 million were allocated between equity and debt and

the element refating fo the debt component is being amor—tised over the life of the bond. The issue Costs apportioned to equity

of £0.2 mikon are not amorised.

The tabie betow analyses the Group’s borowings which comprise bank and other loans by when they fall due for payment:

Group Comporny
2016 2015 014 D15
Camying Commg Camying Caming
vaue Fal volue vaiue Fow vohua vale wohs
tm tn £m £m m &m
Cunent

In one year or less, or on demand 1.3 1.2 31.3 31.2 a1 1.4

Non-current
In morg than one year but not more than two yeors 108.1 1322 1.5 1.4 B5.3 -
In move than fwo years but not more than five years 124.3 1258 22 240.4 0.0 830
In mare than five yeors 2391 2220 240.1 225.5 - 90.0
4735 481.0 4438 447.3 1753 1730
Total borowings 474.8 4622 4751 498.5 175.4 174.4

In addition to the borrowings cumently drawn as shown above, the Group has avaiabie undrown faciiities of £245.0 mifion
{2015: £174.0 million). A further overdraft faciity of £10.0 milken (2015: £10.0 milion) is also availoble.

The conying value of bomowings s considered fo be approximate to fair vaiue, excepf for the Group's fixed rate loans camied

at £330.3 milion (2015: £331.4 milkon) and the convertible bond comed at £86.2 milion {2015: £84.3 milion). The convertible bond and
£30.0 mikon {2015: £90.0 million) of the fixed rate loans are classified as Level 1in the IRRS 13 fair value hierarchy and have a fair value
of £2V2.5 million (2015: £218.4 milion}, The IFRS 13 Level categorisation relates to fhe extent the far value can be defermined by
reference to comparable market vales, The classifications range from Level 1 where instruments are quoted on an active market
through to Level 3 where the assumptions used 1o anmve al fair value do not haves comparable market data,

The remaining £240.3 milion [2015: £241.4 milion] of the fixed rate loans are classfied as Level 2 in the IFRS 13 fak value hierarchy.
The far value of these fixed rate loans has been cakculated by a third party expert discounting estimated future cash flows on
the bask of market expectations of Juture interest rates. The foir value of these loans s £215.1 million (2015: £226.4 mition].

Properties with a camying value of £998.0 milion (201 5: £993.6 milion) have been pledged as security against the Group's drown
down bormowings.

Hodal 2Bsiong

BouDUWBAOD 80100070
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 4: Funding continved

4.2 Intevest rate swaps

The Group uses interest rate swaps to manoge the Group's exposure to nterest rate fluctuations. In accordance with the
Group's reasury policy, the Group does not hold or issue interest rate swaps for frading purposes and only holds swaps which
ore considered 10 be commercially effective.

Accounfing policies
Interest rate swaps are racognised nifialy and subsequentty at fair value, with mark te market moverments recognised in the incorme
statement unless cash flow hedge accounting s applied.

Hedpe accounting, as defined in IFRS, s when the interest rate swap is designated as the hedging instrument in o hedge of the
varabity in cash flows attribulabile to the nterest rsk of borowings. The effective portion of changes ¥ far value of the infevest rote
swap is recognised in other comprehensive ncome and presented in the hedging reserve in equity. Any ineffective porfion of
changes in the far value of the interest rate swap s recognised immediately in profit or 1oss. The Group only applies hedge
accounting when the hedge s expected to be highly effective,

When g hedging instrument or hedge reiationship i terminated but the hedged ransaction & stit expected to occur, the cumulative
gan or koss at that point remains in equity with any subsequent movements in far vaive taken to tha income statement. if the
nedged fransaction is no longer probable, the cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised in equity is recognised in the income
statement immediately.

the tar value of nierest rate swaps s the estimated amount that the Group would receive or pay fo terminate the swap at the
balarce sheet date, taking into account curent interest rates and the cument credit worthiness of the swap counterparties.

The following tatlde shows the far value of interest rate swaps:

% 218

Im Em

Curent ' - -
Non-cument B _ 11.6 23
Falr value of interest rale swaps 11.4 23

The fair volues of interest rate swaps have been calculated by a thikd porly expen, discounting estimated futwe cash fiows onthe
bass of market expaciations of future interest ratas, representing Level 2 in the IFRS 13 far value hierarchy.

4.3 Net financing cosis

Accouniing policles
Net financing costs compiise interest payable on borowings less interest receivable on funds nvested [both calcukated using the
effective interest rate method) and gains and iosses on hedging mstument that are recognised in the income statement.
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Section 4:; Funding continued
4.3 Net financing cosis continued
8 WS
Recognited in the income siatement: £m £m
Finance income
- interast income on deposit ©.1) 0.2}
Finance income 0.1) 0.2)
Gross interest expense on loans 268 253
Interest copitalised 7 {5.9 (2.7) 8
Loan interest and similor charges 20.9 24 '§
Changes in mark to merket of interest rate swaps not accounted for as hedges - 0.6 8
Swap cancelation costs 1.0 - g
Anance cosls 21.9 232 3
2
Net financing costs 218 230 a9

The average cost of the Group's wholly owned investment debt at 31 December 2016 & 4.4% (2015: 4.7%). The overall average cost
of investrment debt on an EPRA basis i 4.2% (2015: 4.5%).

4.4 Gearing
The Group's odiusied gearing rofio s @ key indicator thot the Group uses to monage s indebtedness, EPRA net asset value [NAV)
and adpusted net debot ore used 10 calculate adjusted gearng. Adjusted net debt excludes mark to market of interest rate swaps
as shown below,

The Group’s gedring ratios are calcukated as follows:

x1s 05
Nole: tm £m
Cosh and cash equivalents 3.1 2.7 27.0
Current borowings 4.1 .3) 31.3
Non-curent bomewings 4. (472.5) {443.8)
Interest rate swops liabklties 42 {11.6) (2.3)
Net debt per balance sheet (442.7) (450.4)
Moark to market of interest rate swaps 1.6 2.3
Adjusied net debl {(432.1) (448.1)
Reported net asset vae (atirbutable to owners of the parant company) 23 1451.4 1.275.1
EPRA net assel value 2.3¢ £.557.3 1,394.4
Q
Basic [Nel debt/Reporied net asset volue) 3% 35% g,
Adjusted gearing (Adjusted net debt/EPRA net asset value) 28% 3% §
Gearng (EPRA net debt/EPRA net asset value) 2.3a 25,3 S52% =
Loan 1o value {EPRA net debi/Total property portfolio) 2.3 4% 35% >
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Secfion 4: Funding continved

4,5 Financiladl risk factors

The Group’s activities expase it 1o a vanety of financial risks: market risks — primarily interest rate risk, credit risk and bquidiity risk.
The Group's freasury palicy focuses on the unpredictabiity of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance. Detalls on credt risk can be found in note 5.3.

a} Interest rabe rskc
interest rale risk i5 the: risk that the Group s impocled by signficant changes in interest rates. Bomowings sswed at of swapped
to floating rates expose the Group fo interest rate risk. The Group's policy i separated into two main areas:

[} Development ond refinancing
The Group had no specific development tramowings as at 31 December 2014 {2015: £nil).

The Group's principal exposure to interest rate fluctuations during developrment relates 1o moverments in longer terrm interest ratas
which affect the amount of debt the property income 5 capable of servicing at compietion. Significant odverse movements
undermine the Group's abiity 10 relecse equity from its developments.

The Group will continue ta review the ievel of its hedging in the light of the cument low interest rale environment. The Group's policy
allows this exposure 1o be mancged through the use of forward starting swaps.

1) Medium ond long-tem fincomce

The Group holds its medium and kong-term bank finance under both flooting and fixed rale amangements. Tha maijority of this floating
debrt is hedged thvough the use of nterest rate swap ogreements, although not all these arangements qualify for hedge accounting
under 1AS 39. During 2016, the Group's policy guideine has been to hedge 75% and 75% of the Group's exposure for terms of
approximatety 2-10 years.

At 31 December 2016, after taking account of interest rate swaps, 100% (2015: 87%) of the Group's medium and long-termn investment
bormowing was heid ot fixed rates. Excluding the £92.9 milfon {2015 £1.7 milion) of swaps the fixed investment bomowing is at an
average rate of 4.4% (2015 4.4%) for an average period of 5 years {2015: 6 years), including these swaps the average rate s 4.2%
(2015: 4.6%].

The Group haokds interest rate swaps at 31 December 2014 against £92.9 milion (2015: £1.7 million] of the Group's borowings.
The maturity of these swaps and the applicable interest rates ore as follows:

ame 00 015 15

Nominal Appicable ominal Apphcaole

amount hedged Inferast rdes  amount hecged ntenes! rores

'™ «“ £m %

Wwithin one year - - - -
Between one and two years - - - -
Between two and five years ATS 18 - -
Mora than five years 453 22 1.7 3.6

During the yeor, if interest rates had increqased/decreased by 1%, pre-tax profit for the year would have been £0.6 milion
|2015: £0.7 mikon) lower/higher.

b) Uguiciity risk

Liquidity risk is the sk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial cbigetions as they fall due. For developmen octivities. the
Group has a policy toinject substantially the full armount of equity required for each development befare drawing debt agairst the
specific faciify for the deveiopment. The funding requirements of each scheme are therefore substantialy ‘ring-fenced” and secured
at the outset of works.

The tabie below andalyses the Group's financial fabiities and interest rate swops into relevant maturity groupings based on the period
reraining until the confraciual maturity dafe. The amounts disclosed in the table ore the confraciual undicounted cash flows
{including interest), so wil not atways reconcie with the amounts dsclosed on the balance sheet,
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Section 4: Funding confinued
4.5 financial risk factors continued
b) Liquidity risk condinued
2016
Tolol conleachual Lam thon Batwoen Bobwosn Ovar
cash lows 1y 1 and 2 years Z2and 5 yean Syecrs
£m tm £m tm £m
Bank and other loans* 4902 177 40.9 1728 256.8
Convertibie bonds 938 22 1.6 - -
Trade ard other payables 1237 1237 - - -
g
interest rate swaps - eftective 15.7 o8 27 82 4.0 g
Interast ate swaps —ineffective - - - - - g_
7234 1464 1352 1810 260.8 §
2005 g
a
Total contractuct Lass than Between Batweaen Onver §
cash flows 1 yacr 1 and 2years 2and 5yeas 5 yecws
£m £m £m £m £m
Bank and other loans® 509.3 50.3 19.6 1705 2679
Convertibke bongs 96.1 2.2 22 9.7 -
Trade ond other payabies 115.5 1155 - - -
Interest rate swaps — eflective 2.1 03 0.6 44 34
Interest rate swaps — ineffective - - - - -
730.0 168.3 224 268.0 213

* The coniractual undiscounted cashilows INClucke £108 8m (2015 £114 3m] in relahon to the Compaony.

During 2013 the Group issued £89.9m of convertible bonds. The bonds have a maturity date of 10 October 2018, Under the tenms

of the Convertible Bond, earty conversion of the debt inte equity can be triggered if the share price frades over 1.3 times the
conversion price for o period of fime. As at 31 December 2016 this threshold has not baen friggered. This threshokd was Inggered as at
31 December 2015; the bondholders had the right to exercike until 31 March 2016; no bondholders exercised during this period. The
bendrolders may exercise the Conversion Right in certain creumstances discussed above but this is contingent on a number of
factors and theretore the bonds are shown o maturity in the above disciosure.

¢) Covenant complionce

mMany of the Group's funding facilifies camy covenants. The Group monitors its covenant position and the headreom avaiable on
an ongoing basis. At 31 December 2014, the Group was in full compliance with all of its borowing covenacnts. The Group is able to
use avaikable cash to reduce debt fo increase headroom on its loan 1o vaiue (LTV) covenants. The covenant headroom position
is outined below and assumes that the Group is able to use a mixture of available cash and add additionol property to banks'

security pools.

31 December 2014 31 Dacember X1 & g
weighted wWeighted Wenghiad waghted ]
covendant achual covenanit octua =1

Loan to value 4% 15%* 74% % g
Interast cover 15 404 1.47 447 _g,
Minimurm net worth - - £250m £1,394 g8

* Caolcuigted on the bass that avallable cash s used 1o reduce debt and available property con be used os additional securty.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Secfion 4: Funding continved

4.5 Operaling leases
a) Payable

Accouniing poliches

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a straight- line basi over the temm of the lease.
Leqsa incentives roceived are racognised in the ncome staterment as anintegrat part of the total lease expense. wWhere the property
interest under an operafing lease is Classified as an investment property, the property interest s accounted for as if it were a finance
lease and the far valye model & used for the asset recognised.

The Group hos a number of sale and leaseback propertias which are accounted for as operating leases.

The total future minimum lease rentals payable under noncanceliable operating leases fall due for repayment as follows:

2004 015

m £mn

Less than one year 138 147
Between one and five yeors 56.2 57.2
Maore than five yaars 171.0 154.5
Tolal 2410 226.4

These leases primarily relate to properties which the group has sold and leased back and on which rental income s eomed. The leases
are generaly lor periods between 13 and 18 years and subject to annual RPHbased rent review. The total operating lease expenditure
incurred duning the year was £15.3 milion (2015; £15.4 million).

b) Receivabie
The Group accounts for its tenancy contracts offered to commercial and individual tenants as operating leases. The future minimum
lease payments receivable under non-cancelioble operating leases are as follows:

0146 215

£m £m

Less than one year FrA 85.4
Between one and five years 140.4 124.3
More than five years 2672 28.7
Total 484.7 2364

4.7 Capital management
The capital siucture of the Group consists of sharehakders' equity and adjusted net debt, ncluding cash held on depaosit. The Growp's

equity 8 analvsed info its various Components in the Statement of Changes in Equity. The components and calculation of adjusted net
debt is set outin note 4.4, Capital & managed 50 as to continue as a geing concern ond to promote the long-term success of the
business and to maintain sustainable retums for shareholders and joint venture pariners.

The Group uses a number of key mefnics 1o manage its capiial sructure:

adjusted net debf (4.4}

adjusted gearing (4.4

LTV [2.3a)

weighted averoge cost of investment debt (4.5qii)

VvV VY

In order to manage levels of adjusted gedring over the medium ferm, the Group seeks to deliver NAY growih and to recycle capital
invesled n lower parforming assets nto new assets and property developments. £132.4 milion of property assets were sold in 2016 ond
we plan to sell an averoge of £150— £200 milion of property each year. The Group targets a yield on cost of approximately $%. The
Group does not commil to developing new sites until sufficient equity and funding to fulfit the full cost of the development is secure.

The Board monitors the ability of the Group to pay dividends out of availabke cash and distributable profits. The Operations Segrment
generated cash of £61.3 millon {2015: £40.8 million] durng the year, thereby covering the proposed dividend of £40.0 milfon, 1.5 times
(203 5: £33.2 milbon, 1.2 times).
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Section 4: Funding confinued

4.8 Equity

Accounting policies

Ordinary shares are Classified as aquity, Bxternal Costs directly attributable to the ssue of new shares, other than on @ business

combinafion. are shown as a deduction, net of tax. in equity from the proceeds. Share issue costs incured directly in connection

with g business combination are deducted kom the proceeds of the issue.

The Company's issued share capital has increased during the year as follows: o
2

a4 . 15 g
Ordinary Shore Ordnary Share

Called up, dllofted and fully pald ordinary shares of £0.25p shaves Premmiom shares  Prermium &

each No. ol shcres tm fm Mo.of sheres £m £m Q

At start of year 221,930,911 555 4933 201,541,803 504 3858 g

Share placing - - - 20137326 50 107.3 g

Share options exercised ) 114,905 - 0.3 251,782 0.1 0.2 g

At end of year 222,047 8146 55.5 4936 221930911 55.5 4933

The hokders of ardinary shares ore entitied to receive dividends os deckred from fime 1o fime and are entitled to one vole per share
af meefings of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residuc! assets,

4.9 Dividends

Accounting policies
Dividendis ore recognised through equity on the earfier of their approval by the Company's shareholders or the payment.

During the year, the Company deciared and paki en interim dividend of £13.2 milion ~ 6.0p per share (2015: £12.1 million - 5.5p per
shote) and paid g £21.0 mitlion final dividend — 9.5p per share reiating 1o the yeor ended 31 December 2015 {2014: £19.8 million - 9.00
per share).

After ihe year end, the Drectors proposed a final gividend per share of 12.0p (2015 9.5p), binging the total dividend per share for the
yeor 10 18.0p (2015: 15.0p]. No provision has been made in relation to this dividend.

Q
=
3
=2
g
g
3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 5: Working capital

This saction focuses on how the Group generates iis operciing cash lows. Careful monogerent of working copltol j
o is vital to ensure that the Group con meed ks frading and financing obligations within s ordinary operaling cycle. ‘
On the following pages you will find disclosures around the Group's cash posifion and how cash is genercied from i
the Group's irading aciivilles, and disciosures around irade recelvables ond payables. '

5.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Accounting policles [
Cosh and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Cash equivalants are short-term, highty liquid investrnanis that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject fo an insignificant risk of changes in vaiue. Bonk overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integrol part of the Group 's cash manogement are inciuded as g component of cash
and cosh equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

The Group's cash position at 31 December 2016 was £42.7 miion {2015: £27.0 milion).
Al 31 December 2014 the Company had an overdraft of £0.1 milion [2015: overdroft £1.4 milkion).

The Groyp's cash balances include £13.4 milion (2015: £8.5 mifion) whose use af the balance sheet date is resincled by funding
agreements fo pay operating costs and loan interest relating to specific properties.

The Group generales cash from its operoting activities os follows:

Group Corpany
b 1Y 205 s - HH
Note £m £m tm £m
Profit/(\oss! for the year 2264 557 2138 2899
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 33 a4 246 - -
Fair value of shore based payments &.1 12 29 - -
Dividends received - - (130.3) 155.7)
Change in value of nvestment property 31 {77.2) {144.8) - -
Change in vaue of invesiments 3.5 - - 77 {236.3)
Net finance costs 43 ns 230 {0.3) [0.3)
{Profit) Noss on disposal of investment property (0.4} 0.6 - -
Share of joint venture profit 3.4b {94.8) [181.8) - -
Teading with joint venture odjustment 75 155 - -
Tox chorge/[crediil) _ 250 (25.0) 327 - -
Coash fliows from operating activilles before
changas in working capiial 639 86.4 (2.9) {24)
(Increose)/decrease in frade and other receivables (20.4) [39.6) - -
Decrease/|{increase) in completed property and property
under development - 70.1 - -
Decrease/(increqse) in inventories 97 Q.3 - -
increase/(decrecse) in rade and other payables 24.1 3.6 B 0.3 02
Cash flows from operoting aclivities 70.3 120.8 (2.6) (2.2)

£25.6 million of the brought forward trade and other receivables was seftied in units in the USAF rather than cash.

Cash flows consist of the following segmentat cash inflows/(outfiows): Operations £41.3 milion (2015: £40.8 million}, property

[£4.0 milion} (2015; [£48.3 milion}} and unallocated {£39.6 miion) [2015: £6.% milon). The unallocated amount includes Group
dividends (£34.2 milion) [2015; {£31.9 miion)). tax payable of (£2.2 milion] (201.5: (£0.3 milion)), investment in joint ventures (£nd)
{2015; (£52.4 milion) |, contributions to UNITE Foundafion {£1.0 milfion) {2015: (£1.0 mikion]} and amounts received from shares ssued
£0.3 rrillion {2015: £112.6 milion).
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Section 5: Working capital confinved
5.2 Trade and othes receivables
Accounting policies

Trade receivabies are initially recognised at the amount invoiced to the custorner [far value! and subsequently at the amaunts
considered recoverable {amorised cost). Estimates are used in determining the level of receivabies that will not, in the opinion of

the Board, be collected. These estimates inckude such factors as historcal experdience and industry specific factors. A provision for
impaiment of frade receivables is establshed when there is sufficient evidence that the Group will not be able to cofiect al amounts
due. The camying value of frade receivables s considered to approximate far value.

Trade and other receivables can be analysed os follows, all frade and other receivables are cument.

3
§
:
§

Group Company
% 2015 014 D15
tm £m tm £m
Trade receivabies 178 23 - -
Amounts due from group undertakings - - 686.4 639.3
Amounts owed by joint ventures 363 417 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 84 7.1 - -
USAF performance fee 8.1 256 - -
Other receivobles 7.3 6.3 - -
Trade and other receivables 77.% 830 686.4 639.3

The USAF performance fee wi be setfled in unils in USAF.

The Group offers tenancy contracts o commercial (Universities and retail unit tenants) ond individual tenants based on the academic
year. The Group monitors and manages the recoverabiity of its receivables based on the academic year to which the amounts
relate. Renkal ncome is payable immediotely, therefore all receivables relating 1o tenants are past the payment due date.,

18
AQeing by academic yeor
Tolat DUNT WENG Price yeas
m £m tm Zm
Rental deblors
Commercial tenants (past due and impaired) 0.4 0.3 0.1 -
Individual tenants [past due and impaired) 188 174 0.9 0.5
Provisions camied (r4) [e.1) (0.8) {0.5)
Trade receivables 17.8 174 0.2 -
1S
Ageing by ocaderme yecr o
Totat 21518 014015 Prior yaars ¥
£m Em £m £m g
Rental deblors %
Commercial tenants [past due and impaired) 0.8 0.4 Q.1 a1 3
Individual tenants [past due ond impaired} 3.4 1.9 Q7 1.0 %
Provisions camed (2.1) 0.4) {0.6) (1.1] o
Trade recelvables 23 21 02 -

Amounts receivabile from joint ventures are not post due or impared.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Secfion 5: Working capital continved

5.2 Trade and olher receivables continued
Movements in the Group's provision for impairment of rade receivabigs can be shown as follows:

2016 LS

tm £m

At 1l January 21 1.7
Impaiment charged 1o income statermant n yeor 0z 0.4
Receivables written off during the year |utiisation of provision) (1.4} -
At 31 Dacember 1.4 21

5.3 Credil risk

Credit risk & the risk of financial loss to the Group if a cusiomer or counterporty 1o a financial instrument foik fo meet its contraciuoi
obiigations. It arises principatly from the Group's cosh balances, the Group's receivables from customers and joint ventures and loans
provided to the Group's joint ventures,

At the year end, the Group’s exposure o credit risk was as folows:

2016 15

Note: tm £m

Cash 51 42.7 270
Trade receivables 52 178 23
Amounts due from joint ventures (exchuding kaxgans that are copital in notwee) 5.2 343 41.7
96.8 no

a) Cash
The Group operates investment guidelines with respect to supius cash., Counterparty Imifs for cash deposits are kargely based upon
long-term rafings published by credit rating agencies ond credit defauit swap rates.

b) Trade receivables

The Group's customers can be split into two groups — {i) students (individuols) ond [} commercial organisations including Universities.
The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced by the characteristics of each customer. The Group holds tenant depaosits of

£8.5 million (2015; £7.8 milion) as collateral against individual customers. Based on the Group's expefience and historical low level
of bad debt the Group views these receivabies as recoverable balances with a low risk of default.

¢} Joint ventures
Amounts receivable from joint ventures foll into two categories — working capital balances and investrment loans. The Group has
strong working relafionships with its joint venture partners therefore view this as o low credit risk bolonce.,

5.4 Trade and other payables

Accourling policies
Trade payables are inifially recognised at the value of the invoice received kom o suppler (far value) and subsequently at amaortised
cost. The camying value of frade payables § considered approximate to far value.

frade and other payabiles due within one year can be anatysed as follows:

Group Compary
F1 2015 2004 M
m £m &m £rm
Trade payabies 158 207 - -
Retentions on construction contracts for properties 58 4.4 - -
amounts due to group undertokings - - 1.3 58.2
Other payables and accrued expenses 458 525 a0 27
Defemed income o 55.3 377 - -
Trade ond other payobles 1237 1155 43 409

Other payable and accrued expeanses include £8.5 milion (2015: £7.8 milkion) in refation to customer deposits. These will be retumed at
the end of the tenancy subject 1o the condition of the accommodation and payment of any outstanding amounts. Deferred income
redales to rental income that has been collected in advance of it being recogrised as revenue.
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Section 5: Working capital continved

5.5 Transactions with other group companies

During the yedr, the Company entered into vanous inferest free loans with its subsidiaries, the aggregate of which are disclosed in
the cash flow statement. In addition, the Company was charged by Unite Integrated Solutions pic for corporate costs of £2.5 mifion
{2015; £2.3 milion).

As a resutt of these inlercompany transactions, the following amounts were due (fo}/from the Company's subsidiaries at the year end.

016 D15
£m £m

Unite Holdings pic 70.7 103.7 o
LDC {Holdings) pic $15.7 534.6 Q
UNITE Jersey Issuer Lid - 10 ¥
Amounts due from Group underiakings §86.4 4393 §
o]
Unilodge Hokding Lid - 158.2) ‘i
Unilodge Holdings (UK) Lig - - §
L_J_N_ITE Jeney Issuer Lid o .3) - @

Amounts due to Group underakings 0.3 (58.2)

The Company has had a number of transactions with its joint ventures, which are disclosed in note 3.4c.

The Company has guaranteed £121 milion of its subsidiory companies' bomowings (2015: £121 milion). The guarantees have been
entered into in the nomal course of business. A liability would only arise in the event of the subsidiary fafing to fulfil its contractual
obligations. These guarantees are accounted for n accordonce with IFRS 4.

9
=
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 4: Key management and employee benefits

’ The Group's grealest rescurce is Iis stalf and § works hard 1o develop ond retaln s people, The remuneration policies
4 o in place cre aimex to help recognise the conhrilbulion that Unle's pacpie make fo the performance of he Group.
* Over the next couple of pages, you will find disclosures on wages and salaries and share option schemes which allow

amployses of the Group 1o toke an equity inferast in the Group.
A

.1 Siaff numbers and costs
The avemage number of persons ermployed by the Group [including Directors) curing the year, analysed by category, was as follows:

Number of amplcyses

014 D15
Managerial and administrative 25 330
Site operatves 881 758
1,208 1,088

The oggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows:
M4 s
£m £m
Wages and sakaries 340 37s
Social secunty costs 36 3.5
USAF performance few borus - 2.2
Pansion Costs 1.2 1.1
Far vale of shore based payments 12 29
44.0 47.2

The wages and saknies costs include redundancy costs of £1.0 milkon [2015; £0.7 mikon).

Full details of the USAF perforrmnance fees ore set out in the Shategic Report on pages 1 10 49,

Accounling policles
The Group operales a defined contribution pension scheme. Oblgations for contributions o defined confribution pension plans are
recognised as an expense in the income staternent as incured.

6.2 Key management personned

The Board considers that the key management personnel within the Group are those appointed to the Boord. As such, the
remunerotion of key Mmanagernent persorinel is contained within the Remuneration Report on pages 84 to 95, which covers
tha requirements of sChedule 5 of the relevant legistation.
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Section 6: Key management and employee benefils continued
6.3 Share based compensation

A transaction i classified as o shaore based fransaction where the Group receives services from employees and pays for these
n shares or simiar equity instruments. The Group operates a number of share based compensation schemes allowing employees
to acquire shares in the Company.

Q) Shore schemes

The Group operates the following schemes:

Executive share option scheme — 'The Approved Scheme’ ], Detaik con be found in the Directors’
Executive share option scheme — ‘The Unapproved Scheme’ Remuneration Report

Executive Long-Tern incentive Pian (LTIP)

Save As You Eom Scheme (SAYE) Open 1o employees, vasting periods of three

to five years, service condition

Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) Used to award part of Directors' and senior
managers’ bonuses i shares, vest after three
years' continued service

b) Ouistanding share oplions
The table bekow summarises the maoverments in the number of share options outstanding for the Group ond their average
exercise pnce:

Number of hurnber of

Walghied average opllant  waghtec average ations

uxercies price (housonds) =arcse phce {thousanes)

X x4 2015 015

Outstanding at 1 January £0.1 2,774 £0.57 3618
Forfeited during the year £0.80 (495) £1.13 (168}
Exercised during the year £0.40 (845) £0.35 {1,337}
Granted duing the year £1.47 &79 £1.76 661
Outstanding at 31 December £1.32 2,113 £091 2774
Exercisable at 31 December £0.58 109

For those options exercised in the year, the average share price during 2016 was £6.24 [2015: £5.93).

For those opfions siil outstanding, the range of exercise prices at the year erd was 0p to §42p [2015: Op to 584p) and the weighted
average remaining coniraciuai ife of these options was 1.4 years (2015: 0.4 yeors).

The Group funds the purchase of its own shares by the 'Employee Share Ownership Trust” 16 meet the obigations of the LTIP and
executive bonus scheme. The purchases are shown as 'Own shares acquired’ in refained eamings. As at 31 December 2014 the
number of shares held by the ESOT was 1,145,592 {2015: 1,589,285).

The accounting is in accordance with the relevant standards. No further infarmation & given as the amounts for share based
payments are immaoterial.

Secfion 7: Events affer the balance sheet date

In the normal course of business subsequent fo the yeor end the Group completed one acquisition fransaction on ¢ February 2017
and one disposal fransactions on 17 February 2017 within investment Property and Investment Property hetd within its Investment in
joint ventures.
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BOUDWAAOE SjnIodD

R - R |

o
=
=
P

UCHDULIOW! IO



152

THE UMITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2818

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Section 8: Company subsidiarles and joint veniures

In accordance with Section 409 of the Companies Act 2006, a full list of subxsidicries ond equity accounted investments as at
31 December 2016 is disciosed below, Uniksss otherwise stated, the Group's ownership interest represents 100% of the ordinory shares,
units or porinership capital held indirectly by Unite Group ple. No subsidiory undertakings have been excluded from the consolidation.

Ragisiered office: The Core. 40 St Thormas Sireed, Brstol. BS1 8)X

Branchirm Limted

FZhadinge Proparas Lmiea

Hirernax Lrmed [03128294)™

Infolkrth L ted (04334263

LDC [AJB Warehouse) Limited

LDC (Alsoot Road) Lmited

LOC [Brunal House) Limiked {09750628)™

LDC [Camden Court Leasahaokd) Limiked (5140420
IBC (Comden Court} Limied {DR0B24711

DC (Captal Ches Nomines no, 1) Um#sd

O (Capral Ches Nomnee ng, 2} Urmited

LD (Captol Crhes Norfures No 3] Limead

LDC (Capstal Cries Nommee no, 4] Lmded

LDOC (Capdal Citfas) Lirted

LDC (Colsawayend) Linned

LDC {Chanlry Coust Lscashoia Umaexd (05140258
LDC [Chaucer Howse) Limvied (098590020,

LD (Conshiubon Steest) Lmied 09210798

LDC (Consiruchon Two) Jmiled (D4847268)

LDC (Curmon Shaef} Limited 1048282711

LDC {Eure Loon} Lmsied

LDC {Far Gostard) Limited (091501 49)=

LDC {Ferry Lone 2) GF 3 umned

WK (Femy Lone 23 GP 4 bimitect

LDC (Fery Lare 2) Holdings Lim ed

LDC {Anance) e

LDC. {Frogmaong Srpet) Limited™ 025089585

LDC (Gresinom Steet] Lrrtecd

LDC (G Suffok 51) Limtec Porinarshep

LDC (Gt Suttodk 51) Manogemen! Limsied Partnership
DC (Gt Suttok Sireel] GP Lrnited

LD (G Sutttlk Street} GP2 Limied

LOC (Gt Sutfolk Sreat) Holdngs Lirskac

LOC (Gt Suffole Siree] Management GPY Lmited
LDC {G1 Sulfolk Straed) Manogement GP2 Limited
UDC [Hompton Streed) Linted 1044 1 5998)™

LDC (Hihead) bmiled

LG {Hoidings] ALC”

LOC (Holoway Rood 3) imited (06330899)

LBC impenal What) Lamiled {04541478)*

LDC riamanonal Housal Limted | 101 21352)
DC [Jormes Watson Leasehokd) birmvted 037280261
IDC (Ketham band) imded (051 52220)*

WDC {Legsahoid A] Unded (C40&6733)™

LOC {iecseholkd B) Urmited: 1057 78242)™

LOC fLoughbarough) Lrfted

LDC (vagnef Court Leasehold) bimted {051 40255)™
EDC (Monshek GP1 Lnred

LDC (Mansieid) GP2 Lmifed

LDC {Mansheky) GP3 Limied (07434025)"

LDC {mansheid) GP4 Lmiked (0743401 7)™

DC (arsfieid) Umiled

LDC [Mansheld) Limied Parnership

LDC {Marstield) Management Lmited Partnershen
LD [(Margarst Rue Freehold) Limed (06641 265
{OC {Margoret Rule Leasshokd) Limited (066412615
LDC {Milennrm View | Limited) (09890375

LDC {MTF Porifoho) Limited

LDC {hawn Sirmet) GP 3 Limited
LDC (N Sreet} GP 4 Liveled

DG {Nam Sreel) Hokhngs LUmitea

LOC (Nenwgonte| imited [CBEF5847)"

LDC | New Wakefeid) bmied

DG [Gid Hosplial) Limvted (077021 43)™

LDC (Crdord Roaad Boumemouth) Urrted Q4407309
DC (Piwmnes) nded (05R18624)

LDC {Portioso 100) Lkt

LDC {Portioko 205 Limitad

LOC {Parrfolo Frae Namenee} Limried

LEXC {Portiolic Free) Lemtad (08079581

LOC [Portfoha Four Lmsted

LDC (Portiols One) Lrvted

LDC (Porttono Ter) Lirtad 0687751 71

LOC (Porticlo) Lmated

LOC {Prasect 110] rnited

LDC (Projact 111) bmited

LDC (Radmarsh Road ) Lmsked

LDC {Skeihome! Limsea (078781321

LOC (Smehfield) Lmiloo (O3373094)

LOC: (St Leonarnds} Limited (0BI95630}

LDC {5t Pancres wWay) GP1 Umided

LDC [5t Pancres Way| GP2 Unded

LDC {51 Pancras way) GP3 Umitec]

LDG (5t Pancras Way) GP4 Limded

LOC {51 Parenos way) Hokdngs Umited

LOC {5t Pancms Way] Umded Partnership

LOC 15 Pancrds Way) management Limited Porinersho:
LDC (5t Vincenis) Limited (102183101

LDC (Swrdan tNHS) Lerwked

LDC (fam Housa) Lrnited (09214177)*

LDC (Thurso Street] GP1 Limitad (07 99022}
LDC [Thurso Sheet] GP2 Urrred (07198979~

LOC {Thurso Sireet) GP3 Limvad 074340011

LOC {Thurso Sireat) GP4 imited {074341.33)*
LOC (Thurso Street) Limded Parnershp

LDC (Thurso Strest] Manogement Lrmited ParinensresD
LDC {vieniuro) bmited

LOC (vemon Squarel Limiked [064441.32

LDC ('Wilkar™ Moms ) Lieritect

LOC Coptal Cres "wo tGP} Lmnitad

Leodmil Raad GP Lrrted {06 164291

Lennon Stuckos Student Accammoaation Lmited
Pornershp

LSAV [angel Lane] GP3 Lnvled

LSAV [Angel Lane] GF4 Umifed

LSAV (Stratford) GP3 Lmided

L5AV (Strafford) GP4 Limited

LSAV (Wermbmery) GFJ Lamied

LSAV {WemDiey) G4 Limitad

LSAV Rent Colecion Umiled

LSAY [Stopieton) GP3 Limited

LSAV (Slapleton) GPé Limted

Royard GP Limded (0601 4485)

Rolyard Student Accommaodafion Lirndtexd Partnership
Stardesen! Lrivied

Tra UNITE Foundahon

Unite Accommadction Monagement 15 Lmited

0708131 4™
Urste Accommaodaton Mandagennent |7 Limitex
(08153228)~
Unite Accommexaaton Monogement 18 Limilad
{0B328484]

Utwie Accommodchon Management [ Lrried
Unile Accommodanon Manogement 2 Limved
Unite Accommodation Management 20 Umiied
Ur e ACCOmMMOSanon MONSgeent 4 Linied
{D44B6225)™

Unite Accammaodahon Management & Limied
Urie Accomimadahon Monagerment 8 mied
Urste AcCommiciahon AManagerment ¢ Limded
04190843

Urie Acconmodaion AMdanagement Lethed
Unvle ACCOmmodahon Monageas-en] One
Hundred plenitled

UNITE Capitcd Crkes Holdings Lirvied

UNITE Consiruchon {Angel Lane) bmited (0B792204)~
LMTE Consm.Chon [Stapetan) Lirmited (090273406, ™
LNITE Consinachon [Wembiey | Linnifed {D9C23474)*
Urwe Fnance Limiled” (04353051

UNITE finance One (Accommoadation Seraces) Limied
Urle Anonce One [Hokngs) Lmoed (G4H 8207,
UNITE Hnance One (Property] Umited £4303331)*
LITE £ Lirrbed (068075621

UNITE For Success Limsted

Urde Hoings Lig* (001 484481~

UNITE Homes Limded (051 40262

Unrie integrated Soluhons pic

Unita London Lemited

Uriti MOCUKE SCRnons Lmitag

Unile Reant Coachor: Uitvied 0508935)

UMITE Studiert | nang Limite

USAF GP NG 11 Managernent Lmiled

USAF LF Lrmviad (0584087 4)™

USAF Monagemant GP No 14 bnited

USAF Management GP ~No.15 mited

USAF Monogement GP Me. 16 limdec

USAF Managament GP No 17 bmited

USAF Nomenes No 7 bmited

USAF Norines No 74 Lrdedd

Zenith {Two} Lirsed

LISAF Monagement 10 Lmded

USAF Monogement 11 Lirtded

USAF sanogemert 12 Linted

USAF Managemernt |4 Limied

USAF Monagement 18 Lmited

USAF Morogement & Limded

LiSAF Management 8 Limsied

USAF Maragerment mided

LD (Fairy Lona 2t GP | imitea !S0.00%)

LDC (Fery Lone 2 GP 2 irrded [50.00%)

LEC {Fary Lone 2 Limisd Partnersnip (50 00%)
LEC [Farry Lone 2) Managernant Lmiad “anershio
(50.00%)

LDC (Stratford} GPI Limned {50.00%)
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LSAV(Sioplelon] GP2 irmited {50.00%)

Urte Caprial Citees Lrated Portnership [50 O0%)

Unite Capsial Cifies Two umited Partnershyp (50 00%)
USAF Management NO |5 Limited Partnership (23.20%)
USAF Management No. |6 Lirmited Porinersings (ZL 0%
USAF Monogement No. 17 Lmited Parinership [23.20%)
USAF Mo |5 Umited Portnenship (23.20%)

Fibert Vikage Student Accommeodaton Limded
Partnership [22.90%)

Forster Hal Limited Parmershe (22.90%)
Sludent Hak Nominees Lirtracd (22.50%}

USAF Managernent NO 18 LP {Z2.90%]

USAF GP Na ¢ Uimited (14.40%)
USAF GP No 10 Lirded {14.40%)
USAF GP No 11 Urmrded {14.40%}
USAF GP No 12 Umiled (14.40%}
USAF GP Na | 4 Umitedt {14 40%}
USAF GP Mo 4 Limited {1.4.40%)
USAF GP Mo 15 Limited {14 40%}
USAF GF Mo 18 Lemeiedt {1 4.40%)
USAF GP No SLrmted {14.40%)
USAF GP Na 6 Limited {14.40%)
USAF GP No 8 Lrted (14.40%)

Regisiered office: 13 Caslle Sireel, 5t Heller, Jersey, JE4 SUT

LDC (Gt Suffok 5t} Unet Trust

LDC [ansheid) Undt Trust

LDC (3t Pancros Woy) Ut Triust
LDC (Thurso Sréet) Unit Trust

L5AV (Jersery Manager) Linited
Unhe {Capllcl Citles) Jersey Limned!
UNITE Jarsery issuer Lrmitea®

Registered office: Third Floor, La Ploiderie Chambers, $i Peler Porl, Guemsey, GY1 IWG

USAF Feracler Guermsey Limrled (45.20%)]
USAF 15F Urnt Trust (23.20%)

Regisiered office: Third Flioor. Barciays House, Victoria Sireet. Douglas, (sle of Man, M1 20E

Leadmill Road Student Accormmaodiation Ut Tryst
Lennon Stucios Student Accommodokon Ure Trust

USAF jersey investments Lmsed
USAF Jersey Manoger Limded

LDC {Feery Lane 2) Und Trust (S0.00%)
LDC (Srottord) Unit "rust {S000%,)
LSAY [Hoidings) Urnted (S0.00%)
LSAY [Trustes) trmited (SG.00%)
LSAV uUnd Trost (SC.00%;

USAF Porticlio 15 Unit Trust (23.20%)
USAF Porfichio 16 Unlt Tnst [Z3.20%)

Tha Roiyard $tudent Accommaodation Unit Trust

Regisierad office: Saltire Court, 20 Cashe Terrace, Edinburgh, EH1 2 EN

L5AY {GP) rmied {50 00%}

* Heid directly by the Company.

LSAV [Property Hokdings) LP {50.00%)

USAF Nomnee No |84 Limited {14 40%)
USAF Nomminee No | A Lrited (14.40%)
USAF Norminee No 5 Umited (14 40%)
USAF Nomminee No SA Limited (14.407%)
USAF Nommnee NG & Lmied (14,40%)
USAF NOmmneea No &A Limded (14.40%)
USAF Nominea Mo 8§ Limaed | | 4.40%}
USAF Normnee No A Limded (14.40%)
USAF RCC Lirnited) {14 40%}

UNITE Capal Ciies Unt Trust (S0.00%)
Stuctant Hols Long Lace | et Thust (22 S0%}
USAF Poxifol ¥ Unid Trust {22.90%)

LDC [Naim Streef] Unit Trust (22.80%!
UNITE UK Stuaent Aceommodation Fund (14.40%}

USAF Portolo 17 Umit Trust {23.20%,)

fibert Sreet Student Accommodalion Unit Trust (22.90%)

** The company is exampt fom the requirements of the Companies Act relating to the audit ofindvidua accounts by virtue of 54794 for the financal yeor

ended 31 December 2014,
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Section 8: Company subsidiaries and joint ventures continued

Registered office: The Core, 40 5t Thomas Sireed, Bristol, BST 41X

LOC [Skatford) GP2 Limited {SO.00%) USAF Nor | Urndded Partnerstup (22.90%) USAF HOMINGs B Limiterd (14.40%)

LDC [Skatfford) bnited Parthershe (SD.00%) USAF NO 1Q bimitad Parnessre [2.90%] VUSAF Holdings C Limted {14.40%)

LSAV (Angel ione) GP | Lmited [SO.00%} USAFNO 11 Limited Parnersrp [22.90%) USAF Holchngs F Limitect (14 40%)

LSAY {Angel Lane) GP2 Umiled (SD00%) USAF o 1] Management Lmted Parineship [22.50%] USAF Holdings G biited (1 4.40%)

LSAV (Anged Lane) Limited Perinerstep (S0.00%) USAF No 12 Limited Parnershe (22 90%) USAF Holdings H Lirmitedt {1 4.40%;

LSAY [Anget Lone) Monogerment Limied Partnershu USAF N 14 mitex Portrersr (22.900%) USAF Holdings | Limubad {1 4 40%,)

(SO00%) USAF ND 14 Monagement Limiled Parnenshit 122 90%) USAF Hoidings J Linnited {1 4.407%)

LSAV {Stapleton) mited Parnershis (50 00%} USAF No 18 Urmited Parnershep [22.50%) USAF Hodings Lmved ((4.40%,)

LSAV {Stapleton} Management Limited Aartnarsnip USAF No 6 Umited Parinarshep (22.90%) USAF Nommea No 1 Limvted (14.40%;

(S000%) USAF No 8 Umred Partnerstwp (22590%) USAF Norminee Mo 10 Limited {14 4% O

LAY {Skratford) Management Lmited Partnership LOC {Morm Sirmet) Limided Parinershe (22.80%,) USAF Nominss No 104 Limated (1 4.40%) 9

15000%) LOC {cam Stroot] Management Limded Parinershio USAF Nominee Na 11 rmded (14 40%) 3

LSAV (Wemcley) GP | Limied (50.00%) {22.80°) USAF Nomuines No 114 Limitect {14 40%; Q.

LSAV (Wemiley) GP2 Lmited (SC.00%) Fibert Viloge GP Urriled (14 40%) USAF Nominee No 12 Umred (14 20%) 3

LSAV {Wembley) Lirded Portnerst (50 0GK) Forsher Holl GP Liretedt (14 40%) USAF Nomnee No 124 Limited {14.40%] Q

LSAV {Wernbley} Managemenl Lrred Partnersty LOC iNawn Street) GP | Linited {14.40%] USAF Nomunee No 14 Limwled [14.40%) <

(50.00%) LDC (Ncwm Street) GP 2 Linitec {1 4.40%) USAF NOminea No 14A Lrnited {1 4.40%) 2

LiAVi{stopieion] GP Lmted (50.00%) USAF Finonce R mded (14.40%) USAF Nomnee No 18 Lsrvied! (14 40%} §
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FINANCIAL RECORD

201 A5 014 2013 2012
EPRA MNAY per share [pence) 446 579 434 382 5o
IFRS NAV per share (pence} 653 574 416 370 321
EPRA net assets (Em) 1.557 1,394 881 682 567
IFRS net assets (Em) 1,452 1275 843 653 518
Managed portfolic value [£m;) 4,327 3827 2951 2736 2688
LTV adjusted see-through (%) MR 5% A3% 49% 52%
EPRA eamings [£m) 81 50 a3 23 is
Profit/floss) before tax (£m} 0 a8 108 77 126
EPRA eqrnings per share [pence) 28 % 17 18 10
Adjusted EPRA ecrnings per share {pence| o] 23 17 14 10
IFRS eamings per share (pence! m 164 53 46 78
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Nofice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of The Unite Group pic ithe Compariy| will be heid at 3 Rivergate, Temple
Quay. Bristol BS1 4GD at 10.00am on 11 May 2017 for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing Resolufions | to 14 as
ardinary resclutions and Resolutions 15 10 18 qs special resolutions.

Ordinary Resoiutions

Annual Report and Accounts

1. Toreceive the audited Annual Accsunts of the Company for the yeor ended 31 December 2014 together with the Directors’
Report. the Strategic Report and the auditors’ report on those annual accounts {the Annual Report and Accounts}.

Directors' Remuneration Report
2. Toapprove the Directors’ Remuneration Report contoined within the Annual Report ang Accounts,

Finat dividend
3. Todeckre a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 of 12.0p per ordinary share paycible on 19 May 2017
fo sharehokders on ihe register of members of the Company at the close of busingss on 21 April 2017.

Re-slection of Directors
4, Tore-elect Mr P M White as a Director of the Company.

5. Tore-elect Mr RS $mith as ¢ Director of the Company.

6. Tore-elect Mr J JLister as a Director of the Company.

7. Tore-elect MrR C Simpson as a Director of the Company.

8. Tore-elect Mrs M Walstenholme as a Director of the Company.

9. Tore-elect Sir Tim Wilson as a Director of the Company.

10. Tore-elect Mr A Jones os a Director of the Company.

1. Tore-elect Ms Elizabeth McMeikan as a Director of the Company.

Avuditors

12. Toreappoint Deloitte LLP as auditors of the Company 1o hold office until the conclusion of the next generol meeting at which
accounts are laid before the Company.

13. To authorise the Directors to determine the remuneratfion of the auditors.

Authority to allot shares
14, That, in substitution for any equivalent authorities and powers granted to the Directors prior to the passing of this Resalution, the
Directors be and are generally and unconditionally authorised pursuant 1o Section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 [the Act):

(a) To exercise all powers of the Company to allot shares in the Company, and grant rights to subscribe for or fo convert any
security into shores of the Compony (such shares, and rights 1o subscribe for or to convert any security info shares of the
Company being “relevant securities”), up to on aggregate nominal amaunt of £18.505,732 representing approximalely one
third of the nominal value of the ssued ordinary shore capital of the Comparny as at 22 Fetwuary 20171, such amount to be
reduced by the nominal amount of any allotments or gronts made under paragroph (bl beiow in excess of £18,505,732

(b] To allot equity securities {as defined in Section 560(1) of the Act) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £37,011,464
{representing approximately two-thirds of the nominal value of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as
at 22 February 2017] (such amount to be reduced by the neminal amount of any allotments or grants made under
paragraph {a) above) in connection with an offer by way of rights issue:

() Infavourof holders of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company, where the equity securities respectively
atfributabie fo the interasts of such holders are proportionate (s nearly as practicable) to the respective number
of ordinary shares in the capital of he Company held by them
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
CONTINUED

{} Toholders of any other equity securities as required by the rights of those securities or as the Directors otherwise
consicder neCessary

bt subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors may deem necassary or expedient to deol with

in relation to treasury shares, fractional entitiements or legal, regulctory or practical problems arising under the kaws or
requirements of any overseas teritory or by virtue of shares baing representad by depository receipts or the requirements
of any relevant regulatory body o stock exchange or any ofher matier whatsoever, provided that this authority shall expire
{uniess previously renewed, vared, extended or revoked by the Company in general meeting} on the date falling 15 months
from the passing of this resolution o, if eartier, at the conclusion of the next Annual Generol Meeting of the Company to be
held following the passing of this resolution, save that the Company may at any time before such expiry make an offer or
enfer into an agreemeant which woukl or might require relevant securities to be atlotted after such expiry and the Directors
may aliot relavant securities in pursuarce of such offer or agreement as if this authority had not expired.

Special Resolutions
Authority to disapply pre-empiion rights

15.

That if Resalution 14 [Authority to allot shares) s passed, the Board be authorised to allot equity securities jas defined in the
Componies Act 2006] for cash under the authority given by that resolution ond/or to sel ordinary shares held by the Company
as treaswry shares for cash as if Section 561 of the Companies Act 2005 did not appty to any such aliotment or sale. such
authority 1o be limited:;

(o) To cllotments for rights issues ang other pre-emptive issues and

(b} Tothe allotment of equity securities or sale of freasury shares [otherwise than under paragraph (G} above) up to @ nominal
amount of £2,775,859 [this amournt representing not more than 5% of the issued ordinary share copital of the Company as
at 22 February 2017},

such guthority to expire at the end of the next Annuol General Meeting of the Company [or, if earlier, at the close of business
on 10 August 2018, this being the dote which is fifleen months affer the date of this meeting) but, in each case, prior to ifs expiry
the Company rnay moke oMers, and enter into agreements, which would, or might, require equity securities 1o be alictted land
freasury shares to be sold) after the authority expires and the Board may alict equity securities [and sell treasury shares) under
any such offer or agreement as if the authority had not expired.

. That if Resohstion 14 (Authority to alict shores) (s passed, the Board be authorised in addition to any authority granted under

Resolution 15 to aliot equity securities (as defined in the Companies Act 2006} for cash under the authority given by that
resolution and/or fa sell ordinary shares held by the Company as treasury shares for cash as if Section 561 of the Companies
Act 20046 did nat apply to any such allotment or sale. such authority to be:

{o) Limited to the aliotment of aquity securities or sale of treasury shares up 1o a nominal amount of £2,775,85% {this amaunt
rapresenting not more than 5% of the issued ondinary share capital of the Company as at 22 February 2017); ond

{b) Used only for the purposes of financing {or refinancing, if the outhority is to ber used within six months after the original
transaction} a fransaction which the Board of the Company delermines to be an acquisition or other capitat investment
of a kind contempiated by the Statement of Principies on Disapplying Pre-Emption Rights most recently published by the
Pre-Emption Group prics fo fhe dafe of this notice,

such authority to expire af the and of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company (or. if earlier, at the close of business
on 10 August 2018, this being the date which is fifteen months after the date of this meeting} but, in each case, prior to its axpiry
the Company may make offers, and enter into agreements, which would, or might, require equity securities 1o be aliotied [jond
treasury shares 1o be sold) after the authoerity expires and the Board may aliot equity securilies {and selt freasury shares) under
any such offer or agreament as if the outhority had not expired.
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To amend Aricle 94 (Directors' fees) of the Articles of Assoclation
17. That, Arficle 94 (Directors' fees) of the Articles of Association be amended by deleting the existing Article 94 and replacing it
with the following:

“The Direciors [other than alternate Direclors) shall be eniifled to receive by way of fees for their services as Directors such surmn
as the Board may from time 1o time determing (not exceeding £750,000 per annum in aggregate or such other sum as the
Company in general meeting shall from time to fime determine). Such sum [unless otherwise directed by the resolution of the
Company by which it is voted} shall be divided among the Directors in such proportions and in such manner as the Board may
delerrmine or in defauit of such determination, equally (except that in such event any Director holding office for less than the
whole of the relevont period in respect of which the fees are paid shall only rank in such division in proportion fo the time during
such period for which he holds oifice). Any fees payable pursuant to this Arficie shall be distinct from any solary, remuneration
ar other amounts payaoble to a Director pursuant te any other provisions of ihese Articies and sholl accrue from day fo day.”

Nofice of general mestings
18. THAT, a general meeting other than an Annual General Mesting. may be called on not less than 14 Clear days’ notice.

By order of the Board
Christopher 3zpojnarowicz

Company Secretary
22 February 2017

asuWLBA0E epoiodio))

Registered office:

The Cora

40 St Thomas Street Bristol
BST 6JX

Registered in England and Wales with registered number 03199160
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
CONTINUED

Mot
I

23

A mearnber of the Company who wishas 1o attend the meeting in person shouid amive af 3 Rivargale, Tempie Quay, 8ristol 851
6GD in goed time before the meeting, which will commence at 10.00am In order to gain admittance 1o the mesting, members
may be requined o oroduce thelr attendance card, which is attached ta the form of proxy enclosed with this document, or
otherwise prove their identity,

A member of the Company who is entitied o ctlend, speak and vate al the meeting and whe is unable or does not wish to
attend the maeting is entitted to appoint a proxy to exercise oll or any of his/her rights to attend and to speak and vote on his/
her behalf at the mesating. A member may appoint more than one proxy provided each proxy is appointed to exercise rights
attached to different shares (so a member myust have mere than one share to be able lo oppoint more than one proxyl. A
proxy need not be a member of the Company but must atiend the meeting o represent hisfher appointing member. Appointing
a proxy will not prevent a member from otfending in person and voting ot the meeting olthough voting in person of the meeting
will terminate a member's proxy appoiniment. A proxy must vote in accordance with any instructions given by the member

by whom the proxy is oppointed. A form of proxy which moy be used to moke such appointment and give proxy instructions
occompanies this notice, You can only oppaoint a proxy using the procedures set out in these notes and the notes 1o the

proxy form.

Yo be valid, any form of prosty. and the ongingl or duly certified copy of the power of attomey or ather authority {if any} under
which it is signed or authenticated, must be received by hond or by post at Computershare Investor Services pic, The Paviiions,
Bridgwater Road, Bristol, BS¥9 67, no kater than 10.00am on ? May 2017.

CREST mernbers who wish 1o appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appoiniment service may do so
for the meeting and any adjournment(s) thereof by folkowing the procedures described in the CREST manual. CREST personal
members or other CREST sponsored memibcers, and those CREST members who have appointed a voting service provider,
shouid refer 1o their CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s), who will be able 1o take Ihe gppropriate oction on their behalf,

In oer for a proxy appointment or instruction made by means of CREST to be valid, the appropriate CREST rmessage {a CREST
Proxy Instruction) must be properly authenlicated in occordance with Eurociear UK & Irelond Limited's (Eurocieor) specifications,
and must contain the informatian required for such instruction, as described in the CREST Manual. The message, regordiess of
whether it constitutes the appointment of a proxy, the revocation of G proxy or is an amendment to the instruction given to a
previcusly appainted proxy must, in order to be a valid, be transmitted so as 10 be received by the Company's agent (CREST ID
3RA50) by the Iatest time for receipt of praxy appointments specified in note 3 above. For this purpaose, the time of receipt wilk
be taken fo be the fime {as determined by the imesiamp applied fo the rmessage by the CREST Application Host) from which
the Company’s agent is abie to retrieve the message by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST. After this time
any change of instructions fo proxies appointed through CREST shoukd be cormmunicated 10 the appoiniee throwgh other means.

CREST members and, where applicabie, their CREST sponsors or vating service praviders, shauld nole that Eurociear does not
make available speciol procedures in CREST for any particukar message. Normal system timings ond limitations will, therefore,
apply in relation to the input of CREST proxy instructions, (tis the responsibility of the CREST member concernied to take [or, i the
CREST member is 0 CREST personol membaey, or sponsored member, or has appointed o voting service provider, ta procure
that his/har CREST sponsor or voling service provider(s) lake(s)) such action as shall be necessaty to ensure that a message is
fransmitted by means of the CREST systern by any particular time. In this connection, CREST members and, where applicable.
their CREST sponsors or voling service providers are refevred, in particular, to those sections of the CREST monual concerming
practical limitations of the CREST system and timings.

The Company moay freat as invalid a CREST proxy instruction in the Sircurmstances set out in Regulation 35(5) (a) of the Uncerificated
Securities Regulotions 2001 jas omended).

It you would like to submit your proxy vote via the internet, you can do so ty accessing our registrar’s website
[www.eproxyappointment,com)., You will require the control numier, your unique PIN (which will @xpire af the end of the voting
period) and your Sharehaoider Reference Number [SRN), printed on the proxy card, in order to log in and submit your proxy vote
electronically. You can access this site from any internet enalbled PC. If you submit your proxy via the intemet it should reach the
registrar by 10.00am on 9 May 2017. Should you complate your proxy form electronically and then post a hard copy. the farm
that arrives kast will be counted 1o the exclusion of instructions received earlier, whether electronic or posted, Please refer to the
terms and conditions of the service on the website.

In the casa of joint holders of shares, where rmore than one of the joint holders purports to appaoint a proxy, onty the appointment
submitted by the maost senior hokder will be accepted. Seniority is detarmined by the order in which the names of thea joint
holders appear in the Company's register of members in respect of the joint holding (the first-named being the most senior}.

if you submit more than onea valid proxy appointment in respec! of ine sarme shares, the appointiment received I0st before the
latest time for the receipt of proxies will take precedence.
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Any person 1o whom this notice has been sent who i @ person nominated under Section 146 of the Act fo enjoy information
rights [a Nominated Person] may, under an agreement between him/her and the shareholder by whom hefshe was nominated,
have aright 1o be appointed [or to have someona else appointed) as O proxy for the meeating, If a Nominated Perscn has no
such proxy appointment right or does not wish to exercise it, hae/she may, under any such agreement, have a right to give
instructions to the shareholder as to the exercise of voting rights.

The staternent of the rights of shareholders in relation lo the appointment of proxies above does not opply 1o Nominated
Persons. These rights can only be exercised by shareholders of the Company.

Pursuant to Part 13 of the Companias Act 2006 and Reguiation 41 of the Uncerfificated Securities Reguiations 2001 (as amended],
the Company specifies that onty those shareholders registered in the register of members of the Company at 5.000m on § May
2017 [or. if the meeting is adjourned, 48 hours before the timed fixed for the adjourned meseting] shall be entitied 1o attend or
vota at the meeling in respect of the number of shares regisiered in their name of that time. In each case. changes fo the
register of members of the Company after such time shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any person 1o attend

or vote at the meeting.

As at 22 February 2017 (being the jast practicoble businass day prior fo the publication of this Notice), the Cormpany's issued
share capital comprised 222,048,787 ordinary shares carrying one vote each at a general meeting of the Company. No
ordinary shares were held in treasury and therefore the total voting rights in the Company as at 22 February 2017 are 222,068,787.

You may not use any elecironic address provided either in this notice of meeting or any refated documents {including the proxy
form) to communicate with the Company for any purposes ofher than those expressty siated.

Memibers atiending the meeting have the right to ask and, subject to the provisions of the Act, the Company must cause to be
answered, any questions relating to the business being decalt with at the meeting.

The following information is available at www.unite-group.co.uk (1) the matiers set out in this notice of Annual General Meeting:
[2) the total numbers of shares in the Company in respect of which members are entitled to exercise voting rights at the meeting:
[3} the totols of the voting rights that members are entitied to exercise at the meeting: and [4) members' siatements, members’
resclutions and members' matters of business received by the Company afler the date on which notice of the meeting

was given,

It is possible that, pursuant to requasts made by members of the Company under Section 527 of the Act, the Company may
be required to publish on a website a statement setting out any maltier relating to: {a) the audit of the Company’s accaunts
{including the auditor's report and the conduct of the audit) that are to be laid before the meeting: or (b} any circumstance
connected with an auditor of the Company ceasing to hold office since the previous meeting at which annual accounts and
reports were loid in accordance with Section 437 of the Act, The Company may nol require the members requesting any such
wabsite publication 1o pay its expenses in complying with Sections 527 or 528 of the Act. Where the Company is required fo
place a statement on o website under Section 527 of the Act, it must forward the statement fo the Company's auditor not kater
than the time when it makes the siatement avaikible on the website. The business which may be dealt with ot the meeting
includes any statement that the Company has been required under Saction 527 of the Act to publish on o website.

In accordance with Saction 338 of the Act, a member or mambers of the Compony may (provided that the criteria set out

in Section 338(3] of the Act are met} require the Company to give to members notice of a resolution which may properly

be moved and is intfended to be maved at the meeting, provided that: (o} the resolution must not be, if passed, ineffective
{whether by reason of inconsistency with any enactment or the Company's constitution or otherwise); and (b} the resolution
must nat be defematory of any person. frivolous or vexatious. Such a request may be in hard copy form or in electronic form,
must be authenticated by the person or persons making it, must identify the resolution of which notice is to be given and must
be received by the Company not laler than six weeks belore the meeting, or, If later, the time at which notice is given of the
meeling, {In the foregoing sentence, the ferms "hard copy form', ‘electronic form' and ‘authenticated’ bear their respective
meanings set aut in the Act in relation to o communication. or a document or information sent or supplied, o a company.}
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
CONTINUED

20. In occordance with Section 338BA of the Act. o member or members of the Company may [provided that the criteria set out
in Section 338A (3| of the Act are mel] requine the Campany to include in the business to be deall with at the meeting a matter
{other than a proposed resolution] which may property be included in the business of the meeting, provided that the matter is
not dafamatory of any person, frivolous or vexatious. A request may be in hard copy form or @lectronic form, must identify the
mater to be included in the business, must be occompanied by o statement setting out the grounds for the request, must be
authenticated by the person or persons making it and must be received by the Company not kater than six weeks before the
meeting, or, if later, the time at which notice is given of the Annuai General Meeting. (In the faregoing sentence, the terms "hard
copy lorm', ‘electronic fom' and ‘authenticated’ bear the respective meaonings set out in the Aci in rastation o 0 communication,
or a document or information sent or supplied, to o compony.)

21. A merber that is @ company or other organisation not having a physical presence cannot atiend in person but can appaint
someone 1o represent it. This can be done in ene of two ways: either by the appointment of a proxy {0s described in the notes
above| or of a corporate reprasenialive. Members considering the appointment of a corponate rapnasentafive shoukd check
their own legal position, the Company's arficles of association and the relevant provisions of the Act.

22, The following documents are availabie for inspection at the registered office of the Company during the usual business hours
on any weekday (Saturday, Sunday ar public holidays excluded) from the date of this notice until the conclusion of the meating
and will also be availabie for inspection at the ploce of the meeting fram 9.15am on the day of the meeting untilits conclusion:
(o) copies of the Executive Drectors’ service controcts with the Company and any of its subsidiary undertokings; and

{b) leters of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors.
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GLOSSARY

Adjusted EPRA eamings

Adjusted EPRA earnings are prepared
on the basis of EPRA eomings excluding
the yield related elernent of the USAF
periormance fee.

Adjusted EPRA eamings per share
The eamings per share based on adjusted
EPRA eamings.

Adjusied net debt

The Group's debt, net of cash and
unamortised debt raising costs, excluding
the mark to market of interest rates swaps.,

Adjusted net debt

fo property assetls

The adjusted net debt os a percantage
of the value of Unite properties.

Basis points (BPS)

A basis point is o term used to describe a
small percentage. usually in the context
of change. and equates 1o 0.01%.

Direct let

Properties where short-hold tenancy
agreements are made directly between
Unite and the student,

EBITDA

The Group's EPRA earnings before
charging inferest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation. Tha profit number is used ta
calculate the ratic o net debot,

EPRA eamings

EPRA eamings are prepored on the basis
recormmended for real estate companies
by EPRA, the European Public Reol Estate
Association. This excludes movements
reloting to changes in values of
investment properties and intgrest rate
swaps ond the related tax effects.

EPRA eamings per share
The earnings per shore based on
EPRA samings.

EPRA NAV

EPRA NAV is prepared on the basis
recommended for real estate companies
by EFRA, the European Public Reol Estale
Associition. Thisincludes all property

ot market value but excludes the mark

to market of interest rate swaps. Thisis
recommended by EPRA s G measure

of nef assefs.

EPRA net asset value per share
The diluted NAY per share figure based
on EPRA NAV.

EPRA NNNAY

As EPRA NAV but includes both debt
and interest rate swaps camied at market
value. This s ecommended by EPRA

as a ‘spot’ fair value net asset measure.

Financing costs

Gross financing costs net of interest
capitafised into developments ond
interest received on deposits,

Gross asset value

The Graup's wholly owned property
portfciio together with the share of the
Joint Ventures property portfolio.

Gross financing costs

This includes all interest paid by the
Group, including those capitalised
inlo developments and operating
lease rentals.

it includes all receipts and payments
under inferest rate swaps whether they
are effective or ineffective ynder IFRS
as economically they all hedge interest
rale exposuras.

Interest cover ratio (ICR)

The interest cover ratio is the income
genematad by a property as a multiple of
the interest charge on the debt secured
on the property.

151

Lease

Properties which are leased to Universities
for a number of years and have no Unite
management presence.

LSAV

The London Student Accommedation
Joint Venture [LSAV] is a joint venture
between Unite and GIC, alongside UCC.
Boih Unite ond GIC have o 50% stake
and LSAV has the some maturity date as
UCC (September 2022), It is the primary
vehicle through which Unite undertakes
development activity in London and it
has right of fiest refusal over Unite’s London
development pipeline projects until such
tirme as ifs capital investrment targets aore
met. LSAV and UCC were merged during
2012 and the new combined entity is
refermed 10 Qs LSAV,

Net debt: EBITDA

The Group see-through debt, net of cash
and unamortised debt raising costs and
excluding mark to market of interest rale
swaps as a proportion of EBITDA,

Net intial yield (NIY or yield)

The net operating income genefoted by
o property expressed as @ percentage
of ifs vatue, taking into account notionat
acquisition costs,

Net operating income (NO1)

The rental income from rental properties
less those operating costs directly related
to the property, thenefore excluding
central overhead.

Net rental growth

The annual grawth in net operating
incame [measuned on ¢ like-for-like
basis, ie axcluding impact of completion
and disposals).
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GLOSSARY
CONTINUED

Nominatlons

Properties where Universities hove
antered info o contract 1o guarantee
occupancy. The Universities nominate
students to live in the building and Unite
enters into short-hokd tenancies with
the students,

Non-core assels

Propertias that do not fit with the Group’s
long-term investment strotegy because of
thex location or their size.

Overhead efficiency

The Group's overneod efficiency
measures shows operating expeanses,

net of management fees, ot a proportion
ol the gross asset vaiue.

Rental

Investment and completed properties
whose consfruction has been completed
and are used by the Operations segment
to generate net portiolio contribution.

Sale and leaseback
Properties that have been sold to

< third party investor then leased
back to the Company. Unite is also
rgsponsible for the management of
thase assets on behaif of the owner,

See-through

See-through refers to the Group's whaolly
owned assets or liabilities in oddiiion

to the share of the joint vantures (USAF
and LSAV) assets or liabilities.

Tolal income from

managed portiolio

This measure inclicatas the overall scae
of the property porifolio thot the Groug
manages. it comprises rental and related
income, totalling £304.9 million from
properties owned by Unite and its
co-invesiment vehicles.

The Group's share of this gross income
is showmn In note 2.2(a).

USAF/THE FUND

The Unite UK Student Accommadation
Fund [USAF) s Europe’s lorgest fund that
purely focuses on completed income
praviding student accommodation
investment assets. The fundisan
open-ended infinite fite vehicle which
hos unigque buying access to Unite's
development pipeline. Unite acts as
fund manager for the fund, s weil as
owning a significant minority stake.
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COMPANY INFORMATION

Unile Group Execulive Team
Richord $Smith
Chief Executive Officer

Joe Uster
Chief Financicl QOfficer

Richard Simpson
Group Property Director

Registered Office
The Core

40 5t Thomas Street
Bristol BS1 6JX

Registered Number in England
3199160

Company Secretary
Christopher Szpoinarowicz

Auditor

Delolite LLP

2 New Street Square
London EC4 382

Financial Advisers
J.P. Morgan Cazenove
25 Bank Street

London Eid 5JP

Numis Securfiles

The London Stock Exchange Building
10 Paternocster Square

London EC4M 71T

Registrars

Compulershare investor Services pic
PO Box 82

The Paviions

Bridgwater Road

Bristol B§S9% 7NH

Financial PR Consuitants
BSell Potlinger

Holborn Gafe
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OTHER INFORMATION

THIS REPORT IS COMPLEMENTED

BY A RANGE OF ONLINE INFORMATION
ABOUT OUR BUSINESS INCLUDING OUR
OPERATIONS AND PROPERTY DIVISIONS,
OUR MARKETS, AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY.

WHERE TO
F' N D M 0 R E WHULW.UNITE-GROUP.CO.UK



The Unite Grouvp pic

The Core

40 St Thomas Street
Bristol BS1 &JX

+44 (0] 117 302 7000
info@unite-students.com

www,unile-group.co.uk
www,unifesfudents.com



